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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
DIVISION BENCH - I, AHMEDABAD

CA (CAA)/25(AHM) 2024

[Application under Sections 230-232 and read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of
Absorption
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And
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For Applicant(s): Mr. Saurabh Soparker Sr. Advocate A.w.
Ms. Swati Soparkar, Advocate

ORDER
Per: Bench

1. This is a Joint Company Application  Viz.,
CA(CAA)/25(AHM) /2024 filed by the Applicant Companies,
namely Suzlon Global Services Limited (for brevity
“Transferor Company”), and Suzlon Energy Limited (for
brevity “Transferee Company”) under section 230-232 of
Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in relation
to the Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Absorption)
(hereinafter referred to as the “SCHEME”) proposed by the
Applicant Companies. The said Scheme is also appended as
“Annexure - H” to the typed set filed along with the

Application.

2. The rationale of the Scheme of Amalgamation stated in the

proposed Scheme is as under: -
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2.1. The Transferee Company is primarily engaged in the
business of manufacturing and supply of WTG while the
Transferor Company is engaged in the business via the
following undertakings, viz., OMS undertaking and
other business undertakings. The Transferor Company
is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee

Company.

2.2. The energy and climate policies being implemented by
major economies worldwide, demonstrate a remarkable
level of ambition and commitment to supporting wind
energy and other renewable energy sources. These
developments signal a promising future for the growth
and advancement of renewable energy and renewable
energy technologies propelling the industry to redefine
and forge innovative partnerships with governments,
cities, communities, investors, and customers. There is
increase in the demand of the wind capacity on account
of increased wind, solar, hybrid, RTC and FDRE tenders,
national hydrogen mission, MNRE's removal of tariff

ceiling, improved technology, industrial tariffs and
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demand of wind energy from commercial and industrial
consumers, power storage and central government
allocations under strong off-takers. The Transferor and
Transferor ~companies, founded with a deep
understanding of the environment and sustainable
development, have been at the forefront of renewable
energy as a key solution provider since their inception.
By combining forces, the Companies aim to create a
more robust and competitive entity that is well-equipped
to navigate the complexities of the national and

international renewable energy landscape.

2.3. The amalgamation will consolidate the business of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
which will result in focused growth, operational
efficiencies and business synergies of the WTG business
and OMS business. In addition, resulting corporate
holding structure will bring enhanced agility to the
business ecosystem of the merged entity. Further the
amalgamation could potentially reap strategic benefits

including but not limited to the following;

Z \p/
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a. Stronger financial position: In an increasingly
competitive global market, the financial strength of a
company plays a critical role in its ability to secure
large contracts and continue to expand consistently,
Moreover, as the turbines have life cycle of 25 to 30
years, the customers are more likely to rely on an OEM
whose presence can be assured across the lifecycle. A
stronger balance sheet helps build a value proposition
for customers making it a key metric to award bigger
projects to financially sound organisations. A strong
net worth signifies that the company possesses
enough financial resources to successfully complete
larger projects without negative repercussions, It gives
the assurance and confidence to stakeholders about
the company's capability to take on, deliver, and
succeed in high stakes contracts.

The merger of the Transferor Company into the
Transferee Company would help in strengthening the
financial robustness, resulting in a highly fortified

b
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standalone balance sheet and profit and loss

statement which benefits the Companies as follows:

i) stronger financial health plays a strategic role in
enhancing the consolidated entity's potential to
bid, secure and execute big-ticket contracts in the
domestic as well as overseas markets: and

i) Positioning the consolidated organisation more
aggressively and perceptibly in the global markets
thus paving the way for a stronger international
presence and tapping back into the overseas

markers broadening the client base.

b. Contracting: Some of the customers are inclined more
towards contracts with single entity, demonstrating a
clear preference for dealing with a single entity for
both WTG delivery and OMS services. For some
customers (e.g. PSU customers) it is a mandatory
tender condition to participate for both WTG delivery
and OMS services from single entity,

4~

F
¥ -

CA (CAA)/2E(AHM) 2024
Suzlon Global Services Limited and,
Suzion Energy Limited
& of 38



c. Elimination of inter-company outstanding: There are
inter-company loans between the two entities and
elimination of this leads to a stronger, more resilient
financial position and enhanced business's
creditworthiness. Moreover, the freed-up capital can
be reallocated to other productive areas, further
strengthening the company's financial stability and

growth prospects,

d. Efficient utilization of resources: Post-merger, the
consolidated business can strategically manage
finances which shall help optimize the cash flow. The
unified cash flow management system provides an
opportunity to reallocate resources effectively,
reinvesting in areas that promise better returns. With
shared financial goals, the consolidated business can
leverage collective cash flow to fund growth
opportunities, thereby tapping the new and bigger
business opportunities market is offering in an

effective manner.

L._.
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Unfettered access to cash flow generated by the
combined businesses which can be deployed more
efficiently to fund organic and inorganic growth
opportunities and to maximize shareholders value; It
strengthens the dividend paying abilities of the

Transferee company.

¢.  Streamlining of group structure and benefit of combined
resources: The proposed amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company
will create a streamlined group structure which will

assist in more efficient utilization of the capital.

. Efficiency in business operations of the WI'G business
and OMS business: The proposed amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferéee Company is
expected to create greater efficiency due to economies
of scale, elimination of duplication of work and
rationalisation and reduction of compliance
requirements;

!,V,-' P
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g. Sharing of best practices in sustainability, safety,
health and environment: Adoption of improved safety,
environment and sustainability practices owing to a
centralised committee at combined level may provide
focused approach towards safety, environment and
sustainability  practices resulting in  overall

improvements.

2.4, The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company will combine the business,
activities and operations of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company into a single company with
effect from the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter)
and shall be in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, and rules framed there under
including Section 2(1B) thereof or any amendments

thereto,

3. The Applicant Companies in this Company Application has

sought for the following reliefs:
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EqQuiTy PREF. SECURED | UNSECURE
SHAREHO | SHAREHOL | CREDITOR D
LDERS DERS s CREDITORS
MEETING | MEETING | MEETING | MEETING
TRANSFEROR To To Convene | Convene
COMPANY Dispense | Dispense the the
with with meeting | meeting
TRANSFEREE To N.A. Convene | Convene
COMPANY Dispense the the
with meeting meeting

From the certificate of incorporation filed, it is evident that
the Transferor Company is an Unlisted Public Limited
Company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of SEL,
and it is engaged in the business of operation and
maintenance of the WTG (OMS) and other businesses. It is
originally incorporated as a private limited company on 25"
May 2004 with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, under

the name and style of “Suzlon Structures Private Limited".

The name of the Transferor Company was changed from
Suzlon Structures Private Limited to “Suzlon Structures
Limited” on getting converted into a public limited company
in terms of the special resolution passed by the shareholders

at the Fourth Annual General Meeting held on 30 July 2008

A
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and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon
change of name on conversion to a public limited company
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat on 4
September 2008. The name of the Transferor Company was
further changed from Suzlon Structures Limited to “Suzlon
Global Services Limited” in terms of the Scheme of
Amalgamation as approved by the Hon’ble High Court of
Gujarat on 14 October 2016 and a fresh certificate of
incorporation pursuant to change of name issued by the
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat on 23 January 2017. It is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Suzlon Energy Limited since 29

December 2022.

6. The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share

capital of the Transferor Company as on 315 March 2024 is

as under:

 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL AMOUNT (IN Rs.)
534,30,00,000 Equity 5343 Crores
Shares of Rs.10/- each
2,10,00,000 Preference 210 Crores

Shares of Rs. 100/- each |

' 4,50,000 Preference Shares 4500 Crores

| of Rs. 1,00,000/- each ]
Total 10,053 Crores

S
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| ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND AMOUNT (IN Rs.)
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2,93,71,254 Equity Shares 29,37 Crores
of Rs. 10/-each
10,00,000 8% Redeemable 10 Crores

Cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each
10,000 0.1% Redeemable 0.10 Crores

Non-Cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each
Total 39.47 Crores

The equity shares of the Transferor Company are not listed
on any of the Stock Exchanges.

Subsequent to 31 March 2024 and up to the date of approval
of this Scheme by the Board of Transferor Company, there
1s no change in the stated capital of the Transferor Company.
As on the date of approval of this Scheme by the Board of
Directors, the entire share capital of the Transferor Company
is held by the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the
Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Transferee Company.

7. From the certificate of incorporation filed, “Suzlon Energy
Limited”, is a listed public limited company. It was originally
incorporated on 10t April 1995 under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 1956, with the Registrar of Companies,
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Gujarat as an unlisted public limited company under the
name and style of Suzlon Energy Limited. The equity shares
of the Company got listed on 19*h October 2005 with the BSE
Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
The corporate identity number is
L40100GJ 1995PLC0O25447. Over a period of ume several

companies have been amalgamated with the said Company.

8. The authorized, issued subscribed, and paid-up share
capital of the Transferee Company as on 31% March 2024 is

as under;

 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL | AMOUNT (IN Rs.)
55 00 DU ,00, 000 Equlty 11,000 Crores
bharcs c:f Rs 2/- each
Total 11,000 Crores
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND AMOUNT (IN Rs.)
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
1363,16,20,199 Equity 2726.32 Crores
Shares of Rs. 2/-each
1361,26,88,222 2721.72 Crores
comprising of
1360,44,94,159 Equity
Shares of Rs. 2/- each
fully paid up and;
81,94,063 Equity Shares of |
Rs. 2/- each Partly paid up |
~ Total | 5448.04 Crores

Tt
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The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed
on the Stock Exchanges.

Subsequent to 315t March 2024 and up to the approval
of this Scheme by the Board of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company has not issued and allotted

shares.

9, Affidavit in support of the above application was sworn on
behalf of the applicant Companies has been filed by one Mr.
Het Shah for the Transferor Company, and by one Mr.
Anand Bagrecha for the Transferee Company along with the
application and it is also represented that the Registered
office of the Transferor Company is situated at Suzlon 5,
Shrimali Society, Near Krishna Complex, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380009 within the territorial
jurisdiction of the Bench of this Tribunal and falling within

the purview of Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad.

10. SuzLoN GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

TRANSFEROR COMPANY

e
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(i) The Applicant Transferor Company 1s an unlisted
public limited company and a Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of SEL. It is submitted that all the Equity
shares and Preference Shares are held by the holding
company directly and/or through the nominees. All
the Equity Shareholders as well as Preference
Shareholders of the said company have approved the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement in form of the
written consent letters on affidavit and have further
waived their right to attend the meeting for the said
purpose. The said consent letters are placed on record
as Annexure - 'J' and 'K'. Certificates from the
Chartered Accountant confirming the list of the Equity
Shareholders and Preference Shareholders and
further confirming the fact of receipt of the written
approval from all such Shareholders are annexed
herewith as Annexure -'J1' and 'K1'. The said
Applicant Company submits that in view of the written
consents given by all the Equity Shareholders as well

as Preference Shareholders; the meetings would be an
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empty formality resulting in delay and unnecessary
expenses. In view of the same, it is sought that
convening of the meetings of the Equity Shareholders
and Preference Shareholders of SGSL, the Applicant

Transferor Company be dispensed with.

(i)  There are 2 (Two) Secured Creditors as on 30" April
2024 and the consent Affidavits of the Secured
Creditors of the Transferor Company along with a
Certificate issued by Chartered Accountant certifying
the list of Secured Creditors is placed at Annexure L
of the Application and therefore, sought for directions
be issued for convening and holding separate

meetings of the Secured Creditor.,

(iiy  There are 3271 (Three Thousand Two Hundred and
Seventy-One) Unsecured Creditors aggregating to Rs.
15,86,45,58,561/- (Rupees One Thousand Five
Hundred Eighty-Six Crores Forty-Five Lakhs Fifty-
Eight Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-One only) of
unsecured debt as on 31 March 2024. Certificate from

a Chartered Accountant confirming the list of

2~ Lea Ol

CA (CAA)RS(AHM) 2024
Suzlon Global Services Limited and,
Suzlon Energy Limited
b af 38



unsecured creditors as on 31st March 2024 1is
annexed herewith as Annexure M of the Application
and therefore, sought for directions to be issued for

convening and holding separate meetings.

11. SuzLon ENERGY LIMITED

TRANSFEREE COMPANY

(i) The Applicant Transferee Company is a listed public
limited company and has large size of operations. The
said company has more than 43,55,000 (Forty-Three
Lakhs Fifty-Five Thousand) number of shareholders
as on 31st March 2024. Certificate from a Chartered
Accountant confirming the shareholding pattern of
the Applicant Transferee Company as on 31 March
2024 as submitted on the Stock Exchanges is annexed
in the application as Annexure N. However, it is
submitted that since SGSL, the Applicant Transferor
Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of SEL, the
Applicant Transferee Company; no shares are
required to be issued to the shareholders of SGSL

towards consideration for the proposed amalgamation
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of the Undertaking of SGSL to SEL. The Scheme does
not propose any restructure of capital and no
compromise 1s proposed with the Shareholders of the
Applicant Transferee Company. In light of this, the
rights and interests of the Equity Shareholders of SEL
are not in any way affected and hence, it is submitted
that the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of SEL is

not required to be convened,

(i) There are 3 (Three) Secured Creditors for non-fund
based facilities and the Statement indicating the brief
summary of the Secured Creditors of the Transferee
Company with details of approved limits, utilised
limits of non-fund based activities, charges created,
ete. As on 30™ April 2024 along with Certificate issued
by Chartered Accountant certifying list of Secured
Creditor is placed at Annexure O of the Application
and therefore, sought for directions to convene the
meeting. However, the Consent Affidavit submitted is

not affirmed on stamp paper.
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(i) ~ There are about 1,803 (One Thousand Eight
Hundred and Three) Unsecured Creditors
aggregating to Rs. 62,03,86,27,152/- (Rupees Six
Thousand Two Hundred and Three Crores Eighty-Six
Lakhs Twenty-Seven Thousand One Hundred and
Fifty-Two Only) of unsecured debt as on 31% March
2024. The summary statement confirming the same
as certified by a Chartered Accountant is annexed
herewith as Annexure -'P' of the Application and
therefore, sought for directions for convening of
meeting. However, the Consent Affidavits submitted

are not affirmed on stamp paper.

12. It is submitted that the contention with regard to the
dispensation of meeting of Equity Sharcholders of SEL, the
Applicant Transferee Company is supported by several
orders of this tribunal as well as other benches of NCLT as
also by the order dated 6th April 2021 of the Hon'ble NCLAT
in the matter of Ambuja Cements Limited. A copy of the
said order of Hon'ble NCLAT is annexed herewith February

as Annexure-T1l. Copy of the order dated 08 Feb 2023

s E! £
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passed in the matter of Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited
in CA (CAA) 2/NCLT/AHM/2023 is also annexed herewith
as Annexure-T2. Further it is submitted that however, if the
tribunal is not inclined to grant the said Prayers,
alternatively, directions are sought to convene separate
meetings of Equity Sharcholders, Secured Creditors and
Unsecured creditors of SEL for the purpose of considering
and approving the proposed Scheme of Arrangement at the

said meetings.

13. It is submitted by the applicants that the separate meetings
of the Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of both
the Applicant Companies, and said meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of SEL, the Applicant Transferee Company, if
directed to be convened may be called through Video
Conferencing or other Audio Visual Modes. They may be
convened on such date and at such time as this Tribunal
may direct and that the chairman be appointed for the said

meetings to be held.

%
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14. It is further submitted that SEL being a listed public limited
company, it is required to undertake the procedure of remote
e-voting or e-voting at the time of meeting for seeking
approval from the Public shareholders. Hence, necessary
directions are sought to the effect that the result of voting by
Public shareholders which shall be separately reported. In
case of the other meetings viz. Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Transferor Company and Applicant Transferee
Company, it is being sought that the voting shall be carried

out through the procedure of e-voting at the time of meeting,

15. It is further submitted that the quorum for the said meetings
be prescribed in compliance with the provisions of Sec. 103
of the Companies Act, 2013. It is suggested that quorum for
the meeting of Equity Shareholders of SEL may be
prescribed as 30 (Thirty). Quorum for the meetings of the
Secured Creditors of the Applicant Companies may be
prescribed as 01 (One) and for the meeting of Unsecured
Creditors, it may be prescribed as 15 (Fifteen), present
either in person or through authorised representative (in

case of non-individual). E’\,

&
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16. It is further submitted that the Chairman appointed for the
aforesaid meetings be directed to issue advertisements and
send out notices of the said meetings referred to above. The
Chairman of the meetings be directed to have all powers
under the Articles of Association of all the Applicant
Companies and under the National Company Law Tribunal
Rules, 2016 in relation to conduct of meeting including an
amendment to the Scheme or resolution, if any, proposed at
the meetings by any person(s); adjourning the meeting to
another day, if so required and to ascertain the decision of
the meetings on a poll. The Chairman be directed to submit
the report confirming the result of the said meetings within

30 days of the conclusion of the meetings.

17. Tt is further submitted that necessary directions be given to
the effect that at least 30 (Thirty) days before the date of the
aforesaid meetings, a notice convening the said meetings,
indicating the day, the date and the time as aforesaid,
together with a copy of the Scheme of Arrangement, copy of
the Explanatory Statement required to be furnished

pursuant to Section 102 of the Act read with the provisions
sEn W
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of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and the provisions of the
Rules, and such other documents as may be required shall
be sent to each of the Equity Shareholder, Secured Creditors
and Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies either

by e-mail, by speed post, by courier or by Regd. Post.

18. It is further submitted that notice of the said meetings to be
held may be ordered to be inserted in two newspapers, one
in English Daily ‘Indian Express' Ahmedabad Editions, and
the other in Gujarati daily 'Sandesh', Ahmedabad Editions
or in any other newspaper as this Honourable Tribunal may
issue directions as regards convening, holding and

conducting the meetings and also the publication of notices

elc.

19. It is submitted that under the provisions of Section 230(5) of
the Act, necessary directions be issued to the Applicant
Companies to send the notice under Section 230(3) of the
Act to (i) the Central Government through Regional Director,
North Western Region; (ii) Registrar of Companies, Gujarat;
(ili) concerned Income Tax authorities for both the

“
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companies, (iv) the concerned Stock Exchanges, viz. BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, (v)
the Securities and Exchange Board of India and (vi) Reserve
Bank of India for the Applicant Transferee Company and (vii)
the Official Liquidator for the Applicant Transferor
Company. It is hereby submitted that the provisions of
Competition Act, 2002 are not applicable to the present
Scheme and hence no notice is required to be issued to the

said authority.

20. Further, it is submitted that he Applicant Companies has
filed its Memorandum and Articles of Association inter alia
delineating its object clauses as well as their last available
Audited Annual Accounts for the year ended 31* March
2023 and Provisional/ Unaudited Financial Statements for

the period ended on 31" December 2023,

21. It is submitted that the appointed date as specified in the

Scheme be 1** December 2024.

22. It is further submitted that the Date of intimation by the

applicant Transferee Company to the Stock Exchanges, for

A
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the purpose of disclosures has been specified as 13t May
2024 and the copy of the letter have been placed at

Annexure G.

23. It1s submitted that the Statutory Auditors of the Transferor
and Transferee Companies have examined the Scheme in
terms of provisions of Sec. 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made there under and certified that the
Accounting Standards are in compliance with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The said Certificates of the
Statutory Auditors in this regard are placed at Annexure I

along with the application.

24. It is submitted that as per Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20,
2023 (hereinafter referred to as the "SEBI Schemes Master
Circular”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI), Valuation Report from an [Independent
Registered Valuer is not required in cases where there is no
change in Shareholding pattern of the listed company on

effectiveness of the Scheme of Amalgamation. The copy of

W,
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the Certificate of Non-Applicability of obtaining Valuation
Report, by the Registered Valuer has been placed at

Annexure R,

25. It is submitted that the Board of Directors of the Applicant
Companies vide meeting held on 2" May 2024 for
Transferor Company and 2" May 2024 for Transferee
Company had unanimously approved the proposed Scheme
as contemplated above and copies of resolutions passed
thereon have been placed on record by the applicant

companies,

26. We have perused the application and the connected
documents/papers filed therewith including the Scheme

contemplated by the applicant companies.

27. The matter was de-reserved for clarification vide Clarification
Order dated 25.06.2024, as on perusal of records, it was
found by this tribunal that the appointed date as specified
in the scheme is 1% December 2024, which in turn is
succeeding the date of filing of this first motion application

and does not align with the provisions outlined in the MCA
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Circular F. No, 7/12/2019/CL-1 dated 21st August 2019,
since it is a calendar date and not based on any event. The
applicant was directed to file additional affidavit in support

of its contentions.

28. In compliance of the Order Dated 25.06.2024, the applicants
filed an additional affidavit on 02.07.2024 and further on
20.08,2024 vide Inward Diary No. D-6448 along with the
Board Resolution wherein the appointed date has been
revised from 01.12.2024 to 15.08.2024. It is submitted
through the affidavit that the present Scheme is proposed to
be modified to the limited extent of Clause 1.3 of the said

Scheme and the proposed modifications is as follows:

"'1.3. Appointed Date means 15" August 2024 or
such other date as may be approved by the

Tribunal in this regard."

29. Based on the above revision in the Scheme of Amalgamation,
the matter was heard on 22.08.2024 and was reserved
directing the applicant to file a revised Scheme of

Amalgamation by the end of the Day. In compliance of the

.]J_}_
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said order, the applicant filed the revised Scheme of

Amalgamation on 22.08.2024 through online mode,

30. Taking into consideration the application filed by the
Applicant Company and the documents filed therewith as
well as the position of law, this Tribunal proposes to issue

the following directions :-

A. IN RELATION TO THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY:
i. With respect to Equity shareholders:
A meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Transferor
Company is dispensed with keeping in view the
shareholding and ownership pattern and the fact that
all the equity shareholders and preference
shareholders of the said company have approved the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement in the form of
written consent letters on affidavit and have further
waived their right to attend the meeting for the said

purpose.

ii. With respect to Secured Creditors:

i,
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There are 2(two) secured creditors of the Applicant
Transferor company as on 30" April 2024. Hence, a
Hence, a meeting of the secured creditors of the
Applicant Transferor Company shall be convened and
held through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual
Means, on 10/10/2024 at 11:00 AM, for the purpose
of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s) the arrangement embodied in

the Scheme.

ii. With respect to Unsecured Loan Creditors:

A meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Applicant
Transferor Company shall be convened and held
through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means,
on 10/10/2024 at 12:00 PM, for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s) the arrangement embodied in

the Scheme.
B. IN RELATION TO THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY:
(i With respect to Equity shareholders:

W

CA rCA'Al J/25(AHM) 2024
Suzlnn Global Services Linwted and,
Suzlon Energy Limited
2901 38



SEL, the applicant Transferee Company is a listed
public limited company and has more than 43,55,000
(Forty-Three Lakhs Fifty-Five Thousand) number of
sharecholders as on 31t March 2024, It is being
submitted that since, SGSL (Transferor Company) is a
wholly owned subsidiary of SEL; no shares are required
to be issued to the shareholders of SGSL towards
consideration for the proposed amalgamation of the
Undertaking of SGSL to SEL. Considering that the
scheme does not propose any restructure of the capital
and no compromise is proposed with the shareholders
of the applicant Transferee Company, the meeting of the

equity shareholders is thus dispensed with.

(i) With respect to Secured Creditors:
The applicant transferee Company has 3 (three)
secured creditors for non-fund based facilities. Hence,
a meeting of the secured creditors of the Applicant
Transferee Company shall be convened and held
through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means,

on 10/10/2024 at 02:00 PM, for the purpose of
'
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considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s) the arrangement embodied in

the Scheme.

(ilj With respect to Unsecured Creditors:
A meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Applicant
Transferee Company shall be convened and held
through Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means,
on 10/10/2024 at 03:00 PM, for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s) the arrangement embodied in

the Scheme.

31. Since, SEL, the applicant Transferee Company is a listed
public limited company; it is required to undertake the
procedure of remote e-voting or e-voting at the time of
meeting secking approval from the public shareholders, in
terms of Paragraph A. 10. of Part-1 of the Master Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20,
2023 issued by SEBI (hereinafter referred to as the "SEBI
Schemes Master Circular') read with Regulation 37(2)(d) of

SEBI Delisting Regulations. The voting in respect of the same

g
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is to be carried out through remote e-voting and e-voting at
the time of the Video Conference/Other Audio Visual Means
convened meeting on the same day when the meetings of
secured and unsecured creditors are to be held ie.,
10/10/2024 at 04:00 PM. In such circumstances, the
meeting convened pursuant to the directions of this Tribunal
would consist only of public shareholders. However, the
scrutinizer to be appointed for the said meeting of the equity
shareholders shall also submit his separate reports, to the
Chairman of the meeting of the Applicant Company or to the
person so authorised by him, with regard to the result of the
remote e-voting and e-voting at the time of the Video
Conference/Other Audio Visual Means convened meeting in
respect of the public shareholders in accordance with SEBI

Schemes Master Circular and SEBI Delisting Regulations.

32. The quorum for the meeting of the Applicant Transferor
Company and Transferee Company shall be as per section

103 of the Companies Act, 2013 as follows:

For the Transferor Company:

Iy

#
£ -
i ol
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S. No. CLass QUORUM
1 EQuiTY SHAREHOLDERS N/A
2 SECURED CREDITORS 2
3 | UNSECURED CREDITORS | 15

For Transferee Company:

S. No. CLAss QUoRUM
1 EQuiTY SHAREHOLDERS N/A |
2 SECURED CREDITOR L
3 UNSECURED CREDITORS 15
L

()  The Chairperson appointed for the above-mentioned
meetings shall be Shri L.N. Gupta, Ex-Member,
NCLT, Contact No:81305-85511. The Fee of the
Chairperson for the aforesaid meeting shall be
Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) in addition to
meeting his incidental expenses. The Chairperson(s)
will file the reports of the meeting within a week from

the date of holding of the above-said meetings.

(i) Mr. Vishawjeet Singh, Advocate, Contact No:89898-
09900 is appointed as a Scrutinizer and would be

entitled to a fee of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty

2
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Thousand Only) for services in addition to meeting

incidental expenses.

(i) In case the quorum as noted above, for the above
meeting of the Applicant Companies, is not present at
the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned by
half an hour, and thereafter the person(s) present and
voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For
the purpose of computing the quorum, the valid
proxies shall also be considered, if the proxy in the
prescribed form, duly signed by the person entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting, is filed with the
registered office of the applicant companies at least 48
hours before the meeting. The Chairperson appointed
herein along with the Scrutinizer shall ensure that the
proxy registers are properly maintained. However,
every endeavour should be made by the applicant
companies to attain at least the quorum fixed, if not

more in relation to approval of the scheme.

.I""
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(iv)] The meetings shall be conducted as per the applicable
procedure prescribed under the MCA Circular MCA
General Circular Nos. (i) 20/2020 dated 5t May, 2020
(AGM Circular), (i) 14/2020, dated 08.04.2020 (EGM
Circular-1) and (iii) 17/2020 dated 13.04.2020 (EGM

Circular-II);

(v) That individual notices of the above said meetings
shall be sent by the Applicant Companies through
registered post or speed post or through courier or e-
mail, 30 days in advance before the scheduled date of
the meeting, indicating the day, date, the place and
the time as aforesaid, together with a copy of Scheme,
copy of explanatory statement, required to be sent
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the prescribed
form of proxy shall also be sent along and in addition
to the above any other documents as may be
prescribed under the Act or rules may also be duly

sent with the notice.

.-2‘_.
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(vif That the Applicant Companies shall publish
advertisement with a gap of at least 30 clear days
before the aforesaid meetings, indicating the day, date
and the place and time as aforesaid, to be published
in the English Daily “Indian Express” (Ahmedabad
Edition), and “Sandesh” (Ahmedabad Edition) in
Vernacular stating the copies of Scheme, the
Explanatory Statement required to be furnished
pursuant to Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the form of proxy shall be provided free of charge
at the registered office of the respective Applicant

Companies.

(vij The Chairperson shall as aforestated be responsible
for reporting the result of the meeting within a period
of 3 days of the conclusion of the meeting with details

of voting on the proposed scheme.

(vili) In compliance with sub-section (5) of Section 230 of
the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (CAA) Rules,

2016, the Applicant companies shall individually send

e h‘.u
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notice to the concerned (i) the Central Government
through Regional Director, North Western Region;
(ii) Registrar of Companies, Gujarat; (iii) concerned
Income Tax authorities for both the companies,
(iv) the concerned Stock Exchanges, viz. BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, (v) the Securities and Exchange Board of
India and (vi) Reserve Bank of India for the
Applicant Transferee Company and (vii) the Official
Liquidator for the Applicant Transferor Company
as well as other Sectoral regulators who may have
significant bearing on the operation of the applicant
companies or the Scheme per se along with copy of
required documents and disclosures required under
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements,

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

(ix) The applicant companies shall further furnish a copy
of the Scheme free of charge within 1 day of any

requisition for the Scheme made by every creditor or

v {
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member of the applicant companies entitled to attend

the meetings as aforesaid.

(x) The Authorized Representative of the Applicant
Companies shall furnish an affidavit of service of
notice of meetings and publication of advertisement
and compliance of all directions contained herein at

least a week before the proposed meetings.

(xi) All the aforesaid directions are to be complied with
strictly in accordance with the applicable law
including forms and formats contained in the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements,
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 as well as the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Applicants.

33. The Applications stand allowed on the aforesaid terms.

SAMEER KAKAR SHAMMI KHAN
MEMBER (TECHNICAL) MEMBER (JUDICIAL)

HG
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
BY WAY OF MERGER BY ABSORPTION

BETWEEN

SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED
(‘Transferor Company’ or ‘Amalgamating Company’)

AND

SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED
(‘Transferee Company’ or ‘Amalgamated Company’)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

AND

CREDITORS

(Under Sections 230 to 232 read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be applicable
and rules framed thereunder)
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A

GENERAL
PREAMBLE

d,

This Scheme (as defined hereinafter) seeks to amalgamate and
consolidate the businesses of the Transferor Company, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, with and inio the

Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232

and other applicable provisions of the Act (as defined hereinafter), the

SEBI Circular (as defined hereinafter), Section 2(1B) of the IT Act (as

defined hereinafter), the Listing Regulations (as defined hereinafter), and

Applicable Law (as defined hereinafter);

This Scheme (as defined hereinafter) for the merger by way of absorption

of the Transferor Company (as defined hereinafter) with the Transferee

Company (as defined hereinafter), is presented under Sections 230 to 232

and other relevant provisions of the Act, and pursuant to this Scheme:

(i) All the property of the Transferor Company immediately before the
amalgamation, shall become the property of the Transferee
Company, by virtue of this amalgamation;

(i) All the liabilities of the Transferor Company immediately before the
amalgamation, shall become the liabilities of the Transferee
Company, by virtue of this amalgamation;

(iii) Transfer of the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company to
the Transferee Company as provided in Part Il of this Scheme, and
consequential increase in the authorised share capital of the
Transferee Company as provided in Part lll of this Scheme;

(iv) All the issued share capital of the Transferor Company shall be
cancelled and the same shall be effected as a part of the Scheme and
not in accordance with Section 66 of the Act; and

(v) The Transferor Company shall be dissolved, without being wound up.

The Board of Directors(s) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company (collectively, the "Companies”) have resolved that the

amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee

Company would be in the best interests of the Companies and their

respective shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders;

The Scheme does not affect the rights of the creditors of the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company. There will not be any reduction

in the amounts payable to the creditors of the Transferor Company and

the Transferee Company post sanctioning of the Scheme.

BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANIES WHO ARE
PARTIES TO THIS SCHEME
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a. Suzlon Energy Limited ('SEL’ or the Transferee Company’) is a public

limited listed company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 with
corporate identity number L40100GJ1995PLC0O25447 and having its
registered office at "Suzlon”, 5, Shrimali Society, Near Shri Krishna
Complex, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India. It is in the
business of manufacturing and supply of the wind turbine generators
(hereinafter referred to as 'WTG'). The equity shares of the Transferee
Company are listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (collectively, the “Stock Exchanges”).
SEL was originally incorporated as a public limited company on 10 April
1995 in the name and style as 'Suzlon Energy Limited' under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Later SEL got listed on 12 October
2005 with the Stock Exchanges.

b. Suzlon Global Services Limited ('SGSL' or the Transferor Company’) is
an unlisted public limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 with corporate identity number U27109GJ2004PLC044170
having its registered office at "Suzlon”, 5, Shrimali Society, Near Shri
Krishna Complex, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India. It is
a wholly owned subsidiary of SEL, and it is engaged in the business of
operation and maintenance of the WTG ('OMS’) and other businesses.
SGSL was originally incorporated as a private limited company on 25 May
2004 in the name and style as 'Suzlon Structures Private Limited' under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The name of the Transferor Company was changed from Suzlon
Structures Private Limited to Suzlon Structures Limited on getting
converted into a public limited company in terms of the special resolution
passed by the shareholders at the Fourth Annua! General Meeting held
on 30 July 2008 and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon
change of name on conversion to a public limited company issued by the
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat on 4 September 2008.

The name of the Transferor Company was further changed from Suzlon
Structures Limited to Suzlon Global Services Limited in terms of the
Scheme of Amalgamation as approved by the Honourable High Court of
Gujarat on 14 October 2016 and a fresh cerfificate of incorporation
pursuant to change of name issued by the Registrar of Companies,
Gujarat on 23 January 2017.

C. OVERVIEW AND OPERATION OF THIS SCHEME

This scheme provides inter-alia for;

a. the merger by way of absorption of the Transferor Company (as defined
hereinafter) with the Transferee Company, in the manner set out in this
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Scheme (as defined hereinafter), the consequent dissolution of the
Transferor Company without winding up and cancellation of the existing
holding of the Transferee Company in the Transferor Company pursuant
to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and in compliance with
Section 2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the IT Act (as defined
hereinafter) ("Amalgamation’);

b. this Scheme (as defined hereinafter) also provides for various other
matters consequential, incidental or otherwise integrally connected
therewith;

Pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act (as

defined hereunder), in the manner provided for in this Scheme, and in

compliance with provisions of the IT Act (as defined hereunder).

PARTS OF THIS SCHEME

a. PART | deals with the definitions of capitalised terms used in this Scheme,
interpretation and the share capital of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company;

b. PART Il deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company;

c. PART Illl deals with the general terms and conditions that would be
applicable 1o this Scheme.

RATIONALE FOR THIS SCHEME

The Transferee Company is primarily engaged in the business of

manufacturing and supply of WTG while the Transferor Company is engaged

in the business via the following undertakings, viz., OMS undertaking and
other business undertakings. The Transferor Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Transferee Company.

The energy and climate policies being implemented by major economies

worldwide, demonstrate a remarkable level of ambition and commitment to

supporting wind energy and other renewable energy sources. These
developments signal a promising future for the growth and advancement of
renewable energy and renewable energy technologies propelling the industry
to redefine and forge innovative partnerships with governments, cities,
communities, investors, and customers. There is increase in the demand of
the wind capacity on account of increased wind, solar, hybrid, RTC and FDRE
tenders, national hydrogen mission, MNRE's removal of tariff ceiling,
improved technology, industrial tariffs and demand of wind energy from
commercial and industrial consumers, power storage and central government
allocations under strong off-takers. The Transferor and Transferor companies,
founded with a deep understanding of the environment and sustainable
development, have been at the forefront of renewable energy as a key solution
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provider since their inception. By combining forces, the Companies aim to

create a more robust and competitive entity that is well-equipped to navigate

the complexities of the national and international renewable energy
landscape.

The amalgamation will consolidate the business of the Transferor Company

and the Transferee Company which will result in focused growth, operational

efficiencies and business synergies of the WTG business and OMS business.

In addition, resulting corporate holding structure will bring enhanced agility to

the business ecosystem of the merged entity. Further the amalgamation could

potentially reap strategic benefits including but not limited to the following:

a. Stronger financial position: In an increasingly competitive global market,
the financial strength of a company plays a critical role in its ahility to
secure large contracts and continue to expand consistently. Moreover, as
the turbines have life cycle of 25 to 30 years, the customers are more
likely to rely on an OEM whose presence can be assured across the
litecycle. A stronger balance sheet helps build a value proposition for
customers making it a key metric to award bigger projects to financially
sound organisations. A strong net worth signifies that the company
possesses enough financial resources to successfully complete larger
projects without negative repercussions. It gives the assurance and
confidence to stakeholders about the company's capability to take on,
deliver, and succeed in high stakes contracts.

The merger of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company

would help in strengthening the financial robustness, resulting in a highly

fortified standalone balance sheet and profit and loss statement which
benefits the Companies as follows:

(i} stronger financial health plays a sfrategic role in enhancing the
consolidated entity’s potential to bid, secure and execute big-ticket
contracts in the domestic as well as overseas markets; and

(i) positioning the consolidated organisation more aggressively and
perceptibly in the global markets thus paving the way for a stronger
international presence and tapping back into the overseas markets
broadening the client base.

b. Contracting: Some of the customers are inclined more towards coniracts
with single entity, demonstrating a clear preference for dealing with a
single entity for both WTG delivery and OMS services. For some
customers (e.g. PSU customers) it is a mandatory tender condition to
participate for both WTG delivery and OMS services from single entity.

c. Elimination of inter-company outstanding: There are inter-company loans
between the two entities and elimination of this leads to a stronger, more
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resilient financial position and enhanced business's creditworthiness.
Moreover, the freed-up capital can be reallocated to other productive
areas, further strengthening the company's financial stability and growth
prospects.

d. Efficient utilization of resources: Post-merger, the consolidated business

can strategically manage finances which shall help optimize the cash flow.
The unified cash flow management system provides an opportunity to
reallocate resources effectively, reinvesting in areas that promise better
returns. With shared financial goals, the consolidated business can
leverage collective cash flow to fund growth opportunities, thereby tapping
the new and bigger business opportunities market is offering in an
effective manner.
Unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined businesses
which can be deployed more efficiently to fund organic and inorganic
growth opportunities and to maximize shareholders value; It sirengthens
the dividend paying abilities of the Transferee company.

e. Streamlining of group structure and benefit of combined resources; The
proposed amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company will create a streamlined group structure which will assist in
more efficient utilization of the capital.

f. Efficiency in business operations of the WTG business and OMS
business: The proposed amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company is expected to create greater efficiency due fo
economies of scale, elimination of duplication of work and rationalisation
and reduction of compliance requirements;

g. Sharing of best practices in sustainability, safety, health and environment:
Adoption of improved safety, environment and sustainability practices
owing to a centralised committee at combined level may provide focused
approach towards safety, environment and sustainability practices
resulting in overall improvements

The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company

will combine the business, activiies and operations of the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company into a single company with effect from

the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter) and shall be in accordance with

the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and rules framed thereunder

including Section 2(1B) thereof or any amendmenis thereto.
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Part |

1.1

T2

13,

1.4.

DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION, DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND
OPERATIVE DATE_AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, (i) terms

defined in the introductory paragraphs and recitals shall have the same

meanings throughout this Scheme and (i) the following words and

expressions, wherever used (including in the recitals and the introductory
paragraphs above), shall have the following meanings:

‘Act’ or 'the Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include any other

statutory amendment or re-enactment or restatement and the rules and/ or

regulations and/ or other guidelines or notifications made thereunder from time
to time;

‘Applicable Law(s)' or 'Law’ means any applicable central, provincial, local

or other law including all applicable provisions of all (a) constitutions, decrees,

treaties, statutes, laws (including the common law), codes, notifications, rules,
regulations, policies, guidelines, circulars, directions, directives, ordinances or
orders of any Appropriate Authority, statutory authority, court, tribunal having
jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) Permits; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions,
judgments, awards and decrees of or agreements with any Appropriate

Authority having jurisdiction over the Parties;

'‘Appointed Date' means 15 August 2024, or such other date as may be

approved by the Tribunal in this regard;

‘Appropriate Authority’ means:

a. the government of any jurisdiction (including any central, state, municipal
or local government or any political or administrative subdivision thereof)
and any department, ministry, agency, instrumentality, court, central bank,
commission or other authority thereof;

b. any public international organisation or supranational body and its
institutions, departments, agencies and instrumentalities;

c. any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully
exercising, or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial,
legislative, regulatory, licensing, competition, tax, importing or other
governmental or quasi-governmental authority including (without
limitation), SEBI (as defined hereinafter), the Tribunal (as defined
hereinafter), Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Competition
Commission of India, Reserve Bank of India and such other sectoral

regulators or authorities as may be applicable;
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1.5

1.6.

1.7

1.8,

1.9

d. any entity authorized to make laws, rules, regulations, standards,
requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders, in each case
having the force of law,

e. any non-governmenial regulatory or administrative authority, body or
other organization 1o the extent that the rules, regulations and standards,
requirements, procedures or orders of such authority, body or other
organization have the force of law;

f. any Stock Exchange.

‘Board of Directors’ or ‘Board’ in relation to the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company as the case may be, means the Board of Directors of

the respective Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, and shall

include a commitiee duly constituted and authorised for the purposes of
matiers pertaining to the arrangement, this Scheme and/or any other matier
relating thereto;

‘BSE' means the BSE Limited;

‘Companies’ means SEL and SGSL collectively, and 'Company’ shall mean

any one of them as the context may require;

‘Effective Date’ means the opening business hours of the date or last of the

dates on which the certified copies of the order of the Appropriate Authority

sanctioning the Scheme are filed by the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company with the Registrar of Companies Gujarat;

Any references in this Scheme to the date of "coming into effect of this

Scheme" or "effectiveness of this Scheme" or "Scheme taking effect” shall

mean the Effective Date;

‘Employees’ mean all the employees on the payroll of the Transferor

Company, as on the Effective Date;

‘Encumbrance’ or to 'Encumber’ means: (i) any encumbrance including,

without limitation, any claim, morigage, negative lien, pledge, equitable

interest, charge (whether fixed or floating), hypothecation, lien, deposit by way
of security, security interest, trust, guarantee, commitment, assignment by
way of security, or other encumbrances or security interest of any kind
securing or conferring any priority of payment in respect of any obligation of
any person and includes without limitation any right granted by a transaction
which, in legal terms, is not the granting of security but which has an economic
or financial effect similar to the granting of security in each case under any
law, contract or otherwise, including any option or right of pre-emption, public
right, common right, easement rights, any attachment, restriction on use,
transfer, receipt of income or exercise of any other attribute of ownership, right
of set-off and/ or any other interest held by a third party, (ii) any vating
agreement, conditional sale contracts, interest, option, right of first offer or
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transfer restriction; (iii) any adverse claim as to title, possession or use; and /
or (iv) any agreement, conditional or otherwise, to create any of the foregoing,
and the term ‘encumber’ shall be construed accordingly;

‘GST' means goods and services tax and shall include any statutory
modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof and the rules made
thereunder, for the time being in force;

'GST Act’' means the Central Goods and Services Tax (GST) Act, 2017 |
Integrated GST Act, 2017 / Respective State GST Act, 2017 / Union territories
GST Act, 2017 / GST (Compensation to States) Act, 2017 and shall include
any statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof and the
rules made thereunder, for the time being in force;

‘Indian Accounting Standards’ or ‘Ind AS’ means the applicable accounting
principles as prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments thereof;

‘IT Act’ or 'the ITA' means the Income Tax Act, 19671 and shall include any
statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof and the rules
made thereunder, for the time being in force;

'Input Tax Credit’ means the central value added tax ('CENVAT') credit as
defined under the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2004 and the goods and services
tax input credit as defined in Central Goods & Service Tax Act, 2017 ('CGST"),
Integrated Goods & Service Tax Act, 2017 ('IGST') and respective State
Goods & Service Tax laws ('SGST') and any other tax credits under any
indirect tax law (including Goods & Services Tax Rules/ Act) for the time being
in force;

‘Liabilities’ means all debts (whether in Indian Rupees or foreign currency),
liabilities (including bills payable, interest accrued, s tory reserves, provisions
and all other liabilities including contingent liabilities, an ns under any licenses
or permits or schemes), loans raised and used, obligations incurred, duties of
any kind, nature or description and undertakings of every kind or nature and
the liabilities of any description whatsoever whether or not provided in the
books of accounts or disclosed in the financial statements of the Transferor
Company, whether present or future, and howsoever raised or incurred or
utilized along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or security thereon;
‘National Company Law Tribunal' or 'NCLT' or ‘Tribunal' means the
Mational Company Law Tribunal at Ahmedabad which has jurisdiction over
SEL and SGSL and/ or the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal as
constituted and authorised as per the provisions of the Act for approving any
scheme of arrangement, compromise or reconstruction of companies under
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and shall include, if applicable, such other forum
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1.20.

1.21.

1.22.

1.23.

1.24.

1.25.

1.26.

1.27.

1.2E,

1.28.

1:30.

or authority as may be vested with the powers of a tribunal for the purposes
of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act as may be applicable;

‘NSE’ means National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

'‘Parties’ shall mean callectively the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company and 'Party’ shall mean each of them, individually;

'‘Permits’ means all consents, licences, permits, certificates, permissions,
authorisations, clarifications, approvals, clearances, confirmations,
declarations, waivers, exemptions, registrations, filings, no objections,
whether governmental, statutory or regulatory, including application(s) for
renewal thereof, as required under Applicable Law;

‘Person’ means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability
partnership, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company,
a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or an Appropriate
Authority;

'Registrar of Companies’' /| ‘RoC’ means the relevant Registrar of Companies
having territorial jurisdiction in the state in which the respective registered
offices of the Companies are located,;

'‘Relevant Jurisdiction’ means the territories of the State of Gujarat or
Republic of India.

'‘Rupees’ or 'Rs’ or INR' means Indian rupees. being the lawful currency of
Republic of India;

‘Scheme’ or 'the Scheme' or ‘this Scheme' means this scheme of
amalgamation in its present form as submitted to the Tribunal of Relevant
Jurisdiction with any modification(s) made under Clause 15 of the Scheme as
approved or directed by the Tribunal or such other appropriate authority, as
may be applicable;

'SEBI' means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

'SEBI Circular’ shall mean the circular issued by the SEBI, being Circular
SEBIWHO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated 20 June 2023, and any
amendments thereof;

'SEBI LODR Regulations’ means SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, and any amendments thereof;

'Stock Exchanges’ means the BSE and NSE collectively;

‘Taxation' or 'Tax' or ‘Taxes' means and includes any tax, whether direct or
indirect, including income tax (including withholding tax, dividend distribution
tax), GST, excise duty, central sales tax, service tax, octroi, local body tax and
customs duty, duties, charges, fees, levies, surcharge, cess or other similar
assessments by or payable to Appropriate Authority, including in relation to (i)
income, services, gross receipts, premium, immovable property, movable
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131,

1.32.

1.33,

1.34,

1.35

1:36.

property, assets, profession, entry, capital gains, municipal, interest,

expenditure, imports, wealth, gift, sales, use, transfer, licensing, withholding,

employment, payroll and franchise taxes; and (i) any interest, fines, penalties,
assessments or additions to Tax resulting from, attributable to or incurred in
connection with any proceedings or late payments in respect thereof;

‘Tax Laws' means all Applicable Laws, acts, rules and regulations dealing

with Taxes including but not limited to the income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax /

value added tax, service tax, goods and services tax, excise duty, customs
duty or any other levy of similar nature;

‘TDS' means tax deductible at source, in accordance with the provisions of

the IT Act;

'TCS’ means tax collected at source, in accordance with the provisions of the

IT Act;

‘Transferee Company’ or ‘Amalgamated Company' or 'SEL’, means Suzlon

Energy Limited, a public limited listed company incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956 with corporate identity number

L40100GJ1995PLC025447 having its registered office at "Suzlon”, 5, Shrimali

Society, MNear Shri Krishna Complex, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009,

Gujarat, India.

‘Transferor Company' or ‘Amalgamating Company' or 'SGSL' means

Suzlon Global Services Limited, a public limited unlisted company

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 with corporate ideniity number

U27109GJ2004PLC044170 having its registered office at "Suzlon”, 5,

Shrimali Society, Near Shri Krishna Complex, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-

280009, Gujarat India.

‘Undertaking’ means all assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company

along with all the undertakings and the entire business of the Transferor

Company as a going concern as on the Appointed Date, including all its

assets, properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible),

investments, rights, approvals, licenses and powers, leasehold rights and all
its debts, outstanding, liabilities, duties, obligations, and employees including,
but not in any way limited to, the following:

a. all the immovable properties and rights thereto, i.e. land together with the
buildings and structures standing thereon (whether freehold, leasehold,
leave and licensed, right of way, tenancies or otherwise) including roads,
drains and culverts, civil works, foundations for civil works, buildings,
warehouses, offices, etc., whether or not recorded in the books of
accounts of the Transferor Company and all documents (including
panchnamas, declarations, receipts) of title, rights and easements in
relation thereto and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and
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interest, benefits and interests of rental agreemenis for lease or license or
other rights to use of premises, in connection with the said immovable
properties;

all assets, as are movable in nature forming part of the Transferor
Company, whether present or future or contingent, tangible or intangible,
in possession or not, corporeal or incorporeal, in each case, wherever
situated (capital work In progress, furniture, fixtures, fixed assets,
computers, air conditioners, appliances, accessories, office equipment,
communication facilities, installations, vehicles, inventories, stock in trade,
stores and spares, packing material, raw material, tools and plants),
actionable claims, earnest monies and sundry debtors, prepaid expenses,
bills of exchange, promissory notes financial assets, investment and
shares in entities/ branches in India, outsianding loans and advances,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, receivables,
funds, cash and bank balances and deposits including accrued interest
thereto with government, semi-government, local and cther authorities
and bodies, banks, customers and other persons, dividends declared or
interest accrued thereon, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of all
agreements, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, units or pass through
certificates, the benefits of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees
and all the tax related assets/credits, tax refunds, incentives, allowances,
exemptions or rebates or such other benefits including but not limited to
goods and service tax input credits, service tax input credits, ceniral
excise, cenvat credit, value added tax credits, value added/ sales tax/
entry tax credits or set-offs, income tax including advance tax, withholding
tax/ TDS/TCS, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country, self-assessment
tax, regular tax, minimum alternate tax, dividend distribution tax, securities
transaction tax, deferred tax assets/ liabilities, tax refunds, accumulated
losses under the [T Act and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under
the IT Act and as per books of account, rights of any claim not made by
the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of tax, duty, cess or other
charge, including any erroneous or excess paymeni thereof made by the
Transferor Company and any interest thereon, with regard to any law, act
or rule or scheme made by the Appropriate Authority,

all invesimentis, receivables, loans, security deposits and advances
extended, earnest monies, advance rentals, payments against warrants,
if any, or other rights or entitlements, including without limitation accrued
interest thereon, of the Transferor Company;

all permits, licenses, permissions, right of way, approvals, authorisations,
clearances, consents, benefit, registrations, rights, entitlements, credits,
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certificates, awards, sanctions, quotas, no objection certificates,
exemptions, pre - qualifications, bid acceptances, concessions, subsidies,
tax deferrals and exemptions and cther benefits (in each case including
the benefit of any applications made for the same), income tax henefits/
holidays and exemptions including the right to deduction for the residual
period, i.e., for the period remaining as on the Appointed Date out of the
total period for which the deduction is available in law, if any, liberties and
advantages, approval for commissioning of project and other licenses or
clearances granted/ issued/ given by any governmental, statutory or
regulatory or local or administrative bodies, organizations or companies
for the purpose of carrying on its existing business or in connection
therewith including those relating to privileges, powers, facilities of every
kind and description of whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto that
form part of the Transferor Company;

all registrations obtained under Value Added Tax Laws, Ceniral Sales Tax
Act, 1956, GST Act or any other Applicable Laws;

all coniracts, agreements, purchase orders/ service orders, operation and
maintenance contracts, benefits of any arrangements, allotments,
approvals, authorities, regisirations, exemptions, benefits, waivers,
security and other agreements, engagements, memoranda of
understanding/ undertakings/ agreements, memoranda of agreed points,
bids, tenders, tariff policies, expressions of interest, letters of intent, hire
and purchase arrangementis, agreements/deeds for hire of fitted assets,
equipment purchase agreements, agreements with customers, purchase
and other agreements with the supplier/ manufacturer of goods/ service
providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes,
concession agreements, insurance policies, insurance covers and claims,
clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and description,
whether vested or potential and written, oral or otherwise and all rights,
title, interests, assurances, claims and benefits thereunder;

all insurance policies pertaining to the Transferor Company;

all intellectual property rights, applications (including hardware, software,
licenses, source codes, object code, algorithm and scripts), registrations,
servers, software assets, hardware assets, cloud, data centres, any
devices including but not limited to laptops and mobile devices, goodwill,
trade names, service marks, copyrights, patents, project designs,
marketing authorization, approvals, marketing intangibles, permits,
permissions, incentives, privileges, special status, domain names,
designs, trade secrets, research and siudies, technical knowhow,
confidential information and other benefits (in each case including the
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benefit of any applications made for the same) and all such rights of
whatsoever description and nature;

all rights to use, subscribe and avail, transfer or sell telephones, facsimile,
email, internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities,
electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of
assets or properties or other interests held in trusts, registrations,
engagements, arrangements of all kind, privileges and all other rights,
easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed
and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the
ownership, power, possession or control of or vested in or granted in
favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by Transferor Company;
rights of any claim not made by the Transferor Company in respect of any
refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge, including any erroneous or
excess payment thereof made by the Transferor Company and any
interest thereon, with regard to any law, act or rule or scheme made by
the Appropriate Authority, and in respect of carry forward of un- absorbed
losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation, deferred revenue expenditure,
rebate, incentives, benefits, tax credits, minimum alternate tax, etc., under
the IT Act, sales tax, value added tax, custom duties and good and service
tax or any other or like benefits under Applicable Law;

any and all of the advance monies, earnest monies, margin money and /
or security deposits, payment against warrants or other entitlements, as
may be lying with them, including but not limited to the deposits from
members, investor's service fund and investor protection fund;

all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information,
software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), test reporis,
computer programmes, drawings, manuals, data, databases including
databases for procurement, commercial and management, catalogues,
guotations, manuals, sales and advertising materials, product
regisirations, dossiers, product master cards, lists of present and former
customers and suppliers including service providers, other cusiomer
information, customer credit information, customer/ supplier pricing
information, and all other books and records, whether in physical or
electronic form and all other interest of whatsoever nature belonging to or
in the ownership, power or possession and in the control of or vested in
or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the

Transferor Company;
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m. any and all of its staff and employees, who are on its payrolls, including
those employed at its offices and branches, employees/personnel
engaged on contract basis and contract labourers and interns / trainees,
as are primarily engaged in or in relation to the business, activities and
operations carried on by the Transferor Company, including liabilities of
the Transferor Company, with regard to their staff and employees, with
respect to the payment of gratuity, superannuation, pension benefits and
provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the
event of resignation, death, retirement, retrenchment or otherwise, in
terms of its license, at its respective offices, branches or otherwise, and
any other employees/personnel and contract labourers and interns /
trainees hired by the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date;

n. all suits, actions, legal or other proceedings including quasi-judicial,
arbitral of whatsoever nature involving or continued or to be enforced by
or against the Transferor Company, which are capable of being continued
by or against the Transferor Company under the Applicable Law; and

o. all debts (secured and unsecured), liabilities including contingent
liabilities, duties, leases of the Transferor Company and all other
obligations of whatsoever kind, nature and description whatsoever and
howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilized. Provided that if there
exists any reference in the security documents or arrangements entered
into by the Transferor Company under which the assets of the Transferor
Company stand offered as a security for any financial assistance or
obligation, the said reference shall be construed as a reference to the
assets pertaining to the Transferor Company vested in the Transferee
Company by the virtue of the Scheme. The Scheme shall not operate to
enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility created by the
Transferor Company which shall vest in Transferee Company by virtue of
the amalgamation. The Transferee Company shall not be obliged to
create any further or additional security thereof after the amalgamation
has become effective.

INTERPRETATION

Terms and expressions which are used in this Scheme but not defined herein

shall, unless

repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same
meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the IT Act, the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956, Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(including the regulations made thereunder), the Depositories Act, 1996 and
other Applicable Laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be,
including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, from time to time.
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In particular, wherever reference is made to the Appropriate Authority in this

Scheme, the reference would include, if appropriate, reference to the

Appropriate Authority or such other forum or authority, as may be vested with

any of the powers of the Appropriate Authority under the Act and | or rules

made thereunder.

d.

references to clauses and recitals, unless otherwise provided, are to
clauses and recitals to this Scheme;

the headings herein shall not affect the construction of this Scheme;

the singular shall include the plural and vice versa; and references to one
gender include all genders;

any phrase introduced by 'the terms "including”, "include”, "in particular”
or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not
limit the sense of the words preceding those terms;

references 1o a person includes any individual, firm, body corporate
(whether incorporated or not), Appropriate Authority, or any joint venture,
association, partnership, works council or employee representatives' body
(whether or not having separate legal personality);

terms “hereof", "herein”, "hereby”, "hereto” and derivative or similar words
shall refer to this entire Scheme or specified clauses of this Scheme, as
the case may be;

reference to "writing" or "written” includes printing, typing, lithography and
other means of reproducing words in a visible form including e-mail;
reference to any agreement, contract, document or arrangement or to any
provision thereof shall include references to any such agreement,
contract, document or arrangement as it may, after the date hereof, from
time to time, be amended, supplemented or novated; and

references to any provision of law or legislation or regulation shall include:
(a) such provision as from time to time amended, modified, re-enacted or
consolidated (whether before or after the date of this Scheme) to the
extent such amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation
applies or is capable of applying to the transaction entered into under this
Scheme and (to the extent liability there under may exist or can arise)
shall include any past statutory provision (as amended, modified, re-
enacted or consolidated from time to time) which the provision referred to
has directly or indirectly replaced, (b) all subordinate legislations
(including circulars, notifications, clarifications or supplement(s) to, or
replacement or amendment of, that law or legislation or regulation) made
from time to time under that provision (whether or not amended, modified,
re-enacted or consolidated from time to time) and any retrospective
amendment.
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4.1.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE
The Scheme set out herein in its present form with or without any

modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal or made as
per the Scheme, shall be effective from the Appointed Date and shall be
operative from the Effective Date.

Any references in the Scheme to 'upon the Scheme becoming effective’ or
‘effectiveness of the Scheme’ shall mean the Effective Date.

The Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and be vested in the
Transferee Company on and from and with effect from the Appointed Date
(defined hereinafter) for all intent and purposes and the Transferor Company
shall stand dissolved without being wound up.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Transferor Company as at 31 March 2024 is as under:

Particulars Amount

(Rs.
crores)

Authorized Capital
534,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,343.00
2,10,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each | 210.00

450,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 1,00,000/- | 4,500.00

each

Total 10,053.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
2,93,71,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 29.37

10,00,000, 8% Redeemable  Cumulative | 10.00
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
10,000, 0.1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative |0.10
Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
Total |39.4?
The equity shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any of the

Stock Exchanges.

Subsequent to 31 March 2024 and up to the date of approval of this Scheme
by the Board of Transferor Company, there is no change in the stated capital
of the Transferor Company.

As on the date of approval of this Scheme by the Board of Directors, the entire
share capital of the Transferor Company is held by the Transferee Company.
Accordingly, the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Transferee Company.
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4.2

There are no existing commitments, obligations or arrangements by the
Transferor Company as on the date of sanction of this Scheme by the Board
of Directors to issue any further shares or convertible securities except for the
obligation to convert the 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs Only) number of compulsarily
convertible debentures ('CCDs’) of face value Rs. 1,000 (Rupees One
Thousand Only) each as on 31 March 2024. Since the CCDs are held by the
Transferee Company, the same shall stand cancelled pursuant to this
Scheme.

The share capital of Transferee Company as at 31 March, 2024 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.
crores)

Authorized Capital
55,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. Zeach | 11,000.00
Total 11,000.00
Issued Capital
1363,16,20,199 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 2,726.32
(Out of total issued capital, 1362,34,26,136 are
fully paid-up Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each

81,904,063 are partly paid-up Equity Shares
having face value of Rs. 2 each with Re. 1 paid-
up)

Total 2,726.32
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
1361,26,88,222 Equity Shares comprising of | 2,721.72
1360,44,94,159 fully paid-up Equity Shares of
Rs. 2 each 81,94,063 partly paid-up Equity
Shares having face value of Rs. 2 each with Re.

1 paid-up
Total 2,721.72

The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on the Stock
Exchanges.

Subsequent to 31 March 2024 and up to the approval of this Scheme by the
Board of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company has not issued

and allotted shares.

Page 18 of 49



Partll

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY ALONG WITH ITS
UNDERTAKINGS INTO AND WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

5. TRANSFER AND VESTING

5.1. With effect from the Appointed Date, upon this Scheme becoming effective,

and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferor Company along
with all its assets (including immovable property and intellectual property),
liabilities, contracts, employees, licenses, consents, permits, records,
approvals, etc., comprising the Undertaking shall, pursuant to the provisions
or the Act, IT Act and any other Applicable Law without any further act,
instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and/or be
deemed to have been and stand transferred fo and vested in the Transferee

Company as a going concern, so as to become, as and from the Appointed

Date, the estate, assets, rights, title, interests and authorities of the Transferee

Company, by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

5.2. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, with effect from the Appointed

Date and upon this Scheme becoming effective:

521. Transfer of Assets:

a. without prejudice to the generality of Clause 5.1 above, upon the coming
into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the
estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities
including accretions and appurtenances comprised in the Undertaking of
whatsoever nature and where so ever situated shall, under the provisions
of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of
Applicable Law, if any, without any further act or deed, be and stand
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and/or be deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going
concern so as to become, as and from the Appointed Date, the estate,
assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities of the
Transferee Company. Provided that the movable assets of the Transferor
Company shall vest in the Transferee Company in the manner laid down
hereunder:

(i} without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 5.2.1 above, in respect
of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company as
are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise
capable of vesting or transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/or delivery, the same shall stand so fransferred or
vested by the Transferor Company upon the coming into effect of this
Scheme, and shall, become the assets and property of the Transferee
Company with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, without requiring any
deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer or vesting of the same;
in respect of such of the assets and properties belonging to the
Transferor Company (other than those referred to in Clause (i) above)
including sundry debtors, receivables, bills, credits, loans and
advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value
to be received, bank balances, investments, earnest money and
deposits with any government, gquasi government, local or other
authority or body or with any company or other person, the same shall
stand transferred to and vesied in the Transferee Company and/or be
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge
and without any notice or other intimation to any third party, upon the
coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act;

all the assets, rights, title, interest, investmenis and properties of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date, whether or not
included in the books of the Transferor Company, and all assets,
rights, title, interest, investments and properties, which are acquired
by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date, shall be
deemed to be and shall become the assets, rights, title, interest,
investments and properties of the Transferee Company, and shall
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company upon
the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act;

all the licenses, permits, registrations, quotas, entitlements,
approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax deferrals,
exemptions and benefits, subsidies, concessions, granis, righis,
claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other
benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of
by the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that have
accrued or which may accrue to the Transferor Company, whether on,
before or after the Appointed Date, including income tax benefits and
exemptions, shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, without any further act,
instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand transferred to and
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b.

vest in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in and be
available to the Transferee Company so as to become the licenses,
permits, registrations, quotas, entitlements, approvals, permissions,
registrations, incentives, tax deferrals, exemptions and benefits,
subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights,
liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges of the
Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective and
enforceable on the same terms and conditions.
all the assets and the properties of the Transferor Company as on the
Appointed Date, whether or not included in the books of the Transferor
Company, and all assets and properties which are acquired by the
Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to
be and shall become the assets and properties of the Transferee
Company, and shall under the relevant provisions of the Act, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in,
and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in, the Transferee
Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant to the
relevant provisions of the Act;
all debentures, bonds, notes or other debt securities, if any, of the
Transferor Company, whether convertible into equity or otherwise, other
than the debentures, bonds, notes or other debt securities held by the
Transferee Company in the Transferor Company, shall become securities
of the Transferee Company and all rights, powers, duties and obligations
in relation thereto shall be and stand transferred to and vested in or
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and shall be exercised
by or against the Transferee Company as if it were the Transferor
Company in respect of securities so transferred;
all immovable properties, whether or not included in the books of the
Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold or licensed properties
(including but not limited to capital works in progress, land, buildings, and
any other rights, titles, interests, rights of way and easements in relation
thereto) forming part of the Transferor Company shall become the
property of the Transferee Company and be vested in the Transferee
Company or be deemed to have been so, automatically without any act or
deed to be done or executed by the Transferor Company and/or the
Transferee Company. All lease or license or rent agreements forming part
of the Transferor Company, entered into by the Transferor Company with
various landlords, owners and lessors in connection with the use of the
assets of the Transferor Company, together with security deposits, shall
stand automatically vested in favour of the Transferee Company on the
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same terms and conditions, subject to Applicable Law, without any further
act, instrument or deed. The Transferee Company shall continue to pay
rent amounts as provided for in such agreements and shall comply with
the other terms, conditions and covenants thereunder and shall also be
entitled to refund of security deposits paid under such agreements by the
Transferor Company;

for the purpose of giving effect to the order passed under Sections 230 to
232 of the Act in respect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall
be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and shall be liable to fulfil
all its obligations in relation to or applicable to all such immovable
properties, including mutation and/or substitution of the ownership or the
title to, or interest in the immovable properties which shall be made and
duly recorded by the Appropriate Authority(ies) in favour of the Transferee
Company pursuant to the order and upon the effectiveness of this Scheme
in accordance with the terms hereof without any further act or deed to be
done or executed by the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee
Company. It is clarified that the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
engage in such correspondence and make such representations, as may
be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation andfor
substitution. For the purposes of this clause, the Boards of the relevant
Companies may, in their absolute discretion, mutually decide the manner
of giving effect to the vesting of the whole or part of the right, title and
interest in all or any of the immovable properties along with any attendant
formalities involved, including by way of execution of appropriate deed(s),
including of conveyance, assignment, transfer or rectification, in order to
give effect to the objectives of the Scheme;

upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be
entitled to occupy and use all the premises, whether owned, leased or
licensed, relating to the Transferor Company until the transfer of the rights
and obligations of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company
under this Scheme is formally accepted by the parties concerned;

all bank accounts operated or entitled to be operated by the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to have been transferred and shall stand
transferred to the Transferee Company and name of the Transferor
Company shall be substituted by the name of the Transferee Company in
the bank's records and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
operate all bank accounts, realise all monies and complete and enforce
all pending contracts and transactions in the name of the Transferor
Company to the extent necessary until the transfer of the rights and
obligations of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company under
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the Scheme is formally accepted and completed by the parties concerned.
For avoidance of doubt, it is thereby clarified that all cheques and other
negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for
encashment which are in the name of the Transferor Company after the
Effective Date, shall be accepted by the bankers of the Transferee
Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, if
presented by the Transferee Company. Similarly, the banker of the
Transferee Company shall honour all cheques issued by the Transferor
Company for payment after the Effective Date.

It is further clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and till such
time that the name of the bank accounts of the Transferor Company have
been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor
Company in the name of the Transferor Company in so far as may be
necessary. Further, if any refund under the Tax Laws is claimed by the
Transferor Company and processing of such refund is pending as on the
date of the scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company can
continue to maintain the bank account in the name of the Transferor
Company until the claim of such refund is credited to the bank account.
Even after the Scheme becomes effective, the Transferee Company shall
be entitled to operate all the bank accounts of the Transferor Company
and realise all monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and
transactions in respect of the Transferor Company in the name of the
Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of
rights and obligations of the Transferor Company to the Transferee
Company under this Scheme is formally accepted the parties concerned.
all letters of intent, requests for proposal, pre-qualifications, bid
acceptances, tenders, and other instruments of whatsoever nature to
which the Transferor Company is a party to or to the benefit of which the
Transferor Company may be eligible for, shall remain in full force and
effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company,
the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee
thereto. Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the past experience of
the Transferor Company with respect to execution/ managing of the
projects shall be deemed to be the experience of the Transferee Company
for all commercial and regulatory purposes;

all the security interest over any moveable and/ or immoveable properties
and security in any other form (both present and future) including but not
limited to any pledges, or guarantees, if any, created/ executed by any
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person in favour of the Transferor Company or any other person acting on
behalf of or for the benefit of the Transferor Company for securing the
obligations of the persons to whom the Transferor Company has
advanced loans and granted other funded and non-funded financial
assistance, by way of letter of comfort or through other similar instruments
shall without any further act, instrument or deed stand vested in and be
deemed to be in favour of the Transferee Company and the benefit of
such security shall be available to the Transferee Company as if such
security was ab initio created in favour of the Transferee Company. The
mutation or substitution of the charge in relation to the movable and
immovable properties of the Transferor Company shall, upon this Scheme
becoming effective, be made and duly recorded in the name of the
Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities and third parties
(including any depository pariicipants) pursuant to the sanction of this
Scheme by the Appropriate Authority and upon the Scheme becoming
effective in accordance with the terms hereof;

in so far as various incentives, subsidies, exemptions, remissions,
reductions, export benefits, all indirect tax related benefits, including GST
benefits, service tax benefits, customs duty exemptions/ concessions, all
indirect tax related assets/credits, including but not limited to Input Tax
Credit (if transferable), sales tax/entry tax credits or set-off, TDS/TCS
credits or set-off (to the extent remaining unutilised on the Appointed
Date), income fax holiday/benefit/losses/minimum alternative tax and
other benefits or exemptions or privileges enjoyed (to the extent remaining
unutilized on the Appointed Date), granted by any Appropriate Authority
or by any other person, or availed of by the Transferor Company itself or
by any of the entities historically merged or demerged into the Transferor
Company (to the extent pertaining to the undertaking merged or
demerged with the Transferor Company) are concerned, the same shall,
together with any corresponding obligations, without any further act or
deed, in so far as they relate to the Transferor Company, vest with and be
available to the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions
as were available with the Transferor Company and as if the same had
been allotted and/or granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed to the
Transferee Company, to the end and intent that the right of the Transferor
Company to recover or realise the same, shall become the right of the
Transferee Company and/or stands vested in the Transferee Company;
and

all assets and properties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed
Date, whether or not included in the books of the Transferor Company,
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and all assets and properties which are acquired by the Transferor
Company on or after the Appointed Date, if any, due or which may at any
time from the Appointed Date become due between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand
discharged and come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf
on any party and the appropriate effect shall be given in the books of
accounts and records of the Transferee Company.

522  Transfer of contracts, deeds etc.:

d.

all the contracts, agreements, memoranda of undertakings, memoranda
of agreement, memoranda of agreed points, letters of agreed points, bids,
letters of intent, arrangements, undertakings whether written or otherwise,
lease rights, deeds, bonds, understandings, insurance policies,
applications, schemes and instruments of whatsoever nature to which the
Transferor Company is a party, or to the benefit of which, the Transferor
Company may be eligible/entitled, and which are subsisting and having
effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall without any further act,
instrument or deed continue in full force and effect on, against or in favour
of the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually
as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had
been a party or beneficiary or obligor thereto or thereunder. If the
Transferee Company enters into and/ or issues and/ or executes deeds,
writings or confirmations or enters into any tripartite arrangements,
confirmations or novations, the Transferor Company may, if necessary,
also be party to such documents in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme, if so required and permitied under the law;
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities,
powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company
as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of
the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound
by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights
and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee
Company;

on and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company
shall be entitled to complete and enforce all pending contracts and
transactions in respect of the Transferor Company, in the name of the
Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of
rights and obligations of the Transferor Company to the Transferee
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Company under this Scheme has been given effect to under such
contracts and transactions.

523  Transfer of Liabilities:

d.

upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date all debis and liabilities of the Transferor Company
including all secured and unsecured debts (in whatsoever currency and
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the
balance sheet of the Transferor Company), liabilities (including contingent
liabilities), duties and obligations of the Transferor Company of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever whether present or future, and
howsoever arising, along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or security
thereon shall, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal
and under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument,
deed, matter or thing, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be
deemed to have been fransferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date so as
to become the Liahilities of the Transferee Company on the same terms
and conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company, and the
Transferee Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same and
further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or
other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of
which such Liabilities have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions
of this Clause 5.2.3;

all loans raised and utilised and all liabilities, duties and obligations
incurred or undertaken by the Transferor Company on or after the
Appointed Date shall be deemed to have been raised, used, incurred or
undertaken for and on behalf of the Transferee Company and to the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme and under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall become
the loans and liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company
which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same;

loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters
of credit, letters of comfort or any other instrument or arrangement which
may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or which
may at any time from the Appointed Date become due between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand
discharged and come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf
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on any party and the appropriate effect shall be given in the books of
accounts and records of the Transferee Company; and

subject to the necessary consents being obtained in accordance with the
terms of this Scheme, the provisions of this Clause shall operate
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any deed or writing
or the terms of sanction or issue or any security document, all of which
instruments shall stand modified and / or superseded by the foregoing
provisions of this Scheme. It is expressly provided that, no other terms or
conditions of the liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company is
modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the exient that such

amendment is required statutorily or by necessary implication.

524  Transfer of Encumbrances:

d.

The transfer and vesting of the assets, contracts, etc. comprised in the
Undertaking to the Transferee Company under Clause 5.2.1 and Clause
5.2.2. of this Scheme shall be subject to the Encumbrances, if any,
affecting the same as hereinafter provided;

all the Encumbrances, if any, existing prior to the Effective Date over the
assets of the Transferor Company shall, after the Effective Date, without
any further act, instrument or deed, continue to relate and attach to such
assets or any part thereof to which they are related or attached prior to
the Effective Date, provided that if any of the assets of the Transferor
Company have not been Encumbered, such assets shall remain
unencumbered and the existing Encumbrance referred to above shall not
be extended to and shall not operate over such assets. Further, such
Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the
Transferee Company. The absence of any formal amendment which may
be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not affect the
operation of the above;

the existing Encumbrances over the other assets and properties of the
Transferee Company or any part thereof which relate to the Liabilities of
the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date shall continue to relate
to such assets and properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the
assets and properties of the Transferor Company transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme;

any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to which the
Transferor Company is a party) to the Transferor Company and its
respective assets and properties, shall be construed as a reference to the
Transferee Company and the assets and properties of the Transferor
Company transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this
Scheme. Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, the Transferee
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Company may execute any instruments or documents or do all the acts
and deeds as may be considered appropriate, including the filing of
necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with the Registrar
of Companies of Relevant Jurisdiction to give formal effect to the above
provisions, if required;

upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall
be liable to perform all obligations in respect of the Liabilities, which have
been transferred to it in terms of this Scheme;

it is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or
condition of the Liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company is
amended by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such
amendment is required statutorily,

the provisions of this Clause 5.2.4. shall operate notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the terms
of sanction or issue or any security document; all of which instruments,
deeds or writings or the terms of sanction or issue or any security
document shall stand modified and/or superseded by the foregoing
provisions. Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company may execute any instruments or
documents or do all the acts and deeds as may be considered
appropriate, including the filing of necessary particulars and/or
modification(s) of charge(s), with the Registrar of Companies to give

formal effect to the above provisions, if required.

525 Transfer of licenses and approvals:

d.

all approvals, allotments, consents, concessions, clearances, credits,
awards, sanctions, exemptions, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes,
registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights,
entitlements, authorisation, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders,
licenses (including the licenses granted by any governmental, statutory or
regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on its business or in
connection therewith), permissions, privileges, powers, facilities, letter of
allotments and certificates of every kind and description whatsoever in
relation to the Transferor Company, or to the benefit of which the
Transferor Company may be eligible/ entitled, and which are subsisting or
having effect immediately before the Effective Date, including the benefits
of any applications made for any of the foregoing, shall be and remain in
full force and effect in favour of the Transferee Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company,
the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee
thereto, It is hereby clarified that if the consent of any third party or
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authority is required to give effect to the provisions of this Clause, the said
third party or authority shall make and duly record the necessary
substitution/ endorsement in the name of the Transferee Company
pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Appropriate Authority, and
upon this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with the terms
hereof. For this purpose, the Transferee Company shall file appropriate
applications/ documents with relevant authorities concerned for
information and record purposes;

all statutory licenses, no objection certificates, consents, permissions,
approvals, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of
attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferor
Company or any applications made for the same by the Transferor
Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company, as if the
same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the
terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and
benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee Company;
all trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights, patents, logos,
corporate names, brand names, domain names and all registrations,
applications and renewals in connection therewith, and, software and all
website content (including text, graphics, images, audio, videoc and data),
trade secrets, confidential business information and other proprietary
information or other intellectual property rights shall stand transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company without any further act, instrument
or deed, upon the sanction of this Scheme by the Appropriate Authority;
the Transferor Company and/ or the Transferee Company as the case
may be, shall, at any time after this Scheme becoming effective in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under Applicable
Laws or otherwise, do all such acts or things as may be necessary to
transfer/ obtain the approvals, consents, exemptions, registrations, no-
objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, licenses and
certificates which were held or enjoyed by the Transferor Company. It is
hereby clarified that if the consent of any third party or Appropriate
Authority, if any, is required to give effect to the provisions of this Clause,
the said third party or Appropriate Authority shall make and duly record
the necessary substitution/ endorsement in the name of the Transferee
Company pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Appropriate
Authority, and upon this Scheme becoming effective in accordance with

the provisions of the Act and with the terms hereof. For this purpose, the
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Transferee Company shall file appropriate applications/ documents with
relevant authorities concerned for information and record purposes;
since each of the permissions, approvals, consenis, sanctions,
remissions, special reservations, holidays, incentives, concessions and
other authorizations, shall stand vested by the order of sanction of the
Appropriate Authority in the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory
authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders of
the Tribunal; and

the Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be
deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the
Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all such acts, formalities

or compliances referred to above as may be required in this regard.

526 Transfer of legal and other proceedings:

d.

any pending suits/appeals, all legal or other proceedings including before
any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal or other proceedings of
whatsoever nature relating to the Transferor Company, whether by or
against the Transferor Company, whether pending on the Effective Date
or which may be instituted any time in the future, if such proceedings are
capable of being continued by or against the Transferee Company, shall
not abate, be discontinued or in any way prejudicially be affected by
reason of this amalgamation of the Transferor Company or because of
the provisions contained in this Scheme. The proceedings shall continue
by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the
same extent as they would have been continued, prosecuted and/or
enforced by or against the Transferor Company, if this Scheme had not
been implemented;

in case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be
initiated by or may be initiated against the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company shall be made pariy thereto and shall prosecute or
defend such proceedings;

the Transferee Company undertakes to have all legal or other
proceedings initiated by or against the Transferor Company, which are
capable of being continued by or against the Transferee Company,
transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably possible after the
Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced
by or against the Transferee Company; and

the Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised under this

Scheme to execute any pleadings, applications, forms, etc., as are
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required to remove any difficulties and carry out any formalities or
compliance as are necessary for the implementation of this Scheme.

527 Transfer of Employees:

d.

upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all the Employees of the
Transferor Company shall, become the employees of the Transferee
Company, on same terms and conditions and shall not be less favourable
than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company and
without any interruption of or break in service as a result of the merger of
the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. For the purpose
of payment of any compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits, the
past services of such Employees with the Transferor Company and such
benefits to which the Employees are entitled in the Transferor Company
shall also be taken into account and paid (as and when payable) by the
Transferee Company;

The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by any
agreement/settlement, if any, eniered info or deemed fo have been
entered into by the Transferor Company with any union/ employee of the
Transferor Company;

The past services of all Employees prior to the Scheme being effective
shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which the
Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment or redundancy compensation, leave encashment, gratuity
and other terminal benefits. To this effect, on the Scheme becoming
effective, the accumulated balances or contributions if any, standing to the
credit of the Employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and/or
superannuation funds shall be continued in the existing funds on behalf of
the Transferee Company, or transferred to fund(s)/ trust(s) nominated by
the Transferee Company or to such new fund(s)/ trust(s) to be established
(if any) by the Transferee Company and caused to be recognized by the
Appropriate Authorities, or to the government provident fund, in relation to
the Employees where applicable;

with regard to provident fund and gratuity fund or any other special funds
or schemes created or existing for the benefit of such employees
(hereinafter referred to as the “said Funds") of the Transferor Company,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall
stand substituted for the Transferor Company for all purposes whatsoever
relating to the administration or operation of such schemes or funds in
relation to the obligations to make contributions to the said Funds in
accordance with the provisions of such schemes or funds in the respective
trust deeds or other documents. It is the aim and intent of the Scheme that
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all the rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Transferor Company
in relation to such Funds shall become those of the Transferee Company.
In the event that tfrustees are constituted as holders of any securities, frust
funds or trust monies, in relation to any provident fund trust, gratuity trust,
superannuation trust, welfare trusi, or any other such trust existing for the
benefit of the employees of the Transferor Company, such funds shall be
transferred by such trustees of the trusts of the Transferor Company, to
separate trusts and the trusiees of the Transferee Company if set up for
the same purpose and object and shall be deemed to be a transfer of trust
property from one set of trustees to ancther set of trustees in accordance
with the provisions of the relevant labour laws, Indian Trusts Act, 1882, the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and relevant stamp legislations, as applicable. In
such a case, appropriate deeds of trusts and/or documents for transfer of
trust properties shall be executed upon the sanction of the Scheme in
accordance with the terms hereof by the trustees of such trusts in favour
of the trusts of the Transferee Company so as o continue the benefits of
the employees. For this purpose, the trusts created by the Transferor
Company shall be transferred/ merged with the respective trust(s) of the
Transferee Company and/or be continued; by the Transferee Company,
if permitted by law, failing which the Transferee Company shall establish
similar trusts ensuring that there is continuity in this regard. The Trustees,
including the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, shall be
entitled to adopt such course of action in this regard, as may be advised,
provided however that there shall be no discontinuation or break-in the
service of the employees of the Transferor Company. Notwithstanding the
above, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, if it deems fit
and subject to applicable law, shall be entitled to retain separate
trusts/schemes within the Transferee Company for each of the erstwhile
trusts/schemes of the Transferor Company;

further to the transfer of Funds as set out herein above, for all purposes
whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such Funds or
in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said Funds in
accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the
respective trust deeds, if any, all rights, duties, powers and obligations of
the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date in relation to such Funds
shall become those of the Transferee Company. It is clarified that the
services of the Employees will be treated as having been continuous for
the purpose of the said Funds; and

in relation to any funds (including any funds set up by the government for
employee benefits) created or existing for the benefit of the transferred
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Employees, the Transferee Company shall stand substituted for the
Transferor Company, for all purposes whatsoever, including relating to the
obligation to make contributions to the said funds in accordance with the
provisions of such scheme, funds, bye laws, etc. in respect of such
transferred Employees.

5.2.8.  Taxation related provisions:

a. all the expenses incurred by the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company in relation to the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company as per this Scheme, including stamp duty
expenses, if any, shall be allowed as deduction to the Transferee
Company in accordance with Section 35DD of the IT Act over a period of
5 (five) years beginning with the previous year in which the Scheme
becomes effective;

b. upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company (if
required) and the Transferee Company are expressly permitted to revise,
its financial statements and returns (including tax deducted at source
('TDS') or tax collected at source (‘'TCS') returns) along with prescribed
forms, filings and annexures (including but not limited to TDS certificates)
under the IT Act (including for the purpose of re-computing income-tax
under the normal provisions, minimum alternative tax, and claiming other
tax benefits), GST Act, ceniral sales tax, applicable state value added tax,
entry tax, octroi, local tax law, service tax laws, excise and central value
added tax ('CENVAT") duty laws, customs duty laws, and other tax laws,
if required to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme. Such returns
may be revised and filed notwithstanding that the statutory period for such
revision and filing may have expired. The Transferee Company is also
expressly permitted to claim refunds [ credits in respect of any transaction
by and between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.
With respect to the TDS certificates issued in the name of Transferor
Company itself or in the name of any of the entities historically merged or
demerged into the Transferor Company (to the extent pertaining to the
undertaking merged or demerged with the Transferor Company) after the
Appointed Date, the same will be deemed to be issued in the name of the
Transferee Company for the income tax purposes;

c. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, on and from the
Appointed Date, if any certificate for tax deducted or collected at source
or any other tax credit certificate is received in the name of Transferor
Company itself or in the name of any of the entities historically merged or
demerged into the Transferor Company (to the extent periaining to the
undertaking merged or demerged with the Transferor Company), or tax
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credit is appearing in Form 26AS of the Transferor Company itself or in
the name of any of the entities historically merged or demerged into the
Transferor Company (o the extent pertaining to the undertaking merged
or demerged with the Transferor Company), it shall be deemed to have
been received by and in the name of the Transferee Company which
alone shall be entitled to claim credit for such Tax deducted or paid;
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be
entitled to (i) claim deductions with respect to provisions, expenses, etc.,
disallowed in earlier years in the hands of the Transferor Company, which
may be allowabhle in accordance with the provisions of the IT Act on or
after the Appointed Date; and (i) exclude items such as provisions,
reversals, eic., for which no deduction or tax benefit has been claimed by
the Transferor Company prior to the Appointed Date;

With effect from Appointed Date, the Transferee Company is expressly
permitted to claim any deduction (including deferred revenue expenditure,
whether or not recorded for tax purposes) otherwise admissible such as
under section 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the IT Act / exemption, refunds and/or
input tax credit/ cenvat, credit for taxes paid (including MAT, TDS/TCS,
income tax including, advance fax, self-assessment tax, dividend
distribution tax, carry forward of accumulated losses unabsorbed
depreciation, foreign tax credit, etc.) and for matters incidental thereto
under the IT Act, GST Act, central sales tax, applicable state value added
tax, service tax laws, local body tax, entry tax, excise duty and CENVAT
duty laws, customs duty laws, and other applicable tax laws. All tax
assessment proceedings/ appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the
Transferor Company pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and
relating to the Transferor Company shall be continued and/or enforced
until the Effective Date by the Transferor Company. In the event of the
Transferor Company failing to continue or enforce any proceeding/
appeal, the same may be continued or enforced by the Transferee
Company, at the cost of the Transferee Company. As and from the
Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or
against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same
extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against
the Transferor Company;

further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be
discontinued nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company

or anything contained in the Scheme;
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0.

any tax liabilities under the IT Act, GST Act, service tax laws, excise duty
laws, central sales tax, customs duty laws, local body tax, eniry tax, wealth
tax, applicable state value added tax laws or other Applicable Laws
dealing with taxes/ duties or levies of the Transferor Company to the
extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made
as on the date immediately preceding Appointed Date shall be transferred
to or stand transferred to the Transferee Company. Any surplus in the
provision for taxation / duties or levies account including advance tax,
foreign tax credit, MAT credit and TDS/ TCS of the Transferor Company
itself or of the entities historically merged or demerged into the Transferor
Company (to the extent pertaining to the undertaking merged or
demerged with the Transferor Company) as on the date immediately
preceding to Appointed Date will also be transferred to the account of the
Transferee Company;

any refund under the IT Act, GST Act, service tax laws, excise duty laws,
central sales tax, customs duty, applicable state value added tax laws or
other Applicable Laws dealing with taxes/ duties or levies due to the
Transferor Company consequent to the assessment made on Transferor
Company and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be
received by the Transferee Company upon this Scheme becoming
effective;

the tax paymenis (including, without limitation income tax, GST, advance
tax, self-assessment tax, dividend distribution tax, MAT, service tax,
excise duty, central sales tax, customs duty, local body tax, entry tax,
wealth tax, applicable state value added tax, etc.) whether by way of
TDS/TCS, foreign tax credit, advance tax, all earnest monies, security
deposits provisional payments, payment under protest, or otherwise
howsoever, by the Transferor Company itself or by any of the entities
historically merged or demerged into the Transferor Company (to the
extent pertaining to the undertaking merged or demerged with the
Transferor Company) after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be
paid by the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt
with accordingly. Credit for such taxes shall be allowed to the Transferee
Company notwithstanding that certificates or challans for taxes paid are
in the name of the Transferor Company and not in the name of the
Transferee Company;

obligation for TDS on any payment made by or to be made by the
Transferor Company under the IT Act, GST Act, service tax laws, excise
duty laws, central sales tax, customs duty, applicable state value added
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h.2.9,

tax laws or other Applicable Laws dealing with taxes/ duties or levies shall
be made or deemed to have been made and duly complied with by the
Transferee Company;

without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits, entitlements,
incentives, accumulated losses, and allowance for unabsorbed
depreciation as per Section 72A of the IT Act, losses brought forward and
unabsorbed depreciation as per books of accounts, credits, registrations
(including, without limitation income fax, minimum alternate tax,
TDS/TCS, taxes withheld/paid in foreign country, GST, wealth tax, service
tax, excise duty, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax,
customs duty, CENVAT, registrations, etc.) to which the Transferor
Company itself or any of the entities historically merged or demerged into
the Transferor Company (o the extent pertaining to the undertaking
merged or demerged with the Transferor Company) is entitled to in terms
of Applicable Laws, shall be available to and vest in the Transferee
Company, upon this Scheme coming into effect;

upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all tax compliances under any tax
laws by the Transferor Company on or after Appointed Date shall be
deemed to be made by the Transferee Company;

. all deductions otherwise admissible to the Transferor Company including

payment admissible on actual payment or on deduction of appropriate
taxes or on payment of tax deducted at source (such as under Sections
40, 40A, 43B eic. of the IT Act) shall be available for deduction to the
Transferee Company as it would have been available to the Transferor
Company; and

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, subject to applicable laws, the
Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise or amend the
returns along with prescribed forms filings and annexures of the
Transferor Company under the IT Act (including for minimum alternate tax
purposes and tax benefits), GST Act, service tax law and other tax laws,
and to claim refunds and/or credits for taxes paid (including minimum
alternate tax, Goods and Service Tax, etc), and to claim tax benefits of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if
required, to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme and in accordance
with the relevant provisions. Such returns may be revised and filed
notwithstanding that the statutory period for such revision and filing may
have expired and without incurring any additional liability on account of

interest, penalty, late fees or any other sum.

Inter-se transaction:
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without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, with effect from the
Appointed Date, all inter- party transactions between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall be considered as infra-party
transactions for all purposes;

with effect from the Effective Date, there will be no accrual of income or
expense on account of any transactions, including, inter alia, any
transactions in the nature of sale or transfer of any goods, materials or
services, between the Companies. For avoidance of doubt, it is hereby
clarified that with effect from the Effective Date, there will be no accrual of
interest or other charges in respect of any inter se loans, deposits or
balances between the Companies;

from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall commence, carry
on and be authorized to carry on the business of the Transferor Company;
with effect from the Effective Date, any liabilities, loans, advances,
debentures and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of
credit, letters of comfort or any other instrument or arrangement which
may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or which
may at any time in future become due between the Transferor Company
and Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged and deemed
to be discharged in accordance with the mode prescribed under the IT
Act. Further, all such arrangements shall come to an end and there shall
be no liability in that behalf on any party and the appropriate effect shall
be given in the books of accounis and records of the Transferee
Company; and

all inter se contracts solely between the Transferor Company and the

Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and cease to operate.

5210 Miscellaneous:

d,

For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of any
applicable provisions of this Scheme, it is clarified that in order to ensure
the smooth transition and sales of services and inventory of the Transferor
Company marketed and/or branded and/or labelled in the name of the
Transferor Company prior to the Effective Date, the Transferee Company
shall have the right to own, use, market, sell, exhaust or to in any manner
deal with any such preducts and inventory (including packing material)
pertaining to the Transferor Company, without making any modifications
whatsoever to such products and/or their branding, packing or labelling.
All invoices/ payment related documents pertaining to such products and
inventory (including packing material) may be raised in the name of the

Transferee Company after the Effective Date;
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b. All profits and income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company, and
losses and expenditure arising or incurred by it (including taxes, if any,
accruing or paid in relation to any profits or income) for the period
commencing from the Appointed Date shall, for all purposes, be treated
as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses or expenditure
(including taxes), as the case may be, of the Transferee Company;

c. Notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Transferor Company occurs
by virtue of this Scheme, it is clarified that in order to ensure (i)
implementation of the provisions of the Scheme; (ii) uninterrupted transfer
of the relevant consents, approvals, patents, permissions, licenses,
registrations, certificates etc.; and (iii) continued vesting of the benefits,
exemptions available to the Transferor Company in relation to the
Transferor Company in favour of the Transferee Company without
prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding that
vesting of the Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the
Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this
Scheme, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under
any law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds
(including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement to which any
of the Transferor Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary
in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The
Transferee Company shall, after the Effective Date, under the provisions
of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings
on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor
Company to be carried out or performed;

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the transfer and vesting of the Transferor

Company along with all its assets, liabilities, confracts, employees, licenses,
consents, permits, records, approvals, etc., comprising the Undertaking into
the Transferee Company under Clauses 5 above shall not affect any
transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company
until the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company
accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the
Transferor Company in respect thereto as acts, deeds and things made, done
and executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY

Except as provided under this Scheme, from the date of the Scheme being
approved by the Board of the Companies and up to the Effective Date:
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the Transferor Company shall carry on its business and activities with due
business prudence and diligence and shall not, without prior written
consent of the Transferee Company or pursuant to any preexisting
obligation, sell transfer or otherwise alienate, charge, mortgage,
encumber or otherwise deal with any part of its assets nor incur or accept
or acknowledge any debt, obligation or liability except as is necessary in
the ordinary course of business; and

pending sanction of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall not,
except by way of issue of shares | convertible debentures to the
Transferee Company, increase its capital (by fresh issue of shares,

convertible debentures or otherwise).

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective
Date:

d.

the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all
business and activities and shall hold and stand possessed of and shall
be deemed to hold and stand possessed of all the estates, assets, rights,
title, interest, authorities, contract, investments and strategic decisions, for
and on account of, and in trust for, the Transferee Company;

all profits and income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company, and
losses and expenditure arising or incurred by it (including taxes, if any,
accruing or paid in relation to any profits or income) shall, for all purposes,
be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses or
expenditure, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company;

any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges, exercised by the
Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the
Transferor Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for and as an agent
of the Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and
commitments that have been undertaken or discharged by the Transferor
Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken for and on behalf of
and as an agent for the Transferee Company;

all debts, liabilities, loans raised and used, liabilities and obligations
incurred, duties and obligations as on the close of business on the date
preceding the Appointed Date, whether or not provided in the books of the
Transferor Company which arise or accrue to the Transferor Company on
or after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be of the Transferee
Company;

all assets and properties comprised in the Transferor Company as on the
date immediately preceding the Appointed Date, whether or not included
in the books of the Transferor Company and all assets and properties
relating thereto, which are acquired by the Transferor Company, on or
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after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be the assets and properties
of the Transferee Company;

all taxes (including without limitation, income tax, wealth tax, sales fax,
excise duty, customs duty, service tax, value added tax, etc.) paid or
payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and/or
the profits of the Transferor Company before the Appointed Date, shall be
on account of the Transferor Company and, in so far as it relates to the
tax payment (including, without limitation, income tax, minimum alternate
tax, dividend distribution tax, wealth tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs
duty, goods and services tax, etc.), whether by way of deduction at
source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Company
in respect of the profits or activities or operation of the Transferor
Company with effect from the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be the
corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company, and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly;

any refund (including interest, if any) under any tax laws due to the
Transferor Company conseguent to the assessment made on Transferor
Company and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date
immediately preceding the Appeointed Date shall also belong to and be
received by the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company is
expressly permitted to revise and file income tax returns, goods and
services tax returns and other tax returns, and to claim refunds / credits
pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall
be entitled to such tax benefits including but not limited to minimum
alternate tax paid under Section 115JA/115JB of the IT Act, and the right
to claim credit therefore in accordance with the provisions of Section
115JAA of the IT Act, including the benefit of brought forward losses or
depreciation as admissible under the provisions of the IT Act, including
Section 72A, to the extent applicable to the taxable profits of the
Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date. The Transferee
Company shall continue to enjoy the tax benefits/concessions provided to
the Transferor Company through notifications, circulars, etc. issued by the
concerned Appropriate Authorities; and

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, the Parties shall be
entitled to declare, distribute and pay dividend, whether interim or final, to

their respective shareholders prior to this Scheme becoming effective.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Upon scheme being effective, the Transferee Company shall account for
amalgamation in accordance with “Pooling of Interest Method" laid down by
Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business combinations of entities under common
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8.1.1.

8.1.3.

8.1.4.

8.1.5.

8.1.6.

8.1.7.

control) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other applicable accounting standards
prescribed under the Act as below:

All assets, liabilities and reserves of Transferor Company transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company shall be recorded in the books of accounts
of the Transferee Company at their respective book values as appearing in
the consolidated financial statements of the Transferee Company, being the
holding company of the Transferor Company. No goodwill gets created
pursuant to the above Scheme.

The identity of the reserves pertaining to Transferor Company shall be
preserved and shall appear in the merged separate financial statements of the
Transferee Company in the same form in which they appeared in the
consolidated financial statements of the Transferee Company, being the
Holding Company of the Transferor Company;

To the extent that there are inter-company loans, debentures, deposits,
obligations, balances or other outstanding including any interest thereon, as
between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the
obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and there shall be no asset
or liability in that behalf;

The investment in shares of the Transferor Company appearing in the books
of accounts of the Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and there shall
be no further obligation / outstanding in that behalf;

The difference, if surplus, between the (a) book value of assets, liabilities and
reserves of Transferor Company recorded in terms of sub-clause 8.1.1 and
8.1.2 above as adjusted by 8.1.3 above and (b) the value of investment in
share capital of Transferor Company cancelled in terms of sub-clause 8.1.4
above, shall be credited to capital reserve and presented separately from
other capital reserves of the Transferee Company, and in case of deficit,
adjusted to existing capital reserves or revenue reserves of Transferee
Company, in that order, and if the Transferee Company has no reserves or
has inadequate reserves, then the remaining deficit will be debited to an
account titled 'Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account’.

In case of any difference in accounting policies between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company, the impact of the same will be
quantified and adjusted in the revenue reserves of the Transferee Company
o ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the
financial position on the basis of a consistent accounting policies.
Comparative financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee

Company shall be restated for the accounting impact of Scheme, as stated
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1

above, as if the amalgamation had occurred from the beginning of the
comparative period.
CANCELLATION OF SHARE CAPITAL OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND
CONSIDERATION

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee
Company with all the shares in the share capital of the Transferor Company
being held by the Transferee Company and the Transferee Company being
the holding company, cannot issue or allot any shares to itself, no shares
whatsoever shall be issued by the Transferee Company in consideration of
the amalgamation. Accordingly, all such shares of the Transferor Company
held by the Transferee Company and investment of the Transferee Company
shall stand cancelled upon the Scheme becoming effective without any issue
or allotment of new shares in lieu of such shares of the Transferor Company
without any further act, instrument or deed.

This scheme does not result into capital reduction for the Transferor Company
or the Transferee Company.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Company shall stand
dissolved without being wound up by the order of the Appropriate Authority,
or any other act or deed.

AMALGAMATION AS PER INCOME TAX ACT

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply and come within the definition and

conditions relating to ‘amalgamation’ as specified under Section 2(1B) of the
IT Act. If any term(s) or provision(s) of the Scheme are found or interpreted to
be inconsistent with the provisions of the said sections of the IT Act, at a later
date, including resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason
whatever, the Scheme shall stand modified /| amended to the extent
determined necessary to comply and come within the definition and conditions
relating to 'amalgamation’ as specified in the IT Act. In such an event, where
the Clauses which are inconsistent are modified or deemed to be deleted,
such modification / deemed deletion shall, however, not affect the other parts
of the Scheme. The power to make such amendments as may become
necessary shall vest with the Board of Directors of the Companies, which
power shall be exercised reasonably in the best interests of the Companies
concerned and their stakeholders.
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PART Ill: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

12

13,

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

14

141,

14.1.1.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

The effectiveness of the Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a. this Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the
various classes of shareholders as well as creditors of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company if required under the Act unless
dispensed with by the Tribunal and the requisite orders of the Tribunal at
Ahmedabad being obtained; and

b. the certified copy of the order of the Tribunal at Ahmedabad under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act sanctioning
the Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company.

APPLICATIONS

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, if required, shall, with

all reasonable dispatch, make application/ petition to the National Company

Law Tribunal at Ahmedabad under Section 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions, of the Act, for sanctioning of this Scheme.

On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferor

Company and the Transferee Company (unless dispensed with by the

Tribunal), such shareholders shall also be deemed to have resolved and

accorded all relevant consents under the Act or otherwise to the same extent

applicable in relation to the merger set out in this Scheme, related matters and
this Scheme itself.

The Companies shall be entitled, pending the effectiveness of the Scheme, to

apply to any Appropriate Authority, if required, under any Applicable Law for

such consents and approvals, as agreed between the Companies, which the

Companies may require to effect the transactions contemplated under the

Scheme, in any case subject to the terms as may be mutually agreed between

the Companies.

The Transferor Company shall take all necessary steps for sanctioning of this

Scheme and for its dissolution without winding up, and apply for and obtain

such other approvals, if any, required under the law.

AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF TRANSFEREE

COMPANY

Change in object clause:

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company will continue
to run the business of the Transferor Company on the same lines as carried
on by the Transferor Company. For the aforesaid purpose and as integral part
of scheme, upon the scheme becoming effective, to enable the Transferee
Company to carry on the business of Transferor Company, the Memorandum
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of Association of the Transferee Company shall stand altered and amended
without any separate approval from the shareholders of the Transferee
Company pursuant the applicable provisions of the Act or without any further
act or deed, or without following the procedure laid down under the Act, by
way of insertion of the following clauses after main object clause 1 in the
existing Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company:

“1. To carry on, in India and abroad, the business as manufacturer, assembler,
repairer, fabricator, processor, producer, buyer, seller, dealer, wholesaler,
retailer, consignor, consignee, agent, importer, exporter, consuitants of and in
engineering and non-engineering products of metallic or non-metallic
materials of mechanical, electrical, electronic, instrumentation, hydrauiic,
plastic or any other nature or combination therecf, including engineering
products and components like steel structures, towers of any kind and nature,
iransformers, generators, control panels, pitch panels, power panels, solar
panels, batteries, nacelle cover, gear and gear box, compressor, rotor blades,
reinforced fibre glass products, used for renewable and green energy sector
or otherwise and general engineering products.

2. To engage in operation and maintenance of conventional and non-
conventional power projects including distributing, transferring, preserving,
mixing, supplying, contracting, consulting, importing, exporting, buying,
selling, assembling, hiring, repairing, dealing, distributing, stocking, trading,
broking, representing, collaboratling, managing, maintaining, leasing, renting,
servicing, dealing in all kind and type, nature and description of power
projects, power sources, equipments and infrastructure.

3. To carry on in India and anywhere else in the World the business of and as
an independent power project company and for the purpose to establish,
develop, install, commission, acquire, operate and maintain, either
independently and / or in association with and / or through one or more
subsidiary / joint venture |/ associate |/ such person or persons, non-
conventional, renewable and green power projects including solar, wind,
hydro, biomass, geothermal; tidal, wave energy and for the purpose do all
such acts and deeds including acquiring and developing land, utilizing,
undertaking, laying out, developing, re-erecting, altering, repairing, re-
modelling, setting-up and / or arranging, on behalf of clients as well as for its
own, in connection with any infrastructure development including civil
construction, electrical, laying of evacuation and transmission facility, setting-
up of sub-stations, erection, installation & commissioning of solar power
projects, wind power projects, windmills, power plants, renewable and green

energy projects, power supply works or any other structural or architectural
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14.2.

1421

work of any kind whatsoever, and marketing, buying, selling and / or dealing
in power.

4. To engage in the business of evacuation, transmission, distribution of power
generated from any conventional or non-conventional energy sources
including but not limiting to wind energy, thermal, solar, hydro, tidal, wave,
steam, biomass, geothermal, atomic, waste energy sources and for the
purpose to utilizing, undertake, layout, develop, construct, build, erect,
demolish, re-erect, alter, repair, re-model, modify, augment for and on its own
behalf or for and on behalf of other person or persons including but not limiting
to individuals, organisations, bodies corporate, associations, unincorporated
bodies, State Electricity Boards, State Nodal Agencies, private | semi-
government |/ government companies - power generation, power
transmission, power distribution, power trading companies or otherwise, all
infrastructure development activities including fransmission lines, sub-
stations, power houses, power stations, etc.

5. To organise, undertake, layout, develop, construct, build, erect, demolish,
re-erect, alter, repair, re-model on behalf of clients as well as on its own in
connection with any infrastructure development like civil construction,
electrical, laying of evacuation and transmission facility, erection, installation
& commissioning of windmills, building or building scheme, roads, highways.
Docks, ships, sewers, bridges, canals, wells, springs, series, dams, power
plants, wind power projecis, solar power projects, renewable and green
energy projects, boars, wharves, ports, reservoirs, embankments, tramway,
railways, Irrigations, reclamations, improvements, sanitary, water, gas,
electric light, telephonic, telegraphic and power supply works or any other
structural or architectural work of any kind whatsoever and for such purpose
to prepare reports, estimates, designs, plants, specification or models as may
be requisite thereof and for the purpose or otherwise carry on the business as
and of contractors and engineers and consultants in all its branches.”

Under the accepted principle of single window clearance, it is hereby provided
that the amendments pursuant to this Clause 14.7 shall become operative on
the Scheme becoming effective by virtue of the fact that the shareholders of
the Transferee Company, while approving the Scheme as a whole (unless
dispensed with by the Tribunal), have approved and accorded the relevant
consents as required under the Act for amendment of the memorandum of
association of the Transferee Company and shall not be required fo pass
separate resolutions under the applicable provisions of the Act.

Increase of Authorised Share Capital:

As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upen coming into effect of the Scheme,
the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company shall stand merged
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14.2.3.

14.2.4.

15,

1581,

with the authorized share capital representing the ordinary shares of the
Transferee Company and consequently, the authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company shall stand suitably increased, without any further act,
instrument or deed.

Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company
(relating to authorised share capital) and without any further instrument, act or
deed be stand altered, modified and amended as under pursuant to Sections
13, 14, 61, 62 and 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act:

V. The Authorized share capital of the company is INR 2,10,53,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Twenty-One Thousand Fifty-Three Crores Only) divided into
1,05,26,50,00,000 (Ten Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Six Crores Fifty
Lacs) Equity Shares of INR 2/- (Rupees Two Only) each.”

Pursuant to this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite
forms, if any, with the Registrar of Companies for alteration of its authorized
share capital. The fee paid by the Transferor Company on its authorised
capital, shall be set off against any fees payable by the Transferee Company
on its authorised capital subsequent to the amalgamation and dissolution of
the Transferor Company.

Under the accepted principle of single window clearance, it is hereby provided
that the amendments pursuant to this Clause 14.2 shall become operative on
the Scheme becoming effective by virtue of the fact that the shareholders of
the Transferee Company, while approving the Scheme as a whole (unless
dispensed with by the Tribunal), have approved and accorded the relevant
consents as required under the Act for amendment of the memorandum of
association of Transferee Company and shall not be required to pass separate
resolutions under the applicable provisions of the Act.

MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Companies (acting through their respective Boards or committees or such
other person or persons, as the respective Board of Directors may authorize)
may, in their full and absolute discretion, jointly and as mutually agreed in
writing:

a. assent/ make and/ or consent fo any modifications or amendments to this
Scheme, or to any conditions or limitations as may be muitually agreed
and which the Appropriate Authority and/or any other authorities may
deem fit to direct or impose, and/or effect any other modification or
amendment, and to do all acts, deeds and things which may otherwise be
considered necessary or desirable or appropriate for settling any question
or doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing and / or carrying out

this Scheme;
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16.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

17

b. take such steps and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this Scheme and give such
directions (acting jointly) as to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions,
arising under this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any matter
whatsoever connected therewith (including any question or difficulty
arising in connection with any insclvent or deceased shareholders,
debenture holders, depositors of the respective Companies), whether by
reason of any order(s) of the Appropriate Authority or of any direction or
orders of any other Appropriate Authorities or otherwise howsoever
arising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters
concerning or connected therewith, or 1o review the position relating to the
satisfaction of the various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to
waive any of those (fo the extent permissible under the law);

c. modify or vary this Scheme prior 1o the Effective Date in any manner at
any time subject to Applicable Law; and

d. determine jointly whether any asset, liability, employee, legal or other
proceedings pertains to the Transferor Company or not, on the basis of
any evidence that they may deem relevant for this purpose.

In case, post approval of the Scheme by the Appropriate Authority, there is

any confusion in interpreting any Clause of this Scheme, or otherwise, the

Board of Directors of the respective Companies shall have complete power to

mutually take the most sensible interpretation so as fo render the Scheme

operational.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

The Scheme shall not come into effect unless the aforementioned conditions
mentioned in Clause 12 above are satisfied and in such an event, the Scheme
shall become null and void. Unless each of the conditions are satisfied, no
rights and fliabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the
Companies or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any
other person.

In the event of this Scheme failing to take effect, the Board of Directors of any
of the Companies may opt to terminate this Scheme and the Scheme shall
stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and any of the Companies, if
required, may file appropriate proceedings before the Appropriate Authority in
this respect.

Upon the termination of the Scheme, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall
accrue to or be incurred inter-se between the Companies or their shareholders
or creditors or employees or any other person.

REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES
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18,

19,

19.1,

The Companies through mutual consent and acting through their respective

Boards, jointly and as mutually agreed in writing may:

a. give such directions (acting jointly) and agree to take steps, as may be
necessary, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or
questions arising under this Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of
the Appropriate Authority or of any directive or orders of any Appropriate
Authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the arrangement
contemplated in this Scheme and/ or matters concerning or connected
therewith or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of this
Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever
connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction
of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of
those 1o the extent permissible under Applicable Law; and/or

b. do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or
expedient for carrying the Scheme into effect.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of the Scheme and notwithstanding

the vesting of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company by virtue

of the Scheme itself, in order to ensure (i) implementation of the provisions of
the Scheme; and (ii) continued vesting of the benefits, exemptions available
to the Transferor Company in favour of the Transferee Company, the

Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this

Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under

Applicable Law or otherwise, execute deeds (including deeds of adherence),

confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any

contract or arrangement in relation to which the Transferor Company has been

a party, including any filings with the regulatory authorities in order to give

formal effect to the above provisions and to carry out or perform all such

formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor

Company.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, taxes, including stamp duties, levies and all other
expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise agreed) of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in carrying
out and implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be
borne and paid by the Transferee Company.

MISCELLANEQUS

The Scheme is to give effect to the bona fide Rational of the Scheme as
discussed in the Scheme; contribution to the development of combined

business operations; reap the benefits of combined business operations
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19.3.

19.4.

19.5.

19.6.

which is in the hest interest of various stakeholders which are based on

commercial substance of the entire arrangement.

Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upon this Scheme becoming effective,

the following shall be deemed to have occurred on the Appointed Date and

become effective and operative at the same time:

a. amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company
in accordance with Part Il of the Scheme;

b. cancellation of all the issued share capital of the Transferor Company
which shall be effected as a part of the Scheme and not in accordance
with Section 66 of the Act in accordance with Part Il of this Scheme;

c. transfer of the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company to the
Transferee Company as provided in Part lll of this Scheme, and
consequential increase in the authorised share capital of the Transferee
Company as provided in Part Ill of this Scheme;

d. amendment in the main object of the Memorandum of Association of
Transferee Company as provided in Part |ll of this Scheme; and

e. dissolution of the Transferor Company, without winding up.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the accounts of the Companies, as on

the Appointed Date shall be reconstructed in accordance with the terms of this

Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on the

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and all concerned parties

without any further act, deed, matter or thing.

The provisions contained in this Scheme are inextricably inter-linked and the

Scheme constitutes an integral whole. The Scheme would be given effect to

only if it is approved in its entirety unless specifically agreed otherwise by the

respective Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company or any committee constituted by such Boards.

The Companies shall be at liberty to withdraw this Scheme at any time as may

be mutually agreed by the respective Board of Directors of the Companies

prior fo the Effective Date. In such a case, each of the Companies shall
respectively bear their own cost or as may be mutually agreed. It is hereby
clarified that notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this

Scheme, any one of the Companies shall not be entitled to withdraw the

Scheme unilaterally: (a) without the prior written consent of the other

Company; or (b) unless such withdrawal is in accordance with any written

agreement entered into between the Companies.

ol st it Wi x_ i it ittt il

Page 49 of 49






s, oo SUZLON
Orse Earth, Hedepsar, Pune - 411 028, India

POWERING A GREEMER TOMORROW

Phane @ +91.20 61356115 / 67021000
Fax  ;+91 3067022100 / 6702 1200
E-mual ; pube @uclion com

LIHL AW LLZ O LT

TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTELE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED HELD ON THURSDAY, 2%
MAY 2024 AT 6.30 PM. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING

To consider and approve of draft Scheme of amalgamation involving merger by absorption of Suzlon
alobal Seryvices L d with Surlon Energy Limited. their respective shareholders and ereditors unde
section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 20013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, il any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2006 and ether rules made thereunder (including any stetutory medification(s) or re-enactment(s) or
amendmentis) thereof for the tme being in force) (collectively, the “Compinies Act”™), Section 2 1B) read with
any other upplicable provisions of the Income- mx Act, 1961 {as amended) (“IT Act™), and other applicable
laws, imeluding regulations issved by Securities and Exchange Board of Indis (“SEBI7), inter alia including
applicable provisions of SERL (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
Regulanons™), and the refevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of
the Company and other applicable laws, rules. regulations, bye-laws as the case may be; and subjeet 1 reguisite
approval of the members and [ or the creditors, as applicable. of the Company and necessary consents,
observations, no-objections, permissions and spprovals of the smwtory or regulatery or governmental
authorites and subject to the senction of the Henournble Natiomal Company Law Tribunalis), Ahmedabad
Bench (“NCLT™ / “Tribunal ™) before whom the Company Scheme application would be filed, and subject to all
such conditions and modifications as may be preseribed or imposed by any of the aforessid authorities while
granting such spprovals, ehservitions, no-objections, permisstons and sanetons. which may be agreed o by the
Company, the Aundit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company be and hereby approves and
recommends to the Board of Directors of the Company, the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation involving
merger by absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limited (CIN: L2795 2004P LOMA 1700, a wholly owned
subsidiary  of the Company the “Transferor Company™), with  Swelon  Energy  Limited  (CIN
LAGTO0GI 995 P LO023447) (the “Transferee Company™ or the “Company™), thetr respecuve shareholders and
creditors (hereinafier referred 1o a5 the “Scheme™), a draft of which is tabled ot this meeting, as per e terms
and conditions mentioned in the Scheme and inter alin containing the following salient terms and conditions:

af amalgemation of the Transferor Company imo asd with the Trunsferee Company in accordance with
sections 230 1o 232 of the Companies Act and other applicable laws with Section 2{1B) and other
provisions of the 1T Act:

by the entire business of the Transteror Company shall stand transferred to and vested tnoand ¢ or be deemed o
bive been and stand transferred o and vested in the Company to become underaking of the Compuany in
secordance with Seetions 230 10 232 of the Companses Act, the IT Actand other applcable laws;

¢l the entire paid-up share capitnl wnd outstanding debentures of the Transferor Company including
wvestment in the shares | debentures of the Transferor Company, appearmg in the books of accounts of the
Trunsferee Company shall stand cancelled in ity entirety, which shall be effected as part of the Scheme and
ool in accordance with Section 66 of the Companies Act,

di amendment in the main object of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company to provide
tor the abjects of the Transteror Company;

¢)  transfer of the suthonsed share capital of the Transferor Company o the Company and consequential
inerease in the authorised share capital of the Company.

fi  Appointed Date is proposed 1o be the effective date, or such other datess may be approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company oras may be approved by the Tnbunal in this regarnd;

) Efféctive Date shall be the date on which the certified copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the
Scheme are fled by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company with the Registrar of
Companies, Gugarnat;
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Reegad, Office: “Sudion”, 5, Shramal Saciety, Meas Shri frfshoe Complies, Navrangpraa, Ahmedabad - 380 009, india P, 3170 65045000 [ 25477141, Fax 0175 26565540 [ 20240044



S N o SUZLON

POWERIMG A GREEMER TOMORADW

Phone = +81 ¥ G1956135 / 67022000
Fa #0120 67022100 / GI022200
E-mall : pusne @surlon com

(L1 Wi s 1irkon com

Ity The Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and therefore there shall
be no issuce of shares nor shall any other consideration be paid for the Scheme of the Transferor Company
wilh the Transferse Company:

13 Upon the Scheme coming into effect. the Transferor Company shall stand disselved without being wound
up by the order of the Appropriate Authority, or any other et or deed,;

13 Ifthe Scheme s not approved by the Tribunal and does mot come into effect, the Scheme shall beconie null
and void

“RESOLVED THAT for the limited purposes of the Scheme of amal gamanon, the standalone and consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 comprising of
the Bulance Sheel, Stutement of Profit and Loss along with all schedules and sccompanying notes thereto. as
placed on the table of this meetng be and the same are hereby approved and that Me Himanshn Mody, the
Group Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorised to sign the same in authentication
thereal”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Audit Committee; the draft Selieme will be of advantage
and beneficial to the Company, its shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders and the terms
thereal are fair and reasonable and is not detrimental to the shareholders of the Company.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of Section 232 of the Companies Act. 2013, the dmatt auditor’s
certificate(sh to be jssued by the statutory suditors of the Company, ie. Ms Walker Chandiok & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants (*Auditor’s Cerlificate’), certitying that the accounting treatment mentioned in the draft
Scheme is in compliance with the applicable Acceunting Standards preseribed under Sectien 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and generally aceepied accounting principles, as placed before the Board be and i3 hereby
aceepted and taken on record ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ceruficate issued by the registered valuer, namely, Mr. Pamg Vijavkant
Kulkarni ( Registraton Mumber: IBBERY/O04200912131) (Sole Proprictor — Trade Mume: Indaslab) for non-
applicability of the Valuation Report i the mutter of the Scheme, as placed before the Bourd be and 15 bereby
accepted and taken on record ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vinod R Tanti, Chatrman & Mapagng Director, Mr, Ginsh B.Tant. Vice
Chairman, Mr. LP.Chalasani, Group Chief Executive Officer, Mr, Himanshu Mody, Group Chiel Financial
Officer, Mrs. Geetanjali 5. Vaidya, Company Secretary. Mr. Anand Bagrecha, and Mr. Het Shah, the authovised
representatives of the Company, be and ore hereby severally authorised w do all sueh sets. deeds, matters and
things as may be necessiry, desirable snd expedient in connection with or incidental 1o giving effect to this
resolution for and o behalf of the Company, including execution snd delivery of certified copies of the
resodutions passed at this meeting.”

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
FOR SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED

GEETANJALL S VAIDY A
COMPANY SECRETARY.
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THUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE AUDIT COMMITIEE OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED BY CIRCULATION ON 16" AUGUST 2024

Lo consider and approve the modification to the Seheme of Amalgamation invelving merger by absorption

of Suzlon Global Services Limited with Surlon Energy Limited and their respective shareholders and
ereditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT m continuation 0 and in partial modification of the resolution passed by the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company #t its respective meeting held on 2% May 2024, the consent
and recommendation of the Audit Contmittes of the Board of Divectors of the Company be and is hereby accorded
toalter [ modify Clagse 1.3 of Part Lin the Scheme of Amalgamation involving merger by absorption of Suzlon
Gilobal Services Limited (* Trunsferor Company”) with Suzlon Energy Limited (* Transferee Company’) and their
respective sharehoelders and creditors under Section 230 we 232 of the Compamies Act, 20153 {*Scheme”) by
substituting the fllowing:

1.3 Appointed Date means 5% Augrast 2028 or sielother dote as may be appraved be the Tribunal in this regard.
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT rest all other clauses of the Scheme shall remain unaltered and unchanged.™

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Me Vinod R.Tanti, Chaiman and Managing Director, Mr. Girish R Tann,
Executive Vice Chairman, Mr. 1P, Chalssani, Group Chicf Executive Officer, Mr. Himanshu Mody, Group Chief
Fipancial Officer; Mrs. Geetangali S.Vaidya, Company Secretary, Mr. Anand Bagrecha, Mr. Het Shah, M.
Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel, the authorised representatives of the Company (heremnatier collectively
referred o as the *Authorised Persons’ ), be and are hereby severnlly authorised w make the necessury modification
to the Scheme and all relevant documents and papers with regared to the Scheme and / orthe Company”s application
with the National Company Law Tribunal. Abmedabad Bepch ("NCLT™) and file intimations with the statutory
authorities including the NCLT and to do-all such acts. deeds. miatters and things and sign and execute all such
documents as miy be necessary, desicable and expedient and as they may deem fit to give effect 1o the proposed
madi fication in the Appointed Dawe”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authornsed Persons shall have the suthority to determine the appropriste
course of sction foltowing deliberstions conducted by the NCLT.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in contnuation to and in parial modification of the resolution passed by the
Audit Committes of the Boand of Directors at its meeting held on 2% May 2024, consent and recommendanon of
the Audit Committee Board of Directors of the Company be and 15 hereby accorded 1o additionally suthorise Mr,
Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel. the authonsed representatives of the Company. to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things os may be necessary with regard to the Scheme mcluding but not limited to seeking any
directions of the NCLT and / or any other statutory authonty(ies b regulator(s) / stock exchanges”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT o certified true copy of the aforesaid resolution be issucd as and when necessary,
under the signatures ofany one of the Authorised Persons of the Company.”

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
FORSUZLON ENERGY LIMITED

(;.%-/‘ijff

-

CGEETANJALI S.VAIDY A,
COMPANY SECRETARY.
1CS1 MLNo A T8026.

o
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REFORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN THE MATTER OF
SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION INVOLVING MERGER BY ABSORPTION OF SUZLON
GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED WITH SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

L. The Board of Directoms of the Suzlon Energy Limited (Board®) at its meeting held on 2 May 2024,
have approved the Scheme of Amalgamation involving Merger by Absorption of Suzlon Global
Services Limited (the “Transferor Company”) with Suzlon Energy Limited (the "Transferce
Company™ or the “Company™) and their respective Sharcholders and Creditors under section 230 (o
232 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ns may be applicable and
rules framed thereunder (the * Act™) (the “Scheme™) .

2, In terms of Seotion 232(2)c) of the Act. a repart of the Board, explaining the effect of the Scheme
on each class of sharcholders (promoters and non-promoter sharcholders), ereditors, key manngerial
personnel (“KMP*), and employees of the Company, setting out, among other things, the share
exchange report specifying any special valuation difficultics, is required to be appended with the
notice of the meeting of sharcholders and creditors, il such meeting is ordered by the National
Company Law Tribunal.

i Accordingly, this report of the Board is prepared to comply with the requirements of section
232(2)c) of the Act.

4. While deliberating on the Schieme, the Board, inter-alia, considered and took on record the following
documents:

a.  Dhaft of the proposed Scheme;

b, Centificate dated April 24, 2024 issued by the registered valuer i.e. Mr. Pamng Vijaykant
Kulkami (Registration Number: IBBI/RV/A04/2019/12131) (Sole Proprictor -~ Trade Name :
Indaslab) for non-applicability of Valuation Report; and

¢, Draft Auditor's certificate(s) to be issued by the statwtory auditors of the Company, .o, M/s.
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chariered Accountants (* Auditor's Certificate’), certifying that
the accounting treatment mentioned in the draft Scheme is in complionce with the applicable
Accounting Stundards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and generally

secepled accounting principles.
5 The Scheme, nmongst others, contemplates the following arrangemenis:

4. This Scheme secks to amalgamate and consolidate the businesses of the Transferor Company,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, with and inta the Transferce
Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 1o 232 and other applicable provisions aff
the Act, the SEBI Circular, Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, the Listing Regulations, and any other
Applicable Law (as defined in the Scheme);

b, This Scheme [or the mesger by way of absorption of the Transforor Company with the
Transferee Company, is presented under Sections 230 1o 232 and other relevant provisions of
the Act, and pursunit 1o this Scheme:

(1) All the property of the Transferor Company immediately before the amalgamntion, shall
become the property of the Transferee Company, by virtue of this amalgamation;

(1) Al the linbilities of the Transferor Company immidiately before the amalgamation, shull
became the linbilities of the Transferee Company, by virtue of this amalonmation;

(1i1) Transfer of the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company 1o the Transferee
Company as provided in the Scheme, snd conseguentinl increase in the authorised share
capital of the Tmnsferee Company as provided in the Scheme; }(/
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(iv) All the issued share capital ol the Transferor Company shall be cancelled and the same
shall be effected ns a part of the Scheme and not in sccordinee with Section 66 of the Act;
and

{v) The Transferor Company shall be dissolved, without heing wound up.

6, The effectiveness of the Scheme is conditional upon fulfilment of the actions specified in the

Scheme, which inter alia include:

. this Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the vatious classes of
sharcholders as well as creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company i’
required under the Act unless dispensed with by (he Trbunal and the requisite orders of the
Tribunal at Ahmedabad being oblained; and

b.  the certified copy of the order of the Tribunal at Ahmedabad under Sections 230 to 232 und
other applicable provisions of the Act sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the Registrar of
Companies by the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

7. Rationale of the Scheme:

The Transferee Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of WTG
while the Transferor Company is engaged in the business vin the following undenakings, viz.,, OMS
undertaking and other business undertakings. The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Transferee Company,

The energy and climate policies being implemented by major economies worldwide, demonstrate o
remarkable level of ambition and commitment 1o supporting wind encrgy and other renewable
energy sources. These developments signal a promising future for the growth and advancement of
rencwable energy and rencwable energy technologies propelling the industry to redefine and forpe
nnovative parinerships with governmenis, cities, communities, investors, and customers. There is
increase in the demand of the wind capacity on account of increased wind, solar, hybrid, RTC and
FDRE tenders, national hydrogen mission, MNRE"s removal of tarifY ceiling, improved technology,
industrinl tariffs and demand of wind energy from commercial and industrial consumers, power
storage and central government allocations under strong off-takers. The Transferor and Transferor
companies, founded with a deep understanding of the environment and sustainable development,
have been at the forefront of renewable energy as a key solution provider since their inception. By
combining forces, the Companies aim to create o more robist sind competitive entity that is well-
equipped 1o navigate the complexities of the national and international renewable energy landecape.

The amalgamation will consolidate the business of the Transferor Campany and the Transferce
Company which will result in focused growth, operational efficiencies and business synergies of the
WTG business and OMS business. In oddition, resulting corporate holding structure will bring
enhanced agility W the business ecosystem of the merged entity. Further the smalgamation could
potentially reap strategio benefits including but pot limited to the following:

0. Stronger financial position. Inan increasingly competitive global market, the finoncial strength
of a company plays a critical role in its ability 1o secure large contracis and continue 1o expand
consistently. Moreover, as the rbines have life eyele of 25 10 30 years, the customers are more
likely 1o rely on sn OEM whose presence can be assured across the lifecyole. A stronger balance
sheel helps build o value proposition for customers making it s key metric (o nward bigger
projects to financially sound organisations. A strong net worth signifies that the company
posscsses enough financial resources to successfully complete lurger projects without negative
repercussions. It gives the assurance and confidence to stakeholders sbout the company's
capability to take on. deliver, and succeed in high stakes contmets.

The merger of the Transferor Company into the Transferce Company would help in
strengthening the financial robusiness, resulting in a highly fortified standalone balance sheet
and profit and loss statement which benefits the Companies os follows: {/'
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(i) stronger financial bealth plays a sustegic role in enhancing the consolidaed entity's
potential 1o bid, secure and execute big-ticket contracts in the domestic as well is overseas
markets; and

(i) positioning the consolidated organisation mare aggressively and perceptibly in the global
markets thus paving the way lor a stronger intermational presence and tapping back into
the overseas markets broadening the client base.

b.  Contracting: Some of the customers are inclined more towards contracts with single entity,
demonstrating a clear preference for dealing with a single entity for both WTG delivery and
OMS services. For some customers (c.g. PSU customers) it is a mandatory tender condition o
participate for both WT'G delivery and OMS services from single entity.

6. Eltmination of inter-company owstanding: There are inter-company loans between the two
entitics and elimination of this leads to a stronger, more resilient Gnancial position and
enhinced business’s creditworthiness. Moreover, the freed-up capital can be reallocated 1o
other productive areas, further strengthening the company's fmancial stability and growth
prospecis.

d. Efficient wtilization of resources: Post-merger, the consolidated business can sirategically
manage finances which shall help optimize the cash flow. The unified cash flow management
system provides an opportunity to reallocate resources effectively, reinvesting in arcas that
promise better returns, With shared financial goals, the consolidated business can levernge
collective cash flow 1o fund growth opportunities, thereby tapping the new and bigper business
opportunities market 15 offering in an effective manner,

Unfetiered access to cash flow genersted by the combined businesses which can be deployed
more efficiently to fund organic and inorganic growth opportunities and 10 maximize
shareholders value; It strengthens the dividend paying abilities of the Tmnsferee company.

e, Streamlining of group structure and benefit of combined resowrces: The proposed
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company will create a
streamlined group structure which will assist in more efficient utilization of the capital,

L Efficiency in business operations of the WI'G business and OMS buyiness; The proposed
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company is expected 1o create
greater efficiency due 1o economics of scale, elimination of duplication of work and
rationalisation and reduction of compliance reguirements;

g Sharing of bext proctices in sustainability, safety, health and enviranment: Adoption of
improved safety, environment and sustainability practices owing to o centralised committec nt
combined level may provide focused approach towards safety, enviromment and sustainability
practices resulting 1 overal] fmprovemenis.

The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company will combine the
business, activilics and operations of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company into a
single company with effect from the Appointed Date (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and rules framed thereunder including
Section 2(118) thereof or any amendments thereto,

B. Share exchange mtio and volustion:

Since the Transferor Company is n wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company with all (he
shares in the share capital of the Transferor Company being held by the Transferee Company and
the Transferee Company being the holding company, cannot issue or allot any shares to itself, no
shares whatsoever shall be issued by the Trans{eree Company in consideration of the amalgamation
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Thus, there is no share exchange rtio and valuation report supporting the same has been nsquired
ns mentioned in clause 4{b) of this report.

9, Effect of the Scheme on the Stakcholders of the Company;

> = e L -.E:._ e
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shareholders of the Transferes Company (promoter sharehobders
o well as non- shareholders), and their rights and
interests would not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, no new shares shall be issued by the
Trunsferee Company, and there will be no change in economic
interest of any of the cument sharcholders of the Transferee
Company pre and post Scheme coming into effect.

The proposed Scheme does not entitle the promoter/ promotor
group and the related parties, associntes and subsidiarics of the
promoterfpromoter group of the Company 10 any shares.

(iv)

Key  Managerinl
Personnel (“KMP")

There shall be no effect on the KMPs of the Transleree Company.
The effect of the Scheme on the interests of the KMPs and their
relatives holding shares in the Company, is not different from the
effect of the Scheme on other shareholders of the Company,

(v)

Debenture holdeis

The Transferor Company had issued 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs
only) number of compulsorily convertible debentures (*CCINe")
of face value Rs. 1,000 (Rupees One Thousand Only) each. Since
the CCDs are held by the Transferce Company, the same shall
stand cancelled pursuant o this Scheme.

(vi)

Creditors

Under the Scheme, no arrangement or compromise is being
proposed with the creditors (secured or unsecured) of the
Company. The linbility towards the creditors of the Company is
neither being reduced nor being extinguished pursuant 1o this
Scheme,

The rights and interests of ereditors shall not be alfected, and they
will be continued in the =ame capacity in the Transferce

Campany.

{wil)

Employees

Under the Scheme, no rights ol the stall and employvees (who are
on payroll of the Company) of the Company are being affected.
The services of the stafl and employees of the Company shall
continue on the same terms and conditions applicable prior 1o the
proposed Schieme.

Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the employees of
the Transferor Company (“Employecs™) will be deemed 10 have
become employees of the Transferce Company pussuant 1o the
Scheme with effect from the Effective Date.

Al such Employees shall be deemed 1o have become employees
of the Translerce Company, without any break in their service and
on the basis of continuity of service, and the terms and conditions
of their employment with the Transforee Company, shall not be
less favourable than those applicable 1o them with reference 1o
their employment in the Transferor Company as on the Effective
Date.

4
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N8 Cione lusion:

In opinion of the Bonrd, Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial 1o the Company, its sharcholders
and other stakeholders.

For Suzlon Energy Limited

Vinod R Tanti
Chairman

Date: 2™ May 2024
Place: Germany
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REPORT ADOFTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES
LIMITED PURSUANT TO SECTION 132(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN THE
MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION INVOLVING MERGER BY ABSORPTION OF
SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED WITH SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

1, The Board of Directors of the Suzlon Global Services Limited ("Board™) at its meeting held on 2
May 2024, have approved the Scheme of Amalgamation involving Merger by Absorption of Suzlon
Global Services Limited (the "Transferor Company™ or the "Company™) with Suzlon Enespy
Limited (the “Transferee Company™) and their respective Sharcholders and Creditors under section
230 10 232 read with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be applicable
and rules framod therounder (the “Act™) (the *Scheme”).

2, In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, a report of 1he Board, explaming the effect of the Scheme
on each class of sharcholders (promaters and non-promoier shareholders), creditors, key managerial
personnel (“KEMP"), and employees of the Company, setling out, among other things, the share
exchange report specifying any special valuation difficulties, is required 10 be appended with the
notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors, if such meeting is ordered by the National
Company Law Tribunal.

3, Accordingly, this report of the Board is prepared 1o comply with the requirements of section
232(2)(c) of the Acl

4, While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board, inter-alin, considered and took on record the following
documents:

a.  Dmf of the proposed Scheme;

b, Cerificate dated April 24, 2024 issued by the registered valuer e, Mr. Parag Vijaykant
Kulkarni (Registration Number: TBBI/RV/04/2019/12131) (Sole Proprietor — Trade Name ;
Indaslab) for non-applicability of Valuation Report; and

e, Dmaft Auditor's certificate(s) 1o be issued by the siatwiory auditors of the Company, i.e. M/s,
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (* Auditor’s Certificate’), centifying that
the accounting treatment mentioned in the draft Scheme is in compliance with the applicable
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and generally
ncoepied accodnting principles,

5 The Schemie, amongst others, contemplates the [ollowing armngemenis:

@ This Scheme secks 1o amalgamale and consolidale the businesses of the Transferor Company,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Trnsferee Company, with and into the Transforee
Company pursunnt (o the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act, the SEBI Cireular, Section 2(18) of the IT Act, the Listing Regulations, and any other
Applicable Law (as defined in the Scheme);

b. This Scheme for the merger by way of absorption of the Tronsferor Company with the
Transferce Company, is presented under Sections 230 (o 232 and other ralevant provisions of
the Act, and pursuant 1o this Scheme:

(1) All the property of the Tranaferor Company immediately bafore the amalgamation, shall
became the property of the Tmnsferes Company, by virlue of this amalgamation;

(1) All the lisbalitics of the Transferor Company immedintely before the aomalgamntion, shall
become the linbilitics of the Transferee Company, by virue of ihis amalgamation;

(iti) Transfer of the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company 10 the Transferee
Company ns provided in the Scheme, and consequential increase in the authorised 5l'|_nm =
eapital of the Transferce Company as provided in the Scheme; ¥
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(iv) Al the issued share capital of the Transferor Company shall be cancelled and the same
shall be effected ax a part of the Scheme and not in nccordance with Section 66 of the Aol
and

{vi The Transferor Company shall be dissalved, without being wound wp.

6. The effectiveness of the Scheme is conditional upon fulfilment of the actions specified in the

Seheme, which inter alia include:

a,  this Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the various classes of
sharcholders ns well as creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company (f
required under the Act unless dispensed with by the Tribumal and the requisite orders of the
Tribunal at Ahmedabad being obtained; and

b,  the cenified copy of the order of the Tribunal at Abmedabad under Sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the Registrar of
Companics by the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

" Rationule of the Schieme:

The Transferee Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of WTG
while the Transferor Company is engaged in the business via the following undertakings, viz., OMS
undertaking and other business undertakings. The Transferor Company is o wholly owned subsidiary
ol the Transferee Company.

The encrgy and climate policies being implemented by major economies worldwide, demonstrate s
remarkable level of ambition and commitment o supporting wind energy and other renewable
energy sources, These developments signal a promising future for the growth and sdvancement of
rencwable energy and renewable energy technologies propelling the industry to redefine and forge
innovative partnerships with govemments, cities, communities, investors, and customers, There is
increase in the demand of the wind capacity on account of increased wind, solar, hybrid, RTC and
FDRE tenders, national hydrogen mission, MNRE's removal of tariff ceiling, improved technology,
industrial tanifls and demand of wind energy from commercial and industrial consamers, power
storage and central government allocations under strong off-takers, The Transferor and Transferor
companies, founded with a deep understanding of the environment and sustainable development,
have been at the forefront of renewable encrgy as a key solution provider since their inception. Ry
combining forces, the Companies aim 1o create o more robust and competitive entity that is well-
equipped 1o navigate the complexities of the national and intermational renewable energy landacape.

I'he amalgamation will consolidaie the business of the Transferor Company and the Transferoe
Company which will result in focused growth, operntional efficiencies and business synergies of the
WTG business and OMS business. In addition, resulting corporate holding structure will bring
enhanced agility to the business ecosystem of the merged entity, Further the amalgamation could
potentially reap strategic benefits including but not limited to the following:

a.  Stronger financal position: Inan increasingly competitive global market, the financial strengil
al'a company plays a eritical role in ity ability 1o secure large contracts and continue to expand
consistently, Moreover, as the turbines have life cycle of 25 10 30 years, the cusiomers are more
likely to rely on an OEM whose presence can be assured scross the lifeoyele. A stronger balmce
iheet helps build a value proposition for customers making it a key metric (o award bigger
projects to financially sound organisations. A strong net worth signifies that the company
possesses enough financinl resources (o suceessfully complete larger projects without negative
repercussions. [t gives the assurance and confidence (o stakeholders about the company's
capability to take on, deliver, and succeed in high stakes contracts.

The merger of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company would help in
strengthening the financial robustness, resulting in o highly fortified standalone balance shee
and profit and loss statement which benefits the Companies as follows; a1

o Al
0% —
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(1) stronger financial health plays a strategic role in enhancing the consolidated eiitity's
potential to bid, seoure and execute big-tickel contracts in the domestic as well as overscas
miarkets; and

(i) positioning the consolidated organisation more aggressively and perceptibly in the plobal
markets thus paving the way for a stronger intemnational presence and mpping back into
the oversens markels broadening the client base.

b, Contracting: Some of the customers are inclined more lowands contracts with single entily,
demonstrating o clear preference for dealing with n single entity for both WTG delivery and
OMS services. For some customers (e.g. PSU customers) it is a mandatory tender condition to
participate for both WG delivery and OMS services from single entity.

. Elimination of inter-company outstanding: There are inter-company loans between the two
entitics and elimination of this leads 10 a stronger, more rexilient financial position and
enhanced business's creditworthiness. Morcover, the freed-up capital can be reallocated 1o
other productive areas, further strengthening the company’s financial stability and growth
prospects.

d.  Efficient utilization of resvnrces: Post-merger, the consolidated business can strategically
manage finances which shall help optimize the cash flow. The unified cash flow management
system provides an opportunily o reallocate resources effectively, reinvesting in arcas that
promise better returns. With shared financial goals, the consolidated business can leverage
callective cash flow io fund growth opportunities, thereby tapping the new snd bigger business
opportunities market is offering in an effective manner.

Unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined businesses which can be deployed
more efficiently 1o fund organic and inorganic growth opportunities and 1o maximize
sharcholders value; It strengthens the dividend paying abilities of the Transferce company.

€. Streamlining of group structure and benefit of combined resources: The
amalgnmation of the Transferor Company with the Tranaferce Company will create a
streamlined group structure which will assist in more efficient utilization of the capital

L Hfficiency in businesy operations of the WI'G business and OMS hsiness: The proposed
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company is expected to creale
greater efficiency due o economies of scale, elimination of duplication of work and
rationalisation and reduction of compliance requireiments;

g Sharing of best practices in sustainabifity, safety, health and environment: Adoption of
improved safety, environment and sustainability practices owing 10 a centralised committee nt
combined level may provide focused approach townrds safety, environment and sustainability
practices resulting in oversll improvements,

The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company will combine the
business, activities and operations of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company into a
single company with effect from the Appointed Date (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, nid rules framed thereunder meluding
Section 2(1B) thereol or uny amendments thereto.,

8. Share exchange ratio and valuation:

Since the Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidinry of the Transferee Company with all the
shares in the share capital of the Transferor Company being held by the Transferee Company and
the Transferee Company being the halding company, cannot issue or allot any shares 1o itsell. no
shares whatzoever shall be issued by the Transferee Company in consideration of the mnn]gmw;im:g-‘ AL

——
[
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Thus, there 15 no share exchange ratio and valuation repon supporting the same has been acgquired
us mentioned in clause 4{b) of this report.

a9 Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders of the Company:

Transleree Company, pursuant to the Amalgnmation, all the issued
share capital of the Transferor Company shall be cancelled and the
same shall be effected as a part of the Scheme and not in accordance
with Section 66 of the Act.

The Transferor Company shall be dissolved, without being wound
up.

Mo new shares shall be issued by the Tramaleree Company, and there
will be no change in economic interest of any of the cument
sharcholders of the Trunsferee Compuny pre and post Scheme
cominy into effect.

The proposed Scheme does not entitle the promoter/ promoter group
and the related parties, associntes and subsidiaries of the

promoter/promoler of the 1o any shares,

The rights and interests of KMPs of the Transferor Company shall
not be affected, and they will be continued in the same eapacity in
the Transferee Company.

Thee Transferor Company had issued 40,00,000 (Forty Lukhs only)
number of compulsorily convertible debentures (*CCDs') of face
value Rs. 1,000 (Rupees One Thousand Only) each. Since the CCDs
are held by the Transferee Company, the same shall stand cancelled
jpursuant to this Scheme.

Under the Scheme, no amangemen! or compromise is being
proposed with the ereditors (secured or unsecured) of the Trangferor
Company. The linbility of the creditort of the Transferor Company,
under the Scheme, is nedther betng rediced hor belng exiinguished,

The rights and interests of the creditors of the Transferor Company
shall not be affected, and (sey will be continued in the same capacity
in the Trans{eree Company.

(1)

[{}] Promoter(s)

(i} Non-promoter
shareholders

(v) | Key Managerial
Personnel
("KMP™)

(v) Diebenture
holders

[wi) Creditors

(vii) | Employees

Under the Scheme, no rights of the stafl and employees (who are an
payroll of the Trunsleror Company) of the Transferor Company are
being affectiad.

Further, upon the Scheme becoming eifective, the employees of the
Trnsferor Company (“Employees™) will be deemed (o have
become employees of the Transleree Company parsuant (o the
Scheme with effect from the Effective Date. The services of the stall
and employees of the Transferor Company shall continue on the
samo terms and conditions applicable prior 1o the proposed Scheme,
All such Employees shall be deemed 10 have become employees of
the Transferee Company, without any break in their service and on
the bosis of continuity of service, and the lerms and conditions of
thelr employiment with the Transleree Company, shiall ot be less
favourable than those applicable (o them with reference to their
employment in the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date.
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14, Conelusion:
In opinion of the Board, Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial 1o the Company, its shareholders

and other stakeholdems.

For Suzlon Global Services Limited

A B
Y .-__." : 4 5, isﬁ 5
e
: P O
Vinod R Tanti |G Yy
Chairman \ a/
Dote: 2% May 2024\ o/

Place: Germany N e -.C\
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TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD oF

DIRECTORS OF SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED HELD AT SHORTER NOTICE ON THURSDAY,
2T MAY 2024 AT 7.00 PM. THROUGH VIDED CONFERENCING

To consider and approve the draft 5

Glabal Services Limited with Suelon Ene
niler Seetion 230 to 232 of the Compani

cleme of amalpa absorption of Suzlung
imited and their vespective sharcholders and eveditors
i, 2013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuast to the provisions of Sections 230 1w 232 and other applicable provisions, il
any, of the Compuanies Aet, 2013, read with Companies (Compromises. Arrunperments and Amalgamations)
Rudes, 2016 and other rules made thereunder (netuding drny seatutory moddi estionts) or recennelments) i
amendment(s) thereaf for the time being in force) (collectively: the “Companics Act™), Section 1R read
with any other applicable provisions of 1he Income- Wwa Act. 1961 (as amended) (*IT Act™). and other
applicable laws, including regulations issued by Seeurltics tnd Exchange Board of [ndis (SERI7). inter ulia
including applicable provisions of SEB (Listing Obfigations and Disclosure Requirements) Fezulutions,
2015 [the “Listing Regulations™), and the relevamt provisions ol the Memorandum ol Associztion and the
Anticles of Association of the Company and olher applicable laws, rolos: regulalions. bye-laws s the case
may be; and subjeet to requisite approval of the sharcholders and / or the ereditors / lenders af the Company,
ax may be applicable, and necessary, eonsents, observations, nu-ohjections. permissions and approvals of the
statutory or regulaiory or appropriate authosities and subject (o the sanetion of the Hongurable Nutlonal
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench ("NCLT™ £ “Tribunal™) befare whom the apphication wonld be
filed, and subject to all such conditions and mudificalions as may be preseribed o imposed by ny of the
attresald authoritics while granting such approvais, cbservations, no-obicetions, permissions and sanctions.
which may be speeed to by the Compuny, the cansent of the Board of Directors o the Co mipany §the ~oard™),
be o ix hereby accorded o the Scheme ol Amalgamation Invplving merger by shsorption of Sudon Global
Serviees Limited (CIN: U2T7100GI2004 PLOD4ITO) the “Transler Comapany™ or “SCG817) with Suslon
Enurgy Limited (CIN 140 100G 995PLCD2544T) (the ** Trunsferce Company™ or 8K or the Loy ),
their respective sharcholders and ereditors {hereinafler relerred 1o a5 the "Scheme™). as approved and
recommended by the Audit Commines of the Board and a deafl o which is placed before this meeling: 8% per
the lerms aed conditions mentioned in the Scheme and ner aliz cantaining the [Lllowing salionl terms and
condilions;

4} amalgamation of the Transleror Company inw and with the 1 mansferee Compuny 0 accordanee with
sections 230 1o 232 of the Companies Act ond other spplicable laws with Seetion 2113 and other
provisions af the 1T At

b} the entire Undertuking of the Transferor Company shall stand wansfemed Lo dnd veswed in aad / or be
deemed Lo have been and stand wransferred 1o and vested in the Company to become underlaking of the
Company in secordance with Sectipns 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, the 1T Act and other applicable
Tawws:

©  the enfire paideup share cupital and oulstanding debentues of the Transfony Cpmpany including
investment in the shares £ debentures of the Fransteror Company. appedring I the books ol accounts o
the Transferee Compuany shall stond cancelled in its entirety. which shall be elfected as part althe Schome
and not in secordance with Seetion 66 of the Companics Acl:

d)  amendment in the main object of the Memorandum ol Assoeiation of he Transferee Company o previde
tar the abjects of the Uramsferor Compuny;

¢} transfer of the authorised share capital o the Transferor Company o the Company andd consequentivl
increase in the authirised share capital of the Company;

) Appoinied Dae shall be 1" December 2024, or such other date as may be approved by the Tribunal jn
this regard;
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B) Effective Dale shall he the date on which the certifies copies of the erder of the Tribunsl sanctioning the
Scheme are filed by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company with the Registirar of
Companies, Gujaral;

Bl The Transferar Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Transforee Compsny and therelore thore
shall be no issue of shares nor shall any other consideration be paid for the Scheme of te Trans femr
Company with the Transleree Company;

i} Upon the Scheme coming into eifect, the Transferor Company shull stand dissolved without being woung
up by theorder of the Appropriste Authorily, ar any olher set or deed:

i3 Ifthe Scheme is net approved by the Tribunel and does not come into effect, the Scheme shall beome
null and vaid™

“RESOLVED THAT for the limited purposes of the Scheme of smalpamution, the standalone nancial
stutements of the Company for the nine months ended 31 December 2023 comprising of the Balunce Sheel.
Statement of Protit and Loss alang with ils schedules, as placed on the table of this meeting be and 1he same
are hereby approved and that Mr, Hlimansho Mady, the Group Chief Finaneial Gificer of the Company be
and i hereby authorised o sign the same in guthentication thereni ™

YRESOLVED THAT for the limited purposes of the Scheme of amalgamation, the standalone and
cansolidsted financial statements of the Company for the quarter and nine months ended 317 December 2023
comiprising of the Balance Sheel, Statement of Prafit and Lass atong with all schedules and RUCHMTIPANY 1N
notes therete, as placed on the table of this meeting be and the same wre hereby approved apd that Mr,
Himansnu Mady, the Group Chiel Financial Offieer of the Company, be and is hereby acthorised 1o sipn the
saime in wuthentication thoreal ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpese of Section 232 of the Companies Act 2013, the drafl
auditers” cert Reale{s) o e issued by the statutory auditars of the Company, vie, M, Walker Chandlek &
Co LLP, Chartered Accountants {* Auditor's Certilicate’), cortifyving that the Hoeouniing reatnvent menbionod
in the draft Scheme is in compliance with the upplicable Acvounting Standurds prescabed under Section 133
uf the Companies Act, 2013 and penerally accepted aceounting principles; as placed before the Bogrd be and
is hereby aceepled and taken on record.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER TUAT the certificale fssued by the registered valuer, namuly. My, Parag Vijaykant
Bulkarnd (Registration Number: IBBTR V042018012 121} (50le Proprictir— Trade Name: |ndastab) lor non-
applicability of Valuation Report in the maiter of the Scheme; us pluced before the Board be und is hevehy
sceepted and talien on record ™

SRESOLVED FURTHER TTIAT Mr. Winod B Tand, Chiirman and Managing Direcwor, Mr, Girish B, Tanti,
Executive Viee Chairman, Mr, J.P.Chalasani, Group Chiel Executive Oicer, Mr. 1imanshu Mady. Liraup
Chicl Financial Officer, Mrs. Geetanjuli 8.Vaidya, Comipany Secretary. Mr. Anand Bagrechs. and Me 1ol
Shah, the sutherised representatives of the Company (hereinafter collectively referred o #s the ~Authorised
Prisans™) be and are horehy severally authorised 1o make such modifications. amendments, alterations and
changes in the Scheme as may be eapadient, desirable or pecessary for (1) filing the Scheme witls the Tribunal.
oF (i) necessary for satisfying the requirements, limittions or conditions imposed by the Tribural or A
other regulatory authority! or (1il) may be neccssary [ar solving all difficulties or doulits which may arse tor
carry ing oul the Scheme, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be ublained for raking ony ereateril
chanpes in the Scheme as approved in this mesting,”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an application be madt to the Tribunal undey the provisions of Section 230
10 232 umd other applicable provisions of the Act fursecking directions far holding or dispensing ihe meelings
of the sharcholders ana the creditors (if reguired) of the Company and lor the purpose o eonskdering and
spproving the drafl Scheme and the Authorised Persons be and are hereby severally authorised @ ke all
necessary steps in the name of and on behall of the Company but nat limited 10 the following;
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a)  [ile the Scheme with the concerned stock exchanges in lerms of provisions o the Listing Regulations:

By finalise, sipn and execule applicalions, petilions, scheme, aflidavils, vakalatnames. confmations,
slalements, reports, letlers, forms, powers ol atermey, pleadings, représenlations, public advertisements,
notices, authority lotters, deods, documents and such other letters snd papers in connection with the
Scheme:

e}  file the Scheme and / or any oiber document / inforsiation / details / submissions with the govemment.
judicial, quasi-iudicia] and othier statutery guthorities oF regulziory autharities or sy olhor body or
agency 1o obtain their approval(s) or sanction(s) 1o the provisions of the Scheme ar e piving elle
thereto;

d)  sign end NHe applicalionds) with the Tribunal or any other approprisle sutharity ender the opplicable
provisions of the Acl, as may be ypplicable, sveking directions as 10 convening |/ dispensing with the
mecting of the sharcholders and £ or creditors of the Company. and where necessay. o e sleps o
convene and hold such fmeetings a5 per such direstions o pive effect W the Scheme:

¢} linabise and settle the Scheme, dralt of the nolices lor convening the sharchodders” and ¢ ar creditars’
meetings as directed by the Tribunal or otherwise and the drafl of the explanatory staement with any
modilications as they may deem it

1 eonvene and conduet the meetings of the shareholders anel £ or the ereditors, gy may be direeted by the
|'ribunal;

B sppoint or engage or rabify the appoimment / engagement of any third party intermediarios including
without lintitation, stamp dity consaltant{s), e-voting ngoney, lawyers. valuer £ chartered accountant for
certifeation, independent SEBL repistered merchant banker, auditor for certification, serulindzcr,
advertisement apency or any other professionals as may be required in connection with the Lransaction
set ol in the Scheme:

hy engage and instruct counsels, advocales, soliciiows, charered accountants and other prolessionals o do
all things necessary and expedient in connection with the Scheme ingluding o declare and lile &l
pleadings, reports and sign and issue pubbic advertisement and notices:

iy wpprove such aclions es may be considered necessary for approvel /senclion of the Seheme and Lhe
implementation of the Scheme after the same (ssanctioned by the Trbena! or any ather appropriate
putherity under the applicable provisiens of the Acl, as may be applicahle including bul not [imited 1o
making filing with the concerned Registrar of Companies, Replonal Dhrectors, Official Liguidatar,
Income Tax authorities and olher suthorities as may be reguired and to approveall olhee aclions saiired
for full and effective implementation of the proposed Scheme and Lo remove and resolve 21l doubts and
difficulties and to do all such aots, deeds and things as they may deem necessary and desirable in
conncetion therewith and incldental therelo;

i) finalise and bring Into effect the Scheme and make and give elfeet o any medifications, changes,
viaraliogs, alleralions or revision in the Schome from time o ime or Lo stspend, withdme ansiioe o
revive the Schere from time to tme oz may be specified by any statulory authorily GF a5 mEy seo mielio
nedecided by the Boerd in s absolute diseeetion,

kY delegate powers 1o the exeenve(s) of the Company and { or such other representative(sh o sign/ execute
on behalf of the Company. all decds, documents, sgreemments, ndtices, Totms, weitings and papors, s may
be required, for any of the purpose related o the propased Scheme and W revake | nedily allor any ol
the aforesaid powers so detepated w the cxecutivels) of the Company and / or  sueh other
representativels), from time Lo time: g deem G0 and proper inbe best interest of the Company

I} wyo moto decide in thelr absalule diseretion Tn consuliaiion with the legal eaunsel{s) and do all such sels,
deeds, matters and Lhings whatseever, including settling any gquestion. difTiculty or doubt thiat may arise
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with regard to or in relation to the Scheme as they may i tieir shsolute diseretion cansider necEssary
expedient, [ and proper; provided that no alteration, modification or amendment which amounts 1o a
material change to the substance of the Scheme shall be made except with the prior approval of the Board:

m). make such alterations or medifealions or amendments 1o the Scheme as My be expedicnl oF necessiry
particulatly to comply wilh uny requirernents, conditions or [iniations. the Tribunal or any othel
statutery puthority(ies) may deem [Tt w divect o impose or for any other reasan;

n)  obtain approval from and £ or represent before the Registrar of Companies, Regianal Director, Sl fsiry
ol Corporate Affairs, Income Tax authorities and such ather statutery wnd other governmental body {ies)
including the shirchaldess and / or creditors as may be considered necossary;

8} produce all the documents, matters o othor evidenes in connection with the matters aforesaid snd By
oller proceedings incidental theretn or arising therelrom;

Pl 2ecepl service of notices or other processes which may from time e time be issued in conneetion with
the matter aloresaid and alse to serve notices of ather processes Lo partics or persons concernsl;

q) obtain Order of the Tribural, as the case may be, approving the Scheme and file the same along with
reguisite forms, retures, other documents with the Registrar of Companies so 83 o meke the sanctioned
Boneme eiToctive:

r)incur such expenses as may be necessiry in relation 1o the above or the ransaction:

) outherise the officer of the Company and / or uny other person Lo diseuss, negetinle, fnalise, execul,
sign, submit and fill all reguired documents, decds of assiprment / convivance and olher deeds,
documents, scheme, sgreements; forms, retums, applicable: letters, ete, ineluding any modificatiun
therelo as may be deemed necessary and expedient at their absolute discretion in order 1o givieiTeet
this resolution i all respects whistsoever and /o for abaining disections ingluding but not limied w
from the Tribunal and {or this purpese, to appear in person und / or represent the Company hefires the
‘Lribunal or any other judicial forums £ authorily and to defiver a certlivd copy of this resolullion 1o any
concerned parky or nutherilics @nd for this purpose, o appear in person and /7 or represent the Company
belvre the Tribune] or any other judiclal forums / qutherity;

1) sign and execute the request letters / no objection £ sanction letiers For obtaining the necessary no
objection / sanction letters for dispensation of the sweeting(s) of the sharchalders and / or crediters of the
Compzany for approving lie Scheme and thercatter submilting the same on receipt thereo o the Tribumal
arany other appropriate authority, ag may be reguired;

ub ke all procedural steps for having the Seheme sanctioned by the Teibunal including without limitation,
filing necessary applications, petitions and signing, verifving and affirming all applications. alfiday its
and pentions ss may be necessary;

v) o represent, altend, vote and £ or gppoint proxy alany NOLT convened meeting of the shurcholders
creditors of Suzlon Global Services Limired in which the Company is @ member / creditor and 1o do all
such other such acts. deeds, matters and things as would be reguired Tor the purpese ol attending
participating / voting / signing.on bebalf of the Company al such meetings: and

w) do all firther acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary. proper o cxpedient 1o glve cffect 1o
the Scheme ond for matters connecled therewilh or incldental theretn,™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Common Seal of the Compary be aflixed on such agreementy,
underiskings, deeds, declarations, documents, eie, as may be required (including on amy modilicsions or
amendments or alterrations thereto as may be required from time w0 tHme) in accordanoe with the provisions
of the Anicles of Associstion of the Company in the presence of any one ol the Authorised Persons of the
Company, who do sige the same in loken thereof ™
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the meeting(s} of the shareholders and ¢ or creditars of the Company. if
directed by the Tribunal, be convened on a day and i & time as directed by the Tribunal for the purpose of
approving the Scheme,”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAL the Directors / Key Mansgerial Perssnnel of the Company be and we
hereby severally authorised o do all such oets, deeds. matters and things including engaging My, Shailesh
Indapurkar, a Company Secrctary in prietice, and / or any other prolesstong| for certilication of necessary
forms, filing necessary forms, siatements, inlimations, letters and such other papers anid o the purpase (o
signand excouie forms, declarations, returns, lelees and such uther pepers as may be necessary, desirnble and
expedient.”

"RESOLVLD FURTIHER THAT the copy of the foregning resolution certified 1o be true by any one ol the
Authorised Persons or the Company Secretary of the Company be [urnished 1o whomsoever i1 m a2y SOneern
with & request o act therespon_ ™

CLRETIFIED TRUE COPY
FOR SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED

G § Jerdge

s

GEETAMJALI S.¥YATDY AL
COMPANY SECRETARY,
MLNO A TRO26,
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TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLON
ENERGY LIMITED BY CIRCULATION ON 16" AUGUST 2024

To consider and approve the modification to the Scheme of Amalgamation involving meérger by absorption
of Suzlon Glebal Services Limited with Suzlon Energy Limited and their respective sharcholders and
creditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2003

SRESOLVED THAT mn contmuation o and m parial modificaton of the resolution passed by the Board of
Diirectors al its meeting held on 2™ May 2024 und as recommended by the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company vide circular resolution passed on 16" Appust 2024, the consent of the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby sccorded to alter ( modify Clause 1.3 of Pant | in the Scheme of
Amalgamation invelving merger by absorption of Suzlen Global Services Limited (' Transteror Company™) with
Suzlon Energy Lumited (* Transferee Company ') and thelr respective shareholders and creditors under Section 2340
to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Scheme”) by substituting the following:

1.3 Appointed Date means 15" August 2024 orsueh other date as may be appraved by the Tribunmad in this regard ™
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT rest all other clauses of the Scheme shall remain unaltered and unchanged.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vinod R Tanti, Chaimaan and Managing Director, Mr. Girish R.Tant,
Executive Vice Charrman, Mr. 1P, Chalasani, Group Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Himanshuo Mody, Group Chief
Financial Officer, Mrs. Geetangali 8. Vaidya, Company Secretary, Mr, Anand Bagrecha, Mr. Het Shab, Mr,
Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel, the aothorised representstives of the Company (hereinafler collectively
referred o ps the "Authorised Persons' ), be and wre hereby severnlly authorised to moke the necessary modification
to the Seheme and all relevant documents and papers with regard 1o the Schemeand [ or the Company s application
with the National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NCLT™) and file mtimations with the statutory
authorities including the NCLT and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and sign and execute all such
documents as may be necessary, desivuble and expedient and as they may deem fit 1o give effect w the proposed
modification i the Appointed Dawe”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons shall have the suthonty o determine the appropriate
course of action following deliberztions conducted by the NCLT.”

SRESOLVED FURTHER THAT in contnuation o and in partial mocificanon of the resolution passed by the
Bourd of Directors at its meeting held on 2™ May 2024 dnd as recommended by the Audit Committee of the Beodard
of Divectors of the Company, the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
additionaliy-authonse Mr. Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel, the authonsed representatives of the Company, to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary with regard to the Scheme weluding but not limited
to seeking any directions of the NCLT and / or anv other statutory authoritvises) / regulator(s) / stock exchanges ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT u eertified true copy of the aforesald resolution be issued as and when necessary.
under the signatures of any one of the Authonsed Persons of the Company.”™

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
FOR SUZLON ENERGY LIM

£oaNett

i e
GEETANJALL S.VAIDY A,
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TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED HELD AT SHORTER
NOTICE ON THURSDAY, 2¥ MAY 2024 AT 6.00 P.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING

To consider and approve the draft Scheme of amalgamation involving mereer by ahsorplion
of Suzlon Global Services Limited with Suzlon Energy Limited, their respective
sharcholders and ereditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Compeanies Act, 20013

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions, i' any, of the Companics Act, 2013, read with Companies (Compromises.
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other rules made thereunder (including any
statutory madification(s) or re-cnactment(s) or amendment(s) thereof for the time being in force)
{collectively, the “Companies Act™), Section 2(1B) read with any ather applicable pravisions of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 (as amended) (“7 Act™), and other applicable laws. ingluding
regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™). if and to the extent
applicable, and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association and the Aricles of
Association of the Company and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws as the case
maty be; and subject to requisite approva! of the shareholders and / or the creditors / lenders of the
Company, as may be applicable, and necessary, consents, observations, no-chjections,
permissions and approvals of the statutory or regulatory or appropriate authorities and sthject 1o
the sanction of the Honowrable National Compeny Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NC1LT /
“Tribunal™) before whom the application would be [Tled, and subject to all such conditions and
madifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of the aforesaid authoritics while granting
stch approvals, ohservations, no-objections, permissions and sanctions, which may he agread to
by the Company, the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board™), be and is
hereby accorded to the Scheme of Amalgamation involving merger by absorption of Surlon
Global Services Limited (CIN: U27109GI2004PLC0O44170) (the “Transferer Company™ or
“SGSLY or the “Company™) with Suelon Energy Limited (CIN L40T00G]1995PLCO23447) (the
“Transferce Company™ or “SEL™), their respective sharcholders and ereditors (hereinafier referred
to as the “Scheme™), a draft of which is placed before this meeting, as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the Scheme and inter alia containing the following salient 1erms and
condifions:

a} amalgamation ol the Transfergr Company into and with the Transferee Company in
accordance with sections 230 10 232 of the Companies Act and other applicable faws with
Section 2010} and other provisions of the 1T Act

b) the enfire Underteking of the Transferor Company shall stand translerred 1o and vested in and
f or be deemed 1o have been and stand transferred to and vested in the Company to becoine
undertaking of the Company in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 ol the Companies Act.
the I'l" Act and other applicable laws;

c} the entire paid-up share capital and owtstanding debentures of the Transferor Company
including fnvestment in the shares / debentures of the Transferor Company, appearing in the
books of accounts of the Transleree Company shall stand cancelled in its entirety, which shal!
te effected as pant of the Scheme and nol in decordance with Section 66 of the Companies
Act

d) transfer of the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company to the Company and
consequential increase in the authorised share capital of the Company:
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&) Appointed Date shall be 1* December 2024, or such other date as may be approved by the
Tribunal in this regard;

) Effective Date shall be the date on which the certified copies of the order of the Tribunal
sanctioning the Scheme are filed by the Transferor Company and the Transferes Company
with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat;

g) The Transferor Company is wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and
therefore there shall be no issue of shares, nor shall any other consideration be paid for the
Scheme of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company|

k) Upon the Scheme coming into effect. the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without
being wound up by the order of the Appropriate Authority. or any other act or deed;

i1 1If the Scheme is not approved by the Tribunal and does not come into etfect, the Scheme shall
become null and void.”

“RESOLVED THAT for the limited purposes of the Scheme of amalgamation, the financial
statements of the Company for the quarter and ninc months ended 31" December 2023
comprising of the Balznce Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss along with all schedules and
accompanying notes thereto, as placed on the table of this meeting be and the same are hereby
approved and that Mr. Himanshu Mody, the Director of the Company, be and is fiereby authorised
1o sign the same in authentication thereol.™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of Section 232 of the Companiss Act, 2013, the
draft auditor’s certificate(s) to be issued by the statutory auditors of the Company, ie Mis.
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (*Auditor's Ceriificate’), certifying that the
accounting treatment mentioned in the draft Scheme is in compliance with the applicable
Accounting Standards preseribed under Section 133 ol the Companics Act, 2013 and generally
accepted accounting principles, as placed before 1the Board be and is hereby aceepted and taken an
record.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the centificate issued by the registered valuer, namely. Mr.
Parag Vijaykamt Kulkami (Registration Number: [BBI/RV/04/2016/12131) (Sole Proprietor
‘|'rade Name: Indaslab) for non-applicabilily of Vaiuation Report in the matter of the Scheme, as
placed betore the Board be and is hereby accepted and taken on record,”

SRESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vinod R.Tanti, Mr, Ranjitsinh A.Parmar, Mr. Himanshu
Mody, the Directors, Mr. Sairam Prasad, the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. FPChalasani, Group
Chiel Executive Officer, Ms. Shivani Nirgudkar, Company Secretary, Mr. Anand Bagrecha, Mr.
Het Shah, and Mrs. Geetanjali 8.Vaidya, the authorised vepresematives of the Company
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Authorised Persons™) be and are hereby severally
authorised to make such maodifications, amendments, allerations and changes in the Schemne as
may be expedient, desirable or necessary for (i) filing the Scheme with the Tribunal; or (i)
necessary for satisfying the requirements, limitations or conditions imposed by the Tribunal or
any other regulatory authority: or (iii) may be necessary for solving all difficulties or doubls
which may arise for carrying out the Scheme, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be
obrained for making any material changes in the Scheme as approved in this meeting,”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT an application be made to the Tribunal undear the provisions of
Section 230 1o 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act for seeking divections [or hoiding or
dispensing the meetings of the shareholders and the creditors (if required) of the Company and for
the purpose of considering and approving the draft Scheme and the Authorised Persons be and are
hereby severally authorised to take all necessary steps in the name of and on behalf of the
Company but not Limited 1o the foliowing;

a} finalise, sign and execute appiications, petitions, scheme, affidavits, vakalatnamas,
confirmations, statements, Teports, letters, forms. powers of atlorney. pleadings.
representations, public advertisements, notices, authority letters, deeds, documents and such
other letters and papers tn connection with the Scheme;

b} file the Scheme and / or any other document / information / details @ sulwnissions with the
government, judicial, quasi-judicial and other statutory authorities or regulatory awthoritics or
any other body or agency to obtain their approval(s) or sanction(s) to the provisions of the
Scheme or for giving effect thereto;

c) sign and file application(s) with the Tribunal or any other appropriate autharity under Uhe
applicable provisions of the Acl, as may be applicable, seeking directions as o convening /
dispensing with the mecting of the shareholders and / or creditors of the Company, and where
necessary. to take steps to convene and hold such meetings us per such direclions to give
aeffect to the Scheme;

i) finalise and settle the Scheme, draft of the notices for convening the shareholders™ and / or
croditors’ mestings as direcled by the Tribunal or otherwise and the drafl of the explanatory
statement with any modifications as they may deem it

e) convene and conduct the meelings ol the shareholders and [ or the credilors, a5 may be
directed by the Tribunal;

[} appoint or engage ar ratify the appointment / engagement of any third party intermediarics
including without limitation, stamp duty consullant(s), e-voting agency, lawyers, valugr /
chartered accountant for certification, independent SEBI registered merchant banker, auditor
for certification, scrutinizer, advertisement ggency or any other professionals as may he
required in cannection with the transaction sct out in the Scheme;

E) engage and instruct counsels, advocates, solicitors, chartered sccounlants and other
professionals 1o do all things necessary and expedienl in connection with the Schome
including to declare and file all pleadings, reports and sign and issue public advertisement and
notices:

h) approve such actions as may be comsidered necessary tor approval ¢ sanction of the Scheme
and the implementation of the Scheme after the same is sanctioned by the Tribunal or any
other appropriate authority under the applicable provisions of the Act. as may be applicable
including but not limited to making filing with the concerned Registrar of Companies.
Regional Directors, Official Liguidator, income Tax authorities and other authorities as may
be required and to approve all other actions required for full and effective impleémentation of
the proposed Scheme and 1o remove and resolve all doubts and difficulties and 1o do all such
acts, deeds and things as they may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and
incidental thereta;

i} ssary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto;
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§) finalise and bring into effect the Scheme and make and pive effeet to any modifications,
changes, variations, alterations or revision in the Scheme from time 1o time or to suspend,
withdraw. transfer or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified by any
statutory authority or as may suo motlo be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion:

k) delegate powers to the executive(s) of the Company and / or such other representative(s),
sign / execute on behalf of the Company, all deeds, documents, agrecments, nolices, forms,
writings and papers, us may be required. for any of the purpese related to the proposed
Scheme and to revoke / modify all or any of the aforesaid powers so delegated to the
exccutive(s) of the Company and / or such other representative(s), from time to time, as deem
fit and proper in the best interest of the Company;

I} sue moto decide in their absolute discretion in consultation with the legal counsel(s) and do
ail such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever. including settling any question, difficuliy
or doubt that may arise with regard to or in relation to the Scheme us they may in their
absolule discretion consider necessary, expedient, fit and proper; provided that no alieration,
medification or amendment which amounts to a material change to the substance of the
Scheme shall be made except with the prior approval of the Board;

m} malke such allerations or modifications or amendments to the Scheme as may be expedient or
necessary particularly to comply with any requirements, conditions or limitations, the
I'ribunal or any other statutory authority(ics) may deem [t 1o direct or impose or for any other
TE@SON;

n} obtain approval from and / or represent belore the Registrar of Companies. Regional Dircetor,
Official Liguidator, Ministry of Corporate Aftuirs, Income Tax authorities and such other
statutory and other governmental body(ics) Including the shareholders and / or creditars as
may be considered necessary;

o) produce all the documents, matters or other evidence in connection with the matters aforesaid
and any other proceedings incidenta! thersto or arising therefrom;

p) aceept service of notices or other processes which may from fime to time be issucd in
connection with the matter aforesaid and also to serve notices or other processes 1o partics or
persons concerned;

q) obtain Order of the Tribunal, as the case may be, approving the Scheme and file the same
along with requisite forms, returns, other documents with the Repistrar of Companies soas o
make the sanctioned Scheme effective;

r) incur such expenses as may be necessary in relation to the above or the transaction;

5)  authorise the officer of the Company and / or any other persan o discuss, negotiale, finalise,
excvute, sign, submit and (1 all required documents, deeds of assignment / convevance and
other deeds. decuments, scheme, agreements, forms, returns, applicahle, letters, ete, including
any modification thereto as may be deemed necessary and expedient at their absolute
discretion in order to give effect to this resolution in all respects whatsoever and / or for
obtaining directions including but net limited to from the Tribunal and for this purpose. to
appear in person and ! or represent the Company before the Tribunal or any other judicial
forums / authority and to deliver 4 certified copy of this resolution to any concerned party or
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authorities and for this purpose, to appear in person and / or represent the Company before the
Tribunal or any ether judicial forums ¢ authority;

1) sign and exccute the request letters / no objection / sanction letters for abtaining the necessary
no objection / sanction letters for dispensation of the meeting(s) of the sharehalders and / or
creditors of the Company for approving the Scheme and thereafter submitting the same on
receipt thereof 1o the Tribunal or amy other appropriate authority, as may be required;

u) take all procedural steps for having the Scheme sanctioned by the Tribunal including without
limitation, filing necessary applications, petitions and signing, verifving and affirming all
applications, allidavits and petitions as may be necessary,

v) 1a represent, attend, vote and / or appoint proxy at any WCLT convencd meeting of the
creditors of Suzlon Energy Limited in which the Company is a creditor and to do all such
other such acts, deeds, matlers and things as would be required for the purpose of attending /
participating / voting / signing on behalf of the Company at such meetings, and

w) do all further acts, deeds, matlers and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient o give
effect to the Scheme and lor matters connected therewith or incidental therele”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Common Seul of the Company be affixed on such
agreements, undertakings, deeds, declarations, documents, cte. os may be required (including on
any modifications or amendments or alternations thereto as may be required [rom time to time) in
accordancs with (he provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company in the presence of
any one of the Authorised Persons of the Company, who do sign the samc in token thereol”

SRESOLVED FURTHER THAT the meeting(s) of the shareholders and / or ereditors of the
Company, if dirccted by the Tribunal, be convened on a day and at 2 tlime as dirceted by rthe
Tribunal for the purpose of approving the Scheme.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THA'T the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company b
and are herchy severally anthorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things including
engaging Mr. Shailesh Indapurkar, 3 Company Secretary in practice, and / or any other
professionz] for certification of necessary forms. fling necessary forms, statements, intimations,
letters and such other papers and for the purpose to sign and execute forms. declarations, returns,
letters and such other papers as may be necessary, desirable and expedient.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copy of the foregoing resolution certilied to be true by any
one of the Authorised Persons or the Company Secretary of the Company be furnished to
whomsoever it may concern with a request 10 act thereupon.”

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
FORSUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED
Ll-é

iﬁ;:ﬁ* i “lﬂ
SHIVANI NIRGUDKAR,
COMPANY SECRETARY.
M.NOLAIINGS,

Corparate ldentity Sumbser, U2 7 L09GIZ004PLC0441 70
Regd. Office: "Suzlon’, 5, Shrimali Society, Mear Shri Krlshng Complux, Navrangpurs, Ahmedabad - 380 009, india Phone: +91,79_ 66045080
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TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUZLOXN
GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED BY CIRCULATION ON 16" AUGUST 2024

To consider and approve the modification to the Scheme of Amalgamation involving merger by ahsorption

of Suzlon Glebal Services Limited with Suzlon Enerpy Limited and their respective sharcholders and
creditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013

YRESOLVED THAT i continuastion o and in partial modification of the resolution passed by the Board of
Dhirectors at its meeting held on 2 May 2024, the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company be und is
hereby accorded to alter / modify Clause 1.3 of Part 1 in the Scheme of Amalgamation involving merger by
absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limited (" Transferor Company ) with Suxlon Energy Limited {*Transferee
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act. 2013
(*Scheme’) by substituting the following:

1.3 Appointed Date means 15" August 2024 or such other date as may be approved by the Tribunal in this regard. "
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT rest all other clauses of the Scheme shall remain unaltered and unchanged ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr Vinod R Tanti, Mr. Ranjisinh A.Parmar, Mr, Himanshu Mody, the
Directors, Mr. Sairam Prasud, the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. JP.Chalasani. Group Clief Executive Officer,
Ms. Shivani Nirgudkar, Company Secretary, Mr. Anand Bagrecha, Mr, Het Shah, Mrs. Geetanjali S.Vaidve, Mr.
Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel, the authorised representatives of the Company (herenafier collectively
referred o as the *Authorised Persons'), be and are hereby severally authorised to make the necessury modification
to the Seheme and all relevint documents and papers with regard 1o the Scheme and ! or the Company's application
with the National Company Law Tribunal. Abmedabad Beneh ("NCLT"} and file intimations with the statutory
authorities including the NCLT and to doall such sets. deeds. matters and things and sign and execute all such
documents as may be necessary, desireble and expedient and s they may deem fit to give effect to the proposed
madification in the Appointed Dawe.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persoas shall have the authority 1o determine the appropriate
course of acton following deliberations conducted by the NCLT.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in continuation to and in pastial modification of the resolution passed by the
Board of Directors at its meetng held on 2% May 2024, the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company be
amd i hereby aceorded to additiomally authorise My, Parshwa Doshi and Mr. Rasik Patel, the authorised
representatives of the Company, o do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary with regard o
the Scheme mcluding but not limited to seeking any directions of the NCLT and / or any other statutory
authority(ies) / regulator(s)/ stock exchanges™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT o certified true copy of the aforesaid resolution be issuad as and when necessary,
under the signatures of any one of the Authorised Persons of the Company.™

CERTIFIED TRUE cOpPY
FOR SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED

Fomaualt

SHIVANI NIRGUDRAR,
COMPANY SECRETARY.
M.NOLAIZ00E,

Corporate identity Numiber; L2 710896 20040024170
Regd. Office: “Suzlon”®, 5, Shrimali Sochaty, Near Shr Knshna Complex, Nawrengpua, Ahmedabad-380009, inda Ph- 91, 79,6604 5000
Fax ; +91. 79 26565540
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13" May 2024,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited. BSE Limited,
“Exchange Plaga™, P Towers,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Dalal Street,
Mumbai-40003 1, M umbai-40HKI

Trear Sirs,

Sub.; Scheme of Amalgamation of Suzlon Global Services Limited with Suzlon Energy
Limited, their respective shareholders and creditors.

Ref:  Regulation 37(6) of SEBL (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations™).

We refer to our letter dated 2™ May 2024, submitted under Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations,
intimating that the Board of Directors of Suzion Energy Limited (the "Company™) al its meeting held
on 2™ May 2024 has considered and approved the scheme of amalgamation inmvolving merger by
absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limated (CIN: UZ7109GI2004PLCO44170). a wholly owned
subsidisry  of" the Company (the “Transferor Company™). with Suwedon Energy Limited (CIN
LADIOGGITB9SPLCO25447) (the “Transteree Company” or the “Company™), and their respective
sharcholders and credniors (hereinatter referred to as the “Scheme™).

The Transterer Company being a dircet wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to
Regulation 37(6) of the Listing Regulations, there is no requirement of obtaining any ‘No-Objection
Letter® or *Observation Letter” to the Scheme from the Stock Exchanges on which the securities of the
Company are histed,

However. in accordanée with Regulation 37(6) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby enclose the
below mentioned documents for the purpose of disclosure:

1. Certified copy of the Scheme; and
2. Certified true copy of the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of Suzlon Energy
Limited dated 2™ May 2024 approving the Scheme.

You are requested 1o kindly take the same on your records and disseminate the same on your wehsite.
Thanking vou,

Yours faithfully,
For Suzion Energy Limited

Garetanmuh
Samtash
Vatdya
seetanjali 8. Vaidya,

Company Secretary.

Encl:  Asabove.

Corporste |dentifcaton Namber [CIN) L4Q100G] 1995 PLO02544T
Repd. Difiee *Suglon”™, 5. Shimal| Society, Mear S Kirbrya Comgle, MNaeranggur, Ahmiedatiad - 380 005, Indis Pl 0079 60000 / 2687714, Fax' =90, 79 26565500 / JS447844
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2274 August 2024,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited,
“Exchange Plaza”, P.J Towers,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East). Dalal Street,
hlumbai-4 (051, Mumbsai-40000 1
Diear Sirs,

Sub.: Scheme of Amalgamation of Suzlon Global Services Limited with Surlon Enerpgy
Limited, their respective shareholders and ereditors {the “Scheme™)

Ref.:  Regulation  37(6) of SEBI (Listing  Oblizations and Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 {the “Listing Regulations™).

We refer o our letter dated 16™ August 2024 submitted under Regulation 30 of the Listing
Regulations mtmating that the Board of Directors of Suzlon Enersy Limited (the “Company™), by
way of circular resolution passed on 167 August 2024, had, subject o requisite approvals | consents,
approved a modilication to the Scheme as approved by the Board on 2™ May 2024, to change the
Appointed Date to “15" August 2024 or such other date as may be approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench™ from the carlier Appointed Date of 1" December 2024,

The Transferor Company being o direet wholly owned subsidiury of the Company, pursuant to
Regulation 37(6) of the Listing Regulations, there is no requirement of obtaining any *No-Objéction
Letter” or ‘Ohservation Letter™ o the Scheme from the Stock Exchanges on which the securtties of the
Compuny are listed.

However, in accordance with Regulation 37(6) of the Listing Regulatons, we hereby enclose the
below mentioned documents [or the purpose of disclosure:

. Certified copy of the modified Scheme of Amalgamation of Suzlon Global Services Limited with
Suzlon Enerpy Limited, their respective sharcholders and creditors; and

2. Certified true copy of the Resolution passed by the Board of Directors of Suzlon Energy Limited
by cireulation on 16™ August 2024 approving the modification 1o the Scheme.

You are requested 1o kndly take the same on your records and disseminate the same on your websile,
Thanking vou,

Yours fmthtully,
For Suzlon Energy Limited

gt wogeed by
GE‘:'tﬂﬂ]all- Camtampas lanias® Warizn

Saritosh Vaidya " s e

Geetanjali S.Vaidya,
Company Secretary.

Encl: Asabove
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Certificate of Non-Applicability of Valuation Report

Certificate of non-applicability of Valuation Report in the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation
involving merger by absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limited {“Transferor Company”) with Suzlon
Energy Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective sharehalders and creditors pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,

1. Thedraft Scheme of Amalgamation involving merger by absorption ("Scheme of Amalgamation”)
provides for amalgamation of Suzlon Global Services Limited {“Transferor Company”) with
Suzlon Energy Limited ["Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
under Section 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,

2.  As per Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFDYPOD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Valuation Report from an Independent
Registered Valuer is not required in cases where there is no change in Shareholding pattern of
the listed company on effectiveness of the Scheme of Amalgamation.

3. On the basis of our evaluation of the relevant documents and according to the information and
explanations given tous by the Management of Suzlon Energy Limited and Suzlon Global Services
Limited, we hereby state that:

al

bl

c)

Presently the entire issued share capital of the Transferor Company is held directly by
the Transferee Company and hence the Transferor Company is whaolly owned subsidiary
company of the Transferee Company.

As per paragraph 8 of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation, no shares of the
Transferee Company shall be allotted in lieu or exchange of the holding of the Transferee
Company in the Transferor Company and the issued and paid-up capital of the
Transferor Company shall stand cancelled on the Effective Date without any further act,
instrument or deed,. Accordingly, ne consideration shall be payable by the Transferee
Company under the Scheme.

In our opinion as there will be no change inthe shareholding pattern of the listed entity /
Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, no Valuation Report
from an Independent Registered Valuer is required as per SEBI Master Circular Mo.
SEBI/HC/CFD/POD-/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023,

4, Thiscertificateis intended for the information of the Company and for the purpose of submitting
the same to the relevant authorities in relation to the proposed Scheme of Amalzamation.

Thanks & Regards,
.-’ l“l

7 . Lo *0
{ \\ “_ i - ..:.r

ll"l't ing WID] |
Parag Vijaykant Kulkarni o o :,.J-ﬁ‘”
IBBEI Registered VWaluer
IBEI/RV/04/2019/12131

COP- IV - RVO/OM/238/2018

Place: Pune

Date: April 24, 2024

Registersd CHfice

Address - A- 102, Gagar) Galasy, Biwewad) Kandlnig Food, Pane - 411037
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STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Suzlon Energy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qpinian

1 We- have audited the accompanying standaione financial statements of Suzlon Energy Limited (the Company'), which
comprisa the Balance Sneat as at 31 March 2024, the Statemeant of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprahensive Incomaeaj,
the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and noles to the standalone
financial statements, iIncluding matenal accounting policy infarmation and other explanatery iInformation, in which ars included
the returns for the year ended on that date audited by the branch avditors of the Company's branches located at Germany
and MNetherlands,

2. |n ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to ws, and based on the consideration
of the reports af the branch auditors as referred to in paragraph 16 below. the aforesald standalone financial statements glve
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act] in the manner so required and give a trus and fair view in
conformity with the Indlan Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other sccounting principles generally sccepted in Indig, of the state of affais
of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit [including other comprehensive lass), its cash flows-and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audil In accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 142(10 of the Act. Our
responsipilities under those standards are further describead in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Audit of the Standalane
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the-Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIY together with the ethical reguirements that are relavant
to our audit of the stancalone financial statemenis under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfited our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these reguiternents and the Code of Ethics. We beleve that the
audit evidence we have abtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the branch auditors, in terms of their reperts
referred 1o In paragraph 16 of the Other Matter section below Is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide & basks far our oginion,

Emphasis of Matter

4. Wedraw attention to Note 48(a) to the accompanying standalone financial statements, related to a show cause notice received
lry the Compamy from SEBI (Secunties and Exchange Board of Indial in respect of certain specific transactlons hetwaen
the Company and ks domestic subsidiaries and disciosure of a contingent lability in respect of earlier years, Managament
believes that there Is ng material impact of this matter on the standalone financial statements, Our opinion is not medified in
respecl of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

5, Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, and based on the consideration of the reports of
the branch auditors as refemed to paragraph 18 below, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financlal statements as a
whale, and in forming our opinicn therean, and we dao not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.

12
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated In our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit ad_gl:gnd the kex audit matier

Impairment of investment in equity shares of and Inter
Corporate Deposits given to SE Forge Limited

Az described In Mote 9 and Mote 11 to the standalone
financial statements, earving value of Ipvestment |n
equity shares of, and Intey Corporate Deposiis ghven to
SE Forge Limited (SEFL) as at-31 March 2024 amounted
to € 38580 crores net off impairment allowance of
T 7H4.23 crores, The management has noted impatrment
indicatlers as Company's share in nel asset is lower than
the carrying value of Investmeant In and Inter Corporate
Deposits glven as at 31 March 2024,

The recoverable amount of the investment in and Inter
Corporate Deposits-are assessed based on assumptions
that require the management 1o exarcise their jJudgment
such as future ewpected revenue, future expected
revenue growth rate, gross margins, terminal growth
rate, luture cash llaws and use of appropriate discaunt
rote, As a resull the Company carmiad o tatal impairment
gllowance &5 on 31 March 2024 of ¥ 75423 crores
against these Investments and Inter Corporate Deposits.

Considaring the materiality of the amaunts and degree of
Judgement and subjectivity Involved in the estimates and
key assumptions used by the management in determining
recoverable amount of aforesaid investments and Inter
Corpotate Deposits, we have considered this matter as
a key audit matter.

Recoverability and waluation of allowance for
impairment of trade recelvables and other financinl
assets: Power evacuation infrastructure receivables
['PE receivahles’)

As described in Mote 10 and Note 12 to the standalong
financizl statements, the Company has trade receivables
of T IN5.63 crores and PE recewvables of T 6773 crores
respectively as on 31 March 2024

The Company recognizes loss allowance for trade
recelvables and other financial assets al the expected
eredlt less (‘ECLY. Assessment of the recoverabllity of
trede receivables and othor fingnclal assets together
with the refated ECL 15 inherantly subjective and requires
significant management Judgement which includes
repayment history and financlal position of entifies
from whom these balances are recoverable, tesms of
underlying srrangements, overdue balances, market
conditions, et

O audit procedures in relation (o assessing the recoverable
amount of investments and Inter Corporate Deposits Included
but were nat limited to, the following:

Dbtained an understanding of management's Impaitment
gssossmont proceass and evaluated the design and
tested operating effectivaness of internal controls over
the impairment assessment of investments and inter
Corporate Ceposits;

Obtained the Impairment analysis camed out by the
managemeant including report of extermal independent
valuation sxpert;

Assessed the professional competence, ohiectivity and
capabilities of the =xtermal independent valuation expen
engaged by management;

Assessed the methodology used by the managemenl to
estimate the recoverable value of investment in and Inter
Corporate Deposits:

Engaged auditor’s expert (0 assess appropnateness of
the viluation methodoiogy used by the management
and reasonablensss of the valuation assumptions used;

Traced the projected cash flows 1o approved business
pirns and critically challenged underying assumptions
such as future expactsd revenue, fulure expectsd
revenus growth rate, terminal growth rate and gross
miarging, basis our understanding of the business and
market conditions:

Tested the aithmetical accuracy and sensitivity analysls
performed by management of key assumptlons such as
discount and growth rates; and

Ascoszod the oppropriateness of disclosures made
in the standalone financial stetements in accordance
with the reguirements of applicable Indian Accounting
standards.

Our audht procedures included but were not limited o the
following:

Obtalned an understanding of and evaluating the
design. Implemeniation and operating effectivensss
of the internal controls over the process of estimating
recoverahility and the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables and PE recsivables including adherence
o the reguitements of the relevant Indian Accounting
Standards,

Assessed reasonableness of the method, assumplions
snd |udaements used by the management with fespect
to recoverahbility and determination of the allowance fo
impalrment of trade receivables and PE receivables;

Understanding the key inputs used in the provistoning
madol by the Campany such as repayment history, terms
of underlying arrangemeants, overdue balances, market
conditions, Sto;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Considerng the materality of the amounts Invalved and . Obtained balance conflrmation for selected samples and
Ihe risk that trade receivables and PE receivables may werified the reconcilialion for differences, Il any for the
nol be recoverable, judgement is required 1o evaluate confirmations recgived,

whiether any allowance should be made to reflect the
risk and aceardingly we have considered this matter as
akey audit matter,

«  Assessed tha recoverability of overdue trade receivabies
and PE recelvables through Inguiry with the management
and by obtaining sufficient corroborative evidence to
suppart the conciusion,

«  Assessed the net expaosure after considering the other
liahilities payable such as liguldatad damages, claims
payables 1o selected trade receivables,

. Tested subzequent settlement of selected trade
receivables afler the balance sheet date; and

- Assessed (he appioptiatensss of declesures made
in the standalone financial statements in accordance
with the reguirements of applicable indlan Accounting
Standards,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

7

The Company’s Board al Directors are raspansibis for the othar infarmation. The othar information comprises the information
Included in the Annusl Repert but does not Include the standalone linancial statements and our auditor's report thareon.

Cur opinion on the standalone financiat statem=nis does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conciusion thereon.

In eennection with our audit of the standalane financial statements, cur respansibility |s to read the other infarmation and, In
deing sg, consider whether the other information i= matenally inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge abtained Iin the audll or atherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there 15 a matedal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact

Thee Annusl Report |s not made avellable to us at the date of this auditor's report. Wehave nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

g,

100

126

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible Tor the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act with respect Lo the preparation
and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financizl position, financial
performance including. other comprehensive income. changes in aquity and cash fiows of the Company In accordance
with the Ind AS spocified under section 123 of the Act and other accounting principles genarally accepted in India. This
responsibility atso includes maintenance of adequate sccounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other rregularities; selection and
applicatien of appropriote accounting policies; making judgments ond estimates that are ressonabie and prudent; and
deslgn, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financlal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, refevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the standalane
financlal staterments that glve a true and falr view and are free from materlal misstalement, whether due 1o fraud or errorn,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors 1s responsible for assessing the Company's-ahility to
continue asa golng concern, disclesing, as applleable, matters related to going concoern and using the going esncern basis of
arcounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or Bas no realistic
altermative but to-do so.

The Board-of Directors & also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

n

12

12

14

15,

Qur chjectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whethar the financial statements as a whaoie are frée from matanal
misstatemert, whether dus to frasd or error, and toissue an auditor's report that Includes our apinion. Reasonabile assurance
15 a high level of assurance, but is ot 8 guaraniee that an auvdit conducted in sccordance with Standards an Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstaterments can arse from fraud er error-and are considered material
if, iIndradualty ar in the agafegate, they could reassanably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statemenis

A5 part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section W3(10) of the Aot we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professlonal skepticiem throweghout the awedit We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalane financlal statements, whether due to fraud or
eiror, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appeopriate to provide a basls for our oplnion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from frawd s
higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, fargeny, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
ar the ovenide of internal control;

- Obtaln an understanding of intemal contral ralevant te the audt (n arder to design audit procedures that are approprists
in the cirgumstances. Under section 143(3)i1) of the Act we arg also responsible for expressing our opinion on whathar
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with referende to standalone financial statements in place and the
oparating effectiveness of such controis;

. Evaluale the approprialensass of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimetes and elatad
disclosures made by management,

- Conciude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concem basis of accounting and, hased on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to gvents or canditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's abilily to continue B3 & going concem. IMwe conclude that a matermal uncerainty exists, wea are
required to draw attention in our auditor's repart to the related disciosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are Inadeguale, lo modify our oglnion, Our conclusions are based on the audll evidence oblalned up
1o the date of our auditor's report. Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
a5 a going concern;

- Evaluate the avérall presentation, structure and content of the standalone linasnclal statements, Including the diselosunes,
and whather the standalone finarcial statements represent the underlying transactions and evenis in 8 mannes that
achieves fair prasentation; and

. Obtaln-sufficient approprate srudit evidence regarding the financal information /7 financial statementis of the Compaony
and its branches or the business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the standalons financial
statements. We are responsible fior the direction, supervision and perdormance of the audit of stondafone financial
stetements of the Companyof which we are the independent auditors. For the branches Included In the standalone
financial statemants, which have besn audited by the branch auditors, siech branch auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carrled out by them, We remaln solely responsible for our audit
apinion

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, ameng other matlers, the planned scope and timing.of the
oudit and significant audit indings, including any significant deficiencles in Intermal control that we Identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance wiih 5 statement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguliements
regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may réasonably be thought
to bear on owr Indepandence, and whore applicablo, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with govenance, we determine those maiters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statzments of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters, We
describe these matters n ourauditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosurg about the matier or whon,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determing thal a matter should not be communiceted in our repart because the adverse
canseguences of doing so would reasemably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

16,

We did not audit the anneal financial statements of two branches included in the standalone financial statements of the
Company whose financial statements reflects total assets of T 78.19 croves as at 31 March 2024, and the total revenues of
T 10787 crores, total net loss after tax of T 0.97 croras, total comprehensive loss of $ 097 crores, and cash flows (net) of 7
353 crores respectively for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standafone financial statements: The financisl
statements have been audited by the brarich auditors whose reports have bean furnished to us by the managemant, and our
ppinion an the standalone financial stetements, inso far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures incloded In respect of
branches, and our report in terms of sub-gection (3) of section 143 of the Act In 2o 2 a2 it relates to the aforesaid branches,
15 based solely on the report of such branch suditers:

Furthaer, these branches are located outside india whose financial statements and other financial information have bean
prepared in accordance with accounting prnciples generally accepted in thelr respective countrdes and which have been
audited by branch auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The
Compamy’s management has comverted the financiol statements of such branches from- accounting principles generally
accepted in their respeciive countries to accourting principles generally accepted in India, We hawve audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Company's managemeant. Our opinion on the standalonea financial statements, inso far as it relates
te the amodnts and disclosures included in respect of such branches, is based on the report of branch auditers and the
comversion adjiustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us,

Cur apinion above on the standolone finsncial statemeants, and our report on other legal and reguintory requiremsnts below,
are not modified In respect of the above matters with respect to our relionce on the wark done by and the reparts of the
branch auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

T

18

19.

198

Az required by section 197(18) of the Act based on our audit, and on the consideration of the reports of the branch audiors
as referred to in paragraph 16 above, we report that the Company has pald remuneration to s directors:during the year in
accordance with the provisions ol and limits laid down under section 1897 read with Scheduie V 1o the Act.

Asrequired by the Companias (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the Crder) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sectian 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | 8 statemeant on the matters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
1o the exten applicable.

Further to ouwr camments in Annexure |, as regulred by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, and on the consideration
of the reportz of the branch auditors os referred to:n paragraph 16 above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a}  We have sought and obtained atl the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledoe and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalane financesl statemaonts,

by Inour opinlon, propel’ books of account as required ly law have been kept by the Company <o far as It appears from
our examinadon of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been recelved from
the branches not visited by us, except for the matters stated in paragraph 19{ikvl] below on reporting under Rule ¥i{g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2044 (as amended). Further, the back-up of the books of accounts and ather
Books and papers maintained In an electronic mode has been maintained on servers physically localed in India, an a
dally basis,

£)  The reports on (e accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under section 143(8) of the Act by the branch
auditais have bean sent 1o us and have been properly dealt with by us In preparing this repoit,

d)  The standalone financizl statements deall with by this report are in agreement with the books of acceunt and with the
returns received from the branches not visited by ws;

e¢) Inour opinion, the afore=aid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specifled under section 133 of the Act;
1l On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,

naone of the directors are disgualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director In terms:of section 164(2)
of the Act;
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The qualification relating to the maimenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated In
palagraph 18(b] above on reparting under sectlan 336} of the Act and paragraph 19()(v) belew on repening under
Rule Wg) of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2084 (as amended);

With respect to the adequaey’ of the Internal financlal controks with reference to standalone financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness af such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinlon; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with ruke 11 of the Companies
(hudit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion snd to the hest of our information and according 1o
the explanatiens gliven to us and based on the considaration of the reports of the branch auditors as referred to in
patagraph 16 above:

The Company, as detalled in Note 40 fo the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the Impact of pending
litigations on its financlal positlon as at 31 March 2024,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any malerial
foreseeable Iosses as at 31 March 2024;

There were no amounis which were reguired o be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

a.  Themanagemant hos represaentad that, 1o the bast of its knowladge and belief, on the date of this audit report
as disclosed |n Mate 48(1) 10 the standalone financial statements, no funds have besn advanced ar loansd
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources ar kind of funds) by the
Company Lo ar inany person or entity, Including forelgn enlitles {'the Intermediarles’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in weiting or othenviss, that the intermediany shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the
Ultimate Beneficlaries’) or provide any guarantee, securlty or the like on behalf the Ultimate Banaficlaries:;

b The management has representad that, to the best of i knowledge and helief, on the date of this audit
report as disclosed In Mote 48(g) 1o the standalone financial statements, no funds have been recelved by the
Company from any persen o enlity, including foreign entities {'the Funding Partles’], with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend ar
Imvyest in other persons or entities (dentified In any manner whalsoever by of on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficlanes’) o provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
and

¢ Basedonsuch audit procedures pedarmed as consldered reasonable and appropriate in the clreumstances,
nathing has come to our notice that has caused g to believe that the management representations under
sub-clauses (8] and (b) above contain any material missiatemant.

The Company has not dectared or paid eny dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing an 1
Aprl 2023, has used an accounting seftware for malntalning its books of account which has a feature of tecarding
audit trall jedit jog) faciity and the same has been cperated throughout the year for all relesvant transactions
recorded In the software except that the audit trail feature was rot enabled at the database level for accounting
software 1o leg any direct data changes, as described |0 Nole 28() to the standalona financial stalements. Further,
during the course of aur audit we did not come across any Instance of audit trall feature being tamperad with, in
respect of the accounting software whers such feature is enabled.
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As proviso 13 Rule 3(% of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicakle from Y April 2023, regorting under Rule 1Hg) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2004 on presernvation of audit trall as pei the statutary requirements for record retention ls
not appiicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024

For Walker Chandiok & Ca LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Mo, GO07ENMNS0003

Shashi Tadwalkar

Fartner

Membership Mo 1N797

UDIN: 2310179 7TBKCPCOT965

Place; Pune
Date: 24 May 2024
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Annexure |

Referred to in Paragraph 18 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even dats to the members of Suzlon Ensrgy Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and glven by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and based on the consideration of the repons of the branch auditors, and to the best
of our knowledge and Belief, we report that:

I

()

it

{d)

(=}

\ &

[y

(&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
propery, plant and equipment, capltal work-In-pragress, iInvestment properties and relevant detalls of rght-of-use
assels

B The Company has malnlalned proper records shawing full particulars of Intangible assets,

The Company has a regular pregramme of physical verification of lis property, plant ond egulpment, Investment
properties and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are physically varified in @ phased manner
over a period of three years, which in our opinien, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of is assets, In accardance with this programme, certaln property, plant and equipment, Investment properties
and relevant details of fght-of-use assefs were verified during the year and no material discrepancléas were notlced on
such verification,

The fitle deeds of all the immovshle properies (inciuding investment properties) held by the Company (other than
properties whore the Company is the lessee and the paso agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessen),
disclosed in MNote 4 and Note T to the standalone financial statements, are hald inthe name of the Company,

The Company has adopted cost model for = greperty, plant and equigment including right-of-use assets, Investment
properties and intangible assets, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{)id) of the Order s not applicable to the
Company,

Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benam| property under the
Frohihiton of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 {as omended) and rutes made thereunder,

The management has conducted physical vernfication of inventary at reasonable intervals during the vear, except for
gocdg-in-ransit and Inventory lying with third parties: In our opinion, the coverage end precedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each dass of inventory
were noticed as compared to book recerds. In respect of inventory lyving with third parties, these have subsiantially heen
confirmed by the third parties and in respect of goods-in-transit, these have been conflrmed from corresponding recelpt
andfor dispatch of inventory records,

As disclosed in Note 19.3 to the standatane financial statements, the Campany has been sanctioned a non-fund bazed
working capital limit in excess of € & crores during the year, by banks and fingncial institutions on the basis of securify
of current assets. Pursuant 1o the terms of the sanction letters, the Campany is not required ta file any quarteriy retum
or statement with such banks or financial institutions.

(i} According to the Information and explanations given 1o us and on the basls of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans to firms, fimited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The company has also not provided security
or gramted advances In the nature of loans to campanles durlng the year. Further, the Company has made Investments in,
provided guarantes and granted unsecured loans to compani=s dufing [he year, in respect af which:

{8]

The Company has provided loans and guaranies to-Subsidiaries during the yearas per details given balow!

.;artfr:ulars Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amaunt providedigranted during the year (T In Crore);

- Subsidiaries 9763 4587
Balance outstanding as at balance sheat date n respect of above cases (T In Crore):

- Subsidiaries 104 .47 979.07

2M



SUZLON Annual Report 2023-24

FUPAN Rty e (L e

]

v}

fui)

v}
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(B} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Investments made, guarantees
provided and terms and conditlans of the grant of all lsans and guargntees provided are, prima facle, not prejudicial io
fhe interest of the Company

(g} Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of Interest has been
stiputated and principal amount inciuding interast s not doe for repayment cumrently,

(&) Thare-is no overdue amount in respect of lnans: or advances in the: nature of loans granted 1o such companies, firms,
LLP= or other parties.

{e} The Company has not granted any loans or advances jn the nature of loans which has fallen due during the year,
Further, mafresh loans were granted (o any paty to settle the overdde loans ¢ advances in nature of loans that existed
as atthe beginning of the year.

{ft  The Company has not granted any loans or advances n the nature of loans, which are repavable on demand or without
specifying any terms or perlod of repayment.

i eur opinion, and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has compiied with the provisions
of section 186 of the Act In respect of loans and Ivestments made and guarantees provided by It as applicable. Further, the
Compary has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Actin respect of security
provided by i,

In our epinion, and according to the infarmatlen and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not occepted any deposits
or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2074 (as amended), Accordingly, reporting under clause 2{v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the At in respect
of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Contral Governmen! for the maintenance of cost rocords and ace of the opinion that, prima Tacie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and mamtained. Howsver, we have not made & detailed examination of
the cost records with a view o determine whether they ane accurate or compiaie.

@l Inour opinlon, and according to the infarmation and explanations glven to us, undisputed statutary dues Incleding goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
axcise, value added tax, cess and other material stalutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been siight delays in a few cases pertaining 1o
profession tax, Further, no undisputed amounts payahle in respect therenf were outstanding at the year-end far a period
of mare than =i months fom the date they became payable,
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Accarding to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-ciause {a) which
have not bean deposited with the approptiate authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

Mame of the Mature of dues Gross Amount Period to which Forum where dispute ks pending
statute {7 In Crore]  the amount relates
[Financial Year)
Firance Act, Serwica ti a7e3 200708201112 The Customs Excige and Service Tax
1904 673 2000411 1o 2012413 Appellste Tribunal
56 2012493 and 201415
Customs Act, Customs duty QI7 201516 and 2021-22  The Commissioner of Customs (Appeals)
1362 “287  201617to 201819  The Honorable High Court
0.45 2008-0F The Customs Eucise and Sarvice Tax
015 20112 hpbellate Tribirsal
0. 201243

235 201617 10 2018419
#3168 206417 1o 201819

Walue Added Value added tax 134 201012 te 201394 Tha Henorablbe High Caurt

Tax Act, 2005 009 200142 Joint Commissioner [(&ppeal), Mahamashira
Sates Tax Tribunal

Goods and Goods & G55 2007-18 Special Commissioner, Appellats

Sarvice Tox Services lax Autnority

Act, 2017 o7 201718 Coimmissioner [Appeais), Appeinte
Authoriy

* sterbedd pel of € 508 Crove paid under proles],
# stated met of T 5,19 Crore pold under protest

Iviii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrandered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the
booky of aocoounts.

(k=)

()

{a)

{b)

(€

L)

feh

I

i

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulled In repayment of its |oans or
borrawings o in the payment of interest therean to any lender,

According to the Information and explanations given 1o us including representation recelved from the management of
the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures; we fepon that the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial iInstitution or governmeant or any government authority

In ouropinion and according tothe Information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any maney by
way of term loans during the year and thene has been no utisation during the currant year of the term loans obtalined
by the Company during any prévious years, Accardingly, reporting under classe x(c) of the Order i5 not applicatls 1o
the Company,

In our opinion and sccording fo the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examinstion of the
financial statemenis of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis hawve, prima. facke, not been
utllized for long term purposes.

According to the Information and explanations given 1o us-and-on an overall exemination of the financlal stetements of
the Company, the Company has nol taken any funds from any enlity or persan on account of o (o mesl the obligations
of its subsidiaries,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company Has not raised ony loans during the year an the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any monsy by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments),
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3ix)la) of the Order s not applicabie to the Company.
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i)

xli}

ifl)

tiv)

)

fv)

(b  Durng the year, the Company has made private placement of shares, In.our aginian and according to the infermation
and explanations glven to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further, the amounts so ralsed have been utiliised by the
Company Tor the purposes for which these funds were rafsed.

(8] Tothe best of our knowledge and acoording to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
ar no material friowd on the Company has been noticed or reparted during the peried covered by our audit.

[0} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation mads tous by the management
of the Company, no repart under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescrioed ender rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period
covered by our sudit

{5} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has received whistfe blower complaints during
the year, which have been considered by us while determining the natuee, timing and extent of audit procedures

The Company isnat & Midhl Compamy and the Midh! Rules, 2014 are rot applicablo to It Accordingly, repoarting under clause
3ixil) of the Order |s not applicable to the Company

In our apinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given 1o us, all transactions entered into by the Company
with the related parties are In cempliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where appiigable. Further, the detalis of such
(elated party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Relsted Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act,

{a)  Inour opinien and according to the information and exglanations given to us, the Company has an intemal audit system
which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the provisions of sectlon 138 of the
Act

(B  We have considered the reports isseed by the Internal duditors of the Company 1l date for the period under audit.

According 1o the information and explanation given 1o us, the Company has not entored Into any non-cash transactions with
Its directors or persons connected with its directors snd accordingly, reporting under clavse 3(xv) of the Order with respect
to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act sre not applicable to the Company.

The Company s not required fo be registered under section 4514 of the Resernve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly,
teparting undar clauses 3avillal, (b and () of the Order are nol applicable to the Company,

dy Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined In Care Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} does not have any CIC

(xvil) The Company has net Incurred cash |osses in the current financlal year but bad incurred cash losses amounting to ¥ 96,10

crares In the immediately preceding financlal year

{xvlily There has been noresignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingky, reporting under clause: 2{xvil) of the

i)

204

Order 13 not appiicable to the Company

According to the information and explanaticns given to us and on the basls of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates
of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial Habiiities, other infarmation in the standalane financlal statements,
our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on owr examination of the evidence
supparting the assumplions, nothing has caome to ouwr stiention, which causes us to believe that any materlal uncartainty
exists as5.0n the dats of the audit report indicating that Company s not capable of meeting its Hablities existing ot the date of
balance shest as and when they fall due within 8 peried of eneyear from The balance sheef date. We, howesver, state that this
I not an assurance as (othe future viability of the company, We further stats that our reporting 1= based on the facts up 1o the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guaranise nor any assurance that all habiiities falling due within a penod of
one year from the balance sheet diste, will get discharged by the company as and when they foll due.
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txx)  According fo the information and explanations glven 1o us, the Company has met the criteria as specified under sub-section
(1] of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Soclal Responsibliity Polley) Rules, 2004, however, In the
sbsence of average net profits in the immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend
any amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3fxx] of the Order is not
applicable to the Company,

twxf)l The reporting under clause 3xxl) of the Order is not applicable in.respect of audit of standalone financial statements:of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included In respectof said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 001076NN500013

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner

Membership Mo 101797

UDIN: 2110179 7TBKCPCOTI65

Place: Pune
Date: 24 May 2024
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Annexure |l

To the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Suzlon Energy Limited on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In‘conjunction with auraudit af the stendalonea financhal statements of Suzlen Energy Limited [(‘the Company’)as at and fol
the vear ended 31 March 2024, we hove audited the internal financial controls with reference to fimancial statements of the
Company as ai that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls bazed an internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
gssential componants of Internal control stated In Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial
Reparting {'the Guidance MNote’) issued by Institute Of Chartered Accountants of India (HCAIY). These responzibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial contrals that were operating sffectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficliert conduct of the Compeany’s: business; including adherence 1o the Company’s policles,
he safequarding of ils assels, the prevention and detection of fravds and errors, the accuracy and completensss of {he
accounting recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financlal Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Qurresponsibility is to express an opinion an the Company's internal financlal controls with reference to financial statements
ased on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing Issued by the Institute of Charered
Accouniants of Indla (ICAI) prescribed under Section 143[11:[] of the Act, 1o the extent applicable 1o an audit of Internsl
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls Owver
Financlat Reporting ('the Guldance Note') issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply
with ethizal requirements and plan and perfoim the audit te obtain feasanable assursnce abalt whether adequate Intemal
financial controfs with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such contrals operated
effectivety in all materlal respects.

A4, Ouraudit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial siatements and their cperating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial contrals with reference
to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financlal controls, assesaing the rsk that a
misterial weskness gxists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivensss of internal contrel based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment af the risks of material
misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due 1o Traud or eror

5 We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinian on
the Company's Intarnal financial contrals with referonce to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A compamy’s infernal financial contiols with reference o financial stalements is & process designed o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the rellability of financlal reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
puipozés In accardance with generally ceeepted aceaunting princlples, A company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial staterments include those palicies and procedurss that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
In-reasenable detall, accurately. and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of standalane financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and expanditures of the company #re being
made only In accordance with authonsations of management and directors of the company, and {3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharised acquisition, use, or dispasition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements,
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherant imitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, including
the possipliity of collusion or impropar management overfide of controls, materlai misstatements due to errar or fraud may
occur and nol be detected, Also, prajections of any eveluation of the intemal financial controls with referande to slandalone
financial statements to future periods are subjsct to the sk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financlal statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
palicies or procedures may detsriomais,

Opinion

8 In our opinton, the Company fos, in all material respects, adenquate intermal financial controls with reference to standalons
financhal statements and such cantrols were operating effectively as at- 31 March 2024, based on Internal financial contrals
with reference to standalone financial statements critesia established by the Company cansidering the essentlal components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note Issued by the [CAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo: GOI07ENMNS00012

Shashi Tadwalkar

Partner

Membership Moo 107757

UDIN: 2410179 7BKCPCOT7965

Place: Pune
Date: 24 May 2024

207



SUZLON Annual Report 2023-24

Standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

Al amounts in T Crore, unless otheryise stated

Particulars Motes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Assets
Man-current assets
Property, plant and equipnment 4 473.03 42507
Right-ofl-use assels as 2992 919
Capital work-in-progress 5 a7 .87
Imvestmient propertios 7 27m 291
Other intanaible assets A 5354 G2.80
Intangible assets under development 8 351 343
Financial assets
Imvestments 9 1.756.46 175390
Trade receivables 10 - -
lLoans 1 Sva07 1,244 42
Other financial assets 12 BA1GT 38339
Other non-curment assets 12 4212 naa
4214.80 398369
Current assets
Inveniories 14 118845 TEO42
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 11563 546.32
Cash and cash equivalents 5 85,86 259063
Bank batance other than above 15 TI7a7 E
Loany 1 az25 0.61
Dhther financial assets 12 FL 75.50
Other current assets 13 20640 aea.Mn
2,945.86 2,036.49
Assets clasgified as held for sale 15 - 7781
Total assets 716466 504799
Equity and lakilities
Equity
Equity share capital 17 2IN72 245440
Cher equity 18 83613 (1.0365.0)
3,606.85 1419.39
Linkdlities
Nan-current liabilitles
Fimancial liabilites
Borrowlngs i3 636,18 200808
Lagsa labilities 38 1450 44849
Other financial labilites 20 455 339
Provisions A 14414 144 83
Other non-coment lakllities: 22 048 048
799.85 2,)62.67
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w Financial Statements

Particulars Motes As at As at
Current liabilities
Financial llablites
Borowlngs 19 32302
Lease llablitles 38 1217 821
Trade payables 23
Total outstanding dugs of micro and small enterprises 2826 270
Total outstanding dues olher than micro and small enterprises 181055 1085839
Other financlal llabilitles 20 18236 2204895
Contract linbilities 17237 386.64
Provisions M 42783 451.20
Other current liabilities 22 = 1B.76
275796 2,465.93
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 16 . -
Total liabilities 3,557 4 628.60
Total equity and liabilities TAGA.66 5,047.99
Summary of material accounting policy information 23
The accampanying notez-are an integral part of the standalans financial siatements
As per our repadt of even date
For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP Farand on bahaif of the Basrd of Directors of
Charterad Accountanta Suzlon Energy Limited
ICAl Firm Registration Mumber: O07ENMNSO0M3
Shashl Tadwallkar Vined R, Tanth J. P. Chalasanl
Partngr Chairman a0 Managing Directarn Groug Chiel
Membership Moo 101797 DiIN: DOD02265 Expcutive Officer
Himanshu Mody Goetanjall 5. Vaidya

Group Chief Flnangial Officer

Place; Puna
Date: May 24, 2024

Company Secretany
Membarshlp Moo A18026

Bloce: Pune

Date: May 24, 2024
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Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
Al amounts in T Crore, unless otherwises stated

Particulars Motes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Incoma

Rewenus from operations 24 3rea8 35384
Ciher operating Income 25 8107 230
Fimance Income 26 19283 19222
Total income 405353 3,782.66
Expenses

Cost of raw materials, components consumed and services rendered 27 285313 266297
Purchase af stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventarles of finished goods, semi-finished goods and Fi 145.249) 7153
work-in-progress

Ermployse banafils axpeite 28 31236 252.51
Finance costs 29 22567 44156
Dapraciation ond amartisatien expanse e .57 1B0.04
(ther expenses AN 51940 53737
Total expenses 3,984.84 4.161.98
Profit { (loss) before exceptional items and tax 68,29 (379.32)
Excepticnal tems 32 {2514 12.542.08)
Profit before tax 9343 26276
Ineome tax expenss 33 -
Profit after tax 2343 21276

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items thiat will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measuremeants of the defined banefitplans a4 0.3 15T

Income tax effect on the above - =
Othor comprehensiva fncoma  (loss) for the year, et of tax (032§ {5.71)
Total comprehensive Inceme for the year CERY 2,157.05
Earnings per equity share (EPS) as
- Basic sarnings pershae in § [Mominal value of share T 2(T 2] oo7T 2m
« Diluted sarnings per share in T [Nominal value of share 23 2] Q07 20
Summary of material accounting policy Information 23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP Far and on behail of the Board of Direclors of
Chartzred Accountants Suzlon Energy Limited

WA Firm Registration Mumber: DO076R/MNS00013

Shashi Tadwalkar Vinod R. Tanti J. P. Chalasani

Parirar Chairman and Managing Directar Group Chiaf

Membership Mo 1017797 Dil: GDG02 266 Executive Officer
Himarnshu Mody Goetanjali 5. Valdya
Groug Chief Financial Officer Company Secrotary

Membership Ne,, 818026
Flaca: Pune Place: Pune
Crote: May 24, 2024 Diate: May 24, 2024
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Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts in § Crare, unless otherwise stated

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hcaah flow from operating activities
Profit before tax ‘8343 2316276
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amartisation axpensa masy G004
Exceptional items (2514 {2.542.08)
Loss on dispesal of property, plant and eguipment, net 740 105
Gain on saleof investment [D.E5) (0.0
Rental Income from Investmant properties RE I ] 11.08)
Finance income (192 84 ez 23
interest expenses and other bomrowing cost 1RE.47 4081
Qperation, maintenance and warranly expenditure &2 83 90.33
Share based payment expenses [refer Note 37) £208
Liguiclsted damages sxpenditure 35865 3461
Performance guarantes expenditure B.2E 19.32
Bad debis written off - 245
Impairmeant allgwance/ (reversal) =759 15.89)
Alicwance! freversal) for doubtul gebts and sdvances, net (G55 [7.95)
Exchange differsnces, net (@04 i0.83)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes Z18.55 157.62
Movements in working capital
[increasa) decrease in financial assets and other assets [E‘IEEI.?&:! TaE7
(Increase) decrease in trade recelvables (REEEH) 124,99
(Increasa)’ decreass in inventores {428.03) 40705
[Decreasa)l Increase in ather kabilities, financial llabilities and provisions 51224 (F7EEY
Cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (595.26) {15.08)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (a3 {242}
Met cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities {558.19) {17.20) I
Cash flow from Investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipmiant indeding capital [1B3.65) 181:88)
winrk-n-progress and capital acdvances
Precesds from sale of property, plant and equipmeant 98 B5.52
Pracends from sale of stake in subsidiarios, assoclatos and jolnt vantures 44 B3 6423
Income from investmant properties 4.47 nog
Inter-corporate deposits givan 14587 (419,54
Inter-corporate deposits repaid AEEID 0443
Imtarest rocelvad o981 43.98
Met cash {used in} / generated from investing activities I7T6.56 40767
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Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
Al amounts in T Crore, unless otherwiss stated

Particulars March 31, 2023
Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment-of long-1erm forrowings (LTT738) (4335.33)

Procesds fram long-term borrawings - 2968096

Proceeds frem subsidiary towards share based payment Fie

Paymaent af principal porfion of lease labifites {ta g1 [12.95)

Proceeds fram Issuance of Rights equity shares including premium, net of a3.50 LWOT.67

expenses (refer Note 177)

Proceads from Issuance of GIF, net of oxpenses (rofer Note 17.6) 18661

Intetest and other bomowing cost paid {B9.95) 401.21)
Mat cash (used in) / generatod from linancing activities C 18213 (509.86)
Met (decrease)! increase in cash and cash equivalents A:BHC {27.50) (Me.39)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of year 29063 4‘!0.11“
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of year 26313 290.63
Components of cash and cash equlvalunts m—.— Ax at

March 31, 2023

Balances with banks 258 230.68
Bank balance other than above TRaT
Cash on hand 005 0.05
Tetal 26313 280.63

Summary of material accounting policy information {refer Note 2.3)
The figures in brackets represent outflows.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our rapart of even date

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Chartered Accountonis Suzlon Energy Limited

ICAL Firm Registrotion Number, DO107SNNS00M3

Shashl Tadwalkar Vined R, Tant J. P. Chalaganl

Partner Chairman and Managing Director Graup Chief

Membership Mo 181757 Bt SO202266 Executive Giflcoy
Himanshu Mody Geetanjall 5, Vaidya
Growp Chisf Financlal Office Comparty Secrétary

Membership No: A18026
Fiace! Pune Face: Pune
Date: May 24, 2024 Date: May 24, 2024
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Al ameounts In T Crore, unless otherwise stated

Company infarmation

Suzlon Energy Limited {SEL' or ‘the Company’) having CIN: L4MODOGNSISPLC0Z25447 |15 a public company domiciled In
India and |= Incorporated under the provisions of the Companles Act applicable in India, s equity shares are listed on
BSE and MWSE in India. The registered office of the Company is located at "Suzlon”, 5 Shrimali Society, Near Shree Krishna
Complex, Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad — 380 009, India, The principal place of business |s lis headquarters locatod at One
Earth, Hactapaar, Pune — 41 028, Indla.

The Company Is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of Wind Turbine Generators ("WTGs") and sale of related
companents of varous capacities.

The standalons financial statements wers autharised for issus in sccordance with a resolution of the directors on May 24,
2044,

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies infarmation
21 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notlfied under the Companies {indlan Accounting Standards) Rules; 2015 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation requirements of Division | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act. 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule Il as appiicable to the standalone financial statemenis.

The standalone financial statemeants have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, except for the Tollowing:

- certaln financial assets and llabilitbes (Including derlvathve financial instruments) I measured at Talr value,
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at falr value,

. share-based payments at amortised cost.

The standalone finenelal stalemeants are presentad in Indian Rupees @) and all values are rounded to the nearest Crore
(INR 0,000,000) up to two decimals, except when othenwise indicatsd,

The Company has prepared the siandalona financlal statensants on the basis that it will continue o operate as & going
CONCE.

2.2 Changes In accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {Indian Accounting-Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated
31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 Apil 2023,
The Company applied for the first-time the amendmeant.

Daclosure of Accounting Pollcies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy. disclosures that are more aseful by replacing tha
reguirement for entities (o distlose their “significant’ accounting policies with-a requirement to disclose their “material’
accounting palicies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of matenality N making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendmients have had animpact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but net on the measursment,
recognition or presentatlon of any tems In the Company's financial statements

Apart from above there are faw other amendmients spply for the first time for the vear ended March 3%, 2024, bul do not

have an impact on the standslones financial sistements of the Company, The Company intends to adopt these standards,
ifapplicable.

215



SUZLON

FUPAN Rty e (L e

216

Annual Report 2023-24

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies information

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current { non-curent classification. An
asgat s tréated as current whan it is

. Expactad to ba realised or intandad o be soid or consumed in normal oparating cycle
. Held primarily far the purpose of trading
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reparting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lisbiity for af least bwelve
months after the repoiting perod.

All gther asseis are classified as non-current.

A liakbility s current when:

. It Is expected to be settied In normal cperating cycle

- It s hald primarly for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ar

. There s no vncongditional right to-defer the settiement of the lability for at least twelve months sftar the
reporting period,

Defermed tax assets and kabilities are classifled as non-current assets and liabiltes, The Company classifies all
other ligbilities as non-current

The operating cycle is lhe time betwaan the acquisition of assels for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has idenfified twelve months as its operating cycie:

Foreign curmencies

The Company's standalone financial statements are presentad In Indian Rupees [7), which is alsa the Campany’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Fareign cumancy transactions are recorded In the reporting currancy, by applying to the foralgn currency amaount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the forelgn currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary ltems are retranslated using the exchange rate prevalling at the reporting cate,
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit
and loss,

MNorn-monetary items that are measurad in terms of histarical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the
exchange rales al the dates of the initial transactions Mon-monetary llems measurad st fair value in a foreign
currency are transisted using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
nrising on anslation of non-monetany. ilems measured ai fair value is treated in ling with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change In foir value of the item (e, translation differences on llems whose fair value galn o loss
i3 recognised In athar comprehansive incame ('O or profit or loss are aiso recognised in OC| o profit or loss,
respectively.

Falr values measuramsnt

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value al each balarice sheet date,

Fair value |< the price that would be recelved to seli an asset or pald to transfer o liability In an orderly transaction
between marke! panticipants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based an the presumplion
that thie transaction o sall the assel or transfer the ability takes place either:

. Inthe principal markel for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principat market, inthe most advantageous markes for the asset or liabiity.

The principal ar the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability s measured wsing the assumptions that market participants woauld use when
pricing the asset o liability, assuming that market participants act in thelr economic best nterest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account & market participant’s abiiity 1o generate
econamic benefits by using the assel n it highest and bes! use or by selling it to another market panticipant that
wold wse the assat in its highest and best use.

The Comparny uses valuation technigues that are appropriate In the cdrcumstances and for which sufficient data
are available 1o measure falr value, maximising the use of relevant observablie Inputs and minimising the use of
unebservable Inputs.

All assets and habilties for which fair value 1s measured or disciosed in the standalone financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
tey the Tair value measurement 8% 8 whole;

- Level 1 - Guoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or labillites,

. Level 2 - Valuatlon lechnigues for which the lowest level Input that [= significant to the falr value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable,

. Leval 3- Valuation technigues for which the loweast level input that Iz significant (o the fair value measurament
s unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurmng Basis, the Company
detarmines whether transfiers have occurmned between levels In the hlerarchy by re-gssessing categortsation (based
an the lowest level input that (s slgnificant to the fair value measuremeant az a whala) a1 the end of each reporting
paeriod.

The Company management determines the policies and procedures for recurring and non-recuring fair value
measurement. Involvement of external valuers s decided upon annually by management. The managemeant
decides after discussion with external valuers, about valuation technigue and inputs to use for each case,

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and labilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis,
the Compafy verifies the majar Inputs applled 1 1ha latest valualion by agreeing the infarmation i the valuation
computation ta contracts and other relevant decuments. The Company, In conjunction with the Company's extarnal
valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and llability with relevant external sources 1o
determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilites onthe basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hisrarchy as explained
above,

This note summarises accounting poticy for lair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes

. Guantitative disciosures of fair value measurement hierarchy [refer Note 447,
. Investment properties [rafer Note 2.3 ()],

. Financial instruments [incheding those caried at amortised cost) [refer Note 2.31g)),

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue frem contracts with customers ks recognised at the paint in time when confrol of the goods or servdces
[& transfarred 1o the customer atan amaount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to ba
entitled In exchange for those goods or sorvices, The policy of recognising the revenue 1s dotermined by the five-
stage model proposad by Ind AS N5 "Revenue from contract with customers”

I Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised in the statement of profit and 10$s at the point In time when control
of the goods is transferred (o the buyer &s per the terms of the respective sales order, generally on dispatch
of the goods,
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Revenue towards satisfaction of a perfiormance okligation | measured at the amount of transaction price
allgcated 1o that peformance obligation, In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the
Company considers the sffects of:

- Varlable conslderation: The contracts for sale of cguipment provide customers with a right for penalty
in case of delayed delivery or commissioning and In some coniracts compensation for perdormance
shorifall expected in future over the fife of the guarantee assured. The Company estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchanne for transferring the goods to the customer.

. Existence of significant financing component: Generally, the Company recelves shor-term advances
from its customers. Using the practical expedient In Ind AS 15, the Company dogs not adjust the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects,
at contract inception, that the perind between the transfer of the promised good or sewvice to the
customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less,

. Cost to obtain a contract: The Company pays sales commission for contracts obtained and s
immediately expensed because the amertisation period s one year or less

- Consideration payable to the customer [if any): The Company considers whether there are other
promises in the contract that are saparate performance obligations te which a partion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties). At the time of equlpment sale, the Company provides
operations and maintenance warranty for a standard period Torall contracts and extended warranty
beyond standard period in few contracts existed at the time of sale. These senvice-type warranties are
bundied tegether with the sale of equipment. Contracts for bundied sales of goods and a-service-type
waarranty comprise two performance obligations because the promises 1o transfer the equipment ond
o provide the service-type warranty sre capable of belng distinel. Using the retative stand-alone salling
price method. a partion of the transaction price Is allocated to the service-type wamranty and recognised
8% a contractual Habllity. These assurance-type warrantias are accounted for under Ind AS-37, refer Mote
21, Revenue is recoqgnised over the pencd in which the service-type wananty is provided based on the
time elapsed.

Crperation and maintenance service income ('OMS")

Revenues from OMS conlidcts are recognised over the pariod of the contracl and measured wsing output
methed becguse the customer simultaneously recelves and consumes the benefits provided to them.

Power evacuation Infrastructure facilities

Revenue from power avacuation infrastructure faclities fs iecognised at @ point in 1me upen commissianing
and electrizal installation of the WTG to the said facilities followed by approval for commissioning of WTG
from the cencerned authorlties,

Land

Fevenue from lond lease activity iz recognised ugon-the transfer of leasehold rightes to the customers,
Revonue from sale of land / right to sale land s recognised at the point in time when-control of goods is
transferred to the customer as per the terms of the respective sales order. Revenue from fand development
s recognised upon rendering-of the service as per the terms of the respective sales order

Sale of services

Eevenue from sale-of senvices is recagnised in the statement of profit and loss as-and when the services are
rendered,

Contract balances

. Contract assets: A contract azset |s the right to consideration in exchange for goods Of services
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services {0 a8 customer
befare the customer pays consideration or before payment is-due, o contract asset is recognised for the
parned consideration thet iz conditional.

ii.. Trade receivables: & recevable represents the Company's nght fo an amount of consideration that 15
unconditianal 1e, anly the passage of time Is required before payment of the consideration 15 due),
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Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section {a) Financial Instruments ~ Inltial recognition
and subsequent measurement,

iil. Contract liabilitles: A contract fabillty is the obligation to transfer goods or sefvices to a customer
for which the Company has recelved consideration {or an amount of consideration |s due) from the
customer, IFa custamer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or senvices o the
customes, a contract lability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
s earlior). Contract liabilities are recognised as reven e whan the Company performs undar the contract.

Interost income

Far all financial assets measurad at amortised cost, Interast Income | recorded using the effectlve interest rate
[EIR}. EIR s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial Instrurment of a shorter period, where sppiopiate, o the grass camying amount of the financial asset
of to the amorntised cost of a financial Fability, When cafculating the effective interest rate. the Group estimates the
expacted cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and simiar options) but does not consider the expected credit iosses. Interest income s included In
finanee incemea in the statemeant of profit and oss.

Taxes
Currenl income Lax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to
the taxation suthoritles. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amaount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current Income tax reloling te lems recognised oulstde statement of profit and loss Is recognised either in OC] or
In-equity. Current tax dems are recogrised in correlation to the underlying fransaction either in OC1 or directly in
aqulty. Managemant perodically evaluates the positions taken In the wx retums with respect to situations i which
applicable tax regulstions are subject to interpretation and establishes provizions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
gssets and labilites and thelr cairying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liahilities {TTLY are recognised for all taxable tempaorany differences, axcept:

. Whean the DTL arises from ha initial recognition of goodwill or an assel or fiability in o lransaction (hat is not
a busingss comiwnation.and, at the ome of the ransaclion, afects neithar the accountng profil nor taxaha
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporany differences,

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it I= probable that the lemporary differences will not reverse in the foresesable future

Deferred tax assets ((DTAT) are recognised for all deductibie temporary differenceas, the carry forward of unussd
tax credits and any unusad tax losses, OTA are recognised 1o the exdant thal it is probable that taxabie profit will
be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camy forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax Insses can be utilised, except)

. When tha DTA relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
ar liabitity in & transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the aceounting profit nar taxable profit or less and does nol give rise to agual taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

. In respect of deductitle femporery differences associated with investments in subsidiarles, assoclates
and Interests in jolnt veniures, DTA is recognised only to the extent that It |s probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avallable against which the
temparary differences can be ulilised.

The carrying amountof DTA is reviewed al each reporting date and redueced to the extent that itis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avalable to aliow all or part of the DTA o0 be utilised. Unrecognised
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DTA |5 re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the OTA to be recovered,

DTA and DTL are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the year when the asset is reallsed or
the liability is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reparting dote. OTA end OTL are offset if a legally enforceable dght exists to set off cunent fax assets agelnat
cument iax labilities and the defermed taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Deferred tax relating to ltems recognised outside statement of profit and |loss is recognised either in ©Cl or in
equlty.

g Property. plant and eguipment ("PPE’) and Capital work-in-progress ('CWIP')
PPE are stated at cost, not of accumuiated depreciation end accumutated Impalment Ioss, If any. Such cost
inciudes the cost of replacing part of the piant and equipment, transportation cost and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects I the recognition criteria are met When signiflcant parts of plant and eguipment are
required io be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on thelr specific useful lives,

Capital wark-in-prograss stated at cost, net of impairment that are not yet ready for thelr intended use as at the
baisnoe shoet date.

Likewise, when a major inspection |5 performed, its:cost @5 recognsed in the camyng amount of the plant and
equipment s a replacement If the recognition critera are sattsfied, All other repalt and malmienince costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when they are incurred

Depreciation i= coleulsted on the written down valee method (WD) besed on the useful lives and residual values
estimated by the management in accordance with Schedute Il to the Companies Act, 2013 as follows, The identified
componants are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remamning components are depreciated owver
the life of the principal PPE,

Type of assst Useful lives (years)
Buiidings 281058
Plant and machinery 15 to 22
Maoulds Lower of : 156 years or useful life based an usage
Wind research and measuring eguipment 3
Computers and office equipment 3as
Furniture & fixtures and wehicles u]

The Company, bazed on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
cartaln tems over estimated useful Ives which are different from the useful life prescribed In Schedule || o the
Companles Act, 2012, The management believes that these edtimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the peried over which the assets are likely to be used,

Galne or losses arsing from de recognition of PPE e measured a3 the difference betweean the net disposal
progesds and the carmying amount of the asset on the date of disposal and are recognised In the statement of
profit and loss when the asset s derecognised. The residual values, useful llves and methods of depreciation of
PPE are reviewed at each (inancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriste,

h.  Investment properties

Inrvestment properties are measured inltlally at cost, Incheding transaction costs, Subseguent to Inltial recegaition,
Investment prepetties sre stoted at cost leds accumulated depreclation and accumulated Impairment loss, I any,

The cost Includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects i the
recognition criteria are mel When significant parts of the Ifnvestment properties are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based an their specific useful lives. All ather repair and
malntenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss a5 Incurred

The Company depraciates building compaonent of investment property ove: 58 ydars from the date of orlginsl

purchase | date of capitalisation. Though the Company measures investment properties using cost based
measuremeant, the fair value of invesiment properties 5 disclosed In the notes.
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Investment properies are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permaranthy
withdrawn from use and no fulure economic benefit Is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net dispasal proceeds and the canmying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and 1gss in the
period of de-recognition,

Cther intangible assets

Intangible sssets acquired separalely are measuied on initial recognition al cost. The cost of intangibls assels
acguired In a buziness combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following inltial recognifion,
intangible assets are caried at cost fess any sccumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment lossas, if
any. Intemally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, sre not capitalised and the relatad
expenditure is reflected in statemant of prafit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised on a stralght-line basis over the useful economic life which generally does not
exceed llve years and assessed for Impalment whenever there s an Indication that the infangible assal may be
Imipaired. The amoitisation perlod and the amartisatien methed sre reviewed al least st the end ol sach reparting
period. Changes n the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of fulure economic benefils
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amontfsation period or method, as apprapriate; and are treated
a5 changes in accountlng estimates. The amoriizatlon expense on Intangiole assets with finlte life is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss under the head Depreciation and amaoftization expense.

zains or lesses arizing from de-receagnition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
not disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the statement of profit and loss
whian the asset 15 derécognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Development expenditures on an Individual project are recognised as
an Intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

. The technical feasibiity of completing the Intanglble- asset sa that the ‘asset will be avallabie for use of sale,
. s imtention to compiete and its ability and intention to use ar sell the asset,

. How the asset will genarate fulure economic benefits,

. The availability of resources to complete the asset,

- The abliity to measure fetlably the expendiliie duslng development.

Folliowing initial recognition of the development expendifure a5 an assel, the asset s carmed ot cost less any
sceumulated amartisation ang accumulaled impairment losses, Amortisation of the asset begins when develapment
5 complete and the asset is available for use. It Is amortised on a straight line basis over the period.of expected
future benefit from the related project, e, the estimated useful life. Amortisation is recognised in the statement of
prafit and loss, During thie perlod of development, the asset is tested for iImpalrment annually

Borrowlng costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production-of a qualifying. asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of the asset, Al other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they occur, Bomowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as-an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases
. Company as a lessesa

The Company applles a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, excapt for shart-term
leases and leases of low-value nssets. The Campony recognises lease llabllities 1o make lease payments and
right-of-use assets rapresenting the dght 1o use the undarlying assets.

The Company pssesses whether a contract contains 8 lease, ot inception of 8 contract. A contract is. or

contains, a kease I the contract conveys the right 1o control the:use of an dentified asset for a perod of time
in exchange for consideration,
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i Right-of-use assets (ROU assels)

The Company's lease assel classes primarlly consist of leases for land, buildings and vehicles. The
Company recognises ROU assels al the commencement date of the lease (e, the date the underlying
asset i5 available for use). ROU assets ars measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
Impalment losses; and adjusted for amy emeasurement of lease Habllities, The cost of ROUW assets
Includes the amount of l2ase labililies recognlsed, Nkl direct costs Incurred, and lesse paymants
mads at or before the commencement date |ess any lease incentives received, ROU assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basls over the shomer of the lease term
and useful life af the underlylng asset. The ROU assets are also subject to Impaliment. Refer Mote 2.3(m)
for the accounting palicies,

[ Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease kabilities measured at the
prasent value of lease payments to be made over the |sase term, The lease payments Include fixed
payments less any l2ase incentives recelvable. In calouisting the present value of lease payments, the
Compéany uses its borrowlng rate implicit in the lease o, iFnot readily determinable, using the ineremental
borrawing rates at the lease commencemeant date, After the cammencement date, the amount of lease
liabilitieis Is increased to reflect the accretion of imterest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the canying amount of lease labilities ks remaasured if there 15 a modification, a change in the
leaze term or & change in the lease paymants

ill. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leased asset {i.e.,
those leases that nave a lease term of 12 monthe or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchasa option). it alaoappiies the kease of jlow-value pssets recognition exemption 1o leases
thas are considersd 1o be low value, For the shor-term and low-value [=ases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operaling expenze on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

. Company o8 a hessor
Leases in which the Company dogs not fransfer substantialiy all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
assetis classified as operating fease. Assets subject to aparating leases other than land, building and vehicles
ara ncluded In PPE. Laase Income on an ogerating lease |9 recognisaed n the statament of prafil and loss on
a streight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense-in the
statement of profit and loss.

R Inverntories

Inventories of raw matertals Including stores and spares and consumaldes, packing materials, semi-finished goods,
companents, work-in-progress, project wark-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and
estimated rel realisable value, Cost is determined an waighted average basis.

The cost of work-n-pragrass, project work-in-pregress, semi-finished goods and finished goods includes the cost
of materiai, labour and a progortion of manufacturing overheads.

Stock of land and fand lease rights s valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisablevalue. Cost 1s.determined
on weighted average basis

Met realisable value |s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of budiness: less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the salae.

m. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there |s an indication that an assel may be impalied. If
any indication exists, or when annual Impalrment testing for an assel is required, the Company estimatges the
asset's recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an ssset’s or cash-generating unit’s
{CGEW) net selling prce and its value In use, The recoveratile amount i determined for an individual asset, unless
the azsel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, Where the camrying ameount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amound, the asset ks considersd
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Impaired and is written down ta lis recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

In assessing value In use, the esfimated future cash flows are discounted 1o thell present valie using 8 pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of meney and the dsks speclfic to the
asset, In determining net selling price, recent market ransactions are taken into account, if available, If no such
transactions can be dentified, an approgrlate valuation moded | used,

The Company bases s impairment calculation on detalled budaets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
foracast calculations generdlly cover a patlod of five years, Fot longer periods, o long-term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash fiows after the fifth vear. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company sxirapoiates cash flow projections in the budgst
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent yeais, unless an Increasing rate can be justiflied. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growith rate for the products, industries, or country
or pountries inwhich the entity operates, or tor the market in which the asset iz used,

Aller Impalrment, depreclation s provided an (he revised carmying amount of he asset over lts remalning usaful lfs.
Impalrment losses of continulng speratiens, Including Impairment on Imeentorles, ate recognised In the statement
of profit and loss, except for poperties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to QLI For such
propesties, the Impairment s recognised In OCH up to the amount of any pravious teualuﬁunn sprplus,

The imgalment loss recognised In grior accounting periods |< reversed if there has been a change in estimates of
recoverdble amount, The carmying value afier reversal is not increased beyond the camying value that would have
prevalled by charging ususl depreciation If there was no [mpairent.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indafinite tseful life are tasted for impairment annually as at year end,
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverabie amount of each CGU [or group of CGEUs)
tor which the goodwlll relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGLU is less than its camying amount, an
Impalrmant loss (s recognised. Impalrment losses relating 1o goodwill cannot be reversed in futore periods:

The Company assesses whather climate nsks, including physical nsks and transition nsks-coutd have a significant
impact, If so, these rishs are included in the cast-Now farecasts in asses5ing value-in-use amounts.

Provlstons

Provisions are secognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a sesult of a
pasl event, il s probable that an owtflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired 1o setlle the
obligation and a relioble estimate can e made of the amount of the obligation.

It the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability, When discounting is used, the increase in the prowvision
due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee benafits
i Short-term employes banefits:

Emplovee benefits such as short-term compensated absences, bonus, ex-gratia and performance linkesd
rewards falling due within twelve manths of rendering the service are classifled as short-term employes
benefits and are charged to the statement of profit and lossin the penod in which the employee renders the
SETWICE,

il Post-employment benefits:
A. Defined contribution schemes:

The Company provides defined contribution schemes such as statutory provident fund, employee state
insurance, voluntary superannuation-and the pension plan, The Comgany has no abligation other than
the contribution payable to the funds which is recognised as an expense, when an employes renders
the reloted service. If the contnbution payable to the scheme for service recelived before the balance
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sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payshle to the scheme is recognised as
a liabiiity after deducting the confribution already pald, If the contribution already paid excesds the
contributien due for services recalyed before the balance sheel date, then excess | recognlzed as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will iead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

B. Defined benefit plan:

The employee's gratulty fund scheme managed by board of trustees established by the Company,
represent defined benefit plan Gratully s provided for on the basis of acluarial valuatlon, using
projected unit credit method as ot each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains. and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included In net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the veturn on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined hensfit ability), are recognised
Immediately in the balance shaet with & corresponding debit or credit (o relalned eamings through OC|
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss
in subseguent perods. Met inferest is calculated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benifit
liability of assat, The Company recogrised the following chandges in defined benafit obligation as an
expense in stelement of profit or loss:

. Senvice cost comprising of curment service cost, past service cost gains and loss on entittements
and non-routine seltlemeant

. el Inleresi expensss of Income.

Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benafit plan are recognised whean the settlement occurs.
Ini case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets s reduced from tha gross obiigation under the
defined benefit plans 1o recagnise the chligation on a net basis

iil.  Long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides [ong-term benefits such as Retantion bonus (e long seivice award) and
compensated absences. Retention bonus 15 awarded 1o-certain cadre of employees on completion of
specific years of service. The ebligation recognised In respect of these long-term benefits |s measured
at present value of estimated future cash fiows expected to be made by the Company and is recognised
on the basis of actuarial valuation, using projected unlt credit method as at each balance sheet daie.
As the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 menths after the
reporting date, the entire leave is presented as & cumrent liability In the balance sh2et and expenses
recognized in statement of profit and loss account, Long-term compensated balances and retention
bonus are unfunded.

Share-based payments

The fair value of employes aptions granted under e *Employes Stock Option Plan ™ is recognised as an employee
benefits axpense over the vesting penod with a corresponding increase in share option outstanding account in
eguity. The total amount to be expensed |s determined by reference to the grant date fair value of the opllons
Including ary market perfaermance condltions and excluding the iImpact of any service and noen-markal perfaimance
vesting canditions,

The total expense is tecognisad over the vesting period, which |5 the petiod aver which all of the specified vesling
conditions are 1o be satlsfied. Al the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its egtimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service canditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision o onginal estimates. If any, in statement of profitand koss with a corresgonding adjustment
to equity.

Where shares are forfelted due 1o a Tallure by the employee to satisfy the service canditions, any expenses
previoushy recagnised in refation to such shares are reversed effective from the date of the forfelture.

Employers of the subsidiary companies also received the options inthe formy of share-based payment transactions.,
The cost of eguity settied transactions are recovered by the Company from the subsidiary companies on yearky
basis based on the estimated aptlons that will vest to the employees of the subsidiary companies.
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Fimancial iInstruments

A financiol instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finoncial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eguity
instrument of anathar antity.

I Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which®
the Compary has applied the practical expedisnt, on mitial recognition, & financial asset is recognised at
fair valie, in case of fnanclal assels which are recegnized ot fair value through profit or loss, its transaction
cost ks recognised I the statement of profit and loss. In ather cases, the transacton cost 4 attrlbuted to the
ascnuisition value of the financial asset.,

Trade recelvables thal do not contain a significant finencing component or for which the Company has
applled the practical expedient are measured ot the transaclion price determined undet ind AS 115, Refer (o
the accounting policies In 2.3 [d) - Revenue from contracts with customers.

Subsequent measurament

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified In four categories:

= Debtinstruments at amortized cost

- Dbt Instruments at fair value through othear comprehensive iIncome (FYTOCH)

- Dabyt st urnents, derlvatives and equity Instruments al fall value through profit o less (FYTPL)

B Ecquity instruments measured o fair value throogh other comprehansive income (FVTOC)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debt instrument’ s measured at the amonised cost if both the foliowing conditions are met:

g The asset is held within g business model whose ohjective is to hold asseis for collecting contractual cash
Mo, and

b, Contractusl terms of the asset give rise onspecified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of princlpal
and interest [SPPI) an the principal amount outstanding

This category is the most relsvant to the Company. After initial measuremant, such financial assets are subseguentiy
measured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost s calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acqulsition and fees ol costs that are an Integral part of the EIR, The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised In the statement of prafit and loss, This category generally appiies to trade and other receivables,

Dbt instrument at FYTOCI
A 'debt instrument” is classified as at the FYTOC! if both of the following criteria are met;

8. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling the
financial assets, and

B, The asset's contraciual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC category are measured Inltially as well as at each reporting date at
fair vahze. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCL However, the Company recagnizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and fareign exchange gain or 1025 in the siatement of profit and Ioss. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumuiative gain or loss previously recognised In QCH s reclassified from the eguity 1o
statement of profit and loss. Interest samed whitst holding FYTOC! detyt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR methed. The Company has not designated any financial asset as at FYTOCL,

Debt instrument at FYTPL

FVTRL i= a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not mest the criteria for
categerisation as at ameortised cost or as FWTQC, is classified as at FVTPL.
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In additlon, the Company may elect 10 designate a debi Instrument, which otherwise meets amonised cost
or FVTOCH criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed anly if doing so reduces or sliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘sccounting mismateh'),

Debt instruments Inclided within the FYTPL categorny are measured at falr value with all changes recognised in the
statement of profit and loss,

Equity investments

All equity investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are teld for
tracing and contingent cansideration recognised by an acguirer in @ business comblnation to which Ind A3 103
Business Combinations applies are classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity Instrumenis, the Company may
make an imevocable election to present in OC) subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such
election an an (nstrument by- Instrument basis, The classification s made on initial recognition and is irevocable,

It the Campany decides to elasslly an equity instrument as at FYTOCH, then all fair value changes on the Instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized In the Q1 There is no recycling of the amounts from OC1 to statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of Investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative nain o loss within
BtyLily.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Investment In equity shares, compulsarly convertible debentures ((CCEY and compulsarily convertible preference
shares of subsidiegrles, assoclates and Joint ventures have been meossured ot cost fess Imgalrment allowance, IF

ary,

De-recognition

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a pan of a financlal asset or part of Company's similar financial assets) is
primanily derecognised {Le, removed lfom the Company's balance sheet) wher:

- The rlghts to recelve cash fiows from the assel have explred, or

The Company has transferred its rlghls to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an ebligation to
gy the received cash flows in full without materdal delay 1o a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement,
and either:

a.  the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, ar

b, The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but
has ransferred controd of the asset.

When the Company has transferred s dghts to recelve cash flows from an asset ar has entered into o pass-
through amangement, it evaluates If and towhat extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When
It has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the assel, the Company confinues to recognise the transferred assel to the extent of the Company's confinuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liabllity. The transfered asset:-and the
associated lability ste measured on 4 basls that reflects the fights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing Invalvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amouni of consideration that the Company could be

required (o repay.

Impalrment of financial assets
In" accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

-recognition of impairment loss on the foliowing financial assets and credit risk exposira!

8. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and ‘are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, debt securitics,
deposits, rade receivables and bank balance:

b,  Financiol assets that are debt instruments and-are measured as-at BVTOCH
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. Trade. receivables or any confractual right to recelve cash or another financial asset that result from
transactlons thal are within the scope of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with cusiomers.

d.  Loan camimitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

&,  Financial guarantee contracts which ans not measurad as at FVTPL,

The Company follaves ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impalrment loss allowance on trade receivables oo
contract assets. The applicaton of simplified approach dogs not require-the Company: to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises iImpairment loss: ollowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition,

Fot tecognitian of impalrment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant ingrease in the credit rsk since inltlal recognition, i credit sk has not
Inereased significanthy, 12-month ECL is ised to provide for impairment less. However, if credit risk has Increased
significantly, Hfetime ECL 15 used. ¥ In & subsequent perled, credit quality of the instrument Improves such that
there ls ne langer a sigaificant increase in credit sk since initial recognition, then the entity revets to @eognising
impairment loss aliowancs based on 12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expacted credit losses resulting from oll possible default events over the expected life of a
fingncial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulls from default events that are.
passibla within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL |z the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Campany In accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfallis), discounted at the original
EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity ls required to conslder)

. Al contractuat terms of the financlal instrument (Including prepayment. extension. call and similar options)
avar the expected life of the Mnancial nstiument. Hewever, (0 rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrumsnt cannot be estimated reliably, then the enfity is requirad to use the remaining contractusl
term of the financial Instrument.

. Trade receivables do not camy any interest and are stated at ther nominal value as reduced by appropnste
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverabie amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivebles balance and historical experience, Individual trede receivables are wrilten off when
management deems them not to be collectible

ECL impairment loss allowance (o reversal) recognised during the period Is recognised as income ( expense In
the statement of profit and lass, This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses” in the statement of profit
and loss, The balance shoet presentation for vanous financlal instruments s described below:

- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL Is presented as an
allowance, Le:, 09 an integral part of the measurement ol those assels in the balance shegt. The allawance
reduces the net canying amount. Until the assel meets write-ofl criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

. Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet,
b as o liability.

. Dbt instruments measured at FYTOCE Since financlel assets are atready refiected at falr value, impalmment
allowance js net further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount |s presented as ‘accumulatad impalrment
amount' in the OLC1

For assessing Increéase In cradlt rlsk and Impaliment |oss, the Company comblnes financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant Increases in credit risk to be |dentiflied on a:timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financlal labilities are classified at FYTPL, at fair value through other equity, loans and
borrowings,; payables, or as derlvatives designated as hedglng instruments in an effective hedge, as approgriate.
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The resultant gain or loss arising on extingulshment of the existing debt with restructured debt and falr value of
financial instrurments issued to Lenders as per the terms of Resalutlan plan shall be recognised 10 other eguity.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial iabilities depends on thelr classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and designated upon initial recogrition as
al BVTPL, Financial liabllitles are classified as held for trading Il they are incurred for the purpase of repurchasing
ir the naar tarm. This calegory also includes dedvative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
nol designated as hedging Instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separaled embedded
derivatives are aiso classified as held lor trading unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments.

Gains or losses an liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Financial liabilities. designated upon initial recognition at FWTPL are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criterda in ind A5 108-are satisfied, For linbilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains ¢
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are récognized in OCI These gains/ iosses are not subsequently
transferrad to statement of profit and loss. Howsaver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, The
Company has nol designated any financial liability at FWTPL,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method, Amorised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium an acguisition and
fees or costs that are an intearal part of the EIR. Gains and lasses are recognised In statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amoisation process, The EIR amortisation is
included as financa costs in the siatement of profit and loss. This calegory generally appliss 1o borrowings,

De-recognition

A financial llability is derecognised when the obligation uneler the liability 1 gischorged or cancelied or explies,
When on existing financlal liability 2 replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing llabdity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as the de
recagnition of the orlginal lisbility and the recognition of a new liability, The difference n the respactive carrying
amounts is recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded dorlvative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also Includes 8 non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined Instrument vary Ina way simbar to
g standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes-some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract ta be moadified sccording to a speclfied interest rate, financial Instrument price; commodity
price. forgign exchange rate. index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the
case of a non-financial variobie that the variable is not gpecific toa party to the Contract

Reassessment only occurs If there s either a change in tho terms of the contract that:significantly modifies the
cash fiows that would otherwise be reguired or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
statement of profit and loss.

If thie. hybrid contract contains a host that 1s a financeal asset within the scope of ind AS 105, the Company does not
sgparate embedded dernvatlves. Rather, i applies the classification requirements contained in Ing A5 109 1o the
entire fylarid contra<t. Denvatlves embedded In all ather nost contracts are accounted for as separate dervatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not hetd for trading or designated at FYTPL These embedded denvatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss, unless designated as
effective hedging instruments.
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company delermines classification of financial assets and liabililies on initial recognition. After initial
recogrition, no reclassilicatton k& made for linancial assets which ae egquity instruments and financial labilities.
Fot financial assets which are debt Instruments, a reclassification is made only If 1thade 15 a change In the business
maodel for managing those assets, Changes to the business model are expeocted 1o be Infrequent. The Company's
senior management determines change in the business model as & result of exiernal or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are svident to extemal parties. A changs in the business
model oocdrs when the Company either begins of ceases to perform an activity that [s significant toits operations.
If the Company reclassifies financlal azsets, it applles the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification
date which ks the first day of the Immediately next reporting period fallowing the change In business model,
The Company does not restete any previously recognised gains, losses {(Including Impalment gains or losses) or
Imterest,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financlal assels and financlal Habliltles are offset and the nel amaunt s reporied in the balance sheet if there s a
currantly enforccable legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and thera |5 an intention o settle on & net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

Eamings per share

Basic samings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit! (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributaisle taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The wetghted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the
year are adjusted for any bonus shares Issued dunng the year and also after the baiance sheet date but before the
date the financial statements are appmved by the board of directors,

Diluted sarnings per share are calculated by dviding the net profit! (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (a5 adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income, net of alirbutable taxes)
by the weighted average number of shares considered for detiving basic eamings per shsre and the weighted
mvarage namber of equity shares which could have been outstanding on 9sue / conversion of ol dilutive potential
equity shares

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as approgriate.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares besn issued at fair
value, Dilistive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issusd al a
later date.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents i the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and In hand and short-term deposits with
an ariginal maturity of three months or less, which are sulject to an insignificent risk of changes:in value.

Contfingent liabilities:and contingent assets

A cantingent labllity is.a possible abligation that arlses from past events and whose existence will be confiimed
only by the occurmence of non-occunmence of ane or mare uncortain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity or 8 present obligation that arises from past evenis but is not recognised because It is not probable that
an outfiow of resource embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the ohilgation or the amaunt of the
obligation cannol be measured with sufficient reliabiiity

The Company does nol recognise 3 contingent fability and eontingen assets but diseloses |t as per lnd AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in the financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of rescurces eambodying aconomic benafit is remote

2.4. Other accounting pelicies

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that i} the Company
will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (I} the grant [ subsidy will be recejued,

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it 1s recognised as income on a aystematic basis in the statement
of profit and loss over the pericds necessary to maetch them with the releted costs, which they are Intended 1o

229



SUZLON Annual Report 2023-24

FUPAN Rty e (L e

compensate. Where the grant relates o an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to Income. in
equal amounis over the expected uselul life of the related assel

When the Company recelves grants of non-monetary assets, the asset-and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful e in 5 pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying aszet Lo, by equal annual Instalments. Whan loans of simitar assistance are provided by governmeants
or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable markel rate, the effect of this fevourable
mterest is regarded as 8 government grant. The loan or-assistance 15 initiatly recognised and measured at fair
wvalue and the government grant is-measured as the differance between the initial carrying vaiue of the loan and
the proceeds receved. The loan is subzequently messured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial
liabiliies,

b. Mon-currant nssets hele for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilites are classitied as "held for sake” if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally thiough o sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale Is considered high probabie to be concluded within T2 months from the balance sheet date

Such non-current assels or gdlsposal groups are measured at the lower of thelr carrylng amownt and fair value less
costs to sell Mon-current assets including those that are part of a disposal group held for sale are not depreciated
or amartised while they are clsssified as held for sale,

e. Dervative finaneial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subseguent measurement

The Company uses denvative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts fo hedge its forewn
currency risks. Such dervative financial instruments are initially recognised at far value on the date on which
8 dervvatlve contract is entered inte and ane subsegquently re-measured at falr walue, Derivatives are carrled as
financlal assets when the fair value is positive and as financial Habliities whaen the falr value s negative, The
purchase contracts that mest the definition of & derivative under Ind A5 109 are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss

Commadity contiacts that are entered nla and continue 1o be hedd for the puipose of the receipt of dellvary of a
non-financial lem in sccordance with the Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held &l
£ost

Any gainzs of lpsses ansing from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flew hedges, which is recognised in OCland later reclassified to profit or less when
the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsaquantly
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset of non-inancial liablity.

Faor the purpose of hedge accounting, hedaes are classified as;

. Fair value hedges when hadging the exposure to changes in the fair value af o recagnised asset or liabitity
ar an unrecognised firm commitment,

s Cash fiow hedges when hedging the exposure to vankabifity in cash flows that iz either attibutable to 4
particular sk associnted with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foregn currency risk in-an unrecognised firm commitment,

Hadges of 8 net investment In a foreign operation,

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formilly designates and decuments the hedge ralationship
to which the Company wishes 1o apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strateqy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation Includes the Company's nsk management oblective and strategy for
undertaking hadge, the hedaing / econamic relationshio, the hedged item or kransaction, the patura of the riak
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will azsess the effectivensss of changes in the hedging instrument’s
fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes In the hedged ibem's fair vaiue or cash flows attributable 10 the
hedged rick. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective In achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows and are assessed on ah ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial re poriing penods for which they were designated.
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Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described befow:

I Fair valus hedges

The change In the falr value of a hedging Instrument s recagnised n the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs, The change In the falr value of the hedged item atributable to the risk hedged s recorded as
part of the carrying valus of the hedged item and is also recognised In the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs.

For talr value hedges relating to items carried at amortized cost, any adjustment to carrying value s amarntized
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may Begin
as soan as an adjustment exists and no Iater than whan the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes
in Its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged itam is derecognized, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediatsly In profit or loss.
When an unrecognised firm commitment s designated as 8 hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change
in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged nsk 15 recegnised as an asset or liability
with a comespending gain or loss recegnised in statement of profit and loss.

iIl. Cash flow hedges

The effectve portton of the galn or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised In ©Cl In the cash flow
hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

The Campany vses farward currency cantracts as hedges of its expogdie (6 forgign curreney sk in forecast
transactiens and firm commitments, as well ac forward commaedity contracts for ils exposune tovolallity in the
commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to forelgn currency contracts is recognised in finance costs
and the ineffective portion refating to commaodity contracis is recognised in finance NCoMe or expenses

Amounts recognized as OClare transfered to statement of prafit and loss when the hedged financial income
al inancial expense is recognlsed ar when a forecast sole occus,

When the hedged ltem s the cost of @ non-financial asset or non-financial liabillty, the amounts recagnised
g5 OC! are transfemad to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability,

If the hedging Instrument expires or |5 sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rallover (as part
aof the hedging strategy}, or if Its designation as a hedge is revoked, orwhen the hedge no longer meets the
eriterla for hedoe accounting, any cumulative galn or loss previously recognised in OC! remalns seporately in
aquity until the forecast transaclion occurs or the forgign currency firm commitmeant is met

jii. ~Foreign exchange forward contract

While the Company entered into other fargign exchange forwards contract with the Intention of reducing the
forelgn exchange risk of expected sales. and purchases, these othar contracts are not designated in hedge
relationships and are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

2.5, Climate-related matters

The Company considers climate-related mattars in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This Bssessment
includes a wide range of possible impacis on the Company due to both physical and transition nsks. Even though the
Company belleves ts business model and products will still be viable after the transition to a low-carbon ecanamy,
climate-related mallers increase the unceralnty In estimates and assumptlons dnderpinning several items in the
financtal statements. Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant Impact on measurement,
the Company is tlosely monitaring relevant changes and developmeants, such as new climate-related legislation. The
items and considerations that are most directly impacted by climate-related maiters are

a. Useful life of property, plant and equipment: When reviewing the residual values and expected useful lives of
assets, the Company considers climate-related leglsiation and regulatlons that may restrict the use of assets o
require significant capital expenditures.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets: The valug-in-ise may be Impacted in several different ways by transition

risk In particutar, such as cimate-related legislation and regulations and changes in demand for the Company’s
progucts. The Company considered expectations for increased costs of emissions, increased demand for goods:
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soid by the Company's WTG equipment CGL and cost increases due ta stricter recycling requirements in the cash-
flow Torecasts in assessing value-in-use amounis,

c.  Fair value measurement: For revalued office properties, the Group considers the effect of physical and transition
risks and whether investors would consider those risks In their valuation. The group baliewes iL = not curmenthy
exposed to severe physical risks, but believes that investors, to some extent, would consider impacts of transtion
risks in their valuation, such as increasing reguirements for energy efficiency of buildings dus to climate-related
legislation and regulations as well as tenants’ increasing demands for low-emission buildings.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial ststements reguires managemeant to moke judgemeants, astimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses; assets and llabilities, and the accomparying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilitles, Uncenainty about theses assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes thal require
s material adjustment io the carrying amounl al assets ar llabliitles affected |n future periods,

31 Significant jJudgements in applying the Company’s accounting policy

inthe process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financlal statements:

a.  Operating lease cammitments - Company as a lassol

The Company has entered Into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the armangements, such as the lease tem
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial propery and the fair value of the asset, that
It retains all the:significant risks and rewards of ownership of these preperties and accounts Tor the contracts as
operating leases.

b. Revenue from contracts with custemers

The Company apglied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and
timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

«  Identifying performance obligations

The Company supples WTGE that are either sold separately or bundied together with project execution
activitios 1o customerns.

The Company determined thiat bath the sopply of WTGs and project execution activities can be performad
distinctly on a stand-alone basis which indicates that the customer can henefit from respective performance
abligations an their own, The Company also determined that the promises to supply the WTG and execute
projects are distinet within the context of the contract and are not Inputs to a combined itam in the contract.
Further, the WTG supply and project execution activities are not highly interdependeant or highly interrelated,
as the Company would be able to supply WTGs wherein the project execution activities can be performed
by customers directly. Further, the Company uses output methed for measuring the pregress of pedormance
abllgation as it represents a faithiul depiction of the transfer of ootds or saivices,

. Determining method to estimate varinble consideration and assessing the constraint
Contracts for the supply of WTGs and project execution activifies include a right for peralty in case of delayed
dellvery or commissioning and compensation for performance shortfall expected in future over the life of
the guarantes assured that give rse to varable consideration. In estimating the vanable consideration, the
Company considers the dynamics of each contract and the factors relevant o that sale on a case-to-case
basls.

Before including amy amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company consliders
whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained, The Company determined that the estimates
of variakle consideration are not constrained based on 5 historical experience, business forecast and the
current ecanomic conditiens. In addition, the uncertalinty on the varlable consideration will be resalved within
a shorl Ume rame.

3.2 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reperting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a materal adiustment 1o the carylng amounts of assets and lakkitlies within the next
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financial year, are described below, Uncertainty about these assumplion and estimates could result in outcomes that
reguire a materdal adjustment to the camying amount of assets or fiabiiities sffected In future periods,

a.  Allewance for trade recelvables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nomal value as reduced by appropriate allowance
for expected credit lass ["ECL"). The Company recognisés impairment loss dllowanee based on manbgement
Judgment and the financlal pasition of customers. For recognition of impairment loss, the Company determines
that whether thera has besn a sigaificant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, The camying valus of
allowance for credit Impalrment-and ECL 15 ® 83.93 Crore as at March 31, 2024 (previous year: T 83,91 Crore), refer
Mote 10,2,

b. Taxes

Defemed tax assats are recognised for atl unused tax losses to the cxtent that it is prebable that taxable profit will
he available against which the losses can be utilised, Significent mansgemen! judgemen isrequired to delermine
the amount of deferred 1ax assets that can be recognised, bosed upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits, future tax planning strategles. The Company has unabsorbed depreciation, business lgsses and
capital logses details of which are given in Note 333,

. Defined benefit plans (aratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benelit grafuity plan and the present value of the grstuily obligation are determined
using actuarlal valuationa. An actuasrial valuation involves making verlous assumptions that may differ from actual
develapments In the fulure, These: include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and-
moaality rates. Due to the complexitles involved in the valuation and [is long-term nature, & defined benefit
obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. Assumptions are reviewsed at each reperting date

Thie parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for pians
opereted, the management considers the interest retes of government bonds In curencies consistent with the
currancias of the post-employment benafit obligation. The estimates of future salary InCrease consldear the inflatan,
seniarity, promation and other relevant factors,

Further detalls about gratuity chligations are given in Nate 36

d. Fair value measurement of financial Instruments

When the fair values of financlal assets and financlal liabilities recorded in the talance sheet canngt be measured
hased an guated prices in active markels, their falr value is measured psing valuation technigues including the
Discounted cash flow ("DCF") model, The inputs to these models are token from obsemvable markets wherne
possibie, but where this is not teasible, 5 degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgemants
Inclede considerations of INputs such as guidity risk, cradit sk and volatility, Changes in assumptions sbout thesa
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer Mote 43 for further disclosures.

e. Imtangible asseis under development

The Company capltalises Intanglble sssets under development for a project In accordance with the accourting
policy, Initial capitafisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic
feasibiity is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached & defined milestonz according
to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitallsed, management makes
assumptions regarding the expected fulure cash genemtlon of the project, discount rates to be applied and the
expected perlod of benefits. The carrying value of Intangible assets under development has been disclosed |n
Mote 8

{. Property, plant and equipment
Refar Note 2.3 (g) for the estimated useful life and Note 4 for carmying value of property. plant and eguipment

g. Share-based payments

The Company initlally measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using & binomial model
to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment fransactions
requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which s dependent on the terms and conditions
of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropiiate Inpats to the valuation moadel
incheding the expected life of the share option, valatitity and dividend yisld and making assumptions about them.
The assumptions and madels used for estimating fair value for share-based payment ransoctions are disclosed in
Mote 37,
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5. Capital work-in-pregress (CWIP)

CWIP as at March 31, 2024 stood st ¥ 3.37 Crore {previous year: T 087 Crore), which primarily inchides office building and

piant-and machinary under construction / Instatlation.

51 Movement of CWIP during the year:

e 3 3023

Opening balance 087 763
Adcitlons during the vear 10082 265
Capitalized duning the year 3833 11641
Closing balance 337 0.87
5.2 CWIP ageing schadule

<1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yoars >3 years Total
As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress 337 - - - 337
Projects tempaorarily suspended - - - -
Total 3.37 - - - 337
As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress a7 - - - o087
Projects tempaorarily suspended
Total 0.87 - - - 0.B7

There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded s cost compared to its original plan during the
financial year 2023-24. The expected completion schedule for amounts lying in CWIP as at the year-end is within 11 2

WEES,

6. Other intangible assets

Designs and SAP and other

drawings softwaro Towl
Gross block
Balance as of April 1. 2023 T19.33 33.44 BT
Additions 3789 0ra 3878
Translatlons adjustmeant . 008 008
Deductions adiustments (D53} [ 0.53)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 756.79 34.34 75110
Balance as of April 1, 2022 82756 3392 861.48
Addifions 3305 031 3348
Translations adjustment - 0B1 [e=1]
Deductions) adjustments (14138} 140} {14278}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 71933 3344 8277
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as of April 1, 2023 666.49 33.38 689,87
Amortlsatian 47.25 280 45,05
Tranulations adjustirent - Q07 o.ar
Deductionsy adjustmeants (0,53} - (53
Balance as at March 31, 2024 70321 3425 7346
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Designs and SAP and other

drawings software Total
Balanice as of April 1, 2022 Fo4a18 3260 73678
Amaortisation 9368 162 95,30
Translations adjustment - 056 D56
Deductions! adjustmanis (14137} [1.40) {127
Balance as at March 31, 2023 656.49 33.38 G89.87
Net block as at March 31, 2024 5358 0.08 5364
Met block as at March 31, 2023 6284 o.06 62,90

Motes:-
(@) Designs and drawings represent intemally generated inangible asset

()  The transtation adjustment is the difference resulting from translating foteign currency to Indian currency al clasing
exchange rate,

7. Investment properties
The Company’s investment propertles conslal of three commercial properties given on lease.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Gross block

Opening balance 5384 5344
Addltions -

Deduction / adjusimeants (367 NE
Closing balance (a) 4877 53.44
Accumulated depreciation

Dpening balance 2923 2458
Ceprociation 162 165
Deduciion | adjustmeants £.59) 1=
Closing balance (b) 2276 24.23
Met block [a-b) 27.01 29.21

71 Infarmation regarding income and expenditure of investment properties:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rental Ineame derved from investment proparties 1167 288
Chrect operating expenses (including repairs and mainlerance] [LE8] (151}
Daprociailon {1LE2) [LE5)
Profit bafore indirect expenses 846 572

7.2 Fair valua and valuation techniques:

Az at March 3_-1, 2024 and March 31, 2023 the fair value of the investment properties were 7 64 80 Crore and T 6574
Crore respectively, The falrvaluation is derived by manegement internally on the basis of Discounted Cash Fiow ["DCFT)
method. Description of key Inpuls to valuation on investment properties is as below,

Investment property  Significant unobservable inputs Percentage
areh 31,7023
Gode) Millennium Fant growth pa. 5% 5%
Condaminium Rent growth p.a. [for terminal valug) 2% 2%
Long term vacancy rofe O 0%
Long term vacancy rate (for terminal values) 1] Ml
Discount rate 14.03% A2
Agua Lounge Rent growth pao. 5% 5%
Oine Earth Reant growth pa. (for terminal value) i 2%
Long term vacancy rate 1059 0%
Long term vacancy rate (for terminal value) T T
DHscount rats 1M.03% 10.42%
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Investment property  Significant unobservable Inputs Parcentage
warch 3, 2023
Sun Lounge Rant growlh p.a 5% 5%
Ome Earth Rent grewth paa. (for terminal value) o 2%
Long berm vacancy rate 0% 105
Lang term vacancy rate ifor lermina! value) . Lt
Discaurt rate 14.03% 10.82%

Under the DCF method, falr value I estimated using assumptlens regarding the benefits and llabilitles of ownership
owver the investment property life including an exil or lerminal value, This method involves the projection of a series of
cash fiows on a real property interest To this projected cash flow series, 8 market-denved disCoonl rate is applied o
ectablish the present value of the income stream associated with the Invectment property.

8. Intangible assets under development (LAUD)

Intangitle assets under development as at March 31, 2024 stood at ¥ 251 Crore (previous year © 243 Crorg), which primariby

Includes designs and drawings under devalopragnt.

B Movement of lAUD during the year:

Opeaning balance
Adeitioss duripg the year
Capitalized during the vear
Closing balance

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3.43 4.42

Al 3236

{37.99) (3315)

el 343

8.2 1AUD lgnlng_ schedule

<1 yaar 1-2 yoars 2-3 yours >3 mum

As at March 31, 2024

Projects in progress 3.5 8=
Projects temporarily suspended - = - = -
Total is1 - - - 51
As at March 31, 2023

Prajects in progress 343 343
Projects temporarnly suspended - - -

Total 343 - - - 343

There are no projects whose completion is overdue or ias sexceeded its cost compared to its original plan during the

financial year 2023-24,

9. Investments
Mon-current

81 Investments in equity instrument in an associate, at cost (Ungquoted)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Suzlen Enengy (Tianjin) Limited, China 8833 5833
Less: impairment allowance {E8.33) {5833
Total .
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments in an associate 58.33 58.33
Aggroegate Impalrment allowanee for Investments In an associate measurad (58.33) {(58.33)

at cost
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9.2 Investments in subsidiaries {Unguoted)

| e 21,2014 JTVEETRTED

a, In equity instrument of Indion subsidiaries, ot cost

|, 20 [previous yean 20) equity shares-of T 10 sach fulty paid of Q.00 0.00°
‘Woradvinayiak Renewanbles Limited

I 20 {previous year: 20) equity shares of T 10 sach fulty paid of Manas Q.00 0.00"
Renewsables Limitad

i, 20 [previous yvearn 20)egquity shaces of T10 each fulty poid of 0.00° 0,00
Wakratunda Renewables Limited

v 2931254 [previous year 29.371,254) aquity shares of £ 10 sach Eng1. 50 85150
fully paid of Suzion Global Senvices Limited {5651

v 375030 (previous yoar: 375 020) equity shares of T 10 each fully 3750 I150
pald of Vignohana Renewables Limited

vi. 20 [previous year: 20} equity shares of .10 each fully paid:-of Sifocce o0e Q.oo*
Renewables Limited

Wil 72482079 (previous year T84,920.791) equity shares of § W each 10840, 85 1.044.08
Tully piaid of SE Forge Limitad
Less: Impairment alleveance [754.23) {754.23)

wiil. 125420 Iprevious year: 125,420) eguity shares of 10 sach fully paid 1254 1254
of SWE Wind Praject Services Limited
Less: Impairment allowance {257} 157

% B2B20 (previous year §2,820) equity shares of T 10 each fully pald 6,28 528
af Suryodaya Renewnabies Limited
Less: impairment allowance (B2t {0.25)

% ¥ {previcus year 1) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid of Suyash oo D00
Renawables Limitad

Al W previcus yoar 14) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid of Gale 000" 000
Green Urja Limited

Ak 250420 (previous year 260.420) equity shares of T 10 each fully 2504 2504
pald of SWE Renewabiles Limited
Less: Impairment allowance {LD5) {1.05)

Total 133172 133172

b. inequity instrument of overseas subsidiaries. at cost

. 542312 (praviows vear 54237121 equity shares of Eure 10 each i3 a2
fully paid of AE Rotar Hoiding BV, The Metharlands
Less: Impalment allowance [418.2Y [418.21)

ii. 37790592 [previcus year 4401315 657} equity shares of Suzlon 71,29 539508
Enargy Limited, Mauritiue {refer Mote 32 b below)
Less: |mpairment allowance ﬁ'LB'BI (B,396,08)

i, Suzlon Wind Enecgy Equlpment Trading (Shamghai) Co. Limiteag, 100 100
China
Less: Impairment allowance 11019 ()

Total .

t. in preference shares of Indian subsidiares, at FVTPL

o AG0G000 [previous year: LOOO,000 8% cumulative rederemable 2955 2732
preference shares of T 100 each fully paid of Suzlon Global Sarvices
Limited (5G5S

. 10,000 {previgus yvear: 10,0001 non-cumulalive redeemahble 0an 00
preference shares aof 3100 each fully paid of SGSL

Tatal 2966 2742

238



'fnl

Corporate Qwerdiow Stabutory Reporis

» Financial Statemants

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

d. In preference shares of overseas subsidiarles, at FVTPL

4,698 567 [previous year Mil) 10% non-cumulative redesmabls g4.85 -

preference shores of MUR 100 aach fully pald of Suzlon Energy Limited

Mauritits [refer Note 32 b belaw)

Less: Impairment alliowance [B4. 86

Total - -
2. in CCD of Indian subsidiary, at amortised cost

4,000,000 {previgus year, 4,000,000 9% compulsary converibls 38508 394.74

debentures of ¥ 1,000 each fully paig of SGSL

Total 395.06 394.74

8,3 Other investments, at FVTPL
e 203

g Imvestments in government securiies 0m [eRE))
b 7550 {previous yesr. 7,550} 2quity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid of 0m [eRE))

Saraswal Co-operstive Bank Limited
& 30 [pravious year 30] equlty shares of ¥ 10 of Godre) Millennium i T oo
Conclaminium

Total 0.02 0.02

Total Investments 1.756.46 1,753.90

Aggregate amount of ungquoted investments (cost) 3.084.74 9,323.97

Aggrogate impairment allowance (1.341.27) {7,580.60)

9.4 The fair values of the investments in ungquoted eguity shares have been estimated using & DCF model. The valuation
requires management to make certaln assumptions abaut the meds! Inputs, iIncluding forecast cash flows, discolnt rate,
credit risk and volatifity, The probabilities of the varlous estimates within the range can be reasonably gssessed and are

used In management's estimats of falr value fer these unguoted egulty investmenls,
‘Less than T 001 Crove,

Trade recelvables

warch 31,2023
Mon-current
Unsecured, considerad daoubtful
Cradit impoirad T2.58 a3
Less: Allowarice for cradit impairment 74.58] (78.31)
Total
Current
Unsecured, considerad good 1126:58 55192
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss [11.35) 560
Total 11663 546.32

MNo trade or other recelvable are due from directors or other officers of the Company eitherseverally or fointly with any other
persan, nor any rade or other receivables are due from firms or prvale companies respectively in which any director iz a

partner, a director or a memoer.

Trade receivables are disclosed at amonized cost Trode recelvables are nons-interest bearing and are generally on teims as

per contractual milestone,
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101 Ageing schedule for trade receivables

Currant Dutstanding from due date aof payment
but not <& months 6B months  1-2years 2-3years >3 years
due -1 year

As at March 31, 2024 o
Undisputed trade recelvables

Consldared good * 85066 12573 60.96 1751 48.96 110382

Cradit impaired = 0.34 133 247 422 62,89 7125
Drisputed trade receivables

Considered good - 078 om 003 o007 2228 2347

Cradit impaired - 132 1232
Gross trade recelvables 85178 12707 63.48 21.80 135.45 1199.56
Iﬁ:;v:;;;u for credit Impalrment - - T . - (5393
and sxpected credii loss
Tatal 111563
As st March 31, 2023
Undisputed trade receivables

Contidered good - 36330 336 50.55 Bi2 B5.36 52669

Credit Impaired - .08 0.36 1.05 599 5352 T4
Disputed traode receivables

Considersd good . 152 015 Q29 1.20 2207 2523

Cradn impaired . . - . . 17 147
Gross trade recelvables 384,80 31.87 5193 1334 i78.22 630.23
Allowsance for credit Impairmenit - - - - - - 183.91)
and expected credil loss
Tatal . - - - - - 546,32

10.2 Movement in allowance for credit impairment and expected credit loss is as undern:

March 31,2033

Balance as at the baginning of the year 8391 4828
Add: impalrmant / {reversal) during the vear, net 0.02 5437
Balance as ot the end of the year 3393 B3.91

10.3 Transactions with struck off companies: NI (pravious year NI,

11. Loans

March 31,2023
Mon-current
Intercorparate deposits to related parties
Unsacuied, considerad good 57907 124442
Credit impaired BE2.E5 Ti8.82
Less: Allowance for credit impaited (8285} [F18.82]
Tatal 979.07 1,244,432
Current
Unzacured, considersd good
Intef-corpardte deposits o related partlies ' 0.0z
Loans te emplayees 25 0.53
Tatal 0.25 051

11 Loans to related parties that are repayable on demand are T Nil (previous year: T 0002 Crore which is 3.28% of total
ioans).
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1.2 Loans to related partles are repayable Hil June 30, 2030 and carry interest rate @ 10% per annum, The subsldiaries has
an option to make early prepayment of the loans during the term,

12. Other financial assets

Varen 31,2023
Morn-current
Bank balances |refor Mote 8 balow] F1488 3268
Security depaosits
Unsecurad, considered good { L) 17.81
Unzecured, constderad doubiful 2.3 Q.00
Less: Allowance for goubtful depasits {31 (0.00)"

1379 78

Bavances recoverable in cash
Unsecured, considered dauful 31747 505368
Less: Allswance for doubiful advances ([ANTAT) (505368
Other assets {refer Note b balow) 5290 5290
Total 841,67 383.39
Current
Security depashs (unsecured, cansidered good) 300 1.06
Interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances 1535 340
Advances recaverable in cash {considered good) 2080 2483
MMherassets refer Note b below) 3700 4621
Total 7615 75.50

* Less Hav § 0.01 Crome

a.  Bank balances mainly represents magin money deposils, which are subject to flist charge towards non-fund based
facilities from Lenders,

b,  Otherassets primarily include $ 6773 Crore (previous year: 72.35 Crore) towards sxpenditure incurred by Company on
development of infrastructure facilities for power evacuation arrangements as per authonsation of the Siate Electricity
Board ['SER) ¢ Nodal agencies In Maharashtra ang Tamil Madw. The expenditure s teimbursed, on agreed terms, by the
SEBY Nedal agencies. In cerlain cases, the Company had received centributlon towards power evacuation Infrastriacture
from customers Im the ordinary course of business, The cost Incurred towards development of infrastructure facility s
reduced by the relmbursements recelved from SEB/ Modal agencles and the nel amount is shown as 'Infrastruclure
Development Asset’ under other linancial assets. During the year, the Company had provided for Nil {previous year:
¥ 1.26 Crore} based on ECL at the reporting date.

All the financial assets are disclossd at amortised cost.

13. Other assets

[ rarcn 31,2020 [ CREETRTOR
MNon-current

Capital advances (unsecured, considered good) 2208 0.24
Advances recoverable in kind junsecured, considered goad)

Advances to related parties - 8114
Advances recoverable in kind {unsecured, considerea doubtfily

Advances to others 006 027
Lass: Allowance o doubtful pgvances (On0) {027
Advance Income tax (net of provisions) 1042 849
Prepaid expenses 9537 044
Total 4213 71.31
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March 31, 2024

March 31. 2022

Currgnt
Advances recovarable in kind {unsecured, considered good)

Advances to related parties 9075

Advances to others 7903 14340
Advances 1o employess 1.26 085
Prepald expanses 59.54 1287
Balances with government ! statulory authorlties 186,32 114,14
Total 306,25 363.01
Inventorles (valued at lower of cost and net realisable valueg)

e 31702

Raw materials |including goods in transit of ¥ 14786 Crore (previous year T 5624 BG4 37 28248
Craeel|
Finished goods. semi-finished goods and wark-in-progress #0205 35485
Slores and spares 123.59 nL 74
Land and leasze rights 144 0.25
Total 118845 T80.42

Cash and cash equivalents

n. Cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balances with banks BERB] 20068
Cash gn hand oS 005
85.86 29063
b.  Bank balance other than {a} above 17827
Total 26313 29063
There are na restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents al the end of the financial year and previcus year
16. Assets held for sale
Investment type Investments in March 31, March 31, 2023
Equity shares and Aafok Solarfarms Limited - 463
compuisonly convertibls AbhaSolararms Limited 3 A64
Qedentures [refar Note 32.6). 1 ie cnbn Ranewabies Liniiksd . 827
Shrayas Sofarfarms Limited - 927
Equity shires Surlon Energy A5, Denmark 2334
Lisss: Impalimant dllewancs (23.24)
Tarllo Holdings BV jrefor Note 42.1) 6132
Less;: Impalrment allowance [B1.32)
Total assets held for sale - 27a
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17. Equity share capital

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised shares
55,00,00,00,000 (previous year 55,00,00,00,000) saulty shares of T 2 each 1.000.00 ",000.00
Issued shares
13,62 34, 26136 (previous year 12,0898 41,003) equity shares of T 2 each fully 2724859 241797
paid-up
81,584,063 {previois year: 40,21.78,057) =guity shares of § 2 each partly pald-up 164 844
1 each.

2721633 2.498.41
Subscribed shares
12,6044 94159 (previous year: 12,07.08.09,026) squity shares of T 2 each fully 2080 241418
pad-up
81.94,063 previous vear: 40,178,057 eguity shares of T 2 each partly paid-up 164 2044
T 1each

273254 449462
Pald-up shares
Fully paid-up shares
13.60,44,94189 (previous year, 124.0709.00,026) eguity shares of T2 each fully 272020 20418
pald-up
Partly paid-up shares
81,94 063 (previous vear 40,21.78,057) equity shares of T 2'each partly pald-up bR2 40,22
¥ 1each,

23172 2.454.40

171 Reconciliation of the equity shares:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mumber of ! Crore I Mumber of ¥ Crore
shares ([Crore) shores (Crore)

Opening balance 12475 245440 92174 1.243.49
besued during the year
-To Lenders on conversian of QCD - - 5715 14,29
= 00 comversion of bonds 2842 565,84
- Rights issue [refer Note 17.7) - 39.40 24000 43278
< Qualifted Insttutlonal Macement (Note 17.6) H3ge 22192
Total 113.96 26732 32557 61091
Closing balance 1,361.27 2TNT2 1,247 2.454.40

17.2 Terms/! rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having a par value of T 2 sach. The veting rights of the shareholders
shall be in proportion to their shares In the pald-up equity share capital of the Company i.e. each holder of fully paid-up
equity share = entiled to.one vote per share and 2ach holder of portly pald-up equity share 1s entitfed 1o half 2 vote par
share,

The Company decfares and pays dividends in Indian rupess ). The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of igudation of the Company, the holder of eguity shares will be entitled to recene remalning assets of
the Company, after distnbution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity
shares held by the sharehalders

During the year, Dillp Shanghi and Associstes (the “Invesior Group®) who had entered into 8 Shareholder Agreament
dated February 13, 201585 amended by an Amendment Agreement dated December 11, 2015 and further amended
by the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dated February 28, 2020 (“Agresment”) with the Promoters
! Pramoler Group of the Company and the Company, have lermingled the Agreament wlel Septembes 26, 2023 In
accordance with the terms of the Agreement
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17.3 Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought
back during the period of five years Iimmediately preceding the reporting date:

Mil curing the pericd of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

. Securities canvertible into equity/ preference shares Issued along with the date of converslen

M June 2020, the Company had allotted securities in the form of Optionally Convertible Debentures (DCDS) aggregating to
T 4100 Crovg, due 2040, on preferential basis to the Erstwhile Lenders In accordance with the Resclution Plan, convertibie
anly in the-event of default, The Company had also aflotted 49 86 Crore full paid-up share warrants, on preferential basis
to the Erstwhile Lenders in accordance with the Resalution Plan, convertible anly inthe event that Part A Facilities under
Resolutlon Plan are not ciassified as "Standard” as per IRAT norms within the stipulated timelines. Sebsequently, on
May 24, 2022, pursuant 10 the implementaton of the refinancing proposal, the entire outstanding value of OCDs was
corverted into 5714 Crore eguity shares having a face value of ¥ 2/~ and the share warrants were lapsed

17.4 Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for Issue under the employee stock oplion (ESCOP) plan of the Company, refer Note 371
under heading of “options outstanding”,

17.5 Details of shares held by promoters and shareholders helding more than 5% in the Company:

Sr Mo, of shares &t % of total Change Mo. of shares % of total % change
Mo. Promoter Name the beginning shares  during the at the end of shares during the
of the year yeor the year year

As at March 31, 2024

1 Late Tuls| R, Tanm 48534761 Q04 (4834 761 . (0]
Gita T. Tanti 12.000 Q0 4834760 4, 846,761 0,04 0.04
Prapay T. Tantl a5 karta af 18,000,000 014 18,000,000 a3 204
Tulsi Ranchhodbhal HUF

4 Vinod RTantl as karta of G2 70514 Az - 5270574 29 (Og)
Ranchhoegbhal Rampibhal
HUF

5 Tulsi R, Tantl Jiw Vinod 52.B174d Q42 - 52817142 .39 ()
RFant Jhw. Jitendra R-Tant

B Winad R Tanl 30.267.000 024 30260000 0D (032§

7 Jieendra BTaml 9,023,000 oay - 023000 a0 [£.01)

8 Rambnaben Ukabhal AFATEIES J I8 {1,600 LR 348 (3d)

9 Girsh R Tanti 100,012,000 e 100,089,000 073 [(07)

0 Tanth Holaings Private TO1972 274 563 - F0,972 874 BiG (047}
Limited

i Samanvaya Haldings 36%,856,353 293 - IG5 850,163 2E9 [O25)
Private Limited

12 The Tanti Trust . . 1,000 1,000 G000 400
Total 1,808, 685,603 14.50 - 1,80 86.85.603 1329 .21}
Total paid-up shares 12.473,087.083 100,00 = 13,612 588,222 100.00 =

Sr. Ma. of shares at % of total Change Mo. of shares % oftotal % change

Mo,  Promoter Name the boginning shares during the at the end of shares  during the

of the year year the year year
As at March 31, 2023 B i -

1 Tulsj R Tant 3,905,000 0,04 929761 4,834,751 0.4 alala]
Gita T, Tarti B4 612 000 050 (5.45,00,000] 12,060 Q.00 e}
Pranay T. Tanll 85 karta 18,050,000 020 0 18,000,000 LERE (6]
of Tuisl Ranchhodbhal
HUF
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Sr. Mo. of sharesat % of total Change Mo. of shares % oftotal e change
Mo.  Promoter Name the beginning shares during the at the end of shares  during the
of the year year the year yeor
4 Virod R, Tanti as kartn 42.570,000 048 1013574 52705714 042 (0D4)
of Ranchhodbhal
Ramjibhal HUF
5 Tulsi B Tanti Jw. Vinod 42,660,000 046 10157142 c2B17M2 D42 [0.04)
R Tant] Jw. ditendra B,
Tant
=} Wined R.Tantl 25267000 0.27 50,00.000 30267000 0.24 {003y
7 Jitendra RTami 16,100,000 017 [FOL77,000 G023.000 007 010}
| Sangita V. Tont TOIBZ 000 078 (70182,000) - {078}
g Lina.J. Tants THIRZ OO0 076 {70082,000) . : {076
0 Rambhaben Ukabhal 16,566,000 098 45661759 ATIITIIEY 7a 351
il Winod B Tantl 65 karta 5,000,000 005  (BO00,000 - (005,
of Vinod Ranchhadbhal
HUF
13 Jiteridra R Tanti as 9,023,000 010 (9023000 130}
karta of Jitandra
Ranchhodbhal HUF
13 Pranay T, Tant 42,504,000 046 (4.2504,000) - . 0:48)
¥ Widhi T, Tant 3,052,000 003 [30,52,000) - - 0.03)
15 Raian V. Tanti 16,605,000 Q18 [156,05000) - . (318
1B Brfj J Tanti 37NT000 040 3717000 - - a0y
17 Trishad Tant 15,120,000 016 (1,51,20,000) - - (D8]
1B Girish B Tant 160,009,000 1.09 100,019,000 0.B0 (0.:29)
19 Tarti Holdings Private BR6.97E003 615 132499478 TO1L972,874 563 (0:52)
Limitad
20 Samanvaye Holdings 295489363 A 703,56,290 365,856,353 493 (0. 28)
Prvate Limited
Total 1,460,861,456 15.85 3478,24147 1,B08685603 14.50 {1.35)
Total pald-up shares 9,217,444,037 100.00 12,473.087,083 100.00

Mote: As per records of the Company, including its registerof sharsholders/ members and other declarations received
frem sharehalders regarding beneficial Interest. the above shareholding represenis both legal and benaficial awnership
af shares,

17.6 Qualified Institutions Placement [("QIP7)

On August 14, 2023, the Socueitles Issue Committee of the Board of Directors of the Compeny approved allotment of
139601139 fully paid-up equily shares of face value of T 2.00 sach to eligible gualified instlutional buyers st an Issue
price of ¥ 1755 per eguity share, L, at 8 pramium of ¥ 15.55 per eguity share, which refliects & discount of € 0.BS (i
4 B3%) on the floor price of T 18.44 calculated with referonce to the relevant date of August 9, 2023, aggregating to
T 2.000.00 Crore pursuant to-the QIP undertaken in terms of placement document dated August 1, 2023,

The QIF issue procesds are utilised in accerdance with the oblects of the Issue as stated in the plagement decument,
Detalls of utilisation of QIF issue proceeds are given below:

Partlculars

March 21, 2024

Sources of funds
Proceeds from issue
Utilisation of funds
Ropayment of loan

Payment Wwards ISl expenses

Payment Wwards genaral corporalo purpases
Total utilization of funds

Unutilised fund

F 00000

150000
1329
4B6 T

2,000.00
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177 Rights issue

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors t their meeting dated August 10, 2022, the Company offered 240 Crore
partly-paid equity sharestothe existing efigible shareholders on a right basis in theratio of flve equity shares for everny twenty
one eqguity shates held by them on the record dateof October 4, 2022, On October 31, 2022, the Company aliolited 240
Crore partly paid-up equity shares of face value of 1 2 00 each at anissue price of £ 5.00 perequity share, Le. &t a premium of
T 3.00 per equity share. The applicants were required to pay T 2.50 per equlty share on application of which T 1.00 per
equity share ls approprlated towards face value and remalning T 1.50 per aguity share s appropriated towar ds securities
premium, Subsequently, the Securities lssue Commitiee of the Board of Directors of the Company al its meeting held on
February 24, 2023 approved the making of first and final call of € 2.50, of which T 1.00 per equity share is appropriated
towards face valle and remaining T 1.50 per equily share |s apprapriated towards securities premium.

During the financial year, the Company having received the call money, the Securities Issue Committee has approved
conversion of partly pald-up equity shares bearnng 1SN INSO4OHOIGH Into fully paid-up equity shares bearing ISIN
INEQAOHINOZT a8 under:

51 No, Date of allotment MNumber of partly paid shares T in Crore
canverted into fully pakd
1 May OB, 2023 10,04, 20 880 2760
£ May 25, 2023 21.84,41,785 54.61
2 June 12, 2023 92,65,406 232
4 July OF, 2023 1.2913.280 398
5 August 22,2023 63,498,593 159
i September 12, 2023 3314044 aB3
7 Octobier 11,2023 16,20,352 041
8 Nawvember 24, 2023 1445977 0.36
g Dacembar 15, 2023 12 60,749 033
10 January 12, 2024 1759617 4,40
N February 08, 2024 EO.70134 152
12 March 20, 2024 2286677 056
Tatal 39.,39,83994 98,50

Out of the total shares allotizd in right issue, B1,94 083 equily shares remain partly paid up a5 at March 31, 2024

Detalls of utillsatton of Rights: issue proceeds Bre given below:

reer—— Mareh 31 2023

Sources of funds 231.06 1,099.46
Opaning unutilised funds 153256

Procewds from lssue 98.50 1.092.46
Lilisation of funds 23084 966.90
Rapayment of loan to Mew Lendars 900,00
Paymant towards issUs expenses - 16.50
Paymani towards ganeral corporate purposes 230488 5040
Unutilised funds 062 132.56
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18. Other equity
Refer statement of changes in equity for detailed movement in other eguity

Faricios Mo 312023

Capital resarve 2330 23.30
Cagpital redemption reserve 1500 15.00
General reserve a6 30856
Securities premium 13 AB5.48 10,667,559
Capital contribution LEaa T4 5EOETA
Share options outstanding sccount (refer Note 37) 2914

Retained earnings (18.255.0% (¥8,348.20)
Total BA513 11,035.01)

Mature and purposes of various items in other equity:

a.

Capital reserve

The Company recognises profit or loss on purchase [ sate of the equity mstruments in case of merger tocapital resenve.

Capital redemption reserve

The Company has transferred amount from statement of profit or loss to capital redemption reserve an redemption of
prefarence shares ssuod by the Company.

General reserve

The Company has transferred a partion af the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend or a portion of net
profit kept separately for future purpose |s disclosed as general resenve.

Securities premium

Securities premium resene s used to record the gremium on [$sue of shares, The reseve |3 utilised in ateardance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Capial contribution

The resultant gain arizing en estinauishment of debt and falr value of financial Instruments issued as per the terms of
Resalution plan had been transiemad fo Capital contribution,

Share option outstanding account

The share oplions autstanding account |= used fo recognise the grant date falr value of opllons lssued o employed
under Employes Stock Option Plan

19. Borrowings

Marech 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Mon-current

Term loans from financial Instilutions {secured| - 144569
Payabile 1wowards debl asslgiment [unsecured) 63618 56299
Total 53618 2,008 98
Current

Current maluritles of long-term borrowings 223.02
Total - 323.02

247



SUZLON Annual Report 2023-24

FUPAN Rty e (L e

248

191 Payable towards debt assignment

&g part ofimplementatian of Resclution Plan in June 2020, pursuant to the assignment of debl, the Company recognised
an amount of T 4,453.01 Crore as foan payable to-SGSL at an interest rate of 0.0001% and maturity date of March 31,
2040,

The lgan payable was initially recognised at falr value and subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective
intergst rate [EIR') method at 12.00%. The resultant gain or koss at inttial recognition was recognisad at falr value through
ather equity.

19.2 The details of security for the secured loans are as follows:

Financial facllities by way of Rupee Term Lean RTL from REC Ltd and IREDA n accordance with the RTL Agreement
aggregating ta T Ml {previous year T 1764.44 Crare} of which T Mil (previous year: T 144598 Crore} classifled as long-
ferm borrowings and § Ml jprevious year § 31846 Crore) classified as current matunties of long-term borrowings and
non-fund based working capital facilitics are secured by first parl-passu charge over all present and future current assets
of aach Borfower except land forming part of Inventarles, first pail-passu charge ovel all fided assets of Banowers
whether movable or immovable both present and future, first pan-passu charge by way of assignment or creation of
security interest in the project contracts, any letter of credit, guarantes pravided by, Insurance contracts and clearances
refatad to project, first charge over all accounts including Trest and Retention Account {TRA), first par-pessu pledge
over100% of fully paid-up equity capital of SPIL (since merged Into SG5EL), SGWPL and 5GSL by SEL, negative lien over
the equity shares held by SEL in 3E Forge Limited, Mon disposal undertaking or plodge over the 100% of the eguity
share capital of Suzion Energy Limited, Mauritius { SELM') and AE Rotor Holding BN, (AERH', first pari-passu pledge over
cerain equity shares of SEL held by the promoters and other members of the promoter group, brand image of Suzlon
and corparate guarantee provided by each of the Bormowers guaranteeing the obilgations of the other Borrowers in
compliznce with the provisions of Companles Act, 2013,

During the yearn the Company has repaid (he entire secured RTL borrpwings and released all the’ above-mentioned
securities,

19.2 Non-Fund Based ('NFB') facilities:

Thie Company has availed Mon-Fund Based (NFB} facilities from banks and financial institutions an the basis of security
af current assets of the Company, charge an bank accounts (Including TRA, DSRA and cash margin accounts), par-passy
charge fixed assets, assignment of all rights and benefits arsing out of the contracts in respect of the projects far which
the facility s being availed | including all rights of SEL under these contracts, charge on Suzlon Global Services Limited
I'SGSL) current assets, corporate guarantee of SG5L and non-disposal undertaking of SE Forge Limited shares,

Loan covenants

Under the terms of non-fund based facilities, the Company is reguired to comply with certain covenants refating to
working capital ratio, raile of the tetal financlat indebtedness to consolidated earnings before interest tax and
depreciation ("EBITDA"), minimum level of nebwarth af the Company on standalons basis and achieving standalone and
guarterly EBITDA targets-as perthe terms of facility agreement.

The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the tenure of the facility faliing within the reporting perod,

19.4 Faoreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs)

On May 02, 2023, the Company has redesmed the entire outstanding FCCHs at thelr principal amount aggregating
to USD B29.33B11 together with accrued bt unpaid interest upto the redemption dale & 1.28% pa. amounting to
USD 1,378:48 in accordance with terms of FCCH. Accordingly, the FCCA hove been cancelled and delisted from The
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, Conseguent to the redemption, there are no outsianding FOCBs,
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19.5 The details of repayment of borrowing are as follows :

Particulars Year Up to 1year 2 to 5 years Above 5 years Total
Secured loans March 31, 2024
March 31, 2023 867 132966 16,33 176465
Linsaeired laans March 31, 2024 . . B3GR 63618
March 31, 2023 435 : 56200 567.34
Total March 31,2024 = EC )
March 31, 2023 323.02 1.328.66 679.32 2.332.00

19.6 Recanciliation of ligbilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the
statement of cash flows:-

Balance sheet Siatement of cash flow As at Cash Non-Cash changes/Impact As al
caption fine item Bpril 01, owtfliow of foreign exchange rates March 31. 2024
2023
Borowings Repaymect of long-term 2E32:60 (g rice ) B1.EE B3E18
harrewings
Lease habilities  Paymeant of principal 1020 {1281 F3.28 J067

partion of lease |labilites

Balance sheet  Statement of cash flow As at Cash  MWon-Cash changes/impact As ot
caption fine item April 01, outflow  of foreign exchange rates  March 21, 2023
2022
Borowings Repaymenl of long-term 426123 (L174.37) (754 86) 2,332.00
brarrowings
Lease labilties.  Payment of principal 530 (13.85) {28.88) 10,20

partion af lease labilities

Borrowings afte disclosed st amortised cost

20. Other financial liabilities

March 31, 2023

Mon-current

CHher labiitles 455 339
Total 4,55 3,39
Current

Interest accrosd on borrowings 0.1
Mher liabiltles (refor Noto below) 18336 22003
Total 16236 220,99

Other Habititios Include clalm payablos, pravision for emiployee payables and advances.
All thie financial liabilities are disclosed at amarised cost

21. Provisions

March 31,2013

Mon-current

Emptoyes beneflts 3539 3146
Pravision for gperation, maintanance and waranty 10775 n3.37
Total 164 14 144.83
Current

Empioyes benefits 1475 15049
Prawvislon for performance guarantee, operation maintgnance and warranty and 307 43611
ligquidated damoges

Total 427.83 451.20
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In pursuance of Ind AS 37 - 'Provisions, contingent Hablities and contingsnt assets, the provisions required have been
recognlsed in the books of account In the following manner!

Particulars Parformance Operation. maintenance Liguidated Total
guarantes and warranty damages

Opening balance E4.82 2EBTT 225.89 540,48
39.80) {22812 (201.57) (469,59}

Acditions, net 710 64.33 BO.27 151.70
{20.62) [ron.0E) {69.82 {18152}

Urwinding af warranty discounting and deferral . -0.48 . -0.48
biddbadil i) {-0.98) () (0,98
Utilisanon i8.49 45,20 6675 134.44
[.401) (59.45) f10.29) {Fa )

Reversal o082 e 44,62 as.4a
11.30) - 2521 2651

Closing balance 42.61 28342 194.75 520.82
(54.82) {26877 (225,85 (54948}

Mon-cuirant - 10775 E 0775
Currei 42,61 17667 1a4.79 413.07

Flgures in the brackets represents balance of provious year

Ferformance guarantee {PE") represents the expected outifiow of resources against claims for perfformance shortfall expected
In future over the life of the guarantee assured. The period of performance guarantee varies for oach customer according 1o
the terms of contract, The key assumptions in arfiving at the performance guarantea provisions are wing velocity, plant load
facton grid avaitability, load shedding, historical data, wind varation factor &tc,

Olpesation, maintenance and warranty répresents the expectad lablity an account of field failure of pans of WTG and
expected expenditure of servicing the WTGs over the period of free operation, maintenance and warranty, which varies
accanding 1o the terms of each sales contract.

Ligguidated damages ('LD') reprasents the expected claims which the Comparny may nesd 1o pay for non-fullilment of cadaln
commitments a5 par the terms of the respective sales | purchase contracts. Thess arg determined on a case to case basis
considering the dynamics of each contract-and the factors relevant to that sale.

The figures shown against 'Lilisation’ represent withdrawal from provisions credited to statement of profit and loss to offsel
the expenditure incurred during the year and debiied to statement of profit and loss.

Other liabllities
Mon-current = It includes deferred revenue of T 048 Crore (previous year T 048 Crome)

Current March 31, 2023
Statutory duss. 1240 1573
Othier Fabilities 012 003
Total 18,53 16756
Trade payables

e 3 207
Trade payables \o micro and small entarprises {{MSE') 2825 270
Trade payables to related parties GE2.4% 74539
Trade payables fo others 122813 F14.00
Total 123881 1,062.09.
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231 Ageing schedule for trade payables

Unbilled Cutstanding from due date of payment

Particulnrs Total

dues  motdue <iyear T2years 2-3years >3years

As at March 31, 2024

WUndisputed dues of MSE . 14,94 13,24 .07 - Q.0 28,26
Undisputed duses of creditars other than nrFe 110049 304,38 308 B8 q7189 191055
MSE

Oisputed dues of MSE

DHaputed duss of eraditaes athas than
MSE

Total 178 11543 3762 318 18.81 47200 19383

As at March 31, 2023

Undisputed dues of MSE - 042 220 - - DGE 270
Unelsputed dues of cradilars ethar than 51,90 56.55 33884 27 26658 34366 105939
MSE

Bisputed duss of MSE - -

Disputed dues of creditors ather than - - - - - - -
MSE

Total £1.90 56.97 39104 27 26618 34374 1062.09

23.2 Details of due to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Si.  Partlculsrs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a.  Principal amount remaining unpaid io any supplier as ot the end of the 2H 38 230
aceounting yiear

b:  Interest due thersan remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end af 43 o
the accourting yaar

c.  Amount af interest pald alang with the amounts of payment made 1a the 775 B37
supplier beyond due date,

d. Amount of interest due and payable far the perdod of delay in making 345 0,23
paymant bl without adding the intersst specified dnder this Act.

@, Amount af interest acerued and remalning unpald st the end of the
accounting year,

£ Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 358 040
succeeding years, unth such date when the Interest dues-as above are
actually paid.

The Company has identified micro and small enterpnses, as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 by requesting
confirmation from the voendors through the letters circulated by the Company

23.3 Transactions with struck off companies: Nil (previous year NI,
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241 Disaggregated revenue infarmation

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a. Revenue from contracts with customerns

Sale of wind turbines and olther spare pars 361705 3356.27
Income fram operation and mamntenance service 121,87 NaEE
Sale of seTvices 27.38 2395
Tatal 3766.40 349978
b. Scrap sales 3278 EIE.?E‘
Total {8 +b) 379918 3,53814
Geography
Indlia L e 351739
Dirtside India 136 2075
Total 379918 3,53814
Timing of revenue recognition
Goads transtemed ot a point Im time 364983 3.394.63
Services transferred at a palnt in time / aver time e 35 14351
Total 2,79918 3,638:14
24.2 Contract balances
acch 31,2023
Trade receivables a6l 546,32
Contract llabilities 17326 386.66

Refer Note 10.2 for movement in allowsnce for expected credit loss.

24.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue as par contracled price 3,641 359215

Less: Varlable consideration

Liguldated damages {1efer Mote 21) [35.65) [34.81)

Performance guarantes [refer Note 21) (628} 19.32)

Salas-commsslon . (0.08])

Total 379818 3,63814
24.4 Performance obligation

Information.about the Company’s performance obligations are summarnised below;

i.  Sale of goods - WTG squipment

The performancs obligation is satisfied upon dispatch of the equipment and paymeant is generally dues within 30 to
45 days from compietion of contract milestone.

Standard warranty period beyand fixing the defects that existed at the time of sale is provided to customerns, The
warranty is accounted for as a separate performance obligation and @ portion of transaction price is allocated, The
performance obligation for the wartanty service Is satisfied owver the standard poriod on time elapsed.

ii. Operation and maintenance senvice income

The perfarmance ohligation s satisfied over-time and payment is dus within 30 days from invoice date which is
ralsed as per contractual agreement.
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The performance obligation is satislied upon commissioning and electrical instaliation of the WTG to the said
facilities followed by approvel Tor commissioning of WTG from the concermed authonthes.

. Land

In case of leasehold, the parformance obligation is satisfied upon the bansfer of leasehold rights to the customers,
for outright sala, the porformance-obligation is sotisfled when tte of fand is transfarrad 1o the customear as per the
terms of the raspective saies order. Tha performance obligatian for land development s satisfied upon rendering

of the service as per the terms of the respective sales order,

25, Other operating income: It includes rental Income of T 14.47 Crore (previous year: T 1108 Crore), management fee of
? 40,00 Crore previous year; T 40.00 Crare} and othar miscellancous Income of § 0.54 Crore [previous year; T 1:22 Crore), i
also includes receipt of # 6.06 Crorg (previous year Nil) towards an ald l2gal case involving recovery proceedings pending
bafore Hon'bie Bombay High Couirt. Since the Uming and gquantum of eventual recovery isnat ceraim and is linked with fing
decree to be passed by the Hon'ble Bombay High Court, the legal claim has not accrued and hence it would be accounted

for as and when amount is received pursuant to-judiclal orders.

26, Finance income

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Irterast incame o
Finoncial assets measured at amortised cost

o inter corparale deposit 10680 128.20
on deposits with Danks 30,78 8.85
on ather financial assets 54.08 2364
Financial llabilites measurad &t amortise cast 124 033
Total 192.88 192,22
27. Cost of raw materials, components consumed and services rendered
March 31, 2023
Consumplion of raw materials, components consumed and services renderod
Cpening Inventony 8248 GO0.26
Add: Purchases X350 2,345.39
350750 294545
Less - Closing inventory G54 37 28243
2.85313 266297
Changes in Inventories:
Cpening Inventany
Finished, semi-finished goods and wordks iIn- progress FGA.55 44213
Land and lpng ieasa rights 025 00
(&) 36520 443273
Cloaing Inventory
Finished, semi-finished goods and works in- progress 40505 364.95
Land and land ieasa rights 144 0.25
(B8] 410.439 365.20
Changes in Inventories {C} = (A) - (B) (45.29) 77.53
28. Employee benefits expense
e 312023
Satarles, wages, allowances and bonus 26173 23288
Contribution to provident fund and other funds® 1533 1368
Share-based payment to emplayess (refer Mote 37} 1222 -
Staff wellare expenses 22.09 cag
Total 31236 252,51

“ncludes grotity expanse of T 6.8 Crore (prewouws wear T 51 Crorel,

The employee henefits sxpense includes expenses of ¥ 4725 Crore [previous year: ¥ 3826 Crore) pertaining to ressarch

ghd dovelopment.
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Mairch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interasl axpense on

Financial llabliities measured al amorised cost 1BAE2 35158
Financial llablities measured at FyTPL - 4577
Unwinding Interest on lopg-term provislons Q.35 075
Bank charges 6020 3345
Tatal 23567 441.56

30. Depreciation and amortisation expense

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation on property, plont and egulpment refor Note 4] 587 8322
Armortisation of Intangible assets (fefar Mote &) 4805 8530
Depreciaticn on Investment properiies {refar Note 7) 1852 165
Armortisaticn an rght-al-use assets frefar Note 38) 10:29 9.87
Total Nne.57 190.04

31. Other expenses

Ve 31,3633

Siores and spares consumed B3 65 4754
Poweer and fue| 13,25 1470
Factory and sile skpenses 15.44 2473
Repairs and malntenance,

<Plant anel machinery B 527
~Buiding 634 542
Cthiers 15,20 12.88
Operation and malntenance charges 12267 120,80
Rent 895 178
Rates and taxes 806 789
Operation, malntenance and warranty expendliure (refer Note 219) A2 BY 89.33
Quallty assurance sxpenses 122 8.37
R & O, cerification and product development ge2 &80
Insurance 10.22 B4
Advertisement and sales promotien g4y 263
Frelghl autward and packing expensos a.09 145
Traveling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 20,88 1674
Communication oxpenses 280 29
Auditars’ remuneralion and expenses [refor Nate 311) 076 0.9
Consultancy charges 48549 3737
TSR, charlty and danations 082 132
Security expenses 433 409
Cutsaurco manpower cost BEOY 5081
Miscellanoous expenses 2766 05
Exchange differences, net B0 4089
Blad debis wiitten off . 245
impairment allowance) revarsal) 575 |5.89)
Allowance! (reversall for doubtful debis and advances, nat {659 {795]
Galn on sale of Investment {£3,85) {801)
Loss on disposal of PPE and investmant property, net 240 105
Total 519.40 537.37
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311 Payment to auditors includes:

e 1 207

Statutory audit fees Gr2 0.82
Cortiication 0,60

Reimbursemeant of out-of-pocket sxpenses (FSel ] n.oo
Tatal 136 0.9

31.2 Thoe Company has average negative not loss for preceding thres financlal years s compoted In accordance with

provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act, 20013 (Act”) therefore there is no requirement for the company 1o spend
any amount under section 135(5) of the Act. Therefore, CSR disclosures are not applicable 1o the Company,

31.3 The other sxpense includes expenses of T 20063 Crore (previous year T 17236 Crore) pertaining 1o research and

development.

32. Exceptional items

e 3. 2023

Write-off of loan and financial assets refer Note o bekow) 549544

Litllisatlan of impalrment allowance (refer Nate & belaw) (5,405,.44)

Buyback of eguity shares of subsidiary {refer Mote b below) 523623

Utilisatian of impairment allowances (refer Nate b below) (6,238.23)

Difference on de-recognition as o result of convearsian in full of OCD and option - [2.524.30)
vl Habiiity, net off transaction cost

Gain onsale of assets held for sale (refor Mote © balow) 114.45)

Galn an disposal ef property, plant and eguiprient (refer Mote d below} . {55.66)
Impairment pravision! (reversal) on financial assets (refor Note & below) {I0ES) area
Total (25.14) {2,542 08}

g. Pursuant tothe write-off agreements dated August 11, 2023 pxecuted betwoen the Company and AE Rotor Holding BV,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in accordance with the approval of the Board of Dirsctars, the Company
has incumed business loss on account of wiiting off the outstanding amaunt of loan receivable amounting to T 45976
Crote (equlvalent to Eura 5144 Millian), Interest accrued on loan amounting to ¥ 296.96 Crore (equivalent to Euro 33.23
Million) and SBLC receivable amounting to ¥ 473872 Crore {equivalent to Euro 53019 Million or USD 57674 Million),
agoregating ta ¥ 5495 24 Crore which was arginally utllized for the business purpese, The Company had recoagnised
impairment aliowance in respect of this outstanding amount In earlier yoar, which has boen reversod In view of such
write-oft.,

b.  Pursuant 1o the approval from Supreme Court of Mauritius dated September 26, 20023 and from Registrar of Companies
Mauiitius dated January 31, 2024, Suzlon Energy Limited Mauritius ('SELM') complated the buy-back of 436,35 Crore
equity share< held by the Company agalnst a consideration of 45899587 pon-cumulathve redeemable preference
shares, each of Mauritian Rupee 100 as part of its right sizing the balance sheet. Accordingly, there s a loss on buy back
ofinvestmants aggregating to ¥ 6,239.23 Crore, The Company had recognised impatrment alfowancs in respect of this
amount in earier year, which has bean reversed in view of buy back,

Furthes, the investmant in nercumulative redeemable preférence shares of T 84,86 Crore lssued by SELM to the
Company pursuant to buyback s impaired and utlized from the Impalrment allowance.

e During the yesh, the Company has sold il Investments which weere reclassified under "Assets held for sale” and gain on
its glsposal Is disclosed under axceptional items.

o Darirg tinancial year ended March 31, 2023, the Company hgs disposed property, glant and eguipment of one of its
glant and a freehold land for 8 conslderation of ¥ 45.63 Crore and  38.25 Crore respectivedy and galn on lts dispasal Is
discinsed under exceptional tems.

g, The Company has made net reversal of provision T 10,68 Crore |previous year T 3768 Crore net provision) towdrds

impairment of investments in, loons given and other financlal assets given 1o subsidiarlas, associates and joint ventura.
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Income tax expense
Current tax
332 Current taw charged 1o statement of profit and ioss s € Nil {previous year § Wil

33.2 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit:

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Accounting profit before Income tax 9343 246276
Enmacted tax rates in India 25165% 25168%
Computed tax expense 2351 544 32
Mon-deductible expensas for 18y purpese 2698 12092
Deductinle expenset for tax purpose (130 [751.88)
Expenses taxable &t different rptes & 22 88% . {29.55)
Effect of unrecoonized delerred tax assets (E7E) HEI2

Tax expense ns per statement of profit and loss .

33.3 Detalls of carry forward losses, material disputes and unused credit on which no deferred tax asset Is
recognised by the Company are as follows:
The unsbsorbad deprecation is avaitable for offsetting oll future taxable piofits of the Company and can be caried
forward Indefinitely. The business losses and capital Insses con be camed forward for 8 years fram the yaar in which
losses arose, Majarity of business losses and capital losses. to the extent remaining unutilized will expire betwean FY
2024-25 10 FY 2031-32. The Company has opted for cancessional tax regime w3 1SBAA since FY 20-21 and accardingly
MAT is not applicable.

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses amounting to ¥ 512192 Crore {previous year;
T 590748 Crora).

Components of other comprehensive income [QCI)

It includes loss on account of re-measuremant of defined henefit plans of T 032 Crore (previous year; gain of T 571 Crore),
refer Mote 361,

Earnings per equity share (EPS)

e 3. 3023

Baslc

Net profit for the vear altributable o equity shareholdass 0343 28278
Weighted average number of equity shares 1334,90,93,386 1077,52,50,532
Basic earnings per shate of ¥ 2 sach 0.07 201
Diluted

Mt profitfor the vear stiributabla to equity shareholdsrs 2343 218275
Weighted average number of equlty shares 134,90 93 386 10,77.52,60,532
Add! Effect of dilutien an accaunt of ESOP £ R3,51806

Weighted average number of equity shanes for diluted EPS 13,21.54. 651,082 10.77,52,50,532
Dilinted earnings per-share [T} of face value of ¥ 2 sach 0.07 2.0

Post-employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plan:

Biring the year the Company has recognized ¥ 9.01 Crore [previous year ¥ 8,50 Crore] in the statement of profil and loss
towards defined contribition plans as detalled in Mote 2.3 {o}ifa).

The Company manages domestlc provident fund plan for its domestic employesas which s parmilizd under the Employees’
Prosvident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan mandates cantribution by emplover.at a-fixed percentage
of employees salary, Employess also contribute to the plan at a fixed percentage of their zalary as a minimum contribuation
and additlonal sums at thelr discretion. The plan guarantees interest at the rate notified by Employess' Provident Fund
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Organisation. The contribution by employver and employee together with Interest are payvable at the time of separation from
service or retirement whichever is arlier. The benefit under this plan vests immedistely on rendering al service

The Superannuation scheme of the Company has the form of a trust and |s govemed by the Board of Trustees, The scheme
I= partially funded with an Insurance company In the form of a qualifying Insurance policy.

Defined banefit plan:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan The gratuity plan is governed by the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under
the act, Employee wha has completed five years of service < ellgible for gratully. Gratulty |s compuled based on 15 days
salary basedon last drawn salany for each completed year of service.

The fund has the form of a st and s governed by the Board of Trustees: The scheme is parially funded with an Insurance
campany in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

361 Met defined benefits expense recognised in statement of profit and loss and OCI:

Morch 31,303

Curtent service cost 416 362
Mat interest cosl 415 140
Total expense recognised In statement of profit and loss 631 5.02
Re-mizasurement far the peried - obligation (galn) loss 633 630
Re-mizasurement far the peried - plan assets [gain)/ loss . 1058)
Total expense recognised In OCI 0,32 5
Tatal 6.63 1073

36.2 Changes in the defined benefit obligation:

Morcn 31,2023

QOpaning-defired benefit abligstion 4547 40,68
Current service cost 416 162
Interest cost 337 277
Benefits paid (2:28] {750
Re-measurement adjustment:

Experisnce adjustmenits 0,59 4.50
Actuanal changes ansing from changes in demographic assumptions o3 043
Actuanal changes ansing fram changes in financial assumptions Q76 13
Closing defined benefit obligation 51,04 4547

36.3 Changes in the falr value of plan assets:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Qpaning falr value of plan assets 1643 2007
Interest income 1322 137
Contributions by eémpioyver towards approved fund 1EZ 22
Benefits paid {228 [7a0)
Acguisition adjustments ! setilement cost

Re-measurements - retum on.plan assets, excluding ameunt recognised in net - 055
Intiresl expefise

Cilosing fair value of plan assets 1659 16.44
Actual return on plan assets 132 1,86

36.4 Funds managed by insurer is 100% for March 31, 2024 (previous year: 1005%). The composition of investments n respact
of funded defined benefit plans are not available with the Company, the same has not been disclosed.
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36.5 Met asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

Present value of defined benafit obligation as at the end of the financial yvear

Cuwrrent partion 586 3B
Mon-current partion 4518 4168
Tatal liability 51,04 4547
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of tha year 1659 1544
Mat asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet {34.45) {29.03)

36.6 Principal assumptions used in determining long term employee benefits:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate fin %) Fala) R
Future salary increases {in %) 7.5% for FY 2026 and 9% thereafier 9%
Life expectation (In years) E.Bb 3.51
ALtrithon rate 290 gt yaungerages and mousing 1o 25.60 % at younger ages and reducing
8308 at akder agEs according to graduated to 620 % at older ages according to

frales. aradustéd scales

During the year, the Company has reassessed the sctuanal assumption forattrition rate based on trand of attrition

36.7 Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and risk analysis:

Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the company to the rsk of fall in interest rotes. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increasa in the ultimate cost of providing the sbove benelit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the Gaoility,

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined Benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase
rate al plan participants in lulure. Devistion in the rale of increase of salary in future far plan particlipants from the rate
of lnerease [nsalary Lded to determing the present value of sbligation will have a beailng on the plan's llability.

Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mortality and atintion assumptions in valuation of the liability. The
Company is exposed 1o the risk of actual experence furning out o be worse compared o the assumption,

March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars =
Decrease Increaso Decrease Increase
DAzecaunt rato (- /+1%) &02 (356} 4.2 (366
Future salary Increases |- + %) [3.55) 383 {3.64) 410
Attriticn rate (- | + 50% of attrition rates) 237 {144} 1.50 11,08

36.8 Expected benefit payment for the next years:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1 year 5.B6 m
210’5 yaars 2128 17N
6 to 10 years 23.00 2014
bMore than 10 years 45 94 BE752

For the year ending on March 31, 2025, the Company expects to contribute ¥ 3872 Crore {previous year T 32,95 Crore)
towaids |ts defined benafit plan.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the financial vear is 7 vears (previous year. 9
YEArS);
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37. Share-based payments
371 Employees Stock Option Plan 2022

On May 22, 2023, the hlﬂmlnatfnn_arrd Remuneration Commitiee of the Board of Directors of the Company ("NRC]
granted 10,92,90,000 Optians comvertible Into 10,92 90,000 equity shares of T 2.00 cach 1o the eligible employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries under the Employes Stock Option Plan 2022 at an exercise price of ¥ 500 per aption,

Out of the Dptiors granted In May 20232 under the ESOPF 2022, 50% Optlons were to vest on T anniversary from the
date of gront in terms of the approval of the Momination and Remuneralion Commities of the Board of Direclors of the

Company and accardingly, 4.55.44 500 Options got vestad in the month of May 2024,

Summary of optlons granted under the plan ;

Partlculars

ESOP 2022 (Grant I)

Board approval date

Sharehoider approwval

Grant date

Options granted {(Mos)

Options lapsed during the yaar [Nas)

Options autstanding as at Mareh 31, 2024 [Nosh
Exgrcise prico (T}

Vesting pericd

Flest vesting on

Second vasting on
Exercise perod

Exercise period for first vesting
Exefcise penod for second vesting

10-aug-20232

28-Sept-2022

22-May-2023

10,92,30,000

48 00,000

10,44,30,000

5f.

2 {Twar) wesars from the date of grant

22-May-2024 — 50%
[25% retention based and 25% perfarmance based)

22-May-2025 — 50K

[45% retention pased and 25% perfarmance based)
2 (Two) yearafrom the date of respective vesting
22-May-2026

22-May-2027

Furthet, on May 23, 2024, the NRC has granted following stock options to the eligible employess of the Company and
its subsidiaries under ESOP 2022 with 0% vesting at the end of first year from the date of grantand balance 50% at the
end of second year fram the date of grant with exercise perdod of two years lrom the date of respective vesting:

a. 35910000 Options convertitle intg 3,5910000 equity shares of ¥ 2~ each at an exercise price of ¥ 3048 per
Option {"Grant 27); and

b, 38530000 Optlons convertible into 3.86,30,000 equity shares of € 2/~ each at an exercise price of T 244 per
Qption {"Grant 37}

37.2 Fair value of options granted

The fair value on the date of first exercise 1s T 9,88 per options for Tranch | and fair value on the date of second exercise
Is © 10.50 per option for Tranch 1, The fair value at grant date |s iIndependently determined using the Black-Scholes
Model which takes Into account the following Inputs:

a. exorcise price : ¥ 5/ (previous yaar @ Nily

b,  term of the optlon - 1 year for Tranch 1 and 2 years for Tranch |l [previous year | MNil):
c.  share price at grant date . ¥ 925/ (previous year @ MIlj;

d.  expected price volatllity of the-underlying share | "64% {previous year : Mil);

e expected dividend yield : Nil (previous yaar: Nil) and

i nsk-free interest rate for the term of the option | 7% (previows year ; MNil),

The expected life of the stock options & based on the Company's expectations and 15 not necessanly indicative of
exercise patterns that may actually occur, The expacted volatiiity reflects the assumption that the historical volatiiity of
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the options is indicative of future trend, which may not necessarlly be the actual outcorme. Further, the expected volatitity
Is based on the Company's equity shares volatility for a perled of & years upto grant date of an optlon.

37.3 The total expenses arising from share-based payment transaction recognised in statement of profit and loss as part of
employes benefit expensge 15T 2208 Crore (provious yean T Nil).

Leases
38 Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for land, buildings and vehicles used in its operations, Leases of land. building and
wizhicles generally have lease terms between 2 1o 3 years: The Company™s obligaticns under iis leases are sacured by

the lessor's fitle 1o the leased assets,

Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. The Company also has cenain
leases of premises with lease tarms of 12 monihs or less and with low value. The Company applies the "short-term lease'
and 'lease of low-vallie assets’ recognition exemptions for theze fesses,

a.  The movement in ROU assets during the year and carrying value are as follows:

Particulars L i i

Bullding Land Vehicles Total
Cost
Balance as of Aprll 1, 2023 40,57 185 4242
Additions 2867 .34 nm
Delstions - - -
Balance as of March 31, 2024 aT.2a 1.B5 a4.34a T73.43
Balance as of &pril 1, 2022 4057 3119 7176
Additions - - -
Bolations (£5.14) 122.34)
Balance as of March 31, 2023 40,57 185 4242
Accumiulated amortisation
Balance as of April 1, 2023 3284 038 33.22
Additions 78 Cubd 047 10.29
Deletions
Balance as of March 31, 2024 4262 042 0.47 43,51
Balarice as of Apr(l 1, 2022 2453 18.38 4302
Additions 2.21 0.58 avs
Deletions (18.59) (18.59)
Balance as of March 34, 2023 32,84 028 - 33.22
Met balance as at March 31, 2024 24.62 142 3.87 2‘9.9;
Met balance as at March 31, 2023 773 1.47 - a19

b.  The movement In lease llabilitles during the year are as follows:
March 31, 2023

Opening balance 10,20 s53.0
Additicns 26E0
Deletions: - [33.06)
Finance cost accrued during theyear 268 420
Payment of lease labilities 2817 (13.95)
Closing balance 3067 10.20
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€. The followlng are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and |oss:

Mareh 31,2623
Amartisation on rght-af-use assets 1029 987
Interest expense an lease labilities 258 4.20
Rontal expense for sharl-term leases (under olher expenses) 218 n.7e
Total 2585

d. Details of cantractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows:

N
i

March 31, 20324 Mnrch 31, 2023
Mol later than one year 1647 51
Laier thon ane yeal and not later than flve years 150 499

Latet than five years -
Total 30.67 10.20

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9% with maturity between 2025 and 2026

Dutlng the yvear, the Company had total cazsh outllows for leases of T 2199 Crore (previous vear T 2573 Crare).
Thie Company also bad non-cash additians to ROU assets of T 3101 Crore and leass lablitles ol ¥ 2060 Crore
[previous vear: T Mil).

38.2 Company as a lessaor

The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment propedy portfolio consisting of certain office premises
{refer Mote 7), These leases hove terms batween two toten years. All leases include a clause o enable upward ravision
of the rental charge on an annual basie according 1o pravailing marke! conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Company during the year 15 # WET Crore [previous year £ .88 Crore),

Future minimum rentats receivable under non-canceliable cperating leases as at year-end are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mot later thin 1 year 204 .54
11 2™ yaar 2148 0,83
£ 10 3 year 109 104
3710 4" yaar (54 s 109
Later than five years . 0.01_
Tatal 533 4.07

39. Capital commitments: Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for,
net of advances stands at € 19.39 Crore [previous yean § 8,58 Crora],

40. Contingent llabilities

Particulars March 31, 2023

Claims agairst the Company not acknowiedged as debts refer Note a below) 14847 156.34
Guarantess given on behall of subsidlaries towards loans/ guaraniae granted i 684 26.85
them by banks! fimancial instiutions

Amounts in respect of MSMED for which the Company 15 contingantly llabla 013 .40
Total 155.44 183.39

a, Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts includes demand from customs duty, senvice tax, VAT and GST
for vanous matters. The Companys tax department has preferred appeals on these matters and the same are pending
with varlous appeliate authorities: Tonsidering the facts of the matters, no provision is consldered necessary by the
management,

b.  The Company has also various Income tax matters where the Company! tax department has preferred appeals on these
matters and the same are pending with various appellate authotities. As the Company has sufficlent carry forwerd losses
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avallabie for set-off In case the Company loses, the liability is neither provided nor disclosed above under contingent
Habliitles.

¢ The Company received the penalty order w's 271Ic) for FY 2015416 and ws 2704 for FY 201617 lewing penalty
aggrogeating to ¥ 26035 Crore. The Company has filed a wiit petitton before Gularat High Court agalnst those
panalty orders whergin the Honourable Gujarat High Court has granted an ad interim stay against the operation and
implementation of the penalty arders. Considering the facts of the matters, neither provision nor disclosure above under
contingent akilities s conskdered necessary by the management,

d. The Company has recelved a SCN from SEBI and has responded o the SCN denying the allegations and filed a
settlement applicatlon in accordance with the SEBI Settlement Regulations [refer Mote 48 a). Considering the facis of the
matters, neither provision nor disciosure above under contingant llabilitles s considered nacessary by the manageament,

g, A few lawsuits have been filed on the Company by some of their suppliers for disputes in fulfilment of obligations as
per supply agreements, Further, few customers of the Company have disputed certaln amount as recelvable which the
Company believes s contractually net payahle These matters are pending for hearing before respective cournts, the
outcomes of which Is uncertain, The management has provided portion of an amount as a matter of prudence which it
baolieves shall be the probable outfiow of resources. Rest of the claim 15 not disclosed above under contingent liabllities
is considered necessary by the management.

41. Segment information

As pormitted by paragraph 4 of Ind AS-108, "Operating Segments’, If-a single financlal report contalns both consslidated
financial statements and the separate financisl =latements of the parent, ségment information nead to be presented only
on the basis of the consolidatad financial statements. Thus, disciosures required by ind AS-108-are given In consolidated
financial statemeants.

42. Related party transactions
421 List of related parties

Subsidiaries

1. AE-Rotor Halding BA. 1B Suzlon Wind Energy Limited

r Gale Green Ura Limited 19 Suzlon Wind Energy (Lanka) Privatse Limited

3 Manas Renewables Limited 20 Suzlon Wind Energy Espana, 5. L

-4 SE Biades Technology BA. 21 Suzlan Wind Energy Nicaragus Sociedad Anonima

5 SE Drive Technlk GmbH ¥ 22  Suzlon Wind Energy Equipment Trading [Shanghal) Coy, Limited

B SE Forge Limited 23 Suzlon Wind Energy Romaria SRL

7 Siroceo Renewables Limited 24 Surlon Wind Energy South Alrien (PTY) Limited

& Sunyaday Renewables Limited 25  Suzlon Wind Energy Uroguay 54

5] Suyash Renewables Limited 28  Suzlan Wind Energy Portugal Energia Elocka Unipessoal Lda

10 Surlon Energy AYS, Denmark 23 Surlan Wind Enedi Sanay Ve Ticaret Sirketi

1 Suzlon Energy Ausiralla Pty Limited 28  SWE Renewablas Limited

12 Soezlon Energy BY, 28 SWE Wind Project Services Limited

13 Surlon Energy Korea Co Limited 30 Tarilo Halding BAL Y

14 Suzlon Energy Limitod, Mauritius 31 Vakratunda Renewabios Limited

15 Suzlon Giobal Services Limited 32 Valum Holding BV ™

16 Suzlon Gujaral Wind Park Limitad 33 Varadvinayak Renewables Limited

17 Suzlon Rotor Corporation ¥ 34 Vignahara Benewable Energy Limited
Associates

1 Aanlok Salarfarms Limited ' 4 Shreyas Solarfarms Limited 1

2 Abha Sotarfarms Limited * =] Suzlon Ensroy [Tianjin) Limited

3 Heramba Renawablas Limited '
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i Consenium Suzlon Padgreen Co Lid ®

Entities whare KMP have significant Influence (EKMP)

1 SE Frelght and Logistics India Pivate Limitad
2 Samanvaya Holdings Private Limited
3 Sarjan Realities Private Limitad

A Shubh Realtty (South) Private Limited

5 Tantl Holdings Privata Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr Winod R, Tant|

Mr, Girish R, Tant|

M. Pranay T. Tantl

Mr. Marc Dosapdelees

Mr, Per Hornung Pedersen:
Mr. J. F. Chalasanl

Mr Himanshiu Mady

M, Geotanjall 5. Valdya
Mr, Gauitam Doshi
10 ME Sameer Shah
N MeHiten Timbadia
12 Mr Ajay Mathur

13 Ms Seemantines Khot

o M Ashiwdnl Bumar ™

Relatlves of Key Management Personnel (REMP)

L M. Rambhaben Ukabhai

Employee funds

1 Suzlon Enengy Limived - Superannuation fund

2. glon Energy Limited - Employees group gratulty scheme

! Liguidated during the year

. Walum Holding BV ceased to be subsidiary with effect from May 15, 2023 pursuant to dissolution, Consequentiy,
Consortium Suzlon Padgreen Co Lid ceased to be joint venture of the Company with effect from May 15, 2023.

M The Company has sold Its investments engaged in the business of generation of electricity through solar energy

and were re-classified as "held for sale™
e Ceased weof April 05, 2023

Caased wef September 21, 2023
L Ceased wel September 26, 2023

422 Transactions between the Company and related parties during the year and the status of outstanding

balances as at March 31, 2024;

Particulars Subsidiaries EKMP Associate KMP/REKMP Employes
funds
Sala of property. plant and sguipment 018 - - - -
{0.28) ] &) %) 8]
Subscilptian o equlty shates of the Company' undsr - - . -
Rights issue {=) 112.83) (- {6118} ()
Loar glvarn 46,87 - .
(412.59) &) 5] ) ]
Realidathan of lean ghwen 48583 0.
) _ - 704.09) ) () (4 ()
;urchase of gnndé and EE'.I"-I'!E.:E'E 3?8.62 - - - -
(300.ET) = = 1 -l
Write off of ioan and financial assets receivable fraom 5 49544
subsidinries pursuant to restructuring of balance sheel [ [ i -} i)
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Particulars Subsidiaries EKMP Assoclate KMP/ RKMP Emplayees
funds
Utilisation of impairment allowance on foans and 5,495 44 -
financial assets written off H 8] 8] -} ()
Buybock of eguity shares of subsidiary pursuant to right 6,324.09 = - - -
sizing of the balance sheet K] i) -} i -1
Utilization of impairment allowance on investmant in 532400
subsrioey X ) (4 (} [t
Inwestmesnt In prefersnce shares of subsidiary agairst 2486 - - . -
buyback of equity shares of subsidiary 1 i () (4 1
Impairment in preference shares of subsiciany 24.86 -
i () [} [=) [=}
Sale of goods and sendces 34.32 - - - -
[49.60) ) ] (] ]
Finance Income 162.08 . . . -
[21778) 8} {0,007 [ )
Lease rent incame 026 on - - -
(0,81 (0.53) [ 3] &)
Other Incame 4000 - - -
(40.00) i =} -] 3
Finance Cost 10634 £ = = -
[62.78) 5] =} 7, -l
Managerial remuneration 3 > : 3419
it ] 5] i21.23) i
Birector siiting feps oaE
X ] i (Q.46) Il
Share based payments . - - £.4B -
i (§] L] L& =]
Contribution 9 various funds . E - 243
i 8] 1 i {252)
Relmbursement of expensss payable . = . - .
{4.89) 4 () 5! t
Remburssment of expenses iecsivatile 2302 - - - -
123.45) ] N b il
Lale of Investment 0.85 - - -
fih ) Il 14 bl
Corporate guaranies given 9763 - - - -
%) -l H (] t
Corporate guarantes taker 2800 - = - =
%] i Il 1 i
Outstanding balances:
Particulars Subsidiaries EKMP Associates KMP  Employee
funds
Coniract labilities 100 - =
K b t (1 ®
Imvestments in equity shares and preference shaes 270264 = 5833 =
1902418 i) 185,23} (] 1
Impalrment allowance on Inwestments 134125 - 5833 -
[7.665.09) i) (5274} (- {
Inyestments in Compulsarily Convertiple Debentures IGE.05 - - -
{394.73) ] {2222} [-] 1
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Particulars Subsidiaries EKMP Associates KMP  Empioyee
funds
Trade receivabies 17n - - - -
(42.60) (0.0 (- 15 i)
lmpalrinient allowance on trade recelvable - - - - -
£4.84) i i il {7
Lo glveri 106152 - - - -
{1,963.24) i 0.0% -} i+
Impairment allowance on loans B2 A5 - - - -
{Ma.82) i 5 5] i
Interest accrued but not due - - - - -
[6.007 i 5] - i
Payible towards debt assignment L] - - - -
(562.99) 5] 5] -l i
Security deposit taken - L7 - - -
¥ (0.08) vl t i
Advance to supplier and other assat 333.86 - - -
{5,226.25) H =) 1] H
Impairment allowance on other assets 31206 - - . -
(5.045.53) ] =) i i)
Dirgctor sitting fees pavabls - - - 0. -
i i i ) 1 H
Trade payables BE0.53 180 - - -
{739.83) (5586} =} 5! [
Corporate guarantes given o84 - - - -
126.65) ) - J i5
Corporate gunrantes laken 280000 - - - -
3| i il L) )
Other currant financial llabiliges 7326 . . - .
[78.09) i} i L5 i)
Figures in bracket are in respect of previous yoar
423 Disclosure of significant transactions with related parties
Type of transaction Type of Mame of the entity Year ended March 31,
relationship 2023
Sale of propeny, plant and equipment Subsidiary Suzlon Global services Limitedd D18 0.EB
Laan ghven Subaidiary Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limlted 5.50 16613
Subsid|ary Suzlun_ Global Sarvicas Limited 4057 45346
Reallsation of Inan given Sunsidiary Suzlon Global Services limited 47273 575,63
Subsidiary Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited &1 128.46
Wite off of loan and financial assets Subsidiary AE Rotor Holding BAL H495 44 -
recefvable from subskdiaries pursuant to
restructuring of balance shest
Utiitsatiom of impairment allowance an Subsidiary AE Rotor Holding BA. 540544 -
loans and financial assels written off
Buyback of eguity shares of subsidiary Subsidiary Surion Energy Limited, Mauritius B.324.05 -
Lifilgation af impairment allowance an Suibysiciary Suzlan Energy Limited, Mauritius 832400 -
investmant |7 Subskdiary
Inwastmant In preferance sharas.of Subsidiary Suzlon Energy Limited, Mauritius B4 EG

subsidiany against buyback of eguity
shares of subsidlary
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Type of tramsaction Type of Mame of the entity Year ended March 31,
rl!hﬁnn.!hlp 2023
Impairment i preference shares aof Subesidiary Suzlon Energy Limited, Mauritius EA,.BE -
subsidiary
Subscription to egulty shares of the REMP Rambhaben Ukabhsi - G062
Company under Rights Bsie EKMB Tantl Haldings Private. Limited - 5150
EKMP Samanvayn Holdings Private . 3538
Limited
Purchase of goads and services Subsidiary  Suzlon Global Services Limited. 191,87 20452
Subsidlary SE Forge Limited 538 BB.07
Sale of goods and services Subsidiary  Suzlon Global Services Limied 3370 4440
Subsidiary Suzlon Guparat Wind Park Limited - 0.38
Subsidiary Suzlon Energy AFS, Denmark umo 043
Subskdiary Suzlon Energy Australia Phy EI.E_1_ -
Limited
Flrance Income Subsiglary Suzlon Gujssat Wind Park Limited 4233 057
Subsiglary AE Rotor Holding B\, 40,08
Subiskdiary Suzlan Global Servicas Limited W 1BETY
Lease rent Incame Subsidiary Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited 0.25 024
EEMP Sarjan Reaitias Private Limited 1L nez
Dther operating income Subsidiany Surion Giobal Services Limitad 4000 A0.00
Finance cost Subsidiary Suzlon Global Services Limited 10634, 69,76
Maragenial terrunaration EMP M. Tulsi B, Tantl . L52
AR Mr Winod B Tamt 520 505
KPR M, Himanshue Moy 622 693
KhP M. JP.Chaiasan 537
EMP M, Ashwan Kumar 270 4.1
Dirsctor sitting fees KMP Wr. Girish B Tantl o) 007
KMP Mr, Marc Desaedelesr 007y 005
KMP Mr. Sameear Shah (AR 0,06
KNP Ms, Ssemantinee Khot 008 0.0s
KMP Mr, Gautam Croshi 008 004
KhP M. Per Homung Pedarsen oG 007
Kitp Mr, Rakesh Sharma - 0.04
KNP M Hiten Timbadia 004 0.05
KMiF M. Pranaw Tonh o0y
Share based payments KMP M. Himanshu Mody 209
X =] Mis. Geatanjall Valdys 047
Sale ol investments Suibyslglary Suzion Enorgy Limitad Macrities 086
Corporate guarantes given Subsidary Suzlon Wind Energy South-Afrlca 9FE3
IPTY} Limited
Corporate guaranies foken Subsidiarny Suzion Global Services Limited 280000 -
Contribution ta various funds Empioyes SEL-Superannuation fund 0.54 020
fungs SEL-Employees group gratulty 188 232
sehome
Relmbursemont of oxpenses payabiie Siibisldiary Suzion Gularat Wind Parlk Limited 0.82
Subsidiany Suzion Global Services Limited - 4,06
Reimbursament of expenses recaivable Subsidiany Suzion Gujarat Wind Park Limited 152 02
Subsidiary Suzrlon Global Senvicas Limited 2043 2298
Subsidiary SE Forge Limited 107 0.34
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42.4 Compensation of key management personnel of the Company recognised as an expense during the financial

year:

March 31, 2023
Short-tarm emplayes benafits 1903 20,24
Post-employment benefits 126 035
Share hased payments 2.6 -
Total 23.45 21.23

42.5 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All transactions with related parties are made on terms eguivalent fo those that prevall inarm's length transactions,
Outstanding balances at the year-and are unsecured and settlemant occurs in cash; There have been no guarantees
provided orf received for any related parly receivables or payables. This assessment i undertaken each financial year
through examining the financial posttion of the related party and the marke? in which the related parly operates

Falr value measurements

The falr value of the finoncial assets ond labllitles dre considensd Lo be same as thalr carrying valuas excaept Tor Invastmants
In ungqusted redeemable cumulative preference shares and put option liabiiity whare the fair valoe has Been sstimated
using the discounted cash fiow ('DCF) model. The valuation requires the management to make cerain assumptions about
the model inputs, inciuding forecast cash flows, the discount rate, credit risk and volatility, The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonabily assessed and are used in management’s astimate af fair value for these
unguoted nstruments.

431 Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation Signiicant Range {welghted  Sensitivity of the input to fair value and

technique unobservable inpuls  average) impact on Profit before tax and Equity
FYTPL DCF method  Incremerntal March 31, 2024 10 15increase In growth rate would result In
redeemabls bomowing rats o 2% increasa of income by ¥ 016 Crors (pravioos
curmlathve Mareh 31, 2023 yaar T0Z Crora) and 19 decreass in growth
preferonco 0% 1012% rate-would resull in decrease of Incomao by
shares 2 018 Crare {presious year 2 013 Crorg)

Fair value hierarchy

There are no transfers betwean level 1 and level 2 and level 3 during the year and earlier comparative periods. The Company's
palicy is to recognise transfers Intoand transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels-a at the end of tha financial yvear,

441 Fair value measurement hierarchy of the company’s financial assets and liabilities at Level- 3:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through profit and loss:

Inwestment in Saradwal Co-aperative Bank Lid, afnh] am
Investment in government secutities 001 o0
Investment iy redeemable preference shares 1452 L4741
Total 114.54 7743
Financial liabilities . -
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44.2 Reconciliation of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss:

o 3207

Investment

Opaning balance £7.43 25.32
Additions during the year 84.86 0ao
Flnance Incame recognised (nstatement af prollt and 1oss 224 2m
Closing balance 11453 3743
Financial labllities

Opening balance - 234750
Finance cost recognised in statement of profit and loss 4578
Extinguishment of Habllity during the year - {2.293.28)

Closing balance - -

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial llacliitles comprise borrowings, rade payables and other llabilltes. The maln purpose of
these financial liabilities |s to finance the Company’s operations, The Company's principal financisl assets include Investments,
loans, trade recelvalles and other assets; and cash and cash equivalents that the company derive directly from its operations,
The Company alsd holds FWVTPL Investments,

The Company is expbsed to market risk. credit risk-and liguidity risk which may adversely impact the fair value: of its
financial instruments. The Company has constituted:an Intemal Risk Managemeant Committee [RMC), which Is respansible
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk managemeant framework. The focus of the BMC is that the Company's
financial risk actiities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are dentified, measured
and manadged In accordance with the Company's policles and sk objochives, It is the Company's policy that no trading in
derivatives for speculative purpases may be undertaken. The Risk Managemeant Pollcy i approved by the Board of Directors,

451 Market risk

Market rsk is the risk that the fair wvalue of future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will flucivate because of changes
in miarket prices

Market risk comprizes three types of risk; interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk, such as commodity
tlsk. The Company's axposura to markal risk 15 primarily on account of intarest risk and Toreign currancy risk. Financial
instruments affectad by market risk inclede loans and borrowings, PYTPL investments and derivative financial
instruments,

The sensitivity analysis in the fallowing sections relate to the position s at March 3120248 and March 31, 2023

a; Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financlal instrument will fluctuste becsuse of
changes in market [nterest rotes,

.  Forelgn currency risk and sensitivity
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes In foreign exchange rates, The Company's exgosure 1o the rsk of changes In forelgn exchange rates
relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revande or expense |8 denominated in a foreign
turrenoy) andthe Company's borrowings and loans and Investments in forgign subsidiaries.
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The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as at the end of the financial year expressed in INR Crore are as

follows
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars 0

EWURO Dihers usp EURD Others
Financial assets
Loans * 63536 -
Investmients - 51506 6B:43 - 5,598.,85 643
Trade receivables 4363 005 5125 .57 0.06
Other assels 8.38 1362 258 179 345 1255
Total E2.08 538 58 71.06 5314 7.538.23 BB.OB
Financial llabllithes
Borrawings 435
Trade payables 429,28 4174 5894 36,68 4% 58.99
Total 42939 41.72 58.94 341.03 427 58.99

Fareign currency sensitivity

The Compiiny's currency exposures in respect of monetary items as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 that result
I net currency gaing and losses in the income stalement and equity arse pringipally from movement in US Dollar

and Eura exchange rates

The following tables demonsirate the sensitlvity to o reasonably possible change In USD and EURD exchange
rates, with all other vanables held constant, The Company's exposure to foreign currency changss for all other
curmancies Is not material, The other currences includes Australlan Dollar, Great Britain Pound, Danish Kroner etc.

Currency Change in Effect on profit before tax and equity
currency rate Mareh 31, 2023
uso FEE [12.88) (14 389
usD -B'% 18.86 .39
EURD FE% [1.47) e
EURC 5% 14 (31.76)
45,2 Credit risk

Credit risk |5 the risk of financial foss to the Company If 8 customer of counter-party falls o meet its contractsal
obligations. The Company s exposed (o credit risk from o5 operating activities [primanly trade receivabies) and from its
financing activites. Progressive lguidity management is being followed to de-risk the Company from any non=fulfilment

aof its liabilities to various creditors, statutory obligations, or any stakeholders.

a Trade receivables

The Company's exposurg to trede recelvables |s limited due to diversiflied customer base, The Company
congistantly manitors progress under its cantracts with customers and sales proceeds are being reatised as per
the milestone payment terms agreed o minimise the loss due fo defaults or insolvency of the customer,

An impalmeant analysis 1= performed at each reporting date on an individual basis Tor major clients. In addition, a
large number of minor recelvables are grouped into homogenous groups ahd assessed (orimpairment collectivily,

b, Financlal Instruments

Firancial Instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit nsk prmarily consist of cashand cash eguivalents,
term depesit with banks, loans given to subsidiaries and other financial assets. Investments of surplus funds are

made only with approved counterparties amd within credit limits assigned.

The Campany's maximum exposure to credit sk as at March 31, 2024 and as al March 21, 2023 is the carrying

value of each class of financial assets,

Rafar Mate 2:3:(qg) for accounting pelicy an financial ingtrumeants.
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45.3 Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to that risk where the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liguidity risk
managemeant 5 1o maintain sufficient lguidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per reguiremeant. In doing
this, management considers both normmal ang stressed conditions: The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously moniforing cash flow forecast and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and labllities.

The table below summarlses the contractual maturity prefile of the Company’s financlal liabilities:

On demand Upto 1 year 2.5 ywars =5 yaars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Borrowings - - g G268 63618
Lease llahilifies - 1450 1817 - 3J0EY
Qther financlal llabililes - 18230 455 - 186.85
Trade and other payables - 192881 - - 193881
Tatal - 2,135.61 2072 63618 279251
Year ended March 31, 2023

Borrowings - 32302 133967 B79.31 233200
Lease labilifies - 5.1 4,599 - 1020
Qther financlal llabiliiles - 22099 339 - 22438
Trade and other paysbles - 106209 - - 106209
Tatal - 161131 1,338.05 679.31 3,628.67

46. Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

a47.
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For detalls of loans and guarantees given to related partles for general corparate purpases refer Mote 11 and Mote 42
For details of investimenls made refer Nole 9,

Ratios and its elements

e 312025 Schrge

Currant ratio ™

Current assetsd Current liabilities 187 084 2TTT
Debt - Equity ratio '

Jotul gebt/ Sharshoiders squily. L 154 (85.26)
Debt service coverage ratio '™

EBITDA {excluding non-cash expansesy (Interast = principal repaymants) 13 006 G860
Return on Equity ratio " '

Met profit after tax - Preference dividend (If any)y Eguity shareholder's funds 003 162 [DE.20)
Inventery turnovar ratio ©

Sales! averages invantony 380 367 .22
Trade receivables turmover ratio ¥

Sales! aversge receivables 457 523 (21.57)
Trade payable turnover ratio ™ T zaa o8 2843
Net credit purchases! average payables

Met capital turnover ratio 1980 (a8 32473}
Sales ! Waiking capital = eurten) assels - Eulrenl

llabliites

Met profit ratio (%)

MNet profit belore exceptional Hems’ Sales 1807 1072 % Ne77
Return on capital employed (%) "'

Earnimgs béfore interest and tax (EBIT) Caplal employed = total pssets - 3 oo (363 % 16371

current liabilities

Return on investment (%)
Finance ncomss! Investmernt 5840 5.93% {156}
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Reasons for variance

il

fial

i
i

vl

There 15 po sigmificant change (Le: change of more than 25% o compored fothe /mmediately previows faoncal yemd o the ey
Nnoncial ratios.

During e o, pursiant o Iafusian of copital by vy of GIF secured borrowings Rave bedn repald iy dnd thereby resuetion in
firrence casl, resuliing i change v the ratio

Frimanty reduction i current motuwites of bomavwdings ond coalroct botiifies hos resuited (nto imaraved coment oo,

The cpemting performance: and iquidin: position for the year (as imanwesd due (g increase i grass margin ond reduction in finance
cost ong depreciotion leading 4o improvement of certomn rados.

Tha mowement in rofio Is due fo incregse in trode recehvobles and imventory resulting into net coment assets 05 ogainst nat current
Nobilities fo previous ear

48, Other information

&

Dunng the financial year 202Z-23, the Company received a show causs notice (SCN) from SEBI, in respect of cerain
speciflc ransaclions betwean the Company and s domestic subsldiates and disclosure of contingent labiiity in
respect of earller financial years from 201314 to 201718, The managemant has responded to the SCN and has denled
the allegations made by the SEBI. Additionally, the management has also filed a settlement application in accordance
with of he Securities and Exchange Board of India (Setllzmeant Proceadings) Regulatlens, 2018 (the "SEBI Sattlament
Regulations™) to settie the matter without admission of guilt with respect to such allegetions. This matter has been
disclosed under contingent liability and the management believes that thers 15 no material impact of this matter on these
standalone financial statements.

On May 02, 2024, the Board of Directars of the Company has approved the Seheme of amalgamation invalving marger
by absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limited {the "Transferor Company” or “SG5SL"), a wholly ownod subsigiany of the
Company, with the Company (the “Transleree Company"), their respective shareholders and creditors under Sectlons
230 to 232 of the Companlas Act, 2013 {the “Scheme?), subject to requisite statidory / regulatory approvals ingluding
thi approval of the Honourable Natianal Campany Law Tibunal. Ahmedabad Beneh ("NCLT").

Furthes, on May 24, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved reduction and reorganisation of reserves
of the Company vide Scheme of Amangement, entalling the following

- seiting-off of negative balance in the retained earnings of the Company agalnst the reserves, viz.. capital redemption
resarve, capital contribution, capital ressrves, securities premium, and genaral reserve of the Company with
appaintad date of March 31, 2024; and

- reclassification and transfer of general reserves Lo retalned earmings of the Company with appointed date of March
31, 2024

Firther the Board of Birectors of the Company granted an in-principie approval for the foliowing restructuring exercises:

i, Transfer vide slumg sale of the Project business, which would be vested with the Company from the Appointed
Date pursuant 10 the approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation of Suzlon Global Services Limited with the Company
by the NCLT, to one ar mome wholly awned subsidiargties) of the Company: and

ii Merger of Suzion Energy Limited, Maurtius, & wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with the Company,

The Company dao not have any Benaml properly, where any proceeding has been Inltlated or pending agalnst the
Company fon holding any Benaml propeity.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the siatutory
period.

The Company have not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned of Invested funds 1o any other personis) or entity(les), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shaill

i, directly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or entifies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on tehalf
of the company [Uifimate Beneficiaries) o

il provide any guarantoe, security or the like te or on behalf of the uitimate baneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(iss), ncluding forsign entities (funding party] with
the understanding {whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise) that the Group shall

I directly ar Indlrectly lend of invest in other persons or entities identified inany manner whatsoever by or on benalf
of the company {Uitimate Benafictanos) or

Il provide any guarantee, security of the like 1o or on behall of the wibmate beneficiaries.
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49,

i The Company have not any such transaction which s not recorded In the books of accounts that has been sumendered
ar disclosed as Income during the year n the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search oo

slvEy),

The Ministny of Corporate Affairs [MCA) has prescribed a new reguiremient for company under the proviso to Rule 3(1)
of the Companies {fccounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Compsnies (Accounts) Ameandment Rules 2021 reguiring
companies, which uzes accounting software for maintoining s books of account, shall use anly such accounting
softwars which has a feature of recording audit trall of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change
mada in the bools of account along with the date witen such changes were made and ansuring that the oudit trail
cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining books of acoount, Duri ng the year ended March 31, 2024, the
Compamy has enabled audit trall {edit log), which has operated throughout the yoar at the application fevel for all relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software. The company has nol enabled the festure of recording awdit trail (ediy
log) at the database level for the sald accounting software o log cerain fransactions recorded with privileged scoess and
any direct data changes onaccount of recommendstion In the accounting software administration guide which states that
enabling the saime all {the time consumes storage space an the disk and ean impact database pedormance significantty. The
end user of the Company do not have any access to database IDs which can make direct data changes (create, channe,
delete)at database level.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital managemant, capital includes fssuad equity capital, share premium and all other
equlty resenees attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capltal managemant
Is to safeguard s sbility to reduce the cost of capltal and [o maximise sharsholder valua.

The Company manages s capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. Te maintaln or adjust the copital structure, the Company mey acdjust the dividand
payment to sharsholders, retum capital fo shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, The Company
manitors capital using a gearing ratle, which is net debt (total borrowings and lease liabilities net-of cash and cash equivalents
divicled by total eguity {as shown in the balance sheet)

The gearing ratios are as foliows:

e 3 203

Met delb 40372 2,05156
Talal equity 360685 1.419.29
Met debt to equity o 145

The net debt to equity ratio for the current year reduced as a result of QIF and tighter monitoring of rade receivable payments,
which resulted in an Increase in operating cash flows and cazh held by the Company at the end of the year.

The Company have regrouped! reclassified the figures of the previous year wherever necessary Lo confirm with current year
prasentation. The impact of such reclassification’ ragrouping s not material to-the standalone financial statemants

As per our report of even cote

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Far and on belall of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Suzlon Energy Limited

ICAI Firm Regletration Number: O00FENNS00M3

Shashi Tadwalkar Vined R. Tantl J. P. Chalasan|

Partner Chairman-and Managjing Difector Graug Chiel
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Membership No: A18026
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report el Moor. Linit Ne. 310 1 312
Wimat Wirsg, Myat Linitres
To the Membors of Suzlon Global Services Limited Magar Road, Yarwada,
Pune - 411 606
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statomants Maharashir. Inde
T #8120 G744 BABN
Opinlon F+21 20/G744 8809

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Suzlon Global Services Limited {'the Company'),
which comprlse the Balance Shee! as al 31 March 2024, the Stalament af Profit and Leas (including Other
Comprehensive [ncome), the Steterment of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes In Equity for the year
than anded, and notas to the financlal statemants, including material accounting polioy infarmation and other
explanatary (nfarmation,

I our opinian and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements qlve tha infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2093 (*the Act') In tha mannar o
raguirad and giva a8 trus and faie view in eonfarmmily with the Indian Accounting Standards [(Ind AS"Y specifed
under section 133 of he Act read with the Companias (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles ganarally acoapted In India, of the state of affairs of tha Company as gt 31 March 2024,
and Itg profit (including other comprehansive incoma), its cash lows and the changes in equity for the year
gnded an thal dite,

Bagls for Opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards an Auditing specified under seclion 143(10) of the
Act Our msponsiblities undar those standards are further dasaribed in the Auditor's Raspongibilities far tha
Aldit of tha Financlal Statements section of our repart. We are independant of the Company in accordanca
with the Code of Ethies issusd by the |nstitute of Charared Accountants of India ('ICAl') togathar with tha
ethical requiremants that are relevant to our audit of tha financial statemants undar the provisions of the Act
aned the rules thersunder, and wa have fulfiled our other ethical respanslbliilies In accordance with these
raquiramants and the Code of Ethics. Wa balieve that the audit evideance we have oblained s sufficiant and
apprapriate o provida a basis far aur opinlen

Information othar than the Financlal Statemaonts and Auditar's Repart thereon

The Campany's Baard of Rirectors are responsible for the other information. The ather informaltion comprses
the Infemation included in the Director's Report bul does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's raporl therson,

Our apimion on the financial statements does nol cover the other information and we do nol exprass any farm
of assurance conclusion tharaon.

In eonnection with our audil of the financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmatian
and, in dolng so, considar whethar the other information B matedally inconsistent with the' financal
statamants or our knowledge obtained n the audit or otherwise appears to be materally misstated. Y, based
on the work we have paerformed, wa conclude that there is a materal misstatement of this other informatlan,
we are raquired ta report that fact

The Director's Report is not made avallable to us at the date of this auditor's repert We have nothing to
raport 0 this regard

Clwisiml drnninil Wil Chareliok & Cao AP v reg isierod
wifils bt Hoh iy vim ioosiifction

Cfiess i Avnai Tiergitin Chiselegmt Clisess Dbt Ges, hisgpes, Vpteeh goon Kebaty, Misea b AAT-FEING Al I (b reynined

i Clasi, ) nsn (] 190 e il ) LA Doneasigml Cevn, Dilnd

Chiia, Mtk Dulni, TV0007, [nilis
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statemants have baan approved by the Company's Brard of Dimctors. The
Campany's Beard of Directors are responsibla for the mattars stated in section 124(5) of the Act with respect
to the praparation and prasantation of thess inanclal siatemants that glve o trus and falr view of tha linancsal
pasition, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changss n egquity and cash flows ot
the Campany In accardance with the Ind AS spacified under seclion 133 af the Acl and other secounting
principles generally accapted in India, This responsibility also includes maintanance of adequate accounting
macords In accordence with the provisions of e At for safeguarding of the assels of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other Iregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting
policles; making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudant; and design, implemantation and
malntenance of adequate intamal financial contrals, that wera oparating affactivaly for ansuring tha accuracy
and completaness of the accounting records, ralevant o the preparation and prasentation ol Ihe financial
statemants thal give a trus and falr view and are fraa from matarlal misstatement, whather due t fraud or
Arror

In preparing the financial statemants, the Boerd of Directors 8 responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue ag & going concarn, disclosing, as applleabile, matters ralatad to golng concerm and using
the guing concern basis of accounting untess the Hoard of Directons either intends to liquidate the Company
or 16 ceasn opamlions, or hes no reslistic alternative but to do sa,

The Board of Direclors Is also responsible for overseging the Company's financlal reparting process.
Auditar's Responslbllities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objactives ara (o obtaln reasonable assurance zhout whather the financial statemeants as a whola ara
free fram mataral misstatemant, whathar dua o fraud ar arrar, and to [8sus an auditar's repart thist ineludes
our opinian. Reasanable assurance |s & high level of assutance but & not a guarantes that an audit
conductad in accordance with Standsrds on Auditing will always datact g matanal misstalamant when {1
mxists, Misstalaments can arise from fraud or error and are considesad material 1 individually or in tha
sggragata, they could reasonably be expected 1o Influence the economic declsions of users teken on the
besis of these financial statemants

As part al an audit in sccardance with Standerds on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Acl we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

= |dentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or grror, design and parfom audit procedures responsive (o those rsks, and oblein audit evidenocs thet
Is suffictent and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a materfal
misstatsmeant resulllng frem lravd B higher than for one rasulting rem eror, as fraud may volve
collusion, forgery, intantional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf,;

= Dutaln an undarstanding of internat control ralevent to the auditin ordar to design audit procedures that
ari appropriata in the circumstances. Undar saction 143(3)(i) of tha Act we ere also responsible for
axpressing our oplilon on whather the Company has adequate intemal fnancial contrals with reference
lo financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of sudh contrals;

« [wvaluate the appropnatensss of accountng policies used and the reasonablensss of sccounting
estimales and relatad disclosures made by managament,

s Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncerainty exists related to events or
condltions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to cantinue as a golng coneem. If
wa conclude thal a material uncedtainty exists, we ane raguired to diaw attantion in our auditor's reporn
lo the related disclosures in the financial statemants ar, if such discisures are inadequata, o madify
our aplnion. Our conclusions are based on the audlt evidence obtained up 1o the date of our audilor's
report. Howeavar, futlire evants or conditions may causa the Company to ceass to continue as & going
conoan, and
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« Evaluate ihe overall presentation, structure and content of the fnancinl stalaments, inaluding the
disclosures, and whathar the finanoial statements represent the underlying ransactions and ovants in
amanner that achiaves falr presentation

Wi communicate with those chargad with governance regarding, among othar maltems, the planred scopa
and timing of the audit and significant audit findinas. including any significant deficiencies in intermal contral
thist we [dentity during aur avdit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As raquired by section 187(18) of the Act based on our audit, we raport that the Company has pald
ramuneration to its directors during tha year in acoardance with the provisions of and mits laid down untier
sagbon 197 read with Scheduls V o the Act

As raguired by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 (the Order') issued by the Central Govemment
ol Ingdia in tarmes of saction 143011) of the Act we ghve inthe Annexute | @ statement on the matiers specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, tothe extent applicable.

Further o our comments In Annexure |, as required by sectlon 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
raport. (o the extent applicable, that!

a) We have seuahl and oblained all the Infarmalion and explanations which (o tha Best of sur knowledpea
and beliaf wero necessary for the purposa of our audit of the acoompanying financial statements;

b) Inaurapinlon, proper books of account as required by law have bean kepl by the Company so l4r &s it
appears from our examination of thosa books. excapl for the matters stated in paragraph 130000} below
an mepoding undar Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Audiors) Rules, 2014 (as amandead),
Further, the back-up of the booxs of accounts and other books and papers of the Company maintained
in eloctronic mocde has bean maintaned on sorvors physically located in Inda, on @ daily basis,

ey The financlsl statamenls dealt with by this eporl ore in agresmant with the books of acoount,

d) 10 our opinton, the aluresald inanclal statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
At

&) On the basis of the writtan reprasantations recelvad from the directars and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors iz disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appoinead a8 a director
in terme of section 164(2) of tha Act;

fi  The quolification ralating to tha malnteranas of aceounts and other matters connactod themewith are gs
stated in the paragraph 13(h) above on raporting undsr section 143(3)(E) of the Act and paregraph
13wy below on reporting under Rila 11(g) of the Companies {(Audlf and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [4s
amendad);

g} With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financlal statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectivaness of such conlrols, refer o our
separats reparl in Annexure || whersin we have expressed a modified opinjion, and

Iy With respact to the other matten Lo b ngludad in e Auditer's Rapon in accordanca with rula 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), In our opinion and to the best of our
infarmation and aceording to the explanations given 1o us:

I The Company, as detalled in Mote 35 to the financial statements, has disclosad the impact of
panding litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024;

i, The Company did not have any long-tarm contracts including derlvative contracts for which thare
were any matarial foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

il Thare wara no amounts which were required to be trapsferred to the Invastor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,
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Wl

a. The management has reprasented that, to the best of s knowledge and beliel, on the date
of this audil report ns disclosed n Note 4301 to the Gnaneial stalaments, no funds have boaan
advancad or ioaned or investad (aithar from borowed funds ar sscurities pramium or any
otiver sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any person or entity, Including foralgn
gnlities ('the inlermediaresy, with the understanding, whather recorded 0 writing or
otherwise, thal the Intermadiary shall, whether, directly or Indirectly lend or Invest in other
persons ar antities identified in any manner whatsoavar by ar on bahall of ths Campany (‘tha
Uttimate Benaficiaries') or provide any guarantas, secunty or tha like on behalf the Ulimats
Bonahciones,

b. The management has represented 1hat, to the bast of its knowledge and beliel, on the tlatis
of this audil report as disclosed in Note 43(g) to the inancial statements, no funds have bean
raanivad by the Company fram any pamaon ar anlity, ineluding foraign entitias ('the Funding
Partiag'), with the understanding, whether recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in othar parsons or entities identified in any
manner whatseaver by or on behalf af tha Funding Party ('Ultmate Benaficlares') or provide
any guarantes, security or the like an behall of the Ultimate Beneficianes; and

& Based on such audil procedures performad as considered reasonable and approprists in the
gircumstances, nothing hes como to our notice that has caused us to bolleve that the
managamant mpresantations under sub-clavses (@) and (b) above contalin any material
misstatemenl.

The Company has not deglared or paid any dividend dunng the year ended 31 March 2024,

Based on our examination which Included test chacks, the Caompany, In respect of lnanckal year
commencing an 1 Aprl 2023, kas used an accounting softwara for maintaining its books of account
which hes @ featura of recording audit trail (edit log) faciity and the same has been operated
throughout thie year for all ralevan! transactions recorded ih the software except that the audit trail
faature was no! anabled al the databasa leval for socounting soltwere o lag any direst data
changes, as dascribed in Note 43() to the financial statements. Further, dunng the course of our
audit we did not come agross any instance of aud|t rall faslure being tamperad with, in respecl of
thiz accounting software where such feature s enabled.

As proviso (o Rule 3(1) of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Is applicable from 1 Aprl 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Audltors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutery requirements for meoord retention is nat applicable for the financial
yaar ended 31 March 2024,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accounlants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/MNS00013

e

Shashl Tadwalkar

FParnar

Membership Na.: 101787

UDIN: 24101797BKCPCJI288T

Flace: Pung
Date: 23 May 2024
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Annexura | raferred to In Paragraph 12 of the Indepandent Auditor's Report of even date 1o the
members of Suzlon Global Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the baoks of
account and records examined by us in the nomal couwrse of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
bellel, wa repart that,

{iy (=) (A) The Company has maimained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative:
dotals and situation of properly, plabt and equipmant, capital work-in-prograss and ralevant
details of right-of-use assels.

(B) The Company has maintained proper racords showing full particuiars of intanglble assels,

{b) The Carmpany has & regular programime of physical venflcatlon of ts property. plant and sdquipment
and rajevant details of fdght-ofuse assets undar which the pssets are physically varified in a
phased manner over a perlod of three years, which In aur apinian, Is reasonable having regard to
the size al the Company and the nature of its assels. In accordance with this programme, cartain
property, plant and squipmant and relevant detatts of right-of-use assets were varifled during the
yaar and no matenal discrepancles wera notlced on such verlfication

fe) The title deads of all the Immavabla propartias held by the Company (othier than propoarties whier
the Company 5 the lesses and the lease agresmants ame duly executed in favour of the lessee),
disclozad in Mote 4 to the financial statements, are hald in the name of the Company, excapt for
the following properies:

Description Gross Hald In Whaether Pariod Reason  for not
of property carrylng | name of promoter, | held being  held In
valuo director or name of company
(Rs. In their
Crora) relative or
employee S| S ————
16 freshold 10.50 Suzlan NA 10 years | The tlle deeds are
landa |ocated Windfarm n. the pame of
al varlous Services SWSPL, arstwhile
logations Prvate Limited SEL - OmMs
admeasuring ('SWSPL') divisian, which was
57.3 nores maemed  with  tha
Company w.ef 28
Marah 2014
2 frashaold 0.48 Suzlon M 4 yaars The title deeds are
lands |ocated Powar in the name of SPIL
at mltiple Infrastructure which was merged
locations Limted with the Company
ndmeasuring ('SPILY woel
4.4 acres ] 01 April 2020

{d) The Company has adopted cosl model for its property, plant and equipment Including rght-of-use
assets and intangible asselts Accordingly, reporling under clause 3{D{d) of the Crdar 5 not
applicable to the Company.

(g} Mo proceedings have been initialed or are pending against the Company for holding any benam|
proparty under the Frohibition of Benami Proparty Transactions Act, 1988 (as amendad) and nles
made thereunder.

[liy (&) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals dunng
the yeer, excepl for goods-in-tranait and inventory lying with third parties. In our opinfon, ihe
coverage and procedure of sush verfication by the managament is approprigte and no
dlscrepancies of 10% or more In the aggregate for each class of inveantory wera nofioed as
comparad o book records, In respect of Invantary lying with third parties, thess have substantially
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(il

{iv)

v)

{wl)

been confirmed by the thirg parties and in respect of goods-in-tansil, theses have been confirmed
from onrraap-nndlng recélpt andior dispateh inventory reconds.

{b)  Tha Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
thi basls of security of aurrent assats al any point of ime during the year, Accordingly, repoarting
undar clause 3(i)b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According 1o the information and explapatons given o us and on the basis of our examination of the
recards of tha Company, the Company has not made Investments in or granted advances in the nature
df loEns to companies, firms, lmitad lablity partnarships or any othor parties duting the yaar. Tha
compeny has elso not provided any guarantees or secunty or granted loans to firms, limited liability
pardnerships or any other parles during the year, Furher, the Company has provided guarantes,
saourity and granted unsscurad loans to companies during the year, in respact of which:

{a) Tha Company has provided loans, guarantee and securty lo Subsidiary and Holding Company
during the year gs par delails glven below:

Particulars Guarantees Laans
Aggragate amount providad! aranted during the yesr [Hs,

It Crore).

- Subsidiary . 2,50
< Halkeing Company 2,800 .

Balance outstanding as at balance sheel data n respect
of above cases (Rs. In Crore).

Subsidiary . 1068 20
= Holding Company 2 800 -

5

(b}  Inauropintan, and according to the Information and explanations given 1o us, guarantees provided,
sacurlty glven ahd lerms and gonditions of the grant of all louns | guarantzas and seaurity providad
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the nterest of the Company,

(e} |nrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repaymant of principal and payment
of interast has been stipulated and principal amount including interest is not dua for repaymeant
currantly

{d)  Thire s no overdus amourt (n eepect of loan grantad o subsidiary

(&) The Company has not granted any loan which has fallen due deting the year. Further, no fresh
loans wera granted to any party to settis the overdue loans/advances n nature of loan that existed
as at the baginning of the year

ify  The Company has not granted any loan which s repayable on demand or without specifying any
tarms or parod of repaymaent.

In our opinion, and accomding to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has
compiad with the provisions of section 186 of the Adt in respect of loans and Investmants made ancd
guarantees and securlty provided by It, as applicable. Further, the Company has not enterad into any
transaction covared (nder section 186 of tha Aot

I pur opinlon, and according Lo the Information and explanations glven to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or thene are no amounts which have besn desmed ta be deposits within tha
meaning of sectiong 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companias (Accaptanca of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order ia nol applicable o the Company.

The Cantral Governmant haa spacified malnlananca of cost roords under sub-section {1) of section
148 of the Act anly in respect of specified products of the Company. For such products, we have
broadly raviewed the books of account malntalined by the Company pursusnt to the rules made by the
Central Govammant for the maintenance of cost records under the aloresald section, and are of the
opinion that, prima taole, the prescribed accounts and records have bean mado and malntained
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Howavar, we hava not made a detailed axamination of the cost records wilh 8 view (o determing
whether thay am accurate or complele

(vil) {a)

(b}

In aur opinien, and accarding to the information and explanalions given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state nsurance, income-tax,
sales-lax, service lax, duty of customs, duly of exclss, value sdded tox, cess and ather material
statutory duss, as applicable, have ganarally besn regulardy deposited with the appropriate
aulhorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays In a lew cases pertaining 1o
professians tox, Furthar, no undisputed amounts payable in respact thareol ware outatanding at
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payabla.

Aceording to the Informalion and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues refarred in
sub-clausa (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authoritles on accaunt af any
dispute except for the following:

Name of the  Nature afl | Amount Poriod to | Forum whare disputs
statute dues (Ris. In | which the | is pending
Grara) amount
relates.
{Financial
= Year)
The Customs Aot | Custom Duty 0.08 | FY2021-22 | The Customs Excise
1862 and  Service  Tax
Appallale Tribunal

Madhya Pradesh | BOCW Cess 178 | FY 201819 | Tha Hararable High
Bulldings and Other Court
Canstrietion
Warkars ["HOCW)
Rules, 2002
The Goods & | Goods and 083 FY2020-21 | Joint  Commissioner
Services Act, 2017 | Services Tax {Appeala)

* stated net of Rs. 0.10 crore paid under protest

(will} Accarding to the Information and axplanations given to Us, no trapsactions wera surrendered of
discinsed as income durlng the year in the tax assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1087 (43 of
1881) which have nol been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(=) (@)

()

fc)

{d)

{e)

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulled in
repaymant of its loans or borrowings or in thi paymant of interast thereon (o any lender,

Aecording to tha information and explanatons given o us including representaton recelvad from
the managamant of the Gampany, and on the basls of our audil procedures, wi mport that thie
Company has not been declared a willful defauller by any bank or financial institution or
govammant or any govammant nuthority.

Ir our aplilan and sccording to the Information and explanations glven to us, ths Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the yaar and did not have any term loahs
outstanding at the beainning of the currant yaar. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x)c) of the
Order is nat applicabla to the Company

In aur eplnion and according to the Information and explanations given o us, and on an ovarall
axamination of the financlal statemants of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basls have, prima facie, nol been ulilised for long term purpesas.

Ancording to the Iinformation and explanations givan o us and on an everall examination of the

financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on aceount of ar to meet the obligations of its subsidiary,
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]

{x} (=)

{b)

{xi) {m)

(il

(i)

(B)

()

According to tha information and explanations given to us, the Gompany has nol ralsed any loans
during the year on the pledas of securities hald in s subsidiary

The Company has not raised any monay by way of initial pubile offar or further public offer
(Including debt Instrurmants), during tha year Accordingly, reporling undaer clause 3ix)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Acoording lo the infarmation and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our axamination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any praferential allatmant or private
placament of shares or (fully, partialy or optionally) convertible dabentures during the year
Acoordingly, reparting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order & not appllcabla to the Gampany,

To the bast of our knowladpe and according Lo the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company orno fraud on the Company has been noticed or mported during he penod
covamd by our audit, excapt. as stated in Nota 43(h) lo the accompanying financial statements,
that an amployes of the Company, not belng @ Key Manageral Personnel, was involvad in
suspecied fraudulent aclivities during prior years, wheraby, the said employee [ssued unauthonsed
cradit dotes, made fraudulent edits n the nvoles ssued 1o customer, fabricaled customears'
purchasa orders to facilitate invoice generation and supply of goods, and faclliteted unauthorised
tranaactions with the Company's customears and vendors, Based an the extent of review conducled
by the managament il date, management has [dentified fraudulent transactions aggregating to
Rs. 0.54 Crores, with further potentially suspicious transactions being identified by us whilst
parforming our audit procaduras. Pending complation of the comprabensive review uhdertaken by
the management, the Impact of the said fraud, In ils entirety, on the financial statamants s currently
not detmrminable. Howevar based on the prograse of the intemal mensgement raviaw,
marnapement axpacts such impact to be immaterial

Aceording te the Information and explanations glven to us including the representation made to us
by tha management of the Company, no reporl under sub-section 12 of saction 143 of the Aot has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Cantral Governmant for the period covered by our audit

Howover, dunng the year, we have meported to the Audit Committes of the Gompany our reasons
to believe that a suspected offence Involving fraud was committed against the Campany by an
emplayee, nol belng & Key Managerlal Persannel Upan raceipt of the response fram the Audit
Committea of the Company, we wolld comply with the requirements of the Rule 13(3)(b) of the
Audlt Rules and the Guidance Mole on Reporting on Fraud under Sacton 143(12) of the
Companias Act, 2013, if applicable,

According 1o the Informaticn and explanations glven to us, the Company has recalved whislle
blower complaints during the year, which have been considerad by us while delamining the
nature, timing and axtent of audit procedures. (Also refer clause («){a) and (xl){b) above).

The Company is not a Nidhi Gompany and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it Accordingly,
reporting undar clausa 3(xi) of the Ordar ls not applicable to the Cempany,

Ir aur opinian and according ta the Information and explanations given to us; all transactions entarad
Inte by tha Company with the related paries ar in complisnes with sectisne 177 and 188 of tha Act,
wherz applicable. Further, the details of such releted party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements, &8s requred under Indlan Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24, Roelated Party
Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2016 as prascribed under
section 133 of the At

{xlv) (a)

Invour apinion and according to the Information and explanatians given e us. the Company has an
internal audit aystem which ig commansurate with the size and nature of iis business as reguired
under the provisions of section 138 of the Act

Fago 8 of 11



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

{xv)

{xvi)

(xwil)

(vl

(xlx)

()

(exl)

b Wa have considarad tha reports tssuad by the Intarmal Auditors of the Gompany Ul date for the
parod undar audit

Aecarding o the information and explianation given to us, the Company has not enterad into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with iis directors and accordingly, raporting
under clauss: 3(xv) of the Ordar with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Aot are nol applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 46-1A of the Resarve Bank of India Act,
1634, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3{xvi)(a), (b) and () of tha Ordar are not applicabla (o tha
Company,

() Based on the infomation and axplanations glven 1o us and as reprasantad by the managermant of
the Company. the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2018) doas not have any CIC

The Campany has not incurred any cash lossas in the current financlial year as wall as the immediataly
precadding financlal year

Thera has bean no resignatian of the statulory aud(tors dunng the year. Accord|ngly, reparting undar
clausa 3{xviil) af the Owler (8 nol applicabla (o tha Company.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and on tha basis al the financlal ratios,
ageing and expested dates of realisation of financial gssets and payment of financial llabiites, ather
Infarmation In the financial statements, aur knowledge of the plans of the Board of Direclors and
managemeant and basad on our examination of the evidenca supporting the sssumptions, nothing has
come to our attention. which causes us to believe that any matenal unceriainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company s not capable of mesting it labilites existing al the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within @ period of one year from the hbalanee sheel date,
Wa, howsver, slate thal this is notl an assurance as lo the future viabl|lity of the company We (urthear
state that our reporting |s basad on the facts up o the date of the audil repot and we nejthar glve any
guaraniee nor any assurance that all lisbilities falling due within-a period of one year from the balance
shaot date, will get discharged by the company as and whan they fall dus.

According 1o the infarmation and explanations given o us, the Company does nat have any drspaen
amounts towards Corporate Soelsl Responsibility In respaat of any nngoing or other than ongoing
project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order s
not applicabla to the Company

The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order s not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company, Accordingly, no commant has bean Includad in respact of sald
clause undar this report

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartared Accountants
Firm's Reglstration No.; 001076N/NS00013

Shas
Partn

—
hi Tadwalkar
i

Membarship No. 101797

LUDIN : 24101797BKCPCJSRBY

Plage. Pune
Date: 23 May 2024
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Annaxura Il ta the Indepandant Auditar's Report of aven date ta the members of Suzlon Global
Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independont Auditor's Report on the intornal firaneial controls with reference to the financial
statoments under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Soctlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act')

In conjunctian with our audit of the linancial staterments of Suzlon Global Services Limited (‘tha Company’)
as ol and for the year anded 31 March 2024, wo have audited the intemal financial oontrols with eference
to financial statements of the Company es at thal date.

Rosponsibilities of Managoment and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Finaneial Controls

Tha Campany's Board of Directors s responsible for establishing and maintaining intermal financial controls
based on Intermal inanalal controls with referenci to financial stalements criterla established by the Campary
gansidering the essantial componants of internal control steted in Guidance note on Audit of Internal
Financlal Gontrols Owver Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note') issued by Institute Of Chartered
Accountants of India (CAIY These responsibllities indude the design, implementation and malntenance of
adequata internal Ninancial controls that wera oparating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
gonduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policles, the safaguarding of Its
assals, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the tmaly praparation of raliable Anansial information, as required undor tha Al

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financlal Controls with Reference to Financlal
Statoments

Cur responsibility 18 (0 express @n oplnion on the Company's intarmal financlal contrals with reference to
financial statements based on our audit,. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing lssbed by the Instifute of Chartared Accountants of India {'ICAI") prescribad under Section 143{10)
of tha Act, to the extent applicable o an audit of intemal finandial controls with reference to Rnancial
statements, and the Guldance Mote on Audit of Intermal Financlial Gontrols Ovar Financial Reporting (‘tha
Quldance Nola') ssued by the [CAl Those Standards and the Guidance Mote requira that wie comply with
ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonabla assurance about whather adequate
Intarnal financial controla with refarence ta financlal statemants were estabiishad and malntained and if suah
cantrois oparatad affectively in all material respects,

Qur audit involves perfomming procedures to obten audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to linancdal statements and their operating effectivenass, Our audit of intermal
financial controls with references to financial statements indudes abtaining an understanding of such intamal
fingnctal controls, assesaing the risk that a materal waakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating elfeativenass of intermal control based on the assassed risk. The proceduras selected depand
on the auditor's |udgemeant, including the assessment of the risks of matarial misstatamant of the financial
statarments, whether dus (o fraud o eror,

Wi balieve (hal the audit avidence we have oblained I8 sulficient and approprigte o provide § basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's-internal financial controls with referance o financial statemants.

Maaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financlal Statemants

A epmpany's intamal linanelal contrals with raferancs o financial statemenld is 8 process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the mliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
stelemants for extarnal purposes in ascordance with generally acceplad accounting princlples. A company's
internal financial controls with refereanca to financial statements include those policies and procadures that
(1) perain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detall, accuratety and fairly raflest the
transactions and dispositfons of the assels of the company; (2] provide measonable assurance thal
trapsactions are recorded as pecessary o permit preparation of financial statemants in accordance with
gonarally scceptod accounting principles, and that recoipts and expandiures of the company ar being made
anly In accordance with authorisations of management ard directars of Ine company, and (3) provida
reasonable assurance rogarding provention or limely detection of unauthorsad apquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's azsets that could have a material effect on the financial stalemants
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statamants

Bucaise of the inberant mitatione of jplemal financal controls with reference o inancial statements,
inciuding the possibility of collusion or iImproper management ovaride of contrals, matedal misstatemants
due 1o arror of fraud mey ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intarmal
financial controls with referance to financial statements to fulure perods are subject to the rsk that the
internal finenctal controls with reference ta financial statements may becoma inadequate becausa of changas
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poligies or procedures may datenorate

Qualified Opinion

Ascording to the Infarmation and axplanations glvan o us and basad on our audit, @ materlal weaknoss has
bean Identified in tha oparating affectiveness of the Company's intermal financial controls with refarance o
financial statemants as at 31 March 2024 wherein, tha Company's internal financlal contrel system over
timely raconcliiation of customer balances ware not operating effectively, which could potentially lead to
matenal misstalements in he carmying value of Company’s trade receivables and comaspanding pravisian
far maching availability and its consequential impact on the retated disclosures in the financlal statemants
Also rafer Nole 43(h) to the accompanying finencial statements.

A 'material waaknass' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiendes, in Intemal flnancial cantrols with
rafarance to financlal atatemants, auch that thore I8 a reasonable possibllily that & matarial misstat@mant of
the company's annual or intenm financial statements will not be pravented or detected on a limely basis,

In aur apinian, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements as at 31 March 2024, based on internal contral over financial reporting critera
astablished by ths Company considaring the assantial componants of intermal control &lated in the Guldance
nate, and except for the posaible affects af the matarial weaknesses described above on the achjevemeant
of the objectives of tha control critena, the Company’s intamal financlal cantrols with reference Lo financial
statemants ware oparating affectivaly as at 31 March 2024

We have considered the maleral weaknass identified and reportad above I determining the natune, tming,
and axtent of aud/t tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company as at and for the
yaar ended 31 March 2024, and this material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial
statamants of the Company

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Charterad Accountants

Firm's Registration Mo 00107EN/NSO0013
g

Shashl Tadwalkar

Partrer

Mambership MNo.: 101787

UDIN: 24101797BKCPCJ9BBT

Place Pune
Date: 23 May 2024
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Buzlon Global Bervices Limied

Statemen! of ehangus in agquity for the yoar onded March 31, 2024

Al smawn!s in ® Cror, uniess olanise sinind

o Equlty share capital {rafer Note 14)

Equily thaces, subscribed and fully, parily paid Mo in Crare  # in Crora
Am ot April 01, 2023 &0 83T
{ssue of eqully share capiial . -
Al March 31, 2084 204 2047
As ot Aprll B9, 2022 284 2037
Issus of equity share capieal i.00* i.an*
As at Mereh 31, 2023 2.04 .37
L. Other sgulty (rofer Note 15)
“Equily component Gagltal Gonaral  Seaurilies Capitsl  Retained Total
af pompound Ronarvi IO pramium  sandbution aamings
linancial
Inmirumanis
As ol April 01, 2023 671 194,51 LN 922.20 13180 (1,361,80) 1)
Profit for the yaar . . . . . 828,74 20,74
Dither comprishensiva income | (ioss) (rafer Mats an) = - - - . 31 a.74
As of March 34, 2004 0.7u 194,51 240 972,20 131.80 (E2B.A1) B30.37
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Uiha comprehansive income / (loss) {refer Note 30) - - - - - (3.79) (8,19)
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Extinguishmant of Cumnulative Convertible Prefarance
Fivory = . T - AL
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Rufer Note 15 for nifurs and purpose of fesenves
“Laat than ¥ 0,01 Crare

Summary of materinl necounting policy iInformation (rafor Nots 2.3)

The nccompanying notes are an inbegral par of fosncinl AEmmanis
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Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in ¥ Crore, uniess otherwise stated

1. Company information

Suzlon Global Services Limited ('SGSL' or the ‘Company') having CIN: U27109GJ2004PLC044170, is a public
Gompany domiclled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India.
The registered office of the Company Is localed at "Suzlon", 5 Shrimali Soclety, Near Shree Krishna Complex,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad — 380 009, India. The principal place of business is Its headquarters located at One
Earth, Hadapsar, Pune - 411 028, India.

The Company Is primarily engaged in the business of operation and. maintenance service ('OMS') of Wind
Turbine Generators (WTG's), project execution and power evacuation (collectively referred to as Project
Division) and power generation business.

The financial statements were authorised for jssue in accordance with a resolution of the direclors on
May 23, 2024.

2. Basis of preparation and material accounting policy information

2.1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Campanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule II1), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
= cerain financlal assets and liabilities {including derivative financial instruments) is measured at fair value;
¢ defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

The financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees ¥ and all values are rounded to the nearest Crore
(INR 0,000,000} up to two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue lo operate as going
concern.

2.2, Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards ) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 o amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2023, The Company applied for the first-lime the amendment,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirament for entities to disclose their 'significant accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their 'material' accounting policias and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policles, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items In the Company's financial statements.

Apart from above there are few other amendments apply for the first time for the year ended March 31, 2024
but do not have an impact on the financial stalements of the Company. The Company Intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable,




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in ¥ Crore, unless otherwise stated

2.3. Summary of material accounting policy information
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabllities In the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unlaess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period,

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability is current when:

+ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
* Itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There Is no unconditional right to defer the setllement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

Deferred lax assets and llabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities. The Company
classifies all other llabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

b. Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian ¥, which is also the Company's functional
Gurrency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction,

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslaled using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monelary ilams are recogn|sed in statement of
profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost In a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value Is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change In fair value of the tem (l.e., translation differences on items
whase fair value gain or loss is recognised In OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in QCI or profit or
loss, respactively).

¢. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llability takes place either:




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in # Crore, unless otherwise stated

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or lability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thelr economic bast Interost,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are avallable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable Inpuls.

All assats and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial stalements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or liabllities.
* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Inpul that Is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowes! level input that s significant to the fair value
measurement |s unobservable,

For assels and llabllities thal are recognised In the financial statements on arecurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categarisation
(based on the lowest level input that |s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period,

The Company management delermines the policies and procedures for recurring and non-recurring fair
value measurement. Involvement of external valuers is decided upan annually by company management.
The management decides after discussion with external valuers about valuation tech nigue and inputs lo
use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company's management analysas the movements in the values of assets and
liabllities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting palicies,
For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agresing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The Company, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also comparaes the change in the fair
value of each asset and liabillty with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes

* Quantitative disclosures of falr value measurement hierarchy [refer Note 39]
* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) [refer Nole 2.3(n)]




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in ¥ Crore, unless otherwise stated

d. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers Is recognised at the point In time when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the cuslomer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expecls to be enlitled In exchange for those goods or services.

il

vb

Opaeration and maintenance income (‘OMS’)

Revenues from operatien and malntenance contracts are recognised over the perlod of the contract and
measured using output method because the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the
benefits provided to them.

. Project execution

Revenue from project execution, consisting of installation, erection and commissioning of WTG's i
recognised on completion of the respective aclivities identified as per terms of the sales order, net of
taxes charged.

Power evacuation infrastructure facilities (‘PE")

Revenue from power evacuation infrastructure facilities is recognised upon commissioning and electrical
installation of the WTG to the said facilities followed by appraval for commissioning of WTG from the
concerned authorities.

Power genaration

Income from power generation Is recognised on sale of unit generated and invoiced to respactive state
electricity board.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods Is recognised in the statament of profit and loss at the point in time when
control of the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the respective sales order, generally
on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of consideration
recelved or recelvable, nel of returns and allowances and discounts.

Paymant terms:

The Company considers whether there are other promises In the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a partion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties). In determining
the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Company considers the effects of variabla consideration
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Variable considaration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideralion to which It will be entitied In exchange far transferring the services to the customer. The
confracts for sale of services provide customers with a right for penalty for parformance shortfall of the
guarantee assured.

Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers, Using the practical expediant
in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component If It expects, at contract incaption, that the period between the transfer
of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service
will be one year or less,




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in ¥ Crore, unless otherwise staled

Contract balances

I. Contract assets

A contracl assel is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset Is recognised for the earned consideration
that Is conditional.

ii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {l.e.,
only the passage of time Is required before payment of the consideration is due), Refer to accounting
policles of financial assets in section (n) Finanaial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

lli. Contract liabilities

A contract liabllity Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a ocustomer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is dua) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment Is due (whichever is earller). Contract liabllities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract,

. Taxes

Currant income tax

Current Income lax assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected lo be recovared from ar
pald to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and lax laws used o compute the amount are thase that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss Is recognised either in
other comprehensive Income ('OCI') of In equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates the positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject fo
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences belween the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities ('DTL') are recognised for all taxable lemporary differences, excepl when the DTL
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profil nor taxable profit or
loss,

Deferred tax assets ('DTA') are recagnised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. DTA are recognised to the extant that it |s probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temparary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the DTA relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that Is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss. The carrying amount of DTA is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
It 18 no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the DTA to be
utilised. Unrecognised DTA are re-assessed at each raporting date and are recognised to the axtent that it
has bacome probable that future taxable profits will allow the DTA 1o be recovered.
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DTA and DTL are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is reallsed
or the liabllity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacled or substantively enacted
al the reporting date. DTA and DTL are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabllities and the deferred taxes relate lo the same taxable entity and the same laxation
authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in OCI or
in equity,

f. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE’)

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Such
cost Includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced al inlervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their speciiic
useful lives,

Capltal work-In-progress comprises of the cost of PPE thal are not yel ready for thelr Intended use as at
the balance sheet date.

Likewise, when a major Inspection is performed, its cost is recognised In the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement If the recognition eriterla are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when they are incurred.

Depreciation Is calculated on the wrillen down value methad ('WDV') based on the useful lives and residual
values estimated by the management in accordance with Schedule Il to the Companles Act, 2013. The
identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal PPE.

Type of asset Useful lives (years)
Bulldings 28-58
Electrifications 20
Plant and machinery 16
Windfarm plant and machinery 22
Computers and office equipments diob
Searvers and networks 6
Furniture & fixtures and vahicles 10

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the nel disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset on the date of disposal and are recognised In the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depraciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g. Goodwill and Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measurad on initial recognition al cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired In a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition, Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carrled al cost less any aceumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for
Impairment whenever there is an Indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes In
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. =T
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A summary of amortisation policies applied ta the Com pany's intangible assets is as below;

Type of asset Useful lives (years)
Gaodwill Amortisation as per law or acquired cost less impairment allowance, as

applicable
SAP and other software Straight line basis over a perlod of five years

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily lakes a substantial period of time to gel ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,
Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment o the
borrowing costs.

Leases

= Company as a lessee

The Company applles a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assels. The Company recognises lease liabilitles to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time In exchange for consideration,

I. Right-of-use assets (ROU assets)

The Compary's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
recognises ROU assets at the commencement date of the lease (l.e., the date the underlying asset s
avallable for use). ROU assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of ROU assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs Incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received, ROU assets are depreclated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset, The ROU assets are also subject to impairment. Refer note 2.3(k) for the accounting
policies,

ii. Lease liabllities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease paymenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives recelvable, In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses Its borrowing rate implicit in the lease or, if not readlly determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates In the country of domiciie of these leases at the lease commencement date.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease llabllities is
re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term or a change In the lease payments.
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lil. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assats

The company applies the short-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short term leasod assets (|.a.
those lease that have a leased term of 12 month of less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option) it also applies the lease of low value assels recognilion exemplion lo loases
that are considered to be of low value. For short term and low value leases, the company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on stralght line basis over the term of lease.

+ Company as a lessor

Leases In which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of awnership of the
assel is classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operaling leases other than land and bullding are
included in PPE. Lease income on an operating lease |s recognised In the statement of profit and loss an
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories
OMS business

Inventories comprise of components, stores and spares and are valued at lower of cost and estimated nal
reallsable value, Inventorles include some materials that are repaired as well as repalrable as at the balance
sheet date. Cost of inventory is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value of such materlals is determined considering the remaining useful life of the material
after repairs based on the technical estimates.

Project and PE business

Inventories of raw materials, project materials, stock in trade, work-in-progress ('WIP') and finished goods
('FG') are valued at the lower of the cost and estimaled net realisable value.

Cosl |s determined on a weighted average basis.

The cost of WIP and FG Includes the cost of material, labour and & proportion of overheads, WIP includes
cost of civil, electrical line, installation of WTG's and portion of non-utilised charges pald for capacity
allocation, PE facilities which are in process as at the balance sheet dale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimatad costs
of completion and estimated costs necassary to make the sale,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Thae Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an indication thal an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Company
estimates the assetl's recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (‘CGU') net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows thal are largely indepandent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
itsrecoverable amount, the assel s considered impaired and Is writtan down to ils recoverable amoum,
Impairment losses are recognised In the statement of profit and loss

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflecls current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assel. In determining net selling price, recent marke! transactions are taken into account, If
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used
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The Company bases its Impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are
prepared separalely for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate s calculaled and applied lo project future cash flows after the fifth year, To estimate cash fiow
projections beyand periods covered by the most recent budgets/ forecasts, the Company extrapolates ash
flow projections In the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
Increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the anlity operales, or for tha market in
which the asset |s used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its ramalning
useful life. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
In the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCL. For such properties, the impairment Is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus,

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in
estimates of recoverable amounl. The carrying value after reversal is nol increased beyond the carrying
value that would have pravailed by charging usual depreciation If there was no Impalrment.

Goodwill and Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested for Impairment annually as at year end,
impairmant is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or group of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than its Carrying
amount, an impalrment loss is recognised. Impairment losses ralating to goodwill cannot be reveraed in
future periods,

The Company assesses whether climate risks, including physical risks and transition risks could have a
significant impact. If so, these risks are included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use
amounts,

Frovisions

Provislons are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of
a past evenl, Il Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discourted using a curranl pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost.

m. Employee benefits

i Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits such as short-term compensated absences, bonus, ex-gratia and performance linked
rewards falling due within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employes
benefits and are charged 1o the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders
the service.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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iii.

Post-employment baenefits:
A, Defined contribution schemes:

The Company provides defined contribution schemas such as statutory provident fund, employee
stale Insurance, voluntary superannuation and the pension plan. The Company has no obligation
other than the contribution payable ta the funds which Is recognised as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the coniribution already pald, the deficit payable to the
scheme Is recognised as a liabllity after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the conliribution due for services received before the balance sheeat date, than
excess |s recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
raduction In future payment or a cash refund.

B. Defined benefil plan;

The employee's gratuity fund scheme managed by board of trustees established by the Company,
represent defined benefit plan. Gratuity is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation, using
projected unit credit method as at each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts Included In net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined benefit liabllity), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI In the period In which they oceur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit
and loss In subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognised the following changes in defined benefit
obligation as an expense in statement of profit or loss:

* Service cost comprising of current service cost, past service cost gains and loss on entittements
and non-routine settlement.

= Net interest expenses or income.

Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs.
In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis

Long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides long-term benefits such as Retention bonus (l.e long service award) and
compensated absences. Retention bonus is awarded to certain cadre of employees on completion of
specific years of service. The obligation recognised in respect of these long-term benefits is measured
al present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be made by the Company and is recognised
on the basis of actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method as at each balance sheet date. As
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer Ite settiement for 12 mantha after the
reporting date, the entire leave Is presented as a current liability in the balance sheel and expenses
recognised In statement of profit and loss account. Long-term compensated balances and retention
bonus are unfunded,

n. Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of anather antity.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are altributable to the acquisition of the financial
assel. In case of extingulshment and settlement of financial assets with Parent as part of restructuring of
debt wherein the Lenders of the Company have potential exercisable participative rights pre and post
restrueluring, the resultant gain or loss arising on restructuring shall be recognised 1o other equity.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified In four calegories:

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity Instruments at fair value threugh profit or loss (FVYTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt Instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

= The asset Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contraciual
cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant o the Company. After initial measurement, such financlal assets aro
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation s included in other Income in the statemeant of profit and loss,
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FYTOCI
A 'debt instrument’ Is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model Is achieved both by callecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

« The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPP|.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI, However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statemant of
profit and loss.

On de-recognition of the assel, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOGI debt instrument is raported
as interest income using the EIR method. The Gompany has not designated any financial asset as al
FVTOCI,
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meel the criteria
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debl instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVTQCI eriteria, as al FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
A measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch').

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recagnised in the statement of profil and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are initially measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company makes
an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive Income subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification Is made on
Initial recognition and Is irevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity Instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the
insirument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recysling of the amounts from OCI
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfar (he
cumulative gain or loss within equity. The Company has not designated any equity instruments as al
FVTOCI.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Invastments In subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiarias are carried at cost,
De-recognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) Is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

» The rights lo receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation lo pay the recelved cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either:

a. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of (he asaet
but has transferred conirol of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, Il evaluates If and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liabllity.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflacts the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measurad at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration thal the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financlal assets

In agcordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) medel for measuremeant
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

* Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g,, loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

« Financlal assels that are debt Instruments and are measured as at FVTOC|

* Trade recelvables or any contractual right 1o receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scopa of Ind AS 115

¢ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

= Finarclal guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on irade
receivables or contracl assets. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company lo
track changes In credit risk. Rather, it recognises impalrment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
@ach reporting dale, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recagnition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL Is used 1o provide for impairment loss. However, If credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the Instrument
Improves such that there Is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition, than |he
entity reverts lo recognising Impairment loss allowance based an 12 month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expecled credit losses resulling from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
evenis that are possible within 12 months after the reperting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (L.e., all cash shartfalls), discounted al
the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider;

¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument (Including prapayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity Is required to use the
ramaining contractual term of the financial Instrument.

« Trade recelvables do not carry any Inlerest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecovarable amounts.

» Estimated irecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical
experience. Indlvidual trade recelvables are written off when management deems them not to be
collectible,

ECL Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the perlod Is recognised as income /
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses' in the
statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue recelvables: ECL |s presented
as an allowance, |.e., as an Integral part of the measurement of those assets In the balance sheet, The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce Impalrment allowance from the gross carrying amount. :
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* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance
sheel, i.a. as a liability.

* Debt instruments measured at FVTOCKE Since financial assels are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount Is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to
anable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profil or
loss, at fair value through other equity, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. In case of extinguishment of financlal llabilities
with Parent or of restructuring of the existing debt and financial liabiiities of Lenders wherein the Lenders
of the Company have potential exercisable participative rights pre and post restructuring, the resultant gain
or loss arising on extinguishment of the existing dabt with restructured debt and issuance of securities o
Lenders shall be recognised to other equity.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financlal liabllities depends on their classification, as described belaw:
Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabllities held for trading and financial
llabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial llabllities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of rapurchasing In the near term, This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging Instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments.

Gains or losses on liabllities held for trading are recognised In the statermnent of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities designated upen Initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the Initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Far liabilitias
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains / losses altributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After Initial recognition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised
cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium an
acquisition and fees or cost that are an integral part or EIR. Gains and losses are recognisad in the
statement of profit and loss when the liabllities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. The EIR amortisation Is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss. The category
generally applies to borrowings.
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assels and liabilitles on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assats which are equily instruments and financial
liabllities,

For financial assets which are dabt instruments, a reclassification Is made only If there Is a change in the
business model for managing those assels. Changes lo the business model are expected to be Infraquent,
The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
Internal changes which are significant to the Company's aperations. Such changes are evident o external
parties. A change In the business model ocours when the Company elther begins or ceases to perform an
aclivity that is significant to its operations, If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which Is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change In business model. The Company does not restale any previously
recognised gains, losses (including Impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabllities are offset and the net amount Is reported in the balance sheet |f
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
sellie on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

. Redeemable cumulative preference shares ('RCPS") and Compulsorily convertible debentures

l"ch"]
RCPS and CCD are separated into liability and equity compenents based an the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the RCPS and CCD, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible (nstrument. This amount is classified as a financial liabillty measured
at amortised cost (net of fransaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds s allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included In
equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transactlon costs
are deducted from equity, net of associated Income lax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not re-measured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liabllity and equity components of the RCPS and CCD
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially
recognised,

Earnings per shara

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable (o
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and atiributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for any bonus shares |ssued during the year and also after the
balance sheet date but before the date the financial statements are approved by the board of direciors.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable
to equily shareholders (as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income, net of
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the canversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares as
appropriate. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds recelvable, had the shares
been Issued al fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are desmed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a |ater date.

. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and In hand and shorl-term

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of
changes In value,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is nol recognised
because it is not probable thal an outflow of resource embodying economic benefit will be required to settie
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognise a contingent llability but discloses it as per Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefit is remote,

2.4 Climate-related matters

The Company considers climate-related matlers in estimatas and assumplions, where appropriate, This
assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Company due to both physical and transition
risks. Even though the Company belleves its business model and products will still be viable after lhe
transition to a low-carbon economy, climate-related matters increase the uncertainty in estimates and
assumptions underpinning several items in the financial statements, Even though climate-related risks
might not currently have a significant Impact on measurement, the Company s closely monlloring relevant
changes and developments, such as new climate-related legislation. The items and cansiderations that are
most directly impacted by climate-related matters are:

a. Useful life of property, plant and equipment: When reviewing the residual values and expected
useful lives of assets, the Company considers climate-related legisiation and reqgulations that may
restrict the use of asselts or require significant capital expenditures.

b. Impairment of non-financlal assets: The value-in-use may be impacted in several different ways by
transition risk in particular, such as climate-related legisiation and regulations and changes In demand
for the Company's products. The Company considered expectations for increased costs of emissions,
increased demand for goods sald by the Company's WTG equipment CGU and cost Increases due to
stricter recycling requirements in the cash-flow forecasts in assassing value-in-use amounts.

¢. Fair value measurement: For revalued office properties, the Group considers the effect of physical and
transition risks and whether investors would consider those risks in their valuation. The group believes
It Is not currently exposed to severe physical risks, but believes that investors, to some extent, would
consider Impacts of transition risks in their valuation, such as increasing requirements for energy
efficiency of buildings due lo climate-related legisiation and regulations as well as tenants’ Increasing
demands for low-amission bulldings.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expensas, assels and llabilites, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assum plions and
eslimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected In fulure periods.

341

iz

Significant jJudgements in applying the Com pany's accounting policy

In the process of applying the Company's accounting pelicies, management has made a judgement on
revenue from contracts with customers, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
In the financial statements.

The Company applied the judgement of Identifying performance obligations that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and liming of revenue from contracls with customers. The Company
determined that the OMS of the WTG's, project execution activities consisting of civil work, electrical work,
ereclion and commissioning of WTG's and power evacuation activity can be performed distinclly on a stand-
alone basis which Indicates that the customer can benefit from respective performance obligations on thelr
own. Further, the Company chose output method for measuring the progress of performance abligation.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significanl risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
llabilities within the next financlal year, are described below, Uncertainty about these assumption and
estimales could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
llabilities affected in future periods.

a. Allowanee for trade receivables

Trade recelvables do not carry any Interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated credit loss (ECL, The Company recognises impairment loss
allowance based on management judgment and the financial position of customers, For recognition of
impairment loss, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credlt risk since initial recognition. The carrying value of allowance for credil impairment and ECL is 7
129.13 Crore (previous year ¥ 115.59 Crore), refer Note 8.

b, Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses 1o the extent that it is probabla that taxable
profit will be avallable against which the losses can be ulilised. Significant management judgement is
requirad to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the [Ikely
timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax planning strategies. The Company has
unabsorbed depreciation and unabsorbed business losses details of which are given in Note 30,

c. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
tdetermined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions thal
may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortalily rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit cbligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
Assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date. T
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.

The parameler most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the Interest rales of government bonds In currencles
consistant with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The estimates of future salary
increases take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant faclors,

Further details about gratuity ebligations are given in Note 32,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financlal llabllities recorded in the balance sheel cannol be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value Is measured using valuation
techniques Including the DCF modael,

The Inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required In establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about

these factors could affect the reported falr value of financial instruments. See Nate 39 for further
disclosures.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Mote 2.3 (f) for the estimated useful life and Note 4 for carrying value of PPE.

4. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE')

Gross block Aceumulatod doprociation Net block

Particulars As at  Additions  Deduction/  As al Asat Charge Deduction/ As al As al

April 1, adjustiments Mareh  April 1, forthe adjustments March 31, March 21,

2023 J1, 2024 2023 yoar 2024 2024

Fraahold land 18.72 0.45 . 2017 - . - . 2017

Bulldings 44 .92 453 127 48.18 18.53 207 1.01 20,25 2789

Plant and machinery 62,67 .60 128 6e.08 35.09 4.82 1.04 a8.87 28.21

m’mm‘:f'“"‘ g6 . - 176 132 008 - 1.40 0.36

E:um';:g offce 3348 1030 284 4094 2400  7.10 265 2854 1240

Furnitura and fixtures 6.87 246 0.48 8.85 4.40 0.8a 0.42 4,87 3.08

Vehicles 0.64 0.04 0.11 0.57 0.54 0.03 010 0.47 0.10

Total 170.06 24,44 595 18855 03.97 1569 522 9444 0411

Gross block Accumulated dopreciation Net block

Parficulars As at Additlons Deduction/ Asat Asat Charge Deduction/ As at As at

April 1, adjustmants  March  April 1, for the adjustmonts March 31, March 31,

2022 31, 2023 2022 year 2023 2023

Fraehold land 18.32 0.40 . 19.72 - - . 19,72

Builiefings 40.58 4.57 023 4492 16.66 2.19 0.22 18.53 26,38

Plant and machinery 66.53 B.30 016 6267 31.06 410 0.07 35.09 27.58

nwimm“f“m o 1.76 : . 476 123 008 : 1.2 0.44

::;nr:::]rﬁ: L 26.16 6.59 127 3348 1997 511 089 2408 9.9
Furmniiure and fixtures 8.02 1.15 (.30 6.87 #12 0.54 0.26 4.40
Vohiclos 0.71 0.01 0.08 .64 (.58 0.03 0.07 0.54
Total 153.08 18.02 2,04 170.08 73.52 12.06 1,61 B3.07
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Notes:

Buildings include those construcled on leasehald land.

For contractual commitment with respect to property, plant and equipment refer Note 24,
For detalls of property, plant and equipment glven as security to Lenders refar Note 16,
Refar Note 43 (i) for details of immovable properties not held in the name of the Company.

o oa

5. Capltal work-in-progress (‘CWIP’)

CWIP as at March 31, 2024 stood at 2 0.92 Crare (previous year: ¥ 1.12 Crore), which primarily includes bullding
and plant and machinery under construction,

51 Movement of CWIP during the year:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 142 719
Additions during the year 9.62 4.24
Capitalized during the year (9.82) (10.31)
Closing balance 0.92 1.12

52 CWIP ageing schedule

<1year 1-Zyears 2-Jyears >3 years Total

As on March 31, 2024

Projects in progress 0.a2 . - . 082
Projects temporarily suspended = - = - =
Total 0.92 - s - 0.92
As on March 31, 2023

Projects In progress 0,03 . - 1.09 1.12
Projects temporarly suspandad - - - . .
Total 0.03 - - 1.09 1.12

There ara no projects whose complelion is overdue or has exceeded Its cost compared (o lis original plan during
the financial year 2023-24, The expected completion schedule for amounts lying in CWIP as at the year-end |s
within 1 to 2 years.

6. Goodwill and other intangible assots

R Gross block Accumulated amortisation hl::l:
Opening Additions Deduction Closing Opening Charge Deduction Closing

March 31, 2024

Goodwill 2,550 .66 - - 2,550,866 2,550.66 - - 2,550.66 .

SAP and other software 3,18 1.33 - 4.51 2,22 0.58 - 280 17

March 31, 2023

Goadwill 2,550.66 - - 2,550,868 2,186.99 263.87 - 2,550.68

SAP and other software 347 0.0 - 3.18 1.44 078 . 222 086
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o

7. Investments

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current

7.1 Investment in equity Instruments of a subsidiary, at cost

(Unquoted)

1,24,59,15,359 (1,24,59,15,359) equity shares of # 10 each of Suzlon 191,60 191 60
Gujarat Wind Park Limited ' '
Less: Impairment allowance (191.60) (191.60)
Total - .
7.2 Other investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in government securities D.oo* 0.00*
Aggregate amount of unquoted investmants (cost) 191,60 191.60
Aggregate impairment allowance for Investment measured at cost (191.80) (191.60)

Current Investment at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual funds (Unquoted)

5Bl ovemnight fund direct growth plan (17,761 units of # 3,895,78 each) 6.92
SBI avernight fund regular growth plan (3,723 units of ¥ 3,849.00 each) 1.43 -
Total 8.35 -

" Less than ¥ 0.01 Crare.

8. Trado receivables

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good

Credit impaired 122.26 108.44
Less; Allowance for credit impairment (122.25) (108.44)
Total - -
Current

Unsecurad, considered good 631.62 658.00
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (6.88) {7.15)
Total 624.74 650.94

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the compary either severally or jointly
with any other person, nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively
in which any directar is a partner, a director or 8 member.

Trade receivables are disclosed at amortised cost. Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally
an payment terms of within 30 days from invoice date which is raised as per contractual agreement.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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B.1 Ageing schedule for trade receivables

Currant Outstanding from due date of payment
but not < = - ¥ Total
due m:mths ; mur:rhn‘:lr yn:rz }hl:l: >4 yoern
As on March 31, 2024
Undisputed trade receivables
Considerad gooed - 37515 B2.25 7610 1493 T8.61 B27.04
Cradil impairad . 4.34 211 16850 20,87 75,78 119.60
Disputed trads recelvables
Considered good - 0.82 - 3.76 - - 4,58
Cradit impaired - - - 1.43 0.40 0.82 2.65
Gross trade recelvables - 3B0.31 8436 97.79 36.20 155.21 753.87

Allowance for credil Impairment
and expectad cradil loss (129.13)

Total 624.74
As on March 31, 2023

Undisputed trade recelvables

Considorad good - 34512 11576 B2.70 207 81.68 625.64

Cradit impaired - - 384 1372 16.72 45,08 78.47
Disputed trade receivables

Considared good . - - - - 32.45 3245
Credit impaired = - - - - 2897 28.97
Gross trade recelvables = 34512 119.70 7642 3689 18840  TB6.53
W - - - - - - e
Total G50.94

8.2 Movement in allowance for credit impairment and expected credit loss is as under;

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Balance as al beginning of the year 115.58 116.03
Less: Impairment during the year, (net) 13.54 0.56
Balance as at the end of the year 12913 115.59

8.3 Relationship with struck off companies

Trananctions during the Balanae

Relationship
Nature of year ended outstanding as at
Namo of struck off comPanY  yransaction ~Wiarch 31, March3i,  March _ March ‘gt o "ok
2024 2023 31,2024 31, 2023 y
Stribog Technologles Private Trade . . - 0.02 N
V.G.Wind Energy Private Ltd recelvable - . : : i

*Less than ¥ 0.01 Crore
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9. Loans

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-current
Receivable towards debt assignment (refer Note 9.1) 636.18 562,90
Inter-corporate deposits lo related parties
Credit impaired 188.28 224,00
Less: Allowance for credit Impaired (198.29) (224.00)
Total G36.18 562.99
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 0.01 -
Total 0.01 -

Loans are disclosed at amortised cost.

9.1 Receivable towards debt assignment

As part of implementation of resolution plan in June 2022, pursuant to the assignment of debt, the Company
recognised the amount of ¥ 4,453.01 Crore as loan recelvable from SEL. The loan receivable from SEL was

agreed tarms at interast rate of 0.0001% and has maturity date of March 31, 2040.

The loan recelvable was initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate ('EIR’) method at 13.00%. The resultant gain or loss at initial recognition was

recognised in other equity.

9.2 Loans granted to related parties is ¥ 636.18 Crore which is 100% of total loans granted (previous year: ¥

562.99 Crore being 100% of total loans granted),

10. Other financial assets

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non-currant
Bank balances * 27 47 15,26
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 268 2.55
Total 3015 17.81
Current
Income accrued but not due 66,84 105.97
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 6.62 6.62
Other assels 272 0.25
Total 98.16 112.84

All the financial assets are disclosed at amaortised cost,

" Bank balances represents margin money deposits, which are subject to first charge towards non-fund based

facilities from banks.




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts In  Crore, unless otherwlze staled

11. Other assets

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non-current

Capital advances (unsecured, considered good) 147 0.80
Advances recoverable in kind

Credit Impaired 1.16 0.85
Less: Allowance for cradit impaired (1.16) {0.85)
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 38.69 21.79
Total 35,86 22.59
Current

Advances recoverable In kind (unsecured, considerad good) 103.61 B2.21
Advances to employees 0.89 0.28
Prepaid expenses 4.25 2.81
Balances with government authorities 28,72 42 50
Others 0.62 0.58
Total 137.89 138.38

12. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

13.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Raw materials [including goods in transit # 2,52 Crore
{previous year: 2 5.32 Crore)) o o
Wark-In-progress 152.08 183.19
Finished goods 69,86 51.96
Stores and spares a7.80 34.87
Total 865.07 836.86
Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks 08,64 47,23
Cash on hand 0.29 0.16
Total 99,03 47.39

There are no restrictions with regard lo cash and cash equivalents as the end of the financial year and previous

year.
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14. Equity share capital

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised share capital
534,30,00,000 (previous year: 534,30,00,000) equity shares of 2 10 each 5,343.00 §,343.00
21,000,000 (previous year: 21,000,000) preference shares of ¥ 100 each 210,00 210.00
450,000 (previous year: 450,000) praferance shares of ¥ 100,000 each 4,600.00 4,600.00
Total 10,053.00 10,053.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity share capital
i:igﬂ 254 (previous year: 28,371,254) aquily shares of ¥ 10 each fully 29,7 29 37
Total 29.37 2937
Preference share capital
1,000,000 (pravious year: 1,000,000) 8% Redoemable Cumulative 10.00 10.00
Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each ' i
10,000 {pravious year: 10,000) 0.1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative 0.10 0.10
Proference Shares of # 100 each ; i
Total 10,10 10.10
14.1 Reconclliation of the equity shares:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of ¥in Numberof .

sharos (Crore) _ Croro __shares (Crore)  ° " Cror@
Opening balance 294 2037 2.94 2037
Issued during the year - - 0.007 0.00*
Closing balance 2.94 29.37 2,94 20.37

* Less than T 0,01 Crore

14.2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of # 10 each. Each holder of equity
shares Is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, If any, by the Board of Directors Is subject Io
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meating.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounis. The distribution will be in propartion lo
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.3 Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares ("RCPS")

1,18,800 and 8,81,200 8% RCPS of ¥ 100/- each fully paid are redeemable at par at the discretion of Board
after 20 years from date of allotment, |.e. March 28, 2005 and June 28, 2005 respectively. The Company as
well as the preferance shareholders shall respectively have the call and put option lo redeem preference
shares at any time after 1(one) month from the date of allotment subject howaver to the consant of the
preference shareholder and Company, as the case may be.

T
N1l L:l'-f
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14.4 Details of shares held by promoters and shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company:

Name of shrahoder  bagimingof | CPORAG. Atthendl  otioal | s change
Suzlon Energy Limited #

Asg at March 31, 2024 2,93,71,254 - 2,83,71,254 100,00 -
As al March 31, 2023 293,686,800 4454 293,71,254 100.00 0.00

¥ As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other
communications received from the shareholder(g), Suzlon Energy Limited ("SEL") togethar with its nominees
(in terms of and In compliance with the provisions of Section 187 of the Companies Act, 2013) holds the
antire 100% shareholding of the Company and thus the Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary ("WOS") of

SEL.

15. Other equity:

Reafer Statement of Changes in Equity for detalled movement in equity balance.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity component of compound financlal Instrumeants 6.78 6.78
Capital reserve 194.51 184.51
Ganaral reserve 349 3.49
Securities premium 822,20 922.20
Capital contribution 131.80 131.80
Retained earnings {(G28.41) {1,261.89)
Total 630.37 (3.11)

Nature and purposes of other reserves:

a. Capital reserve

The Company recognises profit or loss on purchase / sale of the equity instruments in case of merger to

capltal reserve,

b. General reserve

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend or a
portion of net profit keptd separately for future purpose is disclosed as ganeral reserve,

¢. Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used 1o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve (s utilised in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
d. Capital contribution

The resultant gain arising on extinguishment of debt and fair value of financial instruments issued as per

the terms of Resolution plan had been transferred to Capilal contribution.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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16. Borrowings

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current
Liability component of:

8% redeemable preference shares (unsecured) (refer Note 14,3) 20,24 20,75
9% compulsorily convertible debentures (unsecured) 380.37 arsn
Loan from related party (unsecured) 884,00 1.219.12
Total 1,284.61 1,614.98

Current
8% redeemable preference shares (unsecured) (refar Note 14.3) 2.78
Total 278
16.1 Financlal facilities by way of Rupee Tarm Loan ('RTL') from REC Lid and IREDA In accordance wilh the

16.2

16.3

RTL Agreement was repaid fully during the financial year and released all its morlgaged and pledged
securitles.

Loans from related parties comprise of Inter Corporate Deposit from the holding company SEL, which
carry interest @ 10% p.a. and used for business operations. As per the terms of the agreament executed
during the year betwean the Company and SEL, the loans are repayable by the Company al the end of

the term up to June 30, 2030. The Company has option to make early prepayment of the loans during
the term.

During the year, the parent Company has avalled Non-Fund Based ('NFB') facllities from banks and
financial Institutions on the basis of security of current assets of the Company, charge on bank accounts
{including TRA, DSRA and cash margin accounts) pari-passu charge an (dentified fixed assets,
assignment of all rights and benefits arising out of the contracts in respect of the projects for which the
facility s being avalled, including all rights of SEL under these contracts, corporate guarantee of the
Company and non-disposal undertaking of SE Forge Limited shares.

16.4 The details of repayment of long-term borrowings are as follows:

Particulars Year Up to 1 year 2toS5years Above 5 years Total
March 31, 2024 - - Ba84.00 884.00
Unsecured loans March 31, 2023 569,12 650.00 - 1.219.12
March 31, 2024 - - Ba4.00 BB4.00
Tt March 31, 2023 569.12 650.00 - 1,219.12

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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16.5 Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing
activities in the statement of cash flows:

Balance Statement of cash  As at April Cash Non-cash changes/Impact As at
sheet flow line 01, 2023 flows of foreign March
caption Item exchange rates 31, 2024
Borrowings Repayment of long- 1,614.88  (430.24) 111.75 1,287,308

lerm borrowings
Leasa Payment of 13.05 (7.03) 0.a7 6.99
liabilities prineipal portion of

leasa liabilitias
Balance Statement of cash As at April Cash Non-Cash  As at March
sheet flow line 01, 2022 flows changes/impact of 31,2023
caption Item foraign

exchange rates S

Borrowings Repayment of long- 3,154.62 (353.13) (1.186.51) 1,614.98

term borrowings
Lease Payment of principal 18.28 (6.60) 1.46 13.05
liabilities portlan of lease

liabilities

Borrowings are disclosed at amortised cost

17, Trade payables

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade payables to micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSE) 5.66 7.30
Trade payables to related parties 26.74 42,73
Trade payables to others T 379.01
Total 344,13 429.04

Trade payables are disclosed at amortised cost.
17.1 Ageing schedule for trade payables

Unbilied Outstanding from due date of payment

Mot <1 1-2 2-3 >3
dues dun yoar yonrs yanrs yoare Totsl

As on March 31, 2024
Undisputed dues of MSE - 1.83 4.9 0.09 012 0.11 5.66
Undisputed dues of creditors other than MSE 41.25 66.38 203,31 7.28 M 17.83 338.47
Disputed duns of MSE - - d " -

Disputed dues of creditors other than MSE - - - - - -
Total 41.25 68.21 206.82 7.38 2.43 i8.04 344.13
As on March 31, 2023

Undisputed dues of MSE - 3,85 298 0.25 0.20 002 730
Undisputed duss of craditars othar than MSE 7T1.87 199817 116.00 4 864 10.20 18,42 421.74
Disputad dues of MSE - - - " =
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSE - - - = *
71.67 20366 118.98 4.89 10.40
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17.2  Details of due to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

8l. Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

8. The principal amount remaining unpald to any supplier as at the end of 5.66 7.30
Ihe accounting year

b, Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 0.30 0.33
the accounting year

€. Tha amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment 46.56 e2.81
made lo the supplier beyond the appointed day.

4. The emount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making 1.61 0.74
paymeant but without adding the Intorest specified under this Act

8. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the Wil NIl
accounting year

f. The amount of furthar interest remaining due and payable even in the 1.9 1.07
succeeding years, until such date when the Interast dues as above are
actually paid

The Company has identified small enterprises and micro enterprises, as defined under the MSMED Act, 2008
by requesting confirmation from the vendors through the letters circulated by the Company,

17.3 Relatlonship with struck off companies

Transactions during Balance Relationship
Name of struck off company :qr:nmar.:c:fl;n :::rglr an :::mn m;dt:z:ﬂﬂﬂ :;;:h i'l-;il'lll'é:rr"
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023  company
Sumitron Exports Pyt Lid 0.06 - 0.0a
Avanza Epsilon Elektro Put, Ltd :'g:;‘,‘;m o : 0.10 -
Sunnertz Powar & Infrastruciures - - 0.00* -
Sumiiron Exporls Pt Lid Advircn 0.06 - 0.03 None
Avanza Epsilon Elektro Pyt, Lid given - 0.0
Mita- Technil Technology Put Lid - . - 0,08
Sunhertz Power & Infrastruciures Payable - - - 0.00°

*Less than 0.01 Crore.

18. Other financial liabilities

Non-current: |t consists of security deposit from customers of ¥ 0.03 Crore (previous year: ¥ 0.03 Crore),
Current: Il consists of employee payables of  30.60 Crore (previous year: ¥ 31.91 Grore)
All the financial liabillties are disclosed at amortised cost,

19. Provisions

Non-current: |t consists of provision for employee benefits of ¥ 19.27 Crore (previous year: 7 21.41 Crore).

Current: It consists of provision for employee benefits of 2 13,35 Crore (previous year:  17.16 Crore) and
pravision for machine availability of ¥ 107,34 Crore (previous year: ¥ 67,86 Crore).

In pursuance of Ind AS 37 - 'Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets’, the provisions required
have been incorporated In the books of account in the following manner:
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Machine availability
Fiiioulne March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 67.86 67.63
Additlons 71.43 85.11
Utilisation (31.95) (64.88)
Reversal - -
Closing balance 107.34 67.86

Machine availability provision represents obligation of thea Company to compensate the customer in connaction
with unplanned suspension of operations or the expected outflow of resources against claims for the loss
Incurred by the cuslomer on account of the wind turbine generator uptime being lower than the specific

thrashold of the time the grid was available, as defined in the contracts.

20. Other liabilities

Non-current - It consists of deferred liability* of 19,12 Crore (previous year: ¥ 14,69 Crore),

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Statutory dues 27.78 22.51
Deferred revenue 14.00 -
Deferred liability * 4.94 .84
Total 46,73 27.45

“Compulsory convertible debentures has been classified as financial liabllity and are measured at amortised

cosl,
21. Revenue from operations
211 Disaggregated revenue Information

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Type of revenue

a. Revenue from contract with customers

Income from operating and maintenance service 1,801.38 1,518.44
Project execution income 424 86 311.44
Power evacuation infrastructure services 852.69 40.84
Income from power generation .80 1.62
Income from sale of land 0.08 .
Spare part sales 116557 ) 97.77
Total - 2,225.38 197011
b. Other revenue '

Scrap sales 35.36 28.82
Total (a+h) 2,260,74 1,898.93
Geography

India 2,254 65 1.893.79
Outside India 6819 5.14
Total 2,260,74 1,998.93
Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 151.00 128.21
Services transferred at a point In time /over time 2,109.74 1,870.72_

Total

2,260.74
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21.2 Contract balances

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables 624.74 650.94
Contract liabilities 107.21 225.52
21.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised In the statement of profit and loss with the
contracted price:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue as per contracted price 233217 2,064.04

Less: Variable consideration

Machine availability (refer Note 19) (71.43) (85.11)

Total 2,260,749 1,998.93

21.4 Performance obligation

OMS services

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payment is due within 30 days from invoice date which
Is ralsed as per contractual agreamant.

Project services

Project services includes civil foundation, electrical, installation and commissioning of WTG's. The
performance obligation s satisfied over-lime and payment iz generally due upon completion of milestone.

Power evacuation infrastructure services

The perfarmance obligation Is satisfied at a point in time upon commissioning and electrical installation of the
WTG to the sald facilities followed by approval for commissioning of WTG from the concerned authorities.

22, Finance incoma

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest income on:

on deposits with banks 1.35 0.60
on other financial assets 83.87 71.82
Total B5.02 72.42

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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23. Cost of raw materials, components consumed and services renderad

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening inventory 566.84 465,28
Add: Purchases (including works contract and services) 75112 677.30
1,317.96 1142.68
Less: Closing inventory 606.32 566.84
712.64 575.84
E::;g:;u]am services and Infrastructure development 40434 245 63
1,016.98 B14.37
Changes in inventories:
Opening Inventory
Work-in-progress 183,19 184,85
Finished goods 51.96 48.96
(A) 235.15 233.91
Closing Inventory
Work-in-progress 152.09 183.19
Finished goods 69,86 51.06
(B) 221.95 235.15
Changes in inventories (C) = (A) - (B) 13.20 (1.24)
24, Employee benefits expense
B March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
*Sallariaa, wages, allowances and bonus 223,78 194,08
Contributlon to provident fund and other funds 18.20 16.46
Share based payments (refer Note 43 a) 5.82 -
Staff welfare expenses 24,59 20.71
Total 273.39 231.25
25. Finance costs
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interast expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost
on term loans . 0.37
an Inter corporate deposits 104.27 126.03
on other financial liabilities 44 .51 63.73
Bark charges 0.50 0.63
Total 149.28 190.76
26, Depreciation and amortisation expense
R March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depraciation on property, plant and equipment (refar Note 4) 15.69 11.88
Amortisation on right-of-use asseis (refer Note 33) 5.69 5.69
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets (refar Note &) 0.58 364.53
otal 2196  /38220.)
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27. Other expenses

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Site expanses 2225 22,37
Repairs and maintenance:

Plant and machinery 2,33 1.83

Bullding 2.21 1.06

Others 3.62 6.04
Rent, rates and taxes 12.44 16.56
Insurance 10.53 8.33
Advertisement and sales promotion 0.21 0.42
Freight outward and packing expanses 14.00 16.80
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 65.71 57.51
Communication expenses 5.07 328
Auditors’ remuneration and expenses (refer Note 27.1) 0.20 0,39
Consullancy charges 56,81 A46.87
CSR, charity and donalions (refer Nota 27.2) 8.70 1.86
Securily expanses 47.25 4413
Miscellaneous expenses 8.41 3.88
Exchange differences, net 0.48 0.48
Impairment allowance (0.26) (0.23)
Bad debts written off (0.26) 14.95
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 1417 7.37
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 0.70 0.31
Total 275.66 253,31

27.1 Payment to auditors Iincludes:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees 027 0.37
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 0.02 0.02
Total 0.29 0.39

27.2 Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') disclosure

The Company has spent 2 9.70 Crore (previous year; ¥ 1,95 Crore) towards various schemes of CSR as
presaribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details are:

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: ¥ 1.13 Crore (previous year: ¥ 1.37
Crore);

b. Amount spent In cash for purposes other than construction/ acquisition of any assel during the year |s ¥
8.70 Crore (pravious year: ¥ 1,95 Crore) and amount yet to be pald in cash Is  Nil (previous year; ¥ Nil);

¢. Above includes a contribution of ¥ 2,50 Crore (previous year: ¥ 1.86 Crore) to Suzlon Foundation, a
subsidiary registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, with the main objectives of working in
the areas of social, economic and environmental issues such as empowearment, health, education, civic
amenities, environment, livelihood, transformative, proactive and enable the less privileged segments of
the society to improve thelr livelihood by enhancing thelr means and capabillities 1o meet the emerging
opportunities.
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28. Exceptional item
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Gain on reversal of impairment on loans given to subsidiary (25.71) -
Gain on de-recognition of CCPS liability due to conversion into ) (503.92
equity shares 92)
Total 2511 503.92
28, Income tax expense
29.1 Current tax charged to statement of profit and loss Is  Nil (previous year: 2 Nil).
29.2 Reconciliation of iIncome tax expense and the accounting profit:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting profit befora income tax 820,74 795,24
Enacted tax rates in India 25.168% 25.168%
Computed tax expense 158.49 200.15
Mon-deductible expenses as per Income tax 16.02 122.53
Deductible expanses for tax purposo (30.16) (188.35)
Effect of unrecognized deferred tax assets (144.35) (134.33)
Tax expenses as per statement of profit and loss - =
29.3 Details of carry forward losses, material disputes and unused credit on which no deferred tax
assot is recognised by the Company aro as follows:
The unabsorbed depreciation is available for offsetling all fulure taxable profits of the Company and can be
carried forward indefinitely. The business loss can be carried forward for 8 years from the year in which losses
arose. Business loss, to the axlent remaining unutilized will expire In FY 2026-27 and FY 2027-28.
The Company has opted for concessional lax regime u/s.115BAA since FY 20-21 and accordingly MAT s not
applicable.
The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and broughl forward losses amounting to ® 820.90 Crore
(previous year: ¥ 1,370.29 Crore).
The Company recelved notice u/s. 148 of the Act for FY 2015-16 for reassessment against which the Company
has preferred a wril which has been admilted by the Hon'ble Gujaral High Court and stay has been granied
on passing of any final order.
30. Componants of other comprahensive Income (OCI)
It includes re-measurement profit on defined benefit plans of ¥ 3.74 Crore (previous yoar: loss of ¥ 3,70
Crore), refer Note 32
31. Earnings per equity share (EPS)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic and diluted
Net profit after tax attributable to equily shareholders 629.74 795.24
Weighted average number of equity shares 203 71,254 2.93,70,607

Basic and diluted earnings per share of ¥ 10 each 214.41 270.76
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32. Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plan:

During the year the Company has recognised # 11.09 Crore (previous year  9.62 Crore) in the statement of
profit and loss towards employer contribution to provident fund/ pension fund. The Company manages
provident fund plan for its employees which Is permilted under Lhe Employees’ Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The plan mandatas contribution by employer at a fixed percentage of
employee’s salary, Employeas also contribule to the plan at a fixed percentage of their salary as a minimum
contribution and additional sums at thelr discretion. The plan guarantees Interest at the rate natified by
Employees' Pravident Fund Organisation. The coniribution by employer and employee together with interest
are payable at the time of separation from service or retirement whichever Is earlier. The benefit under this
plan vesis Immediately on rendering of service.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five or more years of
service Is eligible for gratulty. Graluily Is compuled based on 15 days salary based on last drawn salary for
each completed year of service. The scheme Is partially funded with an Insurance company In the form of a
gualifying insurance policy.

321 Net employee benefits expense recognised In statement of profit and loss and in OCI:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Currant service cost 4.28 3.68
Net interest cost 1.53 1.06
Total oxpense recognised in statement of profit and loss - A 6.81 474
Re-measurement for the period - obligation (gain) / loss (3.74) 411
Re-measurement for the period - plan assets (gain) / loss ¥ (0.32)
Total expense recognised In OCI- B {3.74) 379
Grand total - C (A+B) 2.07 B.53

32.2 Changes in the defined benefit obligation:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opaning defined benefit obligation 36,35 20.04
Add: Adjustments on account of merger - (4.76)
Current service cost 4,28 .68
Interest cost 2.70 1.95
Benefits paid (2.17) (2.15)
Acquisition adjustments/ settiement cost -~ 4.48
Re-measurement adjustments:

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1.0} 0.42
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financlal assumptions 0.68 112
Experience adjustment (l.e. actual experience vs assumptions) {3.43) 2.67
Closing defined benefit obligation 37.41 36.36

*Less than # 0.01 Crore
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323 Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening falr value of plan assets 15.79 14.50
Add: Additions on account of merger - {2.91)
Interest income 14T, 0.84
Contributions by employer towards approved fund 3.95 220
Benefits pald (217) (2.15)
Acquisition adjustments/ settlemant cost -* 284
Re-measurement adjustments:

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised In Interest expense - 0,32
Closing fair value of plan assets 18.74 15.79

*Less than # 0,01 Crore

324 Funds managed by Insurer Is 100% for March 31, 2024 (previous year: 100%). The composition of
investment in respect of funded defined benefit plans are not avallable with the Company the same has
not been disclosed.

32.5 Not asset/ (liabllity) recognised In the balance sheet;

March 31,2024 March a1, 2023

Currant portion 418 3.25
Non-current portion 33.23 33.10
Presant value of defined benefit obligation as al the end af the year T4 36.35
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year B 18.74 15.79
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet (18.67) (20.56)

32.6 Principal assumptions used In determining long term employee benefits:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate (in %) 710 7.40
7.50% for 2025 and 8%

Future salary increases (in %) tharaafier 9%

Life expectation {In years) 5.37 B.55

Adtrition rate 23.90% at younger ages and 26.60% al younger ages and

reducing to 8.30% at older ages reducing to 6.20% at older ages
according |o gradualed scale  according to graduated scale

During the year, the Company has re-assessed the actuarlal assumption for attrition rate based on trend of
attrition.

32.7 Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions:

Interest rate risk: The plan exposes lhe company to the risk of fall in Interest rates. A fall in Interest rates will
result in an Increase In the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an Increase in the
value of the liability.
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Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
Increase rate of plan participants in fulure. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary In future for plan
participants from the rate of increase In salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a

bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic risk; The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the
liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experlence tuming out to be worse compared to the

assumption,
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Decrease Increase  Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 1%) 3.27 (2.85) a.74 (3.22)
Future salary increases (- / + 1%) (2.84) 3.19 (3.21) .65
Altrition rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 2.35 (1.33) 1,79 {1.11)

32.8 Expectod benefit payment for the next years:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 year 418 3.256
210 5 years 14.58 11.63
G 1o 10 years 15.47 14.79
Mare than 10 years 41,76 57.07

For the year ending on March 31, 2025, the Company expects to contribute # 23.10 Crore (previous year: #

24.81 Crore) towards its defined benefit plan.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligalion at the end of the financial year is 8 years (previous

year: 10 years),

33. Leases

The Company has lease contracts for land used in its operations and maintenance sarvices. Leases of land
have lease terms ranging between 1 - 5 years, The Company's obligations under Its leases are secured by the
lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company Is resiricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets. The Company also has certain leases of premises with lease terms of 12 months or less and
with low value. The Company applies the 'short-term lease' and 'lease of low-value assels' recognition

axemptions for these leases.

331 The movement in ROU asset land during the year and carrying value are as follows;

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 11.39 17.09
Additlons - -
Amortisation expense (5.69) (6.69)
Closing balance 5.70 11.39

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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33.2 The movement in lease liabilities during the year are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Opening balance 13.056 18.28
Additions = z
Finance cosl accrued during the year 0.97 1.47
Faymeanl of lease llabilities (7.03) (6.70)
Closing balance 6.99 13.05
33.3 The following are the amounts recognised In the statement of profit and loss:
Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Amortisation expense on right-of-use assets 5.69 5.89
Interest expense on lease liabllities 0.97 1.47
Rental expense for short-term leases (included in other expenses) 12,48 9.91
Total 19.14 17.07

33.4 Detalls of contractual maturities of lease liabllitles are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Mot |ater than one year 6.99 6.06
Later than one year and not later than five years - 6.99
Later than five years .

Total 6.99 13.05

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9% with maturity between 2023 and 2025, During the year, the

Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 18,51 Crore (previous year ¥ 16.61 Crore).

34. Capital and other commitments: Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts

and not provided for, net of advances ¥ 5.77 Crore (previous year: ¥ 5.36 Crora).

35. Contingent liabilities

Nature March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (refer 14.66 14.37
Mote a below)

Amounts in respect of MSMED for which the Company Is 1.01 1.07
contingently liable

Total 16.57 15.44

{a) Claims against the Campany not acknowledged as debfs Includes demand fram customs duty, service
tax, VAT, GST and labour department for various matters. The Company/ tax department has preferred
appeals on these matters and the same are pending with various appeliate authorities. Considering the

facts of the maltars, no provision is considered necessary by the management

(b) The Company has also one income tax matter where the Company has preferred appeals an that matter
and the same are pending with appeliate authority. As the Company has sufficlent carry forward losses

contingent liabilities,

avallable for set-off In case the Company loses, the liabllity is neither provided nor disclosed above under
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{c] A few lawsuits have been filed on the Company by some of their suppliers for disputes in fulfilment of
obligations as per supply agreements. Further, few customers of the Company have disputed certaln
amount as recelvable which the Company belleves s contractually not payable, These matlers are pending
for hearing before respective courts, the autcome of which Is uncertain, The managament has provided
portion of an amount as a matter of prudence which it believes shall be the probable outflow of resources.

Rest of the claim is not disclosed above under contingent liabillties is considered necessary by the
management.

36. Segment Informatlon

April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 April 1, 2022 to March 31,2023

Particulsrs OMS  Project Pawer Total OMS  Project Power Total
divisien genoration division generation
division division

Segment ravanua 1,7658.79 501.15 0.80 226074 184017 35714 1.62 1.808493
Segment resulls 675.04 (B8.31) 0.66 66829 J333.87 {15.33) 142 31966
Add [ (less) ltems to reconcile
with profit as per statement
of profit and loss
Add: Financa income B5.02 T2.42
Lass: Finance costs {149.28) {190.78)
tont f:‘;“;::"“"“““" (604.03) 201,32
Add: Exceplional gain [25.71) {503.92)
Less: Tax expensea - -
Profil after tax 620.74 795.24
Sagmant assels 1.242.61 615.18 nD.a7 1,B58.56 1.223.03 B17.79 0.86 184168
Common assats 783.33 647 68
Enterprise assets 2,641,089 248036
Sagment llabllities 32646 368.30 - BO4.TE 43246 416,668 = B48.12
Comman llablliies 1,287.38 1,814,908
Enterprise liabilities 1,982,186 2,463.10
Depradciation 20.38 1.48 0.08 2196 3m.2a 0.88 0.09 38220

[THIS SPAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts in ¥ Crore, unless otherwise stated

e

37. Related party transactions
37.1 List of related parties

Sr.  Name of the entity Nature of rolationship
Mo,
1 Suzlon Energy Limited Holding company
2 Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Limited Subsidiary
4 Suzlon Wind Energy (Lanka) Pvt. Limited Fallow subsldiary
4 Suzlon Energy Australla Ply, Lid Fallow subsidiary
5 Suzlon Wind Energy Equipment Trading (Shanghal) Co. Fellow subsidiary
6 SE Fome Limited Fellow subsidiary
T Suzlon Enorgy A/S Fellow subsidiary
8 Aalok Solarfarms Limited Associale company
8 Abha Solarfarma Limitod Associale company
10 Heramba Renewables Limited ¥ . Associale company
11 Shrayas Solarfarms Limited ¥ Assoclale company
12 Mrs, Shivan| R, Mirgudiar Kay Manngamant Parsonnel (KMP)
13 Mr. Vinod R. Tantl Kay Managamant Parsonnal (KMP)
14  Mr. Ranjitsinh A, Parmar Koy Management Parsonnal (KMP)
18 Mr. Himenshu Maody 1 Key Management Personnal (KMP)
16 Mr. Ajay Malhur 10 Key Management Persannel (KMP)
17 Mr, Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman Koy Managoment Personnal (KMP)
18 Mr. Per Homung Pedarson Koy Managomant Personnel (KMP)
18  Mr. Ishwar Chand Mangal ™ Kay Managament Personnal (KMP)
20 Mr. Om Prakash Talwar Key Management Personnal (KMP)
21 Mr. Mr, Salmm Prasad (™ Kay Managameant Personnal (KMP)
22 Mr. Jitendra R. Tanl Ralatives of Key Manageman! Parsonnel (RKMP)
23  Mr. Girsh R. Tanti Retatives of Kay Management Porsonnel (RKMP)
24  Rambhaban Ukabal Relatives of Key Management Parsonnel (RKMP)
25 Suzlon Foundation Entitles whare KMP! REMP have significant influence
26  Shubh Realty (South) Private Limited Entities whera KMP/ RKMP have significant Influence
27 SE Frolght and Logistics Indla Pyt Ltd Entities whara KMP/ RKMP have significant influence
<8 Sarjan Realities Privata Limited Entities whera KMP/ REMP have significant inflluonce
28 Tanll Holdings Private Limited Entities whera KMP/ RKMP have significant Influence
30 Samiran Realtles Limited Entittes whara KMP/ RKMP have slgnificant influence
31 Samanvaya Holdings Private Limited Entities whara [KMPf REMP have significant influance
32  Pufaa Shres Graen Powar Pyt Lid Entities whera KMP/ REMP have significant influence
33 Pujaa Shree Graen Renewable Won Pyt Lid Entities whera KMP! RKMP have significant influance
34 Suzlon Global Services Limited- Gratulty Fund Employee fund
35 Suzlon Global Services Limited- Superannuation Fund Employesa fund

i Appointed w.e.f. October 18, 2023

"l Resigned w.el September 21, 2023

" Appointed w.e.f. January 16, 2024

W Resigned as CEO w.a.f, January 16, 2024 and appointed as Direclor w.e.l, February 01, 2024
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37.2 Transactions between the Company and related parties during the year and the status of
outstanding balances as at March 31, 2024:

Particulars Holding Fellow Assoclate  Entities where KMP  RKMP Employee
company subsidiary KMP! REMP fund
have significant
Influence
Purchase of gooda 33.70 - - - . =
and services (44.80) (+) {) (-) (<) (=) (=)
Purchasa of 0.18 E = = 5 =
Fixed assets {-) {-) () (-) (=) (=) {-)
Sale of goods and 191.87 3.03 . 2.6 0.29 0.89
sarvices (204.56) (4.28) (0.71) (2.14)  (0.34)  (0.85) )
Interest exponse ol . X ) ) a )
(169.20) (0.04) {-) (=) (=) (-) (=)
Consultancy 40.00 - = 5 ) B .
charges (40.00) () (-) ) () () ()
T 108,14 0.58 . : . ; =
oo (69.72) (0.06) {-} () (-} (=) =)
Relmbursement of = = - - - - -
amotnt recelvable (4.06) (-) () (-) () () ()
" - 292 . 7.1 - ; :
i (066)  (0.12) 3 686) () (9 “
Donation given = . ) kit ) i )
(=) {=) (=) (2.38) {-) (-} ()
Managerial * 2 - - 5.90 - .
remune¢ation ) () (-) () (3.66) (-) ()
a - = " 0.07 & i
il (<) () () () (0.04) (=) ()
40,37 - . - - - "
sl (263.46) (- (4 ) ) ) ()
Contribution to - . . - - 4.37
gratulty fund (-) (=) () {-) (=) (-] (2.80)
Corporate 2,800.00 - - 5 - - .
Gueranies givan ) () () () () ) ()
- 2.50 . - - 2 :
s (-) () () (- G ()
Machine avallability " - . 053 001 . .
i stirsban () () () (0.13) ) ) ()
Share based = - - - 1.38 . .
payAant ) ) () ) () ) )
Repayment of loan 479.72 . . ; . . P
taken (575.63) {-) (-) () {) {-) ()
Realisation of loan . 2821 . - . . =
given (-) {-) {-) {-) {-) (-) {)
Reimbursement of 20.43 - . - 0.a7 . -

. 9xpenses payoble (22.08) {) (=) {) (<)

=
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Outstanding balances:

Entities whoro
Holdin Fellow KMP! RKMP
Partioylars company subsidiary APsoclate o lgnificant  KMP  RKMP
Influance
- N * - .00~ -
Diroct i
rector sitting leas payable ) ) 4 (4 (0.009 )
Loans given outstanding 63818 1698.20 - - - -
(Including Intarest) (562.99) (224,00) () (=) {-) ()
- .18 - - = -
Contract liabllities
S (80.75) () () (- ) )
65.94 0.56 : 0,63 - 008
=
S PackTe ¥ (136.50) (2.70) (0.20) (147)  (0.09)  (0.27)
Tkl 15,87 10.78 . 0.00 . .
(33.63) (7.70) {=) (1,40} -} {~)
Compulsorily convertible 360.37 ” = . = g
debentures (375.11) (-] (-) ) () -}
23.02 = . - = ]
FriviTenss sine (20.75) () (-) (-) ) (4)
Unsecured lean outsianding 884,00 - - - - .
(including Interest) (1.218.12) (-} (-) -} {-) (=)
Impairmant allowanca on loans ¥ i y . . '
{~) (224.00) {=) {*) [ {-)
19.16 . = = . =
1 accrued but not d
BT i (19.02) (4 () T
2147 a - = - B
Equity portion of CCD (gess & H ) ) e
2.800,00 ) n - ] :
Guarantes gi
SRR geR () () () ) () (-
. 191,60 Z s . 5
|
rvestment in aquity shares () (191.60) ) (-) (=) (=)
Impairment allowance on - 191.60 . - ) :
Investmants (-) {191.80) (=1 =l (=) {-)
1,51 . z . : -
Other current financial
ki () (4 ) B0 B

Figures in the bracket are In respect of previous year.

*Less than ¥ 0.01 Crore

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




Suzlon Global Services Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year endod March 31, 2024
All amounts In  Crore, unless olherwise stated

37.3 Disclosure of significant transactions with related parties

Typae of the transaction Typa of rolationship Nama of the antity | parsen Yaoar andod March 31,
2024 2023
m:g;n of geods and Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 33.70 44,89
Sale of goods and services Helding company Suzlon Enargy Limitad 191,87 204.56
Managerial remunaration KM Mr. lshwar Chand Mangal 3,16 2408
KMP Mr. Om Prakash Talwar 1.53 1.06
Eiu'lF" L Mr. Salram Prasad 1.06 -
Rent paid hove aioniioant inflance. Saian Reallios Limitad 703 B70
Fellow Subsidiary Suzlon Gujarat Wind Park Lid 2,02 .
Interast expensa Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 147.80 169.20
Consultancy chames Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 40.00 40.00
Interest Income Helding company Suzlon Enargy Limited 106,14 Be.T2
KMP Mr. Per Homung Pederson 0.01 0.01
Direcior sitting fees KMP Ms. Seemantinea Khot 0,02 0.00"
KMP Mr. Vaidhyanathan Raghuraman 0.03 0.02
GSR exponditure E:ﬂ;“;ﬂmgnfmjgﬂp Suzion Foundation 259 2.39
Machine avallablility Entities where KMP/RKMP  SE Freight and Logistics India 0,21 2
axpendilura have significant influance Privata Limited
Tanti Holdings Private Limited - 0.13
Samanvaya Holdings Pvt. Lid. 0.32 -
Contribution to gratuity fund  Employee funds gﬁ;ﬂ%%’gg’u‘;’gﬁw Sillre 4.20 2.80
Loans laken Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 40.37 253.46
Loans glven Subsidiary company Suzlon G:l-j;rﬂt Wind Park Limitad 2.50 m
marmoment of ©XENSaS  oiding company Suzlon Energy Limited 2043 2298
Raimbursemant af aXpens0S  oiing company Suzlon Energy Limited : 4.06
Realisation of loan givan Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited 2821 -
Caorporate guarantos glven Holding company Suzlon Energy Limlted 2,800.00 -
ESOP Expanses KMP Mr. Ishwar Chand Mangal 0.96
KMpP Mr. Om Prakash Talwar 0.42 -
Repayment of loan taken Holding company Suzlon Energy Limited A749.72 575.63

37.4 Compensation of key management parsonnel of the Company recognised as an expense during
the financial year

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Short-term employee benefits 5.50 3.30
Post-employment benefits 0.40 0.36
Share based payments 1.38 -

Total v.28 3.66
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37.5 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent 1o those that prevall in arm's length
transactions. Outstanding balances al the year-end are unsecured and setllement occurs in cash, There have
been no guaraniees provided or recelved for any related party recelvables or payables. This assessment s
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

Falr value measurements

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are considerad to be same as thelr carrying values excepl
for the investments in units of mutual funds, The fair value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the
NAV of the respective units In the active markel at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 and level 3 during the year and earlier comparative periods,
The Company's policy Is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at lhe
end of the financial year.

38.1 Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’'s financial assets and llabllities at Level 2

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assets
Investment in Mulual Fund 8,35 -
Total 8.35 -
Financial liabilities - -

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabllities, comprises borrowings, trade and other payables, The main
purpose of these financial liabilities Is to finance the Company's operations and to provide support to its
operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its oparations. The company also holds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk which may adversely impact the fair value
of its financial instruments. The Company has conslituted an Internal Risk Management Committes (RMC)
which is responsible for developing and monitoring the company's risk managemant framework, The focus of
the RCM is that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policles and procedure and
that the financial risk are |dentified, measured and managed In accordance with the Company’s policies and
risk objective. The Company's policy that no trading in derivative for speculative purpose may be undertaken,
The risk management policies is approved by the board of director,

40,1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes In market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: Interest rate risk and forelgn currency risk
The Company's exposure to market risk Is primarlly on account of interest risk and foreian currency risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings.

The sensitivily analysis In the following sectlons relates 1o the position as at March 31, 2024 and as at March
31, 2023,

a. Intorest rate risk

Interest rate rigk is the risk that the fair value or futlure cash flows of a financial inatrument will Nuctuate
because of changes in market interest rates
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b. Foreign currency risk and sonsitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes In foreign exchange rates. As the Company does nol have material exposure to the foreign
currency, there is no risk assoclaled with changes in foreign exchange ratas.

The Company's exposure lo forelgn currency risk as at the end of the financlal year are:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
USD Euro Others uso Euro Others

Financial assects

Trade recelvables 3.468 - 0.18 6.96 - 0,74
Other assaets 287 11.86 - 3.88 7.74 0.05
Total 6.33 11.86 018  10.84 T.74 0.79
Finaneial liabllities

Trade payables 0.47 1018 0.05 1.74 10.80 0.04
Other liabilities 047 0.8 - 0.35 . -
Total 0.64 1037 0.05 2.09 10.80 0.04

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Company's currency exposures in respect of monelary Items as al March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023 that result in net currency gaine and losses in the income statemaent and equily arise principally from
movemant in US Dollar and Euro exchange rates.

The following tables demonstrale the sensilivity o a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO
axchange rates, with all other variables held constant, The Company's exposure lo foreign currency
changes for all olher currencies is nol material. The other currencles Includes Australian Dollar, Greal
Britain Pound and Danish Kroner.

Change in Effect on profit before tax
Currency nurrnhnacygmh March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ISD +5% 028 (0.18)
uso -5% (0.28) 015
EURD +5%, 0.07 0.44
EURO -5% (0.07) (0.44)

40.2 Crodit risk

Cradit risk |s the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-parly fails to meel its contractual
obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities (primarily loans). The Company consistently monitors the financial health of its
customers and sales proceeds are being realised as per the milestone payment terms agreed to minimise the
loss due to defaulis or insolvency of the customer, Progressive liquidity managament is being followed fo de-
risk the Company from any non-fulfiiment of iis liabilities to various creditors, statulory obligations, or any
slakeholders.

a. Trade recelvables

The Company's exposure 10 frade recelvables is limited due to diversified customer base. The Company
consistently monitors progress under its cantracts with customers and sales proceeds are being realised as
< per the milestone payment terms agreed to minimise the loss due to defaulls or insolvency of the customer.
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An impairment analysis is parformed al each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition,

a large number of minor recelvables are grouped Into homogenous groups and assessed for Impalment
collectively,

b. Financlal instruments

Financial instruments thal are subject to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of cash and cash
equivalents, term deposit with banks and other financial assets. Investments of surplus funds are made only
with approved counterpartias and within credit limits assigned.

The Company’'s maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 is the
carrying value of each class of financial assets.

40.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to thal risk where the Company cannot mael its financial obligations, The objective of
liquidity risk management Is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirement, In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. The Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facllities by continuously monitoring cash
flow forecast and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below summarises the contractual malurity profile of the Company's financlal llabliities based on
contractual undiscounted payment:

Upto1year 1-S5years > 5years Total

March 31, 2024

Borrowlngs - - BA4.00 A84.00
Redesmable cumulative preference shares 2.78 20.24 " 23.02
Compulsorily convertible debentures . 38037 - 38037
Other financial liabilities 30.60 - - 30,80
Trade and other payables 34413 = " 34413
Total aTr.si 400.61 B84.00 1,662.12
March 31, 2023

Borrowings - - 1,219.12 121912
Redeemable cumulative preference shares - 20,75 - 20.75
Compulsorily convertible debeniures - ars.1 - 3rs.11
Other financial liabilites 3. . - 31.91
Trade and other payables 428.04 . - 428.04
Total 460,95 309586  1,219.42 2,075.93

41. Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

For detalls of loans and guarantees given 1o related parties for general corporate purpose rafer Note 9.
For detalls of investments made refer Note 7.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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42. Ratios and its elements

Ratlo March 31, 2024 WMarch 31, 2023 % change
Current ratio

Current assets/ Current liabilitles 2.78 222 25,34
Debt - Equity ratio

Total debt/ Shareholders eguity 1.85 61.50 96.83

Debt service coverage ratio !

EBITDA (excluding non-cash expenses) Inlerest +
principal repayments
Return on Equity ratic ™

Met prafit alter tax - Preferenca dividend (If any )/ Equity
shareholder’s funds * 100 95.45 3,028.33 96,85

Inventory turnover ratio

Sales/ average Inventory 2.66 2.50 3.78
Trade receivables turnover ratlo !

Sales! average receivables 3.54 3.26 872
Trade payable turnover ratio !

Met credll purchases! average payables 2.14 2.14 0.05
Mot capital turnover ratio 1

Sales (includes only revenue from aperation and other

operating income)/ Capital employed = lotal assets -
current liabllities

Met profit ratio ™
Met profit { Sales 027 0.10 165.29
Return on capital employed (%) ™

Earnings before Interest and tax (EBIT) Capital empioyed
= {otal assats - current liabilities

Return on Investment (%) |1
Finance Income/ Investmeant 12.81% 12.52% 228

1.21 1.40 (13.16)

1.4 118 (3.58)

33.70% 18.98% 77.80

Reasons for varlance

i There s no significant change (i.e. change of more than 25% as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in the key financial ratios,

(i mproved margins, profitability, cash and reduction in debt has resulted in movement In certain ratios.
43, OCther information

a. On May 22, 2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of Suzlon Energy
Limited, the parent company of the Company ("NRC") has granted certain stock options (o its employees
and to the employees of its subsidiaries under the Employea Stock Option Plan 2022 at an exercise price
of # 5.00 per option. Accordingly, employees of the Company also received the aptions In the form of share-
based payment transactions. The cost of equity setiled transactions is recovered by the parent Company
from the Company based on the estimated options that will vest 1o the employees of the Companies, As
per the terms of approval of NRC, 50% of the oplions vested on May 22, 2024,

b. On May 02, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Scheme of amalgamation
involving merger by absarption of the Company (‘the Transferor Company’) with the parent Company
Suzlon Energy Limited (the “Transferee Company”), under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the "Scheme"), subject to requisite statutory/ regulatory approvals including the approval of the Honourable
Naﬂunal Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench ("NCLT").
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¢. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inltiated or pending

d.

against the Company for helding any Benam| property.

The Company do not have any charges or salisfaction which is yet lo be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period,

. The Company have nol traded or invested In Cryplo curreney or Virlual Currency during the financial year,

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(les), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

I directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficlaries) or

il provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forelgn entities
(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or olherwise) that the Group shall

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

During the year, the management noted certain unethical practices by an employee of the Company, not
being key managerial persannel, involving an offence of fraud. These offences Involving fraud amounted to
# 0.54 Crore, relating lo prior years and were in the nature of issuance of unauthorised credit notes to the
customers and fabricating customer's purchase orders. The Management has initiated additional
procedures / enquiries, which are ongoing and certain other suspected transactions by the sald employee
are under review. The employee has resigned from the Company with effect from March 31, 2023, Further,
the Company has filed First Information Report (FIR) against the said employee. The Management has
since slrengthened customer confirmation process for reconciling its balances with their customers, and
enhanced meonitoring controls over periodic preparation and review of such cuslomer account
reconci|iations throughout the year, While the assessment of the overall impact on the financial is yet to be
concluded, no material adjustments are expected to these financial statements

The Company have not any such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1861 (such as, search or survey),

Details of immovable properties classified under property, plant and equipment in balance sheet not held
in the name of the Company:

Description of Gross Title deeds Whether title deed  Property  Reason for not being held

Itern of proparty carrying  held in the holder |s a promoter, held since in the name of the

vialue (in ¥ namo of director or relative of which date Company
crare) promoter/ director or
employes of
promoter director

15 freehold lands

10,50 Suzlon Ne  10years  The lille deeds are in

located at various Windfarm the pame of SWSPL,

locations Services
admeasuring 57.3 Private

arstwhlle SEL-OMS

acres Limited divislon, which was

{.SWEPLI} margﬁd with the
Company w.e.f. March

208, 2014,
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2 freehold lands D48  Suzlon Mo dyears The lille deeds are In the
located at multiple Power name of SPIL, which was
locations Infrastruclure merged with the Company
admeasuring 4.4 Limited w.e.f April 01, 2020
acres ('SPILY)

. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for company under the proviso
to Rule 3(1) of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts ) Ameandment
Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall
use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trall of each and every transaction,
crealing an edil log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes
were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account. During the year ended
March 31, 2024, the Company has enablad audit trail (edit log), which has operated throughout the year at
the application level for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. The Company has
nol enatlad the fealure of recording audit trail (edit log) at the database level for the said accounting
software to log certain transactions recorded with privileged access and any direct data changes on account
of recommendation In the accounting software administration guide which states that enabling the same at
the time consumes storage space on the disk and can Impact dalabase performance significantly. The end
user does not have any access to database |Ds which can make direct data changes (create, change,
delete) at database level,

44, Capltal management

For the purpose of lhe Company's capllal management, capllal includes issued equity capital, securilies
premlium and all other equity reserves allributable to the equily holders of the Company. The primary objective
af the Company's capital managemenl is to safeguard its ability to reduce the cost of capital and to maximise
shareholder value,

The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions
and the requiremants of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt (total borrowings and
Iease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity (as shown In the balance sheet).

The gearing ratios are as below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Met debt 1,195.36 1,580.64
Total equity B859.74 26.26
Not debt to equity 1.81 60.19

The net debt to equity ratio for the current year reduced as a result of improved performance which resulted in

an increase |n operaling cash flows and therefore repayment of loans and cash held by the Company at the
end of the year

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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45. Prior year amounts have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm with current year presentation. The
impact of such reclassification/ regrouping is not material to the financial statements.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Far and an behall of (he Board of Direclors of
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To, ) Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
The Board of Directors, 3rd flaar, Unit No. 310 te 312,
Suzlon Energy Limited West Wing, Nyati Unitres

& Shrimali Society Magar Road, Yerwada,

MNear Shree Krishna Complex,
Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad,

Pune -'411 DE&
Maharashira, India

T 451 20 6744 8885

Gujarat— 380 009 F +31 20 6744 BBI9

Independent auditor's certificate on the proposed accounting treatment included in the Draft
Scheme of amalgamation pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

1.

This certificate is Issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 05 May
2024 with Suzlon Energy Limited ('the Company’ or 'the Transferee Company’).

We, the statutory auditors of the Company, have examined the proposed accounting treatment
specified In Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme of amalgamation between the Company and Suzlon
Global Services Limited (‘the Transferor Company') and their respective shareholders and
creditors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Draft Scheme') as approved by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on 02 May 2024, in terms of the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act’) read with the Companies
{Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (‘the rules’) with reference to
its compliance with the accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) issued thereunder
(“applicable accounting standards") and other generally accepted accounting principles in India
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended)
('SEBI LODR'). A certifled true copy of the Draft Scheme, with the proposed accounting
treatment specified in Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme, as attached herewith in Appendix |, has
been initialed and stamped by us for identification purpose only

Management’s Responsibility

5

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme, and its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations, including the applicable accounting standards and other generally
accepted accounting principles In India, is that of the Board of Directors of the companies
invalved. This responsibility Includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation of the Draft Scheme and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable In the circumstances.

The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of the Act and the rules, and the applicable accounting standards and other
generally accepted accounting principles in India, in relation to the Draft Scheme, and for
providing all relevant information to the relevant Mational Campany Law Tribunal.

Auditor's Responsibility

Pursuant to the reqguirements of the relevamt laws and regulations, it Is our responsibility to
provide a reasonable assurance as to whether the proposed accounting treatment specified In
Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme complies with the SEBI LODR and the applicable accounting
standards and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

Cradsred Amourmnis Walker Chandiok & CoLLP in regisiered
wtin limited-inkitty waih ideckhcodion
Ofices n Ahmedabos, Bengaun, Cheedgach, Ghennay Dehmdan, Gon, Ganugmm, dysemmd, Kook, Koluma, Miumbs nurnber AAC-20E6 1 ang has s regisserea

Wety Dbl Moids ans Pans affics g L-41, Conraght Circurs, Ouler

Crrzie, Maw D2ihl, 170007, India
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6. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance MNote on Reporis or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) {'the Guidance Note'} issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('the I[CAI'). The Guidance MNote requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(5QC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements, issued by the ICAL

Opinion
8. Based on our examination as above and according to the information and explanations given

1o us, along with the representations provided by the management, In our opinion, the proposed
accounting treatment specified in Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme, attached herewith and
stamped by us for Identification only, is in compliance with the SEB| LODR and the applicable
accounting standards and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

Restriction on distribution or use

Q.

10.

Cur work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your
compliance with the requirements of the provisions of SEBI LODR, Sectlons 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the rules, for onward submission along with
the Draft Scheme to the relevant National Company Law Tribunal. Our obligations in respect
of this certificate are entirely separate from, and our responsibility and liabllity is in no way
changed by, any other role we may have as statutery auditors of the Company or otherwise.
MNothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of or in connection with the
services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend any duty of care we may have inour
capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

This certificate is issued at the request of the Company’s management for onward submission
along with the Draft Scheme to the relevant Mational Company Law Tribunal. Accordingly, this
certificate may not be suitable for any other purpose, and should not be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose or to any other pary without cur prior written consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other
purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our
prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500073

Shashi
Partner

Tadwalkar

Membership Mo, 101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPCF7632

Place: Pune
Date: 710 May 2024
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Annexure I: - Accounting treatment prescribed as per clause 08 of Proposed Scheme Of Merger by
Absorption of Suzion Global Services Limited ("Transferor”) with Suzlon Energy Limited ("the Company” or
“The Transfares Company™)

B12

813

B15.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF SUZLON ENERGY LIMITED

Upon scheme being effective, the Transferee Company shall account for amalgamation in accordance
with “Pooling of Interest Method” laid down by Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business combinations of
entities under common contrel) notified under Sectlon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other applicable accounting standards prescribed under the Act
as below:

All assets. liabllities and reserves of Transferor Company transferred to and veslad in the Transferee
Company shall be recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferee Company at their respective
book values as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Transferae Company, baing
the holding company of the Transferor Company. No goodwill gets crealed pursuant to the above
Scheme.

The identity of the reserves pertaining to Transferor Company shall be preserved and shall appear in
the merged separate financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form in which they
appeared in the consolidated financial statements of the Transferee Company, being the Holding
Company of the Transferor Company,

To the extent that there are inter-company loans, debentures, deposits, obligations, balances or other
outstanding including any interest therson, as between the Transferar Company and the Transferee
Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and there shall be no assat or liability
in that behalf,

The investment in shares of the Transferor Company appearing in the books of accouynts of the
Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in
that bahalf;

The differanca, If surplus, between the (a) book value of assets, liabilities and reserves of Transferor
Company recorded in terms of sub-clause 8.1.1 and 8.1.2 above as adjusted by 8.1.3 above and (b)
the value of investment in share capital of Transferor Company cancelled in terms of sub-clause 8.1.4
above, shall be credited to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves of the
Transferee Company, and in case of deficil, adjusted to existing capital reserves or revenue resernves
of Transferea Company, in that order, and if the Transferea Company has no reserves or has
inadequate resarves, than the remaining deficit will be debited to an account titled 'Amalgamation
Adjustment Deficit Account’.

In case of any difference in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, the impact of the same will be quantified and adjusted in the revenue reserves of the
Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the
financial position on ha basis ol a consistent accounting policies

Comparative financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee Company shall be
restated for the accounting Impact of Scheme, as stated above, as if the amalgamation had occurred
from the beginning of the comparative penod.

For Suzlon Energy Limited

e,

F .\_1 I._ ||'|_| _.J"
W r;'rl.'f AY '
Authorised Signatory a\ /JE

Date: 10 May 2024




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

To, Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
The Board of Directars, 3rd flaar, Unit No. 210 te 312,
Suzlon Global Services Limited Wesl Wing, Myati Unitres
*Suzlon", 5, Shrimali Society, Nagar Road, Yerwada,

MNear Shree Krishna Complex,
Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad,

Pune -'411 DE&
Maharashira, India

T 451 20 6744 8885

Gujarat— 380 009 F +31 20 6744 BBI9

Independent auditor's certificate on the proposed accounting treatment included in the Draft
Scheme of amalgamation pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

1.

This certificate is Issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 05 May
2024 with Suzlon Global Services Limited (‘the Company’ or the 'Transferor Company').

We, the statutory auditors of the Company, have examined the proposed accounting treatment
specified In Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme of amalgamation between the Company and Suzlon
Energy Limited ( 'the Transferee Company') and their respective shareholders and creditors
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Draft Scheme’) as approved by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 02 May 2024, in terms of the provisions of the Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') read with the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 ('the rules’) with referance to
its compliance with the accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
the with reference to Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
issued thereunder (“applicable accounting standards") and other generally accepted
accounting principles in India and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) ('SEB| LODR'). A certified true copy of the Draft Schame, with
the proposed accounting treatment specified in Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme, as attached
herewith in Appendix |, has been initialed and stamped by us for identification purpose only,

Management’s Responsibility

5

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme, and its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations, including the applicable accounting standards and other generally
accepted accounting principles In India, is that of the Board of Directors of the companies
invalved. This responsibility Includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation of the Draft Scheme and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable In the circumstances.

The Management Is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of the Act and the rules, and the applicable accounting standards and other
generally accepted accounting principles in India, in relation to the Draft Scheme, and for
providing all relevant information to the relevant National Company Law Tribunal

Auditor's Responsibility

B.

Pursuant to the reqguirements of the relevamt laws and regulations, it Is our responsibility to
provide a reasonable assurance as to whether the proposed accounting treatment specified in

Crattersd Aocoumants Walker Chanoiol & Co LLP is regisiered
il limnit=d Hnklity st decibcadion
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme complies with the SEBI LODR and the applicable accounting
standards and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

6. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance MNote on Reporis or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) ('the Guidance Note'} issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('the I[CAI'). The Guidance MNote requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(5QC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements, Issued by the ICAI

Opinion
8. Based on our examination as above and according to the information and explanations given

to us, along with the representations provided by the management, In our opinion, the proposed
accounting treatment specified in Clause 08 of the Draft Scheme, attached herewith and
stamped by us for Identification only, is in compliance with the SEB| LODR and the applicable
accounting standards and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

Restriction on distribution or use

Q.

10.

Cur work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your
compliance with the requirements of the provisions of the SEBI LODR, Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the rules, for onward submission along
with the Draft Scheme to the relevant National Company Law Tribunal. Our obligations in
respect of this certificate are entirely separate from, and our responsibility and liability is in no
way changed by, any other role we may have as statutory auditors of the Company or
otherwise. Nothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of or in connection
with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend any duty of care we may
have in our capacity as statutery auditors of the Company.

This certificate is issued at the request of the Company’s management for onward submission
along with the Draft Scheme to the relevant Mational Company Law Tribunal. Accordingly, this
certificate may not be suitable for any other purpose, and should not be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose or to any other pary without cur prior written consent
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other
purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our
prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500073

Sountne.

Shashi
Partner

Tadwalkar

Membership Mo, 101797

UDIN: 24101797BKCPCEG6T1

Place: Pune
Date: 710 May 2024
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Annexure |1 - Accounting treatment prescribed as per clause 08 of Proposed Scheme Of Merger by
Absorption of Suzlon Global Services Limited ("Transferor”) with Suzlon Energy Limited (“the Company” or

“The Transferee Company")
8. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF SUZLON GLOBAL SERVICES LIMITED
8.1.  Upon scheme being effective, the Transferee Company shall account for amalgamation In accordance

8.1.1.

8.1.2

813

814

8.1.5.

For Suzion Global Services Limited

Authorised Signatary
Date: 10 May 2024

with “Pooling of Interest Method” laid down by Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Businass combinations of
entities under common contrel) nolified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other applicable accounling standards prescribed under the Act
a5 below:

All assets, liabllities and reserves of Transferor Company transferred (o and vested in the Transferee
Company shall be recorded in the books of accounts of (he Transferee Company al their respeclive
book values as appearing in the consolidated financial statements of the Transferae Company, being
the holding company of the Transferor Company. No goodwill gets created pursuant to the above
Scheme.

The identity of the reserves pertaining to Transferor Company shall be preserved and shall appear in
the merged separate financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form in which they
appeared In the consolidated financial statements of the Transferee Company, being the Holding
Company of the Transleror Company,

To the extent that there are Inter-company loans, debentures, deposits, obligations, balances or other
outstanding including any interest thereon, as between the Transferar Company and the Transferoe
Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and there shall be no asset or liability
in that behalf.

The investment in shares of the Transferor Company appearing in the books of accounts of the
Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in
that bahalf,

The difference, if surplus, between the (a) book value of assets, liabilities and reserves of Transferor
Company recorded In terms of sub-clause 8.1.1 and 8 1.2 above as adjusted by 8.1 3 above and (b)
the value of investment in share capital of Transferor Company cancelled in terms of sub-clause 8.1 .4
above, shall be credited 1o capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves of the
Transferee Company, and in case of deficit, adjusted to existing capital reserves or revenue reserves
of Transferee Company, in that order, and if the Transferee Company has no reserves or has
inadequate reserves, then the remaining deficlt will be debited to an account titled 'Amalgamation
Adjustment Deficit Account’.

In case of any difference in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the Transferpe
Company. the impact of the same will be quantified and adjusted In the revenue reserves of the
Transleree Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the
financial pasition on the basis of a consistent accounting policies,

Comparative financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee Company shall be
restated for the accounting impact of Scheme, as stated above, as if the amalgamation had occurred
from the beginning of the comparative period,




